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SPL WorldGroup B.V.
having its corporate seat at Amsterdam

Deed of amendment to the articles of association

‘ ' CERTIFIED COPY of a deed of amendment to the articles of association of

. SPL WorldGroup B.V., a private company with limited liability, having its
corporate seat at Amsterdam, executed on June 5, 2002, before M.P.
Bongard, Esq., a civil-law notary in Amsterdam.



MINUTES _
of the extraordinary general meeting

of shé:e_holders of
SPL WorldGroup B.Y., ]
having its corporate seat at Amsterdam
* (hereinafter referred to as the "Company")

held on May 13, 2002 in Amsterdam.

Chairman: Mr John C.C. Paans
Secretary: Mr Alex van Doorn

The chairman opened the meeting and stated that the Company’s Board of Mgnaging Directors has
advised him that no depositary receipts for shares in the Company have been issued with the
Company'’s concurrence and there are no persons to whom the law attributes the right éccruing to
holders of depositary receipts issued with the Company's concurrence.

T

The chairman established that the convocation of this meeting took place in accordance wnh the
Company’s 'Amc]es of Incorporation and the statutory provisions. The chairman furthermore informed
the meeting that, acchdmg lo the atiendance list, which will be attached to the minutes of this
meeting, 8,440,082 shares are represented at the meeting, constituting épproximately 61,1 % of the
entire issued share capital (éxcluding the shares that were repurchased by the Company, 1.e.187,767

shares).
The chairman brought up for discussion the following issues included in the agenda for this meeting:
1. the proposal to adopt an amendment to Article 22.1 of the Articles of Incorporation of the

Company so that, as amended, Article 22.1 shall be and read as follows:

“Article 22. Financial vear. Drawing up the annual accounts

1. The company’s financial year shall correspond with the calendar year.”



2. the proposal to authorize each lawyer of Baker & McKenzie in Amsterdam to apply for the
requisite statement of nd-objectidn from the Netherlands Ministry of Justice with respect to the
amendment to the Articles, and to have drawn up, to execute and to sign the deed of

amendment to the Articles of Incorporation.
The meeting unanimously adopted the agenda as moved by the chairman.

The chairman then proceeded to the first item on the agenda, being the amendment to the Articles of
Incorporation of the Company. The chairman put this proposal to a vote and observed that the

proposal was unanimously accepted by the shareholders present at the meeting.

The chairman proceeded to the second and last item on the agenda, being the authorization of each
lawyer of Baker & McKenzie in Amsterdam to apply for the requisite statement of no-objecfion
from the Netherlands Ministry of Justice with respect to the amendment to the Articles, and to have
drawn up, to execute and to sign the deed of amendment to the Articles of Incorporation. .

The chairman put this proposal to a vote and observed that all votes were cast in favor of this
proposal and therefore this proposal is hereby accepted.

Since no other business was transacted and no participant wished to address the meeting, the

chairman adjoumedbthe meeting.

Amsterdam, May 13, 2002.

John C.C. Paans | Alex van Doofn

Chairman | Secretary
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BAKER & MSKENZIE

The undersigned:

Mark Peter Bongard, Esq., a civil-law notary in Amsterdam, declares that the attached
document is a fair English translation of the deed of amendment to the articles of association
of the private cbmpany with limited liability: SPLonrldGr'oup B.V., with its corporate seat

in Amsterdam, executed on June 5, 2002.

In this translation an attempt has been made to be as literal as possible without jeopardizing

the overall continyity. Inevitably, differences may occur in translation, and if so the Dutch

text will govern by law.
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UNOFFICIAL TRANSLATION OF THE
DEED OF AMENDMENT TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF
SPI. WORI.DGROUP B.V.

‘On this day, the fifth day of June two thousand two, appeared before me, Mark

Peter Bongard, Esq., a civil-law notary in Amsterdam, hereinafter referred to

‘as: “Notary™:

Kim Francis Tan, Esq., born in Haarlem on the twenty-third day‘of March

nineteen hundred seventy-five, for the purpose hereof electing as his domicile

~ the office of the Notary (1017 PS Amsterdam, Leidseplein 29), holder of

driver’s license with number: 3131884416.

The deponent dec}ared:

The articles of association of the private company with limited liability: SPL
WorldGroup B.V., with corporate seat at Amsterdam, hereinafter referred to as:

the “company”, were most recently amended by notarial deed executed on the
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 thirtieth day of March two thousand, before H. van Wilsurn; Esq., at that‘time a
civil-law notary in Amsterdam.

The company’s articles of association now read as set forth upon the execution of
the aforementioned deed of amendment to the articles of association of the |
company.. |

On the thirteenth day of May two thousand two, an extraordinary general meeting
of shareholders of the company resolved to amend the company’s artiéles of
association.

A copy of the minutes of the aforementioned meeting of shareholders will be
attached to this deed.

At the aforementioned meeting, the deponent was given authority, among other
things, to apply for the certificate of no-objection required by law with respect to
the approved amendments to the company’s articles of association and to have
drawn up, to execute and sign the deed of amendment to the aﬁiclcs of
association. _

The ministerial statement of no-objection required by law was obtained with
respect to a draft of the deed of amendment to the articles of association by the |
order of the twenty-fourth day of May two thousand two, number B.V. 484272,
' which statement will be attached to this deed. _
In order to execute the resolution to amend the company’s articles df association,
the deponent subsequently declared that he her:eby amends the company’s articles
of association in such a manner that Article 22, péragraph 1 of the company’s
articles of association‘shall henceforth read as follows: |

“l. The company's financial year shall correspond with the calendar year.”
FINAL PROVISIONS

Finally, the deponent declared that the current financial year of the company shall
end on the thirty-first day of December two thousand two. |

The deponent is known to me, Notary. ‘ .
WITNESSETH THIS DEED,
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the original of which was drawn up and executed in Amsterdam on the date stated
in the first paragraph of this Deed. ‘ | |
The substance of this Deed was stated and clarified to the deponent. The deponent
declared that he had taken note of the content of the Deed timely before its ‘ |
execution, agreed to its content, and did not require a full reading of this Deed.
Subsequently, after limited reading in accordance with the ]av‘.v', this Deed was

signed by the deponent and me, Notary.
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SPL WorldGroup B.V.
having its corporate seat at Amsterdam -

Complete text of the articles of association

- The Articles of Association were most recently partially amended by deed of amendment,
o executed before M.P. Bongard, Esq., a civil-law notary in Amsterdam, on June 5, 2002.
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UNOFFICIAL TRANSLATION OF THE
MPLETE TEXT OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF

SPL WORLDGROUP B.V.
|
LES OF RAT
CHAPTER]
Definitions
icle

In these Articles of Incorporation, the following terms shall be defined as follows:

S _ a. general meeting: the corporate body conéisting of the shareholders;
b. general meeting of shareholders: the assembly of shareholders;
c. distnibutable part of the company's equity: that portion of the company's

equity which is in excess of its issued capital plus the reserves to be kept

by law;
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d. annual accounts: the balance sheet and profit and loss account plus
explanatory notes;
€. annual meeting: the general meetmg of shareholders convened to discuss

and adopt the annual accounts _

f. preferred shareholders meeting: the corporate body consisting of the
holders of the Series A preferred shares and the holders.o'f Series B
preferred shares.

HAPTER II

Name. Registered Office. Objects

Article 2. Name and registered office

1. | The company's name is: SPL. WorldGroup B.V.

2. The company has its registered office in: Amsterdam.

Article 3. Objects

The company's objects are:

a. to incorporate, part1c1pate in, conduct the management of and take any
other fmanc:la] interest in other companies and enterpnses

b. to render administrative, technical, financial, economic or manageﬁal
services to other compam'es, PErsons O enterprises; _

c. to acquire, dispose of, manage and utilize real and peréonal pfoperty,

| including patents, marks, licenses, permits and other industrial property
rights; |

d. to borrow and lend moneys, act as surety or guarantor in any other
manner, and bind itself jointly and severally or otherwise in addition to or
on behalf of others, |

the foregoing whether or not in collaboration with third parties and inclusive of

the performance and promotion of all z_ictivities which directly and indirectly

relate to those objects, all this in the broadest sense of the terms.

CHAPTER 111
Capital and shares. Register of Shareholders

icle 4. Authonzed capital. Classes of shares. Share premium reserve
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The company's authorized capital amounts to seven million five hundred
thousand Netherlands Guilders

“(NLG 7,500,000.--).

It is divided into sixty-two million five hundred thousand (62,500,000)
shares with a par value of twelve Netherlands Guildercents (NLG 0.12),
more specifically, four million four hundred é_nd eighty thousand eighty
(4,480,080) series A common shares,"ﬁfty-_two million three hundred and
two thousand three hundred (52,302,300) series B common shares, four
million (4,000,000) series C common shares, one million one hundred and
twenty-thouéand twenty (1,120,020) series A preferred shares and five
hundred and ninety-seven thousand siX hundred (597,600) series B
preferred shares. | |
With due observance of article 39, the Series ‘A'preferred shares are
convertible into Series A common shares a.ndvthe Series B preferred
shares are convertible into Series C common shares. Whenever a certain
number of issued Series A preferred shares or Series B preferred shares
are converted into a certain number of issued Series A common shares or
Series C common shares pursuant to article 39, the number of unissued
Series A preferred shares shall be deemed to have increased by the
number of Series A preferred shares so converted and the number of
unissued Series B preferred shares shall be deemed ti) have increased by
the number of Series B preferred shé:es so converted. Following such
conversion the aggregate'number of authorized Sen’es A préfen'ed shares
and the number of authorized Series A common shares, as well as the
aggregate number of authorized Series B preferred shares and the number
of authorized Series C common shares shall be the same as prior to the |
conversion.

All shares shall be registered. Share certificates shall not be issued.

- References in these Articles to 'shares’ and 'shareholders’ shall include all

classes of shares (the preferred shares and the common shares) and the
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holders of those shafes, except where the context requires otherwise.
References in these Articles to "preferred shares” shall include Series A
and B preferred shares, except where the context requires otherwise,
References_in these Articles to "common shares" shall include Series AB
and C of common shares, except where the context requires otherwise.
The company shall maintain separate share premium reserves for 1) the
Series A preferred shares, ii) the Series B preferred shares, and iii) the. |
.common shares (being the Series A, B and C common shares), on which
any amounts paid for the relevant shares above the par value of such
shares shall be booked and which reserves shall be debited, credited,. -
adjusted and/or cancelled (in whole or in part) in accordance with these
Articles of Incorporation.
H so permitted under law, the share premium reserves may be expressed
1n a foreign currency.
Upon the conversion of preferred shares into common shares, a
proportional part of the share premium reserve in relation to the preferred
shares being converted shall be transferred to the share premium reserve
in relation to the common shares. The proportional part of the relevant
share premium reserve meant in the previous sentence shall be determined
by 1) dividing the total amount of such sﬁafe'pfemimn reserve prior to the
conversion by the total number of issued shares of the relevant Series of
preferred shares, and subsequently ‘ii) multiplying the result by the
number of preferred shares being converted, and finally 1ii) subtracting
from the result after suE i) any amount which shall be charged to the
share premium reserve pursuant to article 39, in relation to an increase Qf
the issued capital upon the conversibn, if any,
- The sum of the par value of a Series A preferred share and the amount of
the share premium reserve in relation to the Series A preferred shares
divided by the number of issued Series A preferred shares, from time to

time, will be referred to in these Articles as the "Share A Value".
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The sum of the par value of a Series B preferred share and the ambunt of
the share premium reserve in relation to the Series B preferred shares
divided by the number bf ‘issued Series B pfeferred shares, from time to
time, will be referred to in these Articles as the "Share B Value".

Article 5. Register of Shareholders

1. The company's Board of Managing Directors shall keep a register in
which the names and addresses of all holders of shares shall be recorded,
specifying the date on which they acquired their shares, the date of
acknowledgment by or service upon the company, as well as the amount
paid for each_ share and the class and series of share.

The register shall also contain the names and addresses of all owners of a .
usufruct or pledge on those shares, specifying the date on which they
acquired such usufruct or pledge, the date of acknowledgm‘ent by or
E _ service upon the company and what rights they have been gTahted
; _ attaching to the shares under Articles 197 and 198, paras. 2 and 4, Book 2,
: | Dutch Civil Code.
. s | KR 2. Each shareholder, usufructuary and pledgee shall be obliged to noﬁfy thé
. ' | company of his address in writing.
3. The register shall be regularly updated. All entries in the register shall be
signed by a Managing Director.

4, The Board of Managing Directors shall, upon request, provide a

shareholder, usufructuary or pledgee with a complimentary excerpt from
the register relating to his right to a share.

5. The Board of Managing Directors shall deposit the register at the
company's registered office for inspection by the shareholders.

CHAPTER IV

Issue of shares. Own shares. Capital reducﬁon

Article 6. Issue of shares. Authorized corporate body

Shares, and rights to acquire shares, may only be issued pursuant to a resolution

by the Board of Managing Directors. Issuance shall be by means of a notanal
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deed, executed before a civil law notary authorized to practice in the Netherlands,

and to which those involved are party.

The Series A common shares shall only be created upon conversion of Series A

preferred shares and any share issue to (former) holders of such.‘shares by way_ of

a stock dividend, whether or not out of the share premium reserve and/or profit

reserve in relation to the Series A preferred shares.

The Series C common shares shall only be created upon conversion of Series B

preferred shares and any share issue to (former) holders of such shares by way of

a stock dividend, whether or not out of the share premium reserve and/or profit

reserve in relation to the Series B preferred shares.

Article 7. Terms and conditions of issue. Pre-emptive rights

1.

If a resolution to issue shares, or rights to abquire shares is adopted, the

price of the shares and the other terms and conditions of the issue shall

also be determined. The Board of Managing Directors shall also’

determine whether the existing shareholders shall have any pre-emptive

rights.

Article 8 Payment for shares

1.
2.

When a share is issued, its par value must be fully paid up.

Payment for shares must be made in cash except where different

consideration has been agreed upon. Payment in foreign cunenéy may

only be made with the company's appfoval.

Article 9. Own shares

1.
2.

The company may not subscribe to its own sHares when they are issued.

The company may acquire its own fully-paid shares or depositary receipts

therefor without payment of consideration. It may also acquire such |

shares or depositary receipts for consideration if:

a. the distributable part of the company's equity is equivalent to or
exceeds the acquisition price;

b. the nominal amount of the shares or depositary receipts for shares

in the company's capital to be acquired, and all such shares or



BARKER & MSKENZIE

7

depositary receipts for shares in such capital already held by the
company and its subsidiaries collectively does not exceed one-half
~of the issued capital; and o
. C the authority to acquire such shares has been granted by the Board
of Managing Directors. ‘ | |
The decisive factor for the validity of the acquisition shall be the value of
the company's equity according to the most recently adopted balance
sheet less the accjuisition price of shares in the company's capital and any
sums distributed to others out of profits or reserves which became payable
by the company and its subsidiaries after the date of the balance sheet.
If more than six months have elapsed since the expiration of any financial
year without adoption of the annual accounts, an acquisition in
accordance with para. 2 of this article shall not be pennittéd.
Any acquisition of shares in violation of para. 2 shéll be void.
The company may grant loans for the purpose of subscnbing to or
acquiring its shares or depositary receipts, however, subject to the sum of
its distributable reserves. |
Disposal by the company of any shares or depositary receipts for shares in
its capital held by the company shall require a resolution of the Board of
Managing Directors.
A resolution to dispose of any such shéres or depositary receipts shall also
contain the terms and conditions of the disposal.
Disposal by the company of its own shares shall require due observance
of the transfer restrictions.
No votes may be cast in respect of shares held by the company or shares
for which depositary receipts are held by the company. Nor may votes be
cast in respect of shares held by any of the company's subsidiaries or
shares for which depositary receipts are held by any of the company's

subsidiaries.
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8. When determining to what extent the company's capital is represented; of
| whether a majority represents a certain extent of capital, the capital shall
be reduced by the value of the shares for which no votes can be cast.
Article 10. Capital reduction
1. The general meeting may, with due observance of the relevant statutory
provisions, resolve to reduce the issued capital by a cancellation
("intrekking") of Sha:es or by a reduction of the parlvalue of the shares by
amendment of the Articles.
2. A capital reduction may be accomplished in respect of one specific class
and/or series of shares.
A reduction of the par value of shares must be accomplished in proportion
to the shares involved, except where all of the shareholders involved
consent to a different method of reduction. |
3. A resolution to cancel shares may only relate to shares held by the
company itself or of which it holds depositary receipts. Such resolution
may also relate to all the Series A préferred shares.
4, The convening notice calling a general meeting of shareholders at which a
motion for capital reduction shall be tabled shall specify the purpose of
. the capital reduction as well as the method of reduction.
CHAPTER V |

Transfer of shares. I]sufrucf, Pledge. .Depositgg. receipts
Article 11. Transfer of shares. Usufruct. Pledge

1. The transfer of shares or any restricted rights attaching to shares shall

require a notarial deed, executed before a civil law ho_tary authonzed to
practice in the Netherlands, to which those involved are party _

2. The transfer of shares or any restricted rights attaching to shares as
referred to in para. 1 - including the creation and relinquishment of
restricted rights - shall, by operation of law, also be valid vis-3-vis the

company.
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The rights attaching to shares cannot be exercised until the company |
either acknowledges the juristic act or is served with the notarial deed in
accordance with the relevant statutory provisions, éxcept where the
company is party to the juristic act. _ o

3. If a usufruct or pledge is created on shares, the voting rights attaching to
those shares may not be granted to the usufructuary or pledgee.

Article 12. Issue of depositary receipts for shai es

The company shall not cooperate in issuing depositary receipts for its shares.

HAPTER V -

Transfer restn ctioné_

Article 13. Approval

1. In order to be valid, every transfér of shares shall require the prior
‘approval of the company's Board of Managing Directors. The approval
shall be valid for three months only.

2. The shareholder who wishes to transfer his shares - hereinafter to be
referred to as the "proposing transferor" - shall inform the Board of
Managing Directors by registered mail or return receipt requested,
. specifying the number of shares to be transferred and the person(s) to‘

" whom he wishes to transfer his shares.

3. If the Board of Managing Directors grants the approval requested, the

transfer must take place within the folllowing three months.
4. Approval shall be deemed given if: |
a. the Board of Managing Directors has failed to decide on the
request for approval within six weeks after recéiving the
proposing transferor's notification;
b. simultaneously with its refusal, the Board of Managing Directors
fails to notify the proposing transferor of the name(s) of (an)other
party(ies) interested in purchasing for cash all shares to which the

request for approval relates.
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If the situation under a. occurs, approval shall be deemed to hévve been
given on the last date on which the Board of Managing Directors should
have resolved on this matter. '

5. Unlless the proposing transferor ang the interested party(ies) specified by
the Board of Managing Directors and accepted by the proposing
transferor make different arrangements regarding the price or the method
of determining the price, the purchase price of the shares shall be
determined by an independent expert to be appointed at the request of the |
pérty with the greatest interest by the Chairman of the Chamber of
Commerce and Industry of the district in which the company's registered
office is situated.

6. The proposing transferor shall remain entitled to withdraw his offer,
provided that he does so within one month of having been informed of the
name of the party to whom he may transfer all of the shares ‘speciﬁed n
the request for approval and of the price offered for the shares.

7. The costs incurred in determining the purchase pﬁce shall be bomne:

a. by the proposing transferor if he withdraws his offer; _

b. in equal parts by the pfoposing transferor and the buyers if the
shares are purﬁhased by the interested parties, on the
understanding that every buyer shall contribute to the costs in
proportion to the number of shares he has bought;

c. by the company, in all cases nét included under a. or b.

8. | The company itself may propose to buy the shares as contemplated in
paragraph 4(b) only if the proposing transferor so consents.

APTER VII

Board of Managing Directors
Article 14. Board of Managing Directors

The company shall be run by a Board of Managing Directors consisting of seven -

or more Managing Directors, the precise number of whom shall be determined by
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the general meeting. Any increase in the number of Managing Directors above

seven, shall require the prior approval of the prevferred shareholders meeting.

Article 15. Appointment | |

1. The general meeting shall appoint the Managing Directors. ,

P ' 2. One Managing director shall be appointed on a recommendation made by
| the preferred shafeholders meeting. Any resolution to make a
recommendation shall require a simple majority of the votes cast at the
. relevant preferred shareholders meeting. |

The general meeting shall be free to appoint the relevant Managing.
Director if the preferred shareholders meeting fails to resolve upon a
recommendation within three months of the posiytion of the Managing |
Director to be appointed on a recommendation becoming vacant.
A recommendation submitted on time shall be binding. However, the
general meeting may disregard the recommendation if it adbpts a
resolution to that effect by a inajon'ty of no less than two-thirds of the

_ votes cast, representing over one-half of the iséued capital.

L : . Article 16. Suspension and dismissal

- 1. The general meeting shall at all times have the power to suspend or

dismiss the Managing Directors. |
2. If the relevant Managing Director was first appointed on the

recommendation by the .preferred shareholders meeting as referred toin

article 15, paragraph 2, such managing Director can only be suspended or
dismissed, by resolution by the general meeting passed by a majority of
no less than two-thirds of the votes cast, representing over one-half of the
issued capital. il _
3. Any such suspension may be extended several times but the total term of _
the suspension may not exceed three months. The suspension shall lapse
on expiry of this three-month period if no resolution is passed either to lif

the suspension or to dismiss the Managing Director.

Article 17. Remuneration
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The general meeting shall determine the remuneration of each Managing

Director, as well as his other terms and conditions of employment. If and so far as

the general meeting has appointeed a Chief Executive Officer the remuneration

and other terms and conditions of employment of this Chief Executive Officer of

the Company shall be determined and approved by the Board of Managing

Directors.. _ , .

Article 18, Duties of the Board of Managing Directors. Decision-making. |

Division of duties ‘

1. Subject to the restrictions set forth in these Articles, the Board of
Managing Directors shall be in charge of running the company. |

2. The Board of Managing Directois may adopt rules and regulations
governing its decision-making process. In case such rules and regulations
provide that certain provisions thereof can only be amended or revoked
wiih the prior approval of the preferred shareholders meeting, then such
provisions can only be amended or revoked with the prior approval of the
preferred shareholders meeting. |

3. The Board of Managing Directors may make a division of duties,

specifying the individual duties of every Managing Director.

Article 19. Representative authority

1.

The Board of Managing Directors shall represent the company. The
authority to represent the company s}iall also be vested in every Managing |
Director individually. | | |
The Board of Managing Directors may appoint officers and grant them &
general or special power of attorney. Every attorney in fact shall represent
the company within the bounds of his authorization. Their title shall be
determined by the Board of Managing Directors.

In all cases in which the company has an interest which conflicts with an
interest of one of its Managing Directors, the company shall be

represented by one of the other Managing Directors. If only one
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Managing Director is in office, the company shall be repfesented by a
person to be designated by the general meeting of shareholders. | ”

Article 20. Approval of Board resolutions | ' ' ,

1. The Board of Managing Directors must comply with any such
instructions outlining the company's general financial, social, economic or
staffing policy to be pursued by the Management as may be given by the
general meeting. |

2. Without prejudice to the other provisions set forth in these Articles
governing the powers of the Board of Managing Directors, the Board of
Managing Directors may make certain of its resolutions subject to
approval by the preferred shareholders meeting, provided that the
preferred shareholders meeting has adopted a proposal ‘t(‘) that effect. The
resolution(s) by the Board of Managing Directors identifying the
resolutions to which the requirement of apprbval applies cannot be
revoked or amended without the approval from the preferred shareholders .
meeting.

3. The absence of approval as defined in this Article does not affect the’
representative authority of the Managing Directors and the Board of
Managing Directors.

Article 21, Absence or inability to act

If a Managing Director is absent or unable to act, the remaining Managing

Director(s) shall be temporarily charged with. the management of the company. If
all Managing Directors are absent or unable to act, a person appointed anmial]y
by tﬁe general meeting shall be terﬁpdran'ly charged with the management of the
company. ' |
CHAPTER VIII

Annual accounts. Profits

Article 22. Financia] year, Drawing up the annual accounts

1 The company's financial year shall correspond with the calendar year.
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Within five months of the end of the compaﬁy’s ﬂhanciél year, the Board .
of Managing Directors shall dran up -the ann‘ual‘ accounts unlesé, in
special circumstances, an extension of this term by not more than six
months is approved by the general meeting.

The annual accounts shall be signed by all the Managing Directors; if the
signature of any of them is missing, this fact and the reason for such

omission shall be stated.

Article 23. Presentation to the shareholders

1.

The annual accounts shall be deposited at the company's office for
inspection by the shareholders within the period of time specified in
Article 22, para. 2. The Board of Managing Directors shall submit the
annual report within the same term. | '
The company shall ensure that the annual accounts, the annual report and
the data to be added pursuant to Article 392, para. 1, Book 2, Dutch Civil |
Code shall be available at its office from the day notice is sent out of the
annual meeting. The shareholders ahd holders of depositary receipts may
inspect these documents at the company's office and may obtain 2
complimentary copy thereof.

The general meeting shall adopt the annual accounts.

The adoption of the annual accounts without any reservation shall

- discharge the Board of Managing Directors from all liability for the

activities undertaken during the paét financial year, insofar as these
activities are indicated in the annual accounts. o

The provisions set out in these Articlés regarding the annual repoﬁ and
the data to be added under A11ic1e392, para. 1., Book 2, Dutch Civil Code
shall not apply if the company is a member of 2 -group and is govémed by
Article 403, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. |

Article 24. Profits

1.

The Company shall maintain:
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a. a proﬁt reserve for the benefit of the h‘o]defs:of Series A preferred ’
shares, hereinafter referredl to as the "Pref A Profit Reserve", and
b. ‘a general profit resefve, hereinafter referred to as the "General
Profit Reserve". | | |
Of the profits eamned in the past financial year, first an amount shall be
added to the Pref A Profit Reserve equal to eight percent (8%) of the
aggregate par value of the issued Series A Preferred shares plus eight per
cent (8%) of the amount of the share premium reserve in relation to the
Series A preferred shares plus eight per cent (8%) of the amount of the
Pref A Proﬁt Reserve. _
If Series A preferred shares were not outstanding capital throughout the
financial year on the basis of which the profit is calculated, then the_
amount to be added to the relevant profit reserve shall be calculated on the
basis of that period of the year during which the relevant shares fwere |
outstanding. If the share premium reserve in relation to the Series A
preferred shares or the Pref A Profit Reserve has not showﬁ the same

amount throughout the vﬁna‘ncial year, any additions shall be calculated

over the average annual amount of the relevant reserve.

" If the profits do not penmt an addition as contemplated in this paragraph,

the missing portion of such addition_ shall be added out of the profits of |
the next financial year(s). | :
The profit remaining after application‘of paragraph 2 shall be added to the
General Profit Reserve. | ‘ ’

The Pref A Profit Reserve shall be cancelled (and can only be cancelled)
and the relevant amount shall Be distributed (and can only be distributed) |
to the holders of such shares upon the conversion of Series A preferred
shares into Series A common shares. To the extent upon such distribution,
the Pref A Profit Reserve does not allow a distribution on each Series A
preferred share in an amount calculated on the basis of eight percent of

those amounts set forth in paragraph 2, compounded annually as
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contemplated by paragraph 2, and not on a simple interest baéis, then the
relevant holder of such shares shal] be entitled to receive a distribution to
fully make up the shortfa]l,}p'rov'ided that the distributable part of the
_company's equify SO permits. | v h ‘
All distributions as contemplated by this paragraph shall be in cash,
provided however that at the option of the relevant holders of Series A
preferred shares fifty percent of the disﬁj'butions shall be paid by meaﬂs of
an issue of Series A common shares, at a price to be determined by the
Board of Managing Directors in the Conversion Resolution as defined in
article 39. _
The general meeting may resolve to cancel the whole or any part of the
General Profit Reserve, for distribution to the holders of Series B
preferred shares and Series A, B, and C common shares. ,
Any distributions to the shareholders to be made out'of the General.Pro‘ﬁt ;
Reserve shall be proportional to the aggregate par value of the relevant
shares held by each shareholder, provided however that the holders of
Series B Preferred shares shall receive such amounts as if such Series B
preferred shares were converted into the maximum number of Series C »_
common shares into Whjch they are then convertible based on the
" Conversion Resolution. _
Notwithstanding anything contained m ihcse Articles, dividends may be
paid up to a maximum amount equivalent to the‘distributablie part of the
company's equity. '
The general meeting may, with due observance of paragraph 6,v resolve to
" pay interim dividends. |
A shareholder cannot clairﬁ a dividend when more than five years have
elapsed since the date on which the dividend was made payable.
At any time a dividend in cash is legally payable on the Series A preferred
shares, but the Board of Managing Directors determines in good faith that

after payment of the dividend the company would not have sufficient cash
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to pay its operating expenses expected to be incurred in the ordinary
course of its business, consistent with the ‘company‘s' past, custom and
practice, the company may pay the dividend by issuance of a promissory |
note to the holders of the Series A preferred shares. The promissory note
shall accrue interest at the United Stétes of America "applicable federal
rate". Interest shall accrue and be payable upon maturity of the note. The
note shall mature two years from the date of its issuance or on such earﬁer _
date as the Board of Managing Directors determines that the company has
sufficient cash to pay the note, together with all accrued interest, and pay
the company's expected operating expenses to be incurred by it in the
ordinary course of its business.

CHAPTER IX

General meeting of shareholders

Aﬁicle 25. Annual meeting

1. The annual general meeting of shareholders shall be held within six
months of the end of the company's financial year.
2. The agenda of the annual meeting shall, among other matters, contain the

following items:

‘ a. the annual report;
b, adoption of the annual accounts;
c. adoption of the profit appropﬁation;

d. filling of any vacancies on the Board of Managing Directors;

€. appointment of the person referred to in Article 21; _

f. any such other motions as the Board of Managing Directors or the
shareholders together representing not less than one-tenth of the |
issued capital may file and notify with due observance of Article
27.

Article 26. Other meetings

1. Other general meetings of shareholders shall be held as often as the Board

of Managing Directors deems necessary.
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2. Shareholders repfesenting not less than one-tenth of' the issued capital

shall be entitled to request the Board of Managing Directors to call a
general meeting of sha:eholders, provided that they also notify the Board
of Managing Directors of the b_usi_ness to be ,discussed during that
meeting. | .
If the Board of Managing Directors fails to call the meeting within four
weeks so that the meeting cannot be held within six weeks of the request,
| the shareholders may call a meeting‘ themselves. '
Article 27. Convocation. Agenda
1. ‘General méetings of shareholders shall be called by the Board of

Managing Directors.

2. Convocation shall take place not later than on the fifteenth day prior to the
day of the meeting. | | B
3. The convening notice shall specify the items to be discussed. Items which

have not been specified in the convening notice may be announced with
due observance of the requirements of this Article.

4. Convocation shall take place in the manner described in Article 36.

Article 28. The entire issued capital is represented

Resolutions may be legally adopted on any item on the agenda provided that they
are adeted by a unanimous vote at a.genexjal meeting of shareholders at Whjch »
the company's entire issued capital is repreéented, even if the requirements for
coﬁvening and conducting the meeting as preécribed by the law or the compény‘s

Articles of Incorporation have not been complied-with.

Article 29. Place of the meetings

General mbeetingsv shall be held in the municipality in.which the company's

registered office is situated according to its Articles of Incorporation.

‘Article 30. Chairman

At every meeting, the shareholders shall appoint a chairman from their midst.
Article 31. Minutes
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Minutes shall be taken of the business'traﬁsacted at every general meeting
of shareholders by a secretary to be appointed by the chairman. The
minutes shall be confirmed and signed by the chairman and the secretary.

The chairman, or the person who called the meeting, may decide that an
official notarial report should be drawn ue of the business transacted at |
the general meeting of sharehoiders. This report must be co-signed by the

chairman.

Article 32. Rights exercisable during a meeting. Admission.

1.

The shareholders shall be entitled to attend the general meeting of
shareho]defs, take the floor and exercise their voting rights.

Every share shall entitle its holder to cast one vote.

The shareholders and holders of depositary ‘receipts or their
representatives must sign the attendance list.

The rights referred to in para. 1 may be exercxsed by a proxy. A proxy
shall mean any power of attomey transmitted via standard means of
commurication and received in written form.

The Managing Directors shall have an advisory vote at the ‘generval
meeting of shareholders. -

Admission to the general meeting of shareholders of persons other than

those referred to in this Article shall require a resolution by the general

meeting.

Article 33. 'Voting

L.

Resolutions shall be passed by an absolute majority of the votes cast,
unless the law prescribes a greater majority.
If no absolute majority is reached by a.vvote taken with respect to the

election of persons, a second vote shall be taken whereby the voters are

. not required to vote for the previous candidates.

If, again, no one has gained an absolute majority of the votes, new votes
shall be held unti] either one person has gained an absolute majonty or, if

the vote was between two persons, the votes are equally divided.
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Such new votes (except fof the second vote) shall only take p]ace.between )
the candidates who were voted for in the ‘].)revious vote, except for the
‘person who received the least number of votes. .
If two or more persons have the least nuniber of votes, it shall be decided -
by lot who cannot be voted for at ﬂl.e néw vote. .
If, in the event of an election between two candidates, the votes are’
equally divided, it shall be decided by lot who has been elected. |
3. If a vote is taken In respect of business matters as opposed to persons and
the votes are equally divided, the relevant motion shall be considered
rejected. |
4, Motions shéll,‘ regardless of their subj ect matter, be voted on orally unless
the chairman decides or any person entitled to vote requests that the vote
be taken by unsigned writing on ballot paper. -
5. Absentee ballots and invalid Qotes shall be deemed not to have been cast.
6. Votes by acclamation shall be allowed unless onelof the personé present
and entitled to vote objects. | A ‘
: '! : : ' 7. The chairman's view at the meeting expressing that the general meeting .
has passed a resolution shall be decisive. The same shall apply to the
L : o _contents of the resolution so passed, provided that the re]gvant motion
B was not put down in writing. However, if the chairman’s view is

challenged immediately after it is eXpressed, a new vote shall be taken

when the majority of the persons presént and entitled to vote so requiie or,
if the original vbte was not by call or by ballot, when one person present
~and entitled to vote so requires. The new vote shall nﬁllify the legal
effects of the original vote.
Article 34. Resolutions passed outside a meeting
Rather than at a general meeting, the shareholders may also pass resolutions in
writing, provided that they do so by a unanimous vote representing the company's
entire issued capital. Article 32, para. 4, second full Sentence shall apply

accordingly.
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Article 35. Preferred shareholders meeting, Meéting of the holders of Sen’esA
preferred shares. Meeting of the holders of Series B preferred shares

1. The Company shall have (i) a preferred shareholders meeting, which is
comprised of the holders of Series A preferred and the holders of Series B
preferred shares, as well as (i) a mee'tin'g'of the holders of Series A

~ preferred shares, and (iii) a meeting of the holders of Series B preferred
shares. | | |

2. Each of the meetings referred to in paragraph 1 shall be called by the
Board of Managing Directors. The Meeting of the holders of Series A
preferred shares can also be called by shareholders representing not less
than one—teﬁth of the issued Series A preferred shares. The Meeting of the
holders of Series B preferred shares can also be called by shareholders
representing not less than one-tenth of the issued Series B»prefenedl
shares. The preferred shareholders meeting can also be called by
shareholders representing not less than one-tenth of the issued preferred
shares.

3. Convocation shall take place not later than on the fifth day prior to the day
of the meeting. ’

4, Article 27, paragraphs 3 and 4, and articles 28 and 30-34 shall apply.
accordingly, provided however that all resolutions adopted at a meeting

referred to in paragraph 1 shall require a majority of no less than

two/thirds of the votes cast, unless the Articles prescribe a different
majority. | | |
HAPTER X ‘
Convening notices and notifications
-~ Article 36
All convening notices and other notifications directed fo the shareholders shall be
sent as letters to the addresses recorded in the Shareholders' Register.
HAPTER

endment to the Articles of Incorporation. Liquidation
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Article 37. Amendment to the Articles of ]ncom oration and dissolution

If a motion to amend the Articles of Incorporation or to dissolve the company is
1o be submitted to the general meeting, the convening notice must state this fact.
At the same time, if the motion is for an amendment to thé Articles of
Incorpofation, a copy of the motion contajning a verbatim text of the proposed
-amendment must be deposited at the company's office for inspection by the
shareholders until the meeting is adjoumed.v.

Any resolution to dissolve the company shall require the prior approval from the
preferred shareholders meeting, comprised of the holders of Series A and the
holders of Series B. preferred shares. Furthermore, any amendment of the Articles
which shall affect fhe rights of the holders of the Series A preferred shares or
Series B preferred shares shall require the prior approval from the preferred
shareholders meeting, comprised of the holders of Senes A and the holders of -
Series B preferred shares, provided, however, that'if the n'ghts' of the holders of
the Series A preferred shares and those of the holders of the Series B preferred
shares are not equally affected, the separate approval from the meeting of holders
of the relevant Series of preferred shares which shall be specially affected shall
also be required.

Article 38. Liquidation

1 If the company is dissolved pursuant to a resolution by the general

meeting, its liquidation shall be carried out by the Board of Managing

Directors.
2. The provisions of these Articles shall, if possible, continue tioA be in force
during the liquidation.
3. After the creditors have been paid, vany surplus assets shall be paid to the

shareholders as follows:
a. first, the holders of the preferred shares shall on a pari passu basis

receive the following amounts: (a) the holders of the Series A

preferred shares a distribution equal to the Share A Value plusa. ..

distribution equal to the Pref A Profit Reserve divided by the
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number of butstanding Series A preferred shares, and ® to the "
holders of Series B preferred shares a distri_bution equal to the
~ Share B Value plus all declared but unpaid dividends, if any; -

b. subsequently, the holders ‘of common shares shall receive the
aggregate par value of their shares, pius the share premium
reserve in relation to the common shares, provided, however, that
any outstanding obligations of a shafeho]der to the compaﬁy in
relation to common shares issued by the company to such
shareholder shall be deducted from the distributions to be made to
such shareholder;

c. ﬁnalvly, any remaining sum shall accrue to all shareholders on a
ratable basis as if the preférred shares were converted into the
maximum number of the relevant common shares into which they
are then convertible based on the Conversion Resolution.

CHAPTER X1
Article 39
Conversion of preferred shares

The Board of Managing Directors has the authonty to resolve upon the
conversion of all or any portion of the issued Series A preferred shares into issued
Series A common shares, as well as the conversion of all or any portion of the
issued Series B preferred shares into Series C common shares, such resolution
' hereinafter referred to as the "Conversion Resolution”. The Conversion
Resolution shall be in writing and signed by all members of the Board of
Managing Directors and shall accurately describe the terms and conditions of the
conversior, includihg without limitation, the conversion rate and the date of
conversion. The Conversion Resolution may provide that the Conversion
Resolution can not be.revoked or amended other than with the prior approval of
the preferred shareholders meeting, in which case the Conversion Resolution can

not be revoked or amended without such approval.
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The Conversion Resolution may provide that the convsrsion will take place upon
a resoiution by the preferred shareholders meeting, comprised of the holders of
Series A and the holders of Series B preferred shares. The Conversion Resolution
‘may also provide that the conversion will“take place éutomatically, 1.e. without
any further action beingrequiréd on the part of ‘the company, any corporate body
W1thm the company, or the holder or holders of the preferred shares, upon the
occurrence of certain events. In such case, the Conversion Resolution shall
contain a detailed description of any such events.
If the terms and conditions of the Conversion Resolution may result in the
conversion of a certain number of issued preferred shares into a larger number of
common shares, thé Conversion Resolution shall be incorporated in a deed to be
executed before a civil law notary authorized to practice in the Netherlands,‘to
which the Company, all holders of the relevant preferred shares and each of the
" members of the Board of Managing Directors are parties. This notarial deed shall “
be in accordance with Article 6 hereof and Article 196 ff. .book 2 of the Dutch
- Civil Code. Any increase in the issued capital of the company, meaning the
aggregate par value of the shares issued by the company, resulting from such
conversion shall be charged to the share premium reserve which relates to the
relevant preferred shares. The company shall duly observe Article 208 ff. Book 2
of the Dutch Civil Code if the terms and conditions of the Conversion Resolution
may result in a decrease of the issued capitz;l of the company. In such case, the
conversion shall be conditional upon the due observance of Article 208 ff. Book 2
of the Dutch Civil Code. The company shall register any conversion pursuant to
the Conversion Resolution within eight days after any such conversion has
become efféctive. |
Article 40
Repurchase of preferred shares
1. Without prejudice to article 9, paragraph' 2, and subject to a resolution of
the meeting of holders of Series A preferred shares approving such sale

and purchase, any holder of Series A preferred shares shall be entitled



BAKER & MCKENZIE

25

after the thirty-first day of October, two thousand, to sell its Series A
preferred shares to the company, and the company shall be under the
obligation to purchase such shares, at a price equal to the aggregate Share

A Value of his Series A preferre_dAshares plus all accrued and unpaid

_profits with respect to such shares, as specifically contemplated by article

24, paragraph 2. Without prejudice to paragraph 2 of this article, the
meeting of holders of Series A preferred shares shall only be authorized to |
approve such sale and purchase on or after the first day of Novexﬁber, two
thousand. |
Without prejudjce to article 9, paragraph 2, and subject to a resolution of
the preferred shareholders meeting approving such sale and purchase as
meant in the next sﬁcceeding sentence hereof, any holder of preferred
shares shall be entitled, whether before, on or after the first day of
November, two thousand, to sell its preferréd shares to the cdmpany, and
the company shall be under the obligation to purchase such shares, at a
price equal to the aggregate Share A Value of his Series A preferred
shares plus all accrued and unpaid profits with respect to such shares, as
specifically contemplated by article 24, paragraph 2, or, as the case may
be, the aggregate Share B Value of his Series B preferred shares.

Any sale and purchase pursuant to the previous sentence hereof, shall
require the prior approval from the préferred shareholders meeting, which
shall only be authorized to approve such sale and purchase in the event of
a disposal pursuant to which a party or parties (other than shareholders of
the company which in the aggregate own twenty percent (20%) or more
of the issued and outstanding common shares on the third day of April,
nineteen huﬁdred and ninety-eight) acquire (i) capital stock of the
company possessing the voting power under normal circumstances to
elect a majority of the Board of Managing Directors (whether by merger,

consolidation or sale or transfer of the company's capital stock), or (ii) all
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or substahtially all of the company's assets determined on a consolidated

basis.
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[logo ABN AMRO BANK] ' AT JAmsjerdam
Vijzelstraat 68 and 78
Correspondence address:
PO Box 407
1000 AK Amsterdam
The Netherlands
Bank Account: 46 3500318
Attn Mr M.P. Bongard
Caron & Stevens/Baker & McKenzie
Leidseplein 29
1017 PS AMSTERDAM
By fax: (020) 6207475
Department:
Corporate Trust Sector Desk AB5080
Reference: Telephone: Fax: Date:
Edwin A.M. Ammerlaan (020) 3833510 (020) 3830455 24 August 2001

Subject: SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Dear Mr Bongard,

The undersigned, ABN AMRO Bank N.V., having its registered office at Vijzelstraat 68-78 in
Amsterdam, hereby declares in accordance with Article 2:191a(3) and Article 2:203a(6) of the
Dutch Civil Code:

that the middle exchange rate of the euro against the US dollar today is EUR 1 =USD
0.90920 (USD 1 = EUR 1.0999). The middle rate is indicative.

We trust that the foregoing information is sufficient for your current needs. Please do not
hesitate to contact us if you have any further questions.

Yours sincerely,
<signature>
ABN AMRO Bank N.V.

SE&O

ABN AMRO Bank N.V,

having its registered office in Amsterdam,
Trade Register of the Amsterdam
Chamber of Commerce no. 33002587
VAT indent. no. NL 00 30 27 144 BO1



[Translation from Dutch]

[logo ABN AMRO BANK] Amsterdam
Vijzelstraat 68 and 78

Correspondence address:
PO Box 407

1000 AK Amsterdam
The Netherlands

Bank Account: 46 3500 318

Attn Mr M.P. Bongard
Baker & McKenzie
Leidseplein 29

1017 PS AMSTERDAM

By mail and by fax: (020) 6207475

Department:

Trust Sector Desk AB5080

Reference: Telephone: Fax: Date:

Edwin A.M. Ammerlaan (020) 3833510 (020) 3830455 27 November 2001

Subject: SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Dear Mr Bongard,

The undersigned, ABN AMRO Bank N.V., having its registered office at Vijzelstraat 68-78 in
Amsterdam, hereby declares in accordance with Article 2:191a(3) and Article 2:203a(6) of the
Dutch Civil Code:

that the middle exchange rate of the euro against the US dollar from October 11, 2001 on is
0.90550 (EUR 1 = USD 0.90550).

We trust that the foregoing information is sufficient for your current needs. Please do not
hesitate to contact us if you have any further questions.

Yours sincerely,
<signature>
ABN AMRO Bank N.V.

SE&O

ABN AMRO Bank N.V,,

having its registered office in Amsterdam,
Trade Register of the Amsterdam
Chamber of Commerce no. 33002587
VAT indent. no. NL 00 30 27 144 BO1
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[logo ABN AMRO BANK] ABN AMRO BANK N.V.
Trust Sector Desk

FAX

To: Baker & McKenzie From: V. Vermeijj

Attent.: Mr. A. van Doomn Tel: 020-6293231

Fax:  020-6207475 Date: February §, 2002

Re: SPL Worldgroup BV CC:

0 Urgent O for your information 0 Your comments please [ Your reply please O Circulate

Dear Mr Van Doorn,

We hereby inform you that on February 8, 2002 the middle exchange rate of the USD/EUR is
1.142857.

This information is indicative and is given without any responsibility for ABN AMRO Bank
NV.

We trust that the foregoing information is sufficient for your current needs.
Yours sincerely,
<signature>

ABN AMRO Bank N.V.

ABN AMRO Bank N.V.,

having its registered office in Amsterdam,
Trade Register of the Amsterdam
Chamber of Commerce no. 33002587
VAT indent. no. NL 00 30 27 144 BOI
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[logo ABN AMRO BANK] Amsterdam
Vijzelstraat 68 and 78

Correspondence address:
PO Box 407

1000 AK Amsterdam
The Netherlands

Bank Account: 46 35 00 318

Baker & McKenzie

Attn Mr A. van Doom
Leidseplein 2720

1000 CS AMSTERDAM

Department:

Trust Sector Desk AB5080

Reference: Telephone: Fax: Date:

Arjan Molenaar (020) 6287655 (020) 3830455 27 June 2002

Subject: SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Dear Mr Van Doom,

We hereby inform you that on June 27, 2002 the middle exchange rate of the US Dollar is:
Exchange rate EUR 1.00 1s USD 0.984.

This information is given without any responsibility for ABN AMRO Bank NV.

Yours sincerely,

<signature>

ABN AMRO Bank N.V.

ABN AMRO Bank N.V.,

having its registered office in Amsterdam,
Trade Register of the Amsterdam
Chamber of Commerce no. 33002587
VAT indent. no. NL 00 30 27 144 BO1
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[logo ABN AMRO BANK] Amsterdam
Vijzelstraat 68 and 78

Correspondence address:
PO Box 407

1000 AK Amsterdam
The Netherlands

Bank Account: 46 3500318

Baker & McKenzie

Attn Mr A. van Doomn
Leidseplein 2720

1000 CS AMSTERDAM

Department:

Trust Sector Desk AB5080

Reference: Telephone: Fax: Date:

Arjan Molenaar (020) 6287655 (020) 3830455 26 July 2002

Subject: SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Dear Mr Van Doom,

We hereby inform you that on July 25, 2002 the middle exchange rate of the US Dollar is:
Exchange rate EUR 1.00 is USD 0.9996.

This information is given without any responsibility for ABN AMRO Bank NV.

Yours sincerely,

<signature>

ABN AMRO Bank N.V.

ABN AMRO Bank N.V.,

having its registered office in Amsterdam,
Trade Register of the Amsterdam
Chamber of Commerce no. 33002587
VAT indent. no. NL 00 30 27 144 BO1
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Publication in the daily newspaper “Het Parool”, Thursday March 14, 2002 S

The private company with limited liability: SPL WorldGroup B.V., having its registered
office in Amsterdam, informs that a resolution as referred to in article 2:208 Civil Code is
deposited with the Trade Register in Amsterdam for public inspection.
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Het PAROOL | donderdag 14 maart 2002

ij exploit van mij tk. deur-
aarder, d.d. 11 maart 2002, is op
erzoek van DE GRIFFIER VAN
)E RECHTBANK TE HAAR-
EM, sector Familie- en Jeugd-
echt, zetelende te Haarlem aan
le Jansstraat 46 (bij wie een al-
ichrift dezes verknijgbaar is bjj
Dhr.G. Ganpat) aan RENE MEL-
ER, zonder bekende woon- of
verblijfplaats binnen en buiten
Nederland betekend een ver-
zoekschrift tot opheffing van de
gezamenlijke ouderlijke macht
en toekenning van het ouderlijk
gezag aan de moeder dd. 17 ja
auari 2002 ingediend bij de
Rechtbank te Haarlem in de zaak
van J. E. M. Hijdendaal, wonende
te Beverwijk als verzoekster en
R. Meijer voornoemd als gere-
questreerde, voorts opgeroepen
om op maandag 3 JUNI TWEE-
DU!Z%SND E, des namid-
dags te 12.15 uur te verschijnen

. ter terechtzitting van de Recht

bank te Haarlem, alsdan en ak
daar gehouden wordende in het
gebouw van de Rechtbank aan de
Jansstraat no. 46, teneinde als-

dan en aldaar te worden gehoord
omirent voormeld  verzoek-
schrift

Drs. J. G. M. Dekkers
tk. deurwaarder
Gerechtsdeurwaarderskantoor
Terhoeven & Wijers

aarne 72

aarlem
Tel. 023-5310563

Bij mijn exploit van 12032002 is
tvy. St. Gemeentelijke Krediet-
bank Amsterdam, gevesligd te
Amsterdam, gedagvaard: LW
LIT, zonder bekende woon- of
verblijfplaats, om op vrijdag, 28
06-2002 te 10.00 vur te verschij-
nen ter terechtz. van de recht-
bank Amsterdam, sector Kanton,
jocatie Amsterdam, Parnassus-
weg 220-228, terzake van een
geldvordering ad € 914,81 met
rente en kosten. Afschrift van dit
exploit kan worden verkregen
ten kantore van ondergetekende.

J. Nijstad

%erechtsdeurwaarder
erechisdeurwaarderskantoor

Nijstad & Toonen

Rijswijkstraat 175

1062 EV Amsterdam

tel. 020-6697459

Bij mijn exploit van 12:03-2002 is
tvv. MICHEL PRINS, wonende
te Qudendijk {procureur mr P. J.
A M. Voeten, A v.d. Vondelstraat
15 A'dam) opgeroepen: Michel
Albert Mens, zonder bekende
woon- of verblijfplaats, om op
woensdag, 19062002 te 03.00
uur vertegenwoordigd door een
procureur te verschijnen ter te-
rechtz. van de rechtbank
Amsterdam, Parnassusweg 220-
228 te Amsterdam, leneinde
voort te procederen op de dag-
vaarding van 28122001, Af-
schrift van dit exploit kan worden
verkregen ten kantore van Mr P.
1. A M. Voeten voornoemd.

J. Nijstad
gerechtsdeurwaarder
gerechtsdeurwaarderskantoor
Nijstad & Toonen
Rijswijkstraat 175

1062 EV Amsterdam

tel. 020-6697459

Bij mijn exploit van 12-03-2002 is
tvy. ed El Yaakoubi, wonen-
de te Amsterdam, (procureur mr
J. A Younge, WGplein 250
Adam) betekend aan: NABILA
EL KHAMLICHI, zonder beken-
de woon- of verblijfplaats, de be-
schikking van de Arr.Rechtbank
te Amsterdam d.d. 06-03-2002,

waarbij tussen partijen echt |:

scheiding werd uitgesproken.
Afschrift van dit exploit kan wor-
den verkregen ten kantore van
Mr J. A. Younge voornoemd.

J. Nijstad
gerechtsdeurwaarder
Gerechtsdeurwaarderskantoor
Nijstad & Toonen
Rijswijkstraat 175

1062 EV Amsterdam

tel, 020-6697458

Bij mijn exploit van 12-03-2002 is
vy, St. Gemeentelijke Krediet-
bank Amsterdam. gevestigd te

Amsterdam, gedagvaard: M. H. | ¢

VOSWUK. zonder bekende
woon- of verblijfplaats, om op
vrijdag, 28-08-2002 te 10.00 uur te
verschijnen ter terechtz. van de
rechtbank Amsterdam, sector
Kanton, locatie Amsterdam, Par-
nassusweg 220-228, terzake van
een geldvordering ad € 2076,24
met rente en kosten. Afschrift
van dit exploit kan worden ver-
kregen ten kantore van onderge-
tekengg. .

Nijstad & Toonen
Rijswijkstraat 175
1062 EV Amsterdam
tel. 020-6697459

“spewrt en selectoern speciasl voor U

,Jrodukties),

LS
RGENS 20
h{,Ec.\om:auts

|

Zie ook www.sterprodukties.n!

HEERLIJKE 8-DAAG

FLY-DRIVE ANDALUSIE

Vertrokdata: 1-3-8-10-15-17-22-24-29/4, B-16-23/5, 6-13-20/8

ONTDEK NU OP EIGEN GELEGENHEID HET PRACHTIGE ZUIDEN VAN SPANJE!
i komende maanden de
VOORDELIGE REISSOM vanat SLECHTS € 450 g bez.4 personen
se fiy-drive naar het altijd prachtige ANDALU! h te boeken!! En
is INBEGREPEN: de VLIEGRE!S, 7 dagen AUTOHUUR cat. E INCLUSIEF

STERPRODUKTIES biedt u de

280!
priis =
onbeperkt aantal kilometers, basisverz:
HOTELS o.b.v. LOGIES en ONTBIJTI U

vanat R'dam) naar Malaga, waar uw huurauto kiaar staat, Vanuit Hotel Alcamida
in LANJORAN kunt u schitterende dagtochten maken door de Alpujarras bergen
en ge Sierra Nevada. Bovendien ligt ook G A met

slecht 30 minuten rijden. Qok uw
SEVILLA, CO¥

autohuur, thb- en toer.belastingen etc., div. vérzekeringen.
Uit. ann. termijn bij onvold. deeln.: 10 dgn voor verlrek. Noot: de reis kan ook in

omgekeerde voigorde uitgevoerd worden, in mei en juni verbifijft u in Lanjaron -
MAR, Noot: Bij bezetting 2 en 3 pers.
is een autohuur cat. A inclusist. VRAAG UITGEBREIDE REISBESCHRLIVING

danin hotel M1
REIS SPHZ 11.227/11.228

X tweade hate!, Hotel La Sierra in ANTEQUERA,
is ikfeaal ge‘egen om een bezoek te brengen aan onder meer het historische

DOBA en de prachtige stad RONDA met de PUENTE NUEVO?
Exclusiet: borgsom auto (creditcard noodzakelik), aanvullende verzekeringen

. liquidatie
Optimum Internationale
Herverzekeringsmij N.V.

In navolging op het bestuit tot
ontbinding van de naamloze ven-
nootschap Optimum Internatio-
nale Berverzekeringsmij, met
benoeming van ondergetekende
tot vereffenaar is het plan van uit-
kering op 14 maart ten kan-
tore van het Handelsregister te
Amsterdam voor een ieder ter
kennisneming neergelegd. :

De vereffenaar, ,
E. Neri/Parlevinker BV.™

SE VOORJAARSRE]S

ijfkheld om voor de
) 8en B-
bij deze
ekeringen en verblijf in 2 SFEERVOLLE
viiegt rechtstreeks van Schiphof! (in apni

het ALHAMBRA op ‘

Oproeping Schuldeisers

leder die iets te vorderen heeft
van of verschuldigd is aan de on-
der het voorrecht van boedelbe-
schrijving aanvaarde palaten-
schap van mevrouw Vajaree
Diets-Benjathikul, laatst ge-
woond hebbende te 5831 VN
Boxmeer, Lucas van Leydeg-
straat 22, overleden te Boxmeer
op 3 november 2001, of iets daar-
van onder zich heeft, wordt ver-
zocht uiterlijk 4 april 2002 daaf-
van schriftelijk opgave te do
aan Melis & Teeuwen, notari
sen te Boxmeer, Postbus 80,
AB Boxmeer.

Min, aagntal deeln.: 6.

. geiden andere prifzen en

!\1’)!

Amersfoort, Amsterdam, Apeidoom,
Nimagen, Rotterdam, Steenwik, Tilburg,

Informatie en boekingen UITSLUITEND bij
Sterprodukties 072-5 20 30 40 /T,

en/of www.sterprodukties.nl sZa
Kangalkade 28, 1811 LP Alkmaar, {ma-ri 08.30-20.30, 22 09.30-15.30)

ot boek uitsluitend bi) de EIGEN reisbureaus van
, Amhem, Baam, 8reda, Deift,
Den Basch, Den Haag, Eindhoven, Haarlem, Heef

KRAS Ster¥akenties in; Aiphen a/d Rin,

rerveen, Hengelo, Hoom, Leeuwarden,
Utrecit, Venlo, Winterswiik, Zwolla.

Bij mijn exploot van 12/03/2002
is tvv. Stichting De Alliantie te
Hilversumaan ZJ DIE VERBLYJ-
VEN in de onr. zaak of gedeelte
daarvan aan de JACOB VAN
LENNEPKADE 414 HUIS te
AMSTERDAM. van wie namen
en woonplaatsen onbekend zijn,
betekend een kort geding vonnis
van de Voorzieningenrechter van
de Rechtbank Amsterdam d.d.
07/03/2002 met gelijktijdig be-
vel om aan de inhoud te voldoen.
Afschrift van het exploot kan
worden verkregen ten kantore
van gerechtsdeurwaarder,

R J. A Cohen de Lara
tk.-gerechtsdeurwaarder
Deurwaarderskantoor
Weltevrede & Hennink B.V.
Koninginneweg 152

1075 EE Amsterdam

Bij mijn expl.
tv.y. Nationale
nanciéle Dienst
RVS Financiéle

bij procureur te verschijnen v.d.

Rechtbank te A'dam, Parnassus-
weg 220, A'dam, teneinde te wor-
den veroordeeld tot betaling van

de daarin genoemde bedragen

Afschrift van dit exploit is te ver-
krjgen bij Mr. B. Schuit, procu-
De lairessestraat 901 R,
1071 PJ Amsterdam, (telefoon

reur,

020-6736211).

M. V. Jager,
Gerechtsdeurwaarder
Spanderswoudstraat 100
1024 LE Amsterdam

i-¥ sloten vennootschap met beperk-

De te Amsterdam gevestigde be-

‘Mte  aansprakelijkheid: SPL
'WorldGroup B.V. bericht, dat
bij het Handelsregister vestiging
Amsterdam een besluit als be-
doeld in artikel 2:208 Burgerlijk
'Wetboek ter kennisneming van
een ieder ter inzage kigt..

Helaas ontvangen wij nog
veel 1-in-3 Mini's te laat door
foutieve adressering.
Ons juiste adres is:
1-in-3 Mini-advertenties

. Postbus'1518
1000 BM Amsterdam.

www.responspagina.nl

inkoopmanagément N bédrijféhulpve;lening - subsidies - energie
. participatiemaatschappijen - medezeggenschap - vitvaart

NIEUW: mediation

_bedrijven zijn u van dienst

Tokyo Ink Holland B.V.
in liquidatie

Ingevolge artikel 2:23b, lid 4 vah
het Burgerlijk Wetboek is de r
kening en verantwoording d
vereffening van Tokyo Ink H
{and B.V.inliguidatie neergelegt
ten kantore van het Handels
register gehouden door de

|
|

mer van Koophandel en Fabg‘

ken te Amsterdam, alsmede
kantore van de vennaotschap.

De vereffenaar

Bij myn exploit van mij, tk. deur-
waarder, d.d. 11 maart 2002 is op
verzoek van de griffier van de
rechtbank te Haarlem, sector fa-
milie- en jeugdrecht, zetelende te’
Haarlem aan de Jansstraat 46. (bjj
wie een afschrift dezes verkrijg
baar is bij Dhr, G. Ganpat) aan
GEORGE PATRICK VAN ZEUJL,
zonder bekende woon- of verblijf
laats binnen en  buiten
ederfand betekend een ver
zoekschrift  waarmede  de
Gemeente Heemskerk, Afdeling
Sociale Zaken d.d. 25 januan
2002 zich heeft gewend tot de
Rechtbank te Haarlem houdende
verzoek tot vaststelling van het
door gerequireerde verschuldig
de verhaalsbedrag tby. twer
minderjarige kinderen,
op maanda
EDUIZEND'

verschijnen ter terechtzitting
de Rechtbank te Haarlem, 2
en aldaar gehouden wordend
het gebouw van de X
aan de Jansstraat no. 46, teneigfe
alsdan en aldaar te worden’'ge
hoord omtrent voormeld ver
zoekschrift

Drs. J. G. M. Dekkers
tk. deurwaarder
Gerechtsdeurwaarders|
Terhoeven & Wijers
Spaarne 72

—

Haarlem
Tel 023-5310563

Vera



Changes were registered with the Dutch Trade Register by means of filing a Form 15 which is
recorded in Dutch in accordance with the laws of The Netherlands. Form 15, whichis a
publicly available document, registered the increase of the issued share capital ad NLG
513.40 (equals EUR 232.97) per August 24, 2001 and is evidenced by an extract from the
Dutch Trade Register for SPL WorldGroup B.V., dated September 6, 2001, also publicly
available and a copy of which is attached to this summary.
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File number: 33257798

Page 00001

English translation of an extract from the commercial register of the

Chamber of Commerce and Industries for Amsterdam

Legal person:
Legal form

Name

Statutory seat

First registration of legal
person in a commercial
register
Incorporation deed.-

Deed of latest améndment of
articles 45

Authorized g

Name )
Date and place o
Address

Date of entry into office
Title

Powers

Name

26,00 06-09-2001

:Besloten Vennootschap (Private Limited
Liability Company)
:SPL Worldgroup B.V.
:Amsterdam ....... .

ool
.

:05-04-1939, Kroonstad, South-Africa ......
:Homewood Drive 7142, Oakland Californie

United States of America .......coc.. ...

:28-03-1994 ........
:Directeur .........

L N L T R I N R

:Solely/independently authorised ..........

:Israelstam, Lenard Sidney / 4 ...... R

Page 00002 follows.

HOOFDKANTOOR

DE RUYTERKADE 5

POSTBUS 2852, 1000 CW AMSTERDAM
T (020) 531 40 00 F (020) 5314596




70

"KAMER VAN KOOPHANDE
MSTERDAM

File number: 33257798 Page 00002
Date and place of birth :14-02-1936, Johannesburg, South-Africa ........
Address :Ramat Yam 12 -32 CLIFF T, Herzlya Petuach, ....
Israel ................ .. e e e et e e
Date of entry into office :01-06-1994 .. ... ... ... i et e,
Title :Directeur ......... . it e e e -
Powers :Solely/independently authorlsed . .o
Name :Mor, Moshe Simha / 5 .. ...t an..
Date and place of birth Haifa, Israel .....................

Address

Date of entry 1nto office
Title o
Powers

Name

Date and, of birth

:12-04-1996 .. ... ... e oot

:Directeur .......... S 1 Y

Solely/lndependently awl ised . ... ...
P

5
mto office

21 Lyle / 13 . .ineiiiann... e
5, Portland, United States of America
ay 13300, CA 94022 L.Althos Hills, ...

Name ki
Date and place of’ b1r
Address ——

ﬁﬁlted States of America ............ e e
Date of entry into office :30-05-1997 ....... e e e et et e et ..
Title :Directeur ....... .. ... it e e e
Powers :Solely/independently authorlsed e e e
Name A :Meresman, Stanley J. / 14 ......... ...
Date and place of birth :28-10-1946, New York City, United States of ...

AMEerica .....ccveeieonnennnonnn ettt
20,00 06-09-2001 Page 00003 follows.

HOOFDKANTOOR

DE RUYTERKADE 5

POSTBUS 2852, 1000 CW AMSTERDAM
T (020) 531 40 00 F (020) 5314596




7D

File number: 33257798

ot

AMER VAN KOOPHANDEL
AMSTERDAM

Page 00003

Address

Date of entry into office
Title
Powers

Name
Date and place of birth

Address

NS

Date of entry into eoffic
Title .

Powers

:Huntington Lane 2971, CA 94024 Los Altos,
United States of America
:09-02-1998
:Directeur
:Solely/independently authorised .........

e e o o s e e s 2 s e e e
L I L I I S O N B R Y

D T R N L T T T T S PP U,

:Hobbs, Clarence Dexter / 15 e
:29-09-1943, Indianapolis, Indiana, United
Stat ica

o« s .

ausalito, California 94965

M.T. THOMAS

HOOFDKANTOOR

DE RUYTERKADE 5

POSTBUS 2852, 1000 Cw AMSTERDAM
7 (020) 531 40 00 F (020) 5314596




Changes were registered with the Dutch Trade Register by means of filing Form 16 which is
recorded in Dutch in accordance with the laws of The Netherlands. Form 16, whichis a
publicly available document, registered the resignation of Mr. L.S. Israelstam per July 1,
2000. The conversion of the authorized, issued and paid-up capital from Dutch guilders to
Euros was also automatically registered by the Dutch Trade Register. Both of these changes
are evidenced by an extract from the Dutch Trade Register for SPL WorldGroup B.V., dated
January 8, 2002, which is a publicly available document and a copy of which is attached to
this summary.

NY\755549.2
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File number: 33257798 Page 00001

English translation of an extract from the commercial register of the
Chamber of Commerce and Industries for Amsterdam

Legal person:

Legal form :Besloten Vennootschap (Private Limited ..
Liability COMPaAny) «.eeeeeenceeerononness
Name :SPL Worldgroup B.V. .. ...t eeennoeeorss

Statutory seat
First registration in the
commercial register
Incorporation deed ..
Deed of latest ameéndment of

articles e
Authorized gapital -

tAMSEErdam v i .ttt it e s e e e

Name TEEVOY / 2 veeenvvvnessnnssssensos

\ﬂm@"":’:ﬁ . " e 0

Date and place~of . 05-04-1939, Kroonstad, South-Africa ..........
Address :Homewood Drive 7142, Oakland Californie 94611,
United States of America .....cevvetveveenneas

Date of entry into office 228-03-1994 ...ttt et et e e i
Title B0 T o =Y o 1§
Powers :Solely/independently authorised ..............
Name :Mor, Moshe Simha / 5 ..ttt rioetenannenns
Date and place of birth +13-12-1961, Haifa, Israel .....cveeevevennscns

27,00 08-01-2002 Page 00002 follocws.

HOOFDKANTOOR

DE RUYTERKADE 5

POSTBUS 2852, 1000 CW AMSTERDAM
T (020) 531 40 00 F (020) 5314596




File number: 33257798 Page 00002

Address :Broadway 1945, CA 94109 San Francisco, United
States Of AmMErica ....c.noeeceeossensossonnnnes
Date of entry into office t0L1-06-1994 ...ttt ittt s it

Title £ o =Y o = b <
Powers :Solely/independently authorised ..............
Name :Eilers, Daniel Lyle / 13 ...ttt eennnnas
Date and place of birth :03-04- 1955 Portland, United States of America
Address Coun 3 CA 94022 L.Althos Hills, ..

AMEXICA v iveereernoneeerneen

Date of entry 1nto office
Title
Powers

United States ‘of Amerlca S
ice :09-02-1998 .................;..;..... ;

D;recteur'....,.....
:Solely/independen

e of:birth

ently authorised ....

Name . B Wis John / 16 ... iiiieien i innenaranas
Date and plage of b = 1945, Johannesburg, South-Africa .......
Address SRR **7:15 Carmen Street, St Ives NSW 2075, Australia
Date of entry into office $28-12-2000 . tiieiiienrrinnaeenreroeo e eans

Title £ 1 =Y o = 5 5
Powers :Solely/independently authorised ......ccv0vu.
Name :Rotbard, Aliza / 17 ...t eieerosrsnorosnnnnn
Date and place of birth :12-01-1946, Buenos Aires, Argentina ...........
Address :Sea&Fun, Rozenblum 8, IS- 6101 Tel-Aviv, Israel

Date of entry into office 128-12-2000 ..ttt ittt et e

20,00 08-01-2002 Page 00003 follows.
HOOFDKANTOOR

DE RUYTERKADE 5
POSTBUS 2852, 1000 CW AMSTERDAM
r (020) 531 40 00 r (020) 5314596

70
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File number: 33257798 Page 00003
Title 5 5 1 =Y o o =1 3 o
Powers :Solely/independently authorised .............

Issued by the chamber of commerce

IR g
e
g e %':’%-
G

e
A
e

=

iR Ry
5

' Noeus

B.C. Bosman-MoENS

HOOFDKANTOOR

DE RUYTERKADE 5

POSTBUS 2852, 1000 CW AMSTERDAM
T (020) 531 40 00 F (020) 5314596




Changes were registered with the Dutch Trade Register by means of filing a Form 15 which is
recorded in Dutch in accordance with the laws of The Netherlands. Form 15, which is a
publicly available document, registered the increase of the issued share capital ad EUR 184.78
per February 8, 2002 and is evidenced by an extract from the Dutch Trade Register for SPL
WorldGroup B.V., dated March S5, 2002, which also publicly available and a copy of which is
attached to this summary.

NY\755546.2



File number: 33257798

Page 00001

L= KAMER VAN KOOPHANDEI§

SAMSTERDAM

English translation of an extract from the commercial register of the

Chamber of Commerce and Industries for Amsterdam

Legal person:
Legal form

Name

Statutory seat

First registration in the
commercial register
Incorporation deed

Deed of latest amendment of
articles

Authorized capital

Issued capital

Paid up capital

There are different classes
of shares

:06-04-1994 .....
:28-03-1994

:30-03-2000
:EUR 3.403.351,62 ..
:NLG 1.657.649,00

:NLG 1.657.649,00

:Besloten Vennootschap (Private Limited

Liability Company)

:SPL Worldgroup B.V.
:Amsterdam

(EUR 752.208,32)

.0
..

(EUR 752.208,32)

. e

----------------------------

...........................

----------------------------

............................

----------------------------

----------------------------

----------------------------

............................

..........

Undertaking:

Tradename (s)

Address

Mailing address

Telephone number

Fax number

Date of establishment

Description of business
conducted

Employees

:SPL Worldgroup B.V. ..
:Teleportboulevard 140,
:Postbus 2838,
:020-5405800
:020-6447011
:28-03-1994

1000CV Amsterdam

.....

.................

-------

............................

............................

----------------------------

............................

............................

Directoxr(s):

Name
Date and place of birth
Address

Date of entry into office
Title
Powers

Name

28,00 05-03-2002

:Winer,
:05-04-1939,
:Homewood Drive 7142,
United States of America
:28-03-1994
:Directeur
:Solely/independently authorised ...

Trevor / 2

oooooooo

:Mor, Moshe Simha / 5

Page 00002 follows.

Kroonstad, South-Africa

Oakland Californie 84611,

------------

--------------------------

HOOFDKANTOOR

DE RUYTERKADE 5

POSTBUS 2852, 1000 CW AMSTERDAM
T(020) 531 40 00 F (020) 531 45 96




File number: 33257798

AMER VAN KOOPHANDE(.?

GLISTERDAN

Page 00002
Date and place of birth :13-12-1961, Haifa, Israel ......cccevennnecennns
Address :Broadway 1945, CA 94109 San Francisco, United

States of America ........... ceeenes Gt s e e
Date of entry into office :01-06-1994 . ... ..ttt et e e aae e
Title :Directeur ...... e et e e et a e c et
Powers Solely/independently authorised ...............
Name :Eilers, Daniel Lyle / 13 ...ttt iinnnroennnnns

Date and place of birth
Address

Date of entry into office
Title
Powers

Name
Date and place of birth

Address

Date of entry into office
Title
Powers

Name
Date and place of birth

Address

Date of entry into office
Title
Powers

Name

Date and place of birth
Address

Date of entry into office
Title

Powers

Name
Date and place of birth
Address

20,00 05-03-2002

:03-04-1955, Portland, United States of America
:Country Way 13300, CA 94022 L.Althos Hills,

United States of AMEricCa ...t ieeneeroonnseeenn

:30-05-1997 ... i C e ettt et e e
tDirecteuUr ... i i et e i e i e
:Solely/independently authorised ...............

:Meresman, Stanley J. / 14 ... .00t enannnn
:28-10-1946, New York City, United States of ...

AMETLICA ittt e vvenroeeneesoesasseaesessssssseseosa

:Huntington Lane 2971, CA 94024 Los Altos, .....

United States of AMErica .....eeeeeeertoeeenenes

t09-02-1998 ...t ittt ettt it e
B BT of =Yk o = s o .

:Hobbs, Clarence Dexter / 15 ...utieiieieennenns
:29-09-1943, Indianapolis, Indiana, United .....

States Of AMEricCa ..v.v.viineerreerersoeionnsanos

:139 Lincoln Drive Sausalito, California 94965,

United States of AmMerica .....ceeiievencenceens

128-09-2000 ...ttt ittt i ittt sttt e e
:Directeur ......... s ettt e
:Solely/independently authorised ...............

:Folb, Lewis John / 16 i ierr ittt ienoannonsos
:13-07-1945, Johannesburg, South-Africa ........
:15 Carmen Street, St Ives NSW 2075, Australia

:128-12-2000
£ 1 =Y o = B ol .o
:Solely/independently authorised ............. ..

TR R R R R I R I I I I I I A A N R ]

:Rotbard, Aliza / 17 .. viini e eansnassoasos
:12-01-1946, Buenos Aires, Argentina ...........
:Sea&Fun, Rozenblum 8, IS- 6101 Tel-Aviv, Israel

Page 00003 follows.

HOOFDKANTOOR

DE RUYTERKADE 5

POSTBUS 2852, 1000 CW AMSTERDAM
T (020) 531 40 00 F (020) 531 45 96




PAMER VAN KOOPHANDEIi?
~AMSTERDAM

ol
i

Lvs-

File number: 33257798 Page 00003

Date of entry into office $128-12-2000 .. .vetit ot tonscnanracnsenennntonns
Title B0 DI =Yoo 3 & U
Powers :Solely/independently authorised ........cv.u...

Issued by the chamber of commerce

48,00 Amsterdam, 05-03-2002

A. TANG - Yau

HOOFDKANTOOR

DE RUYTERKADE §

POSTBUS 2852, 1000 Cw AMSTERDAM
7(020) 531 40 00 F (020) 531 45 96




Changes were registered with the Dutch Trade Register by means of filing a Form 15 which is
recorded in Dutch in accordance with the laws of The Netherlands. Form 15, whichis a
publicly available document, registered the decrease of the issued share capital ad EUR
10,224.58 per May 14, 2002 and is evidenced by an extract from the Dutch Trade Register for
SPL WorldGroup B.V., dated July 2, 2002, also publicly available and a copy of which is
attached to this summary.

a0

do A

d

o

FE L 1

NY\755544.2



= KAMER VAN KOOPHANDEL?
AMSTERDAM

File number: 33257798 Page 00001

English translation of an extract from the commercial register of the
Chamber of Commerce and Industries for Amsterdam

Legal person:

Legal form :Besloten Vennootschap (Private Limited ........
Liability COMPANY) . vt vt it ennnerernnnennnns

Name : :SPL Worldgroup B.V. .. ...ttt ennnen
Statutory seat tAmSterdam ... .. i it e et e et e et
First registration in the

commercial register 106-04-1994 .. ... ettt e et e e e
Incorporation deed 128-03~1994 ... .. ittt it e e e
Deed of latest amendment cf

articles 130-03=2000 ... it ittt ittt ettt e e e et e
Authorized capital- tEUR 3.403.351,62 ..ttt ineeeeroenneeneennneanss
Issued capital tEUR 741.983,74 .. i ittt ieeeeeeeoeenononnaceanns
Paid up capital tEUR 741.983,74 .. ittt ettt taereetenanaeans
There are different classes

of shares :Consult the commercial register file ..........
Other information :See Dutch extract ....... ... i,
Undertaking:
Tradename(s) :SPL Worldgroup B.V. ..ttt ettt v e
Address :Teleportboulevard 140, 1043EJ Amsterdam .......
Mailing address :Postbus 2838, 1000CV Amsterdam ...........coo...
Telephone number t020-5405800 ...ttt it i et e N
Fax number t020-644701 ] . ...t e ettt e s et B
Date of establishment 128-03-1994 . ...ttt ettt e e et
Description of business -

conducted :See Dutch extract .... ... ittt
Employees 3

Director(s):

Name :Winer, Trevor / 2 ...... e e -
Date and place of birth :05-04-1939, Kroonstad, South-Africa ...........
Address :Homewood Drive 7142, Oakland Californie 94611,
United States of America ........ccciininnen.

Date of entry into office $28-03-1994 ... ... ittt et a e
Title tDirecteur ..... ...t i e e et e i e
Powers :Solely/independently authorised ...............
Name :tMor, Moshe Simha / 5 ... ierrinrmenncnnannnnan
Date and place of birth :13-12~1961, Haifa, Israel .......cconviveveneenn
29,00 02-07-2002 Page 00002 follows.
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Page 00002

Address

Date of entry into office
Title
Powers

Name
Date and place of birth
Address

Date of entry into office
Title
Powers

Name
Date and place of birth

Address

Date of entry into office
Title
Powers

Name
Date and place of birth

Address

Date of entry into office
Title
Powers

Name

Date and place of birth
Address

Date of entry into office
Title

Powers

Name

Date and place of birth
Address

Date of entry into office

20,00 02-07-2002

:Broadway 1945, CA 94109 San Francisco, United
States of America ...... ..ttt

t01-06-1994 ... .. et e e
tDirecteur ....... ..ttt e et
:Solely/independently authorised ...............
tEilers, Daniel Lyle / 13 ....ccuerernrcnennnn.

:03-04-1955, Portland, United States of America
:Country Way 13300, CA 94022 L.Althos Hills,

United States of America .........cociu.on.
130-05=0109 7 it ittt ettt ettt e st e ettt e
) D515 o <Y o o = I & ol
:Solely/independently authorised ...............

:Meresman, Stanley J. / 14 ... .. rinennnnn.
:28-10-1946, New York City, United States of
8111 e -

:Huntington Lane 2971, CA 94024 Los Altos, .....
United States of America .......cci e
109-02=-1998 .. .. ittt it et et e et e e
tDirecteur .. . e e e et e
Solely/independently authorised ...............
:Hobbs, Clarence Dexter / 15 .....iiininnennn.
$:29-09-1943, Indianapolis, Indiana, United ..... .
States of America ......ci ittt e e -
:139 Lincoln Drive Sausalito, California 94965,
United States of America ........ccci .. .
128-09-2000 ... it i i ettt et a e e e

D T o <Y o o8- b ol
:Solely/independently authorised ...............
tFolb, Lewis John / 16 ... o v ittt iieiiernnennn
:13-07-1945, Johannesburg, South-Africa ........ N

:15 Carmen Street, St Ives NSW 2075, Australia
128-12-2000 ... .ttt it ittt ettt e e
HB D o =Y o of =1 b b ol

:Rotbard, Aliza / 17 .ottt et e ee e et e e
:12-01-1946, Buenos Aires, Argentina ...........
:Sea&Fun, Rozenblum 8, IS- 6101 Tel-Aviv, Israel
$128=-12-2000 ... ...ttt ettt ettt e e

Page 00003 follows.
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File number: 33257798 Page 00003
Title Directeur .. ..ttt ittt rrrtianranenaennne enens
Powers Solely/independently authorised ...............

Issued by the chamber of commerce

49,00

Amstelveen, 02-07-2002

Q/( M. SCHWEGLER
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Changes were registered with the Dutch Trade Register by means of filing a Form 15 which is
recorded in Dutch in accordance with the laws of The Netherlands. Form 15, whichis a
publicly available document, registered the increase of the issued share capital ad EUR 3,09
per June 27, 2002 and is evidenced by an extract from the Dutch Trade Register for SPL
WorldGroup B.V., dated July 9, 2002, also publicly available and an unofficial copy of which
is attached to this summary.

NY\755550.2



File number: 33257798
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CHAMBER OF COMMERCE FOR AMSTERDAM

Page 00001

Excerpt from the Trade Register of the Chamber of Commerce and Industry for Amsterdam

Legal entity:
Legal structure

Registered name

Registered office

Date of first listing of

the legal entity in any Trade
Register

Deed of incorporation

Deed of most recent amendment
to the Articles of Association
Authorised capital

Issued capital

Paid-up capital

There are different classes of
shares

Other information

Private limited liability company
SPL Worldgroup B.V.
Amsterdam

April 6, 1994
March 28, 1994

June 5, 2002

EUR 3,403,351.62
EUR 741,987.82
EUR 741,987.82

Consult the commercial register file
(Capital converted into euro in accordance with
Article 2:178¢ Dutch Civil Code)

Company:
Trade name(s)

Business address
Correspondence address
Telephone number

Fax number

Date of establishment of the
company

Description of business
conducted

Number of people working in the
company

SPL Worldgroup B.V.

Teleportboulevard 140, 1043 E] Amsterdam
P.O. Box 2838, 1000 CV Amsterdam
020-5405800

020-6447011

March 28, 1994

Holding and financing company

0

Manager(s):

Name
Date and place of birth
Address

Date of taking up duties
Title
Representative power

Name

Date and place of birth
Address

26,32 July 9, 2002

Winer, Trevor / 2

April 5, 1939, Kroonstad, South Africa
Homewood Drive 7142, Oakland, California
94611, United States of America

March 28, 1994

Managing Director

Solely/independently authorized

Mor, Moshe Simha / 5

December 13, 1961, Haifa, Israel

Broadway 1945, CA 94109, San Francisco, United
States of America

Continued on page 00002.
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File number: 33257798 Page 00002
Date of taking up duties June 1, 1994
Title Managing Director

Representative power

Name
Date and place of birth
Address

Date of taking up duties
Title
Representative power

Name
Date and place of birth

Address

Date of taking up duties
Title
Representative power

Name
Date and place of birth

Address

Date of taking up duties
Title
Representative power

Name

Date and place of birth
Address

Date of taking up duties
Title

Representative power

Name

Date and place of birth
Address

Date of taking up duties
Title

Representative power

20,00 July 9, 2002

Solely/independently authorized

Eilers, Daniel Lyle / 13

April 3, 1955, Portland, United States of America
Country Way 13300, CA 94022, L.Althos Hills,
United States of America

May 30, 1997

Managing Director

Solely/independently authorized

Meresman, Stanley J. / 14

October 28, 1946, New York City, United States of
America

Huntington Lane 2971, CA 94024 Los Altos,
United States of America

February 9, 1998

Managing Director

Solely/independently authorized

Hobbs, Clarence Dexter / 15

September 29, 1943, Indianapolis, Indiana, United
States of America

139 Lincoln Drive, Sausalito, California 94965,
United States of America

September 28, 2000

Managing Director

Solely/independently authorized

Folb, Lewis John / 16

July 13, 1945, Johannesburg, South Africa

15 Carmen Street, St. Ives, NSW 2075, Australia
December 28, 2000

Managing Director

Solely/independently authorized

Rotbard, Aliza/ 17

January 12, 1946, Buenos Aires, Argentina
Sea&Fun, Rozenblum 8, IS- 6101 Tel-Aviv, Israel
December 28, 2000

Managing Director

Solely/independently authorized

Continued on page 00003.
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File number: 33257798 Page 00002

Valid only if provided with an original signature by the Chamber.

46,32 Amstelveen, July 7, 2002

Excerpt issued by

[signature]

ms. H.P. van der Loo



Changes were registered with the Dutch Trade Register by means of filing a Form 15 which is
recorded in Dutch in accordance with the laws of The Netherlands. Form 15, which is a
publicly available document, registered the increase of the issued share capital ad EUR 54.46
per July 25, 2002 and is evidenced by an extract from the Dutch Trade Register for SPL
WorldGroup B.V., dated July 29, 2002, which is also publicly available and a copy of which
is attached to this summary.

NY\755545.2



File number: 33257798

Page 00001

AMER V%\gKOOPHANDELg

TERDAM

English translation of an extract from the commercial register of the
Chamber of Commerce and Industries for Amsterdam

Legal person:
Legal form

Name

Statutory seat

First registration in the
commercial register
Incorporation deed

Deed of latest amendment of

articles
Authorized capital
Issued capital
Paid up capital

There are different classes

of shares
Other information

:Besloten Vennootschap (Private Limited

Liability Company) .
:SPL Worldgroup B.V.

:Amsterdam ..........
:06-04-1994
:28-03-1994

.........

:05-06-2002
:EUR 3.403.351,62
:EUR 742.042,28
:EUR 742.042,28

.....

:Consult the commercial register file

:See Dutch extract ..

--------

...........................

...........................

...........................

...........................

...........................

...........................

...........................

...........................

...........................

..........

---------------------------

Undertaking:
Tradename(s)

Address

Mailing address

Telephone number

Fax number

Date of establishment

Description of business
conducted

Employees

:SPL Worldgroup B.V.

:Teleportboulevard 140,

:Postbus 2838,
:020-5405800
:020-6447011
:128-03-1994

.........

1000CV Amsterdam

1043EJ Amsterdam .......

...........................

...........................

---------------------------

e e An e e e e e v G S e e e e M e e M e e e e e e M T e e M e e e Em R e e e e SR e =R Al e e e e e e e Ee e Em em e e e = me e e

Director(s):

Name
Date and place of birth
Address

Date of entry into office
Title
Powers

Name
Date and place of birth

29,00 29-07-2002

:Winer, Trevor / 2 ..

:05-04-1939, Kroonstad, South-Africa

:Homewood Drive 7142,

...........................

...........

Oakland Californie 94611,

United States of America .......c.civvmenenn..

:28-03-1994
:Directeur

---------

..........

:Solely/independently authorised

:Mor, Moshe Simha / 5
:13-12-1961, Haifa,

Page 00002 follows.

Israel

...........................
...........................

...............

..........................

.....................
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File number:

33257798

Page 00002

Address

Date of entry into office
Title
Powers

Name
Date and place of birth
Address

Date of entry into office
Title
Powers

Name
Date and place of birth

Address

Date of entry into office
Title
Powers

Name
Date and place of birth

Address

Date of entry into office
Title
Powers

Name

Date and place of birth
Address

Date of entry into office
Title

Povers

Name

Date and place of birth
Address

Date of entry into office

20,00 29-07-2002

:Broadway 1945, CA 94109 San Francisco, United .
States of America ......... et e e e

t01-06=1994 .......cfit it trtencar st
tDirecteur .... .ttt e e it et e e e e
:Solely/independently authorised ...............
:Eilers, Daniel Lyle / 13 ...t iiieninenrnennnnn

:03-04-1955, Portland, United States of America
:Country Way 13300, CA 94022 L.Althos Hills,
United States of America .......c.vcr e annnnn

130=05-1987 ... ittt e i et s e et e e s
E 0 15 ol =Yook of =1 b ol .
:Solely/independently authorised ...............
:Meresman, Stanley J. / 14 ... ien e nnnnn.

:28-10-1946, New York City, United States of .
N (=3 o I o Y
:Huntington Lane 2971, CA 94024 Los Altos, .....
United States of America ........cuvierennnunun.
109-02-1998 ..ttt it it it e e e e e
D1 15 o =T o of =3 ¥ b o
:Solely/independently authorised ...............

:Hobbs, Clarence Dexter / 15 ... iiinennnenn.
:29-09-1943, Indianapolis, Indiana, United .....
States of America ......... ittt i it e
:139 Lincoln Drive Sausalito, California 94965,
United States of America ....... oo,
128-00=-2000 .. ...ttt ittt it et et e e et e e
tDirecteur ... ... i e e e e e et e e
:Solely/independently authorised ...............

1Folb, Lewis John / 16 .. i iiitrnreenennnnennn.
:13-07-1945, Johannesburg, South-Africa ........
:15 Carmen Street, St Ives NSW 2075, Australia

128-12-2000 ..... e s ittt e
tDirecteur . ... .. ittt e et et e e e
:Solely/independently authorised ...............

tRotbard, Aliza / 17 vt iriie ettt
:12-01-1946, Buenos Aires, Argentina ...........
:Sea&Fun, Rozenblum 8, IS- 6101 Tel-Aviv, Israel
128-12-2000 ... ...t iie e et e r et

Page 00003 follows.
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AMER VAN KOOPHANDEE%?
AMSTERDAM

File number: 33257798 Page 00003
Title tDAreCteUr ...ttt ittt st e et
Powers :Solely/independently authorised ...............

Issued by the chamber of commerce

49,00 Amstelveen, 29-07-2002

{ﬁ M. SCHWEGLER

WA

HOOFDKANTOOR

DE RUYTERKADE 5

POSTBUS 2852, 1000 CW AMSTERDAM
7(020) 531 40 00 F (020) 531 45 96




Changes were registered with the Dutch Trade Register by means of filing a Form 15 which is
recorded in Dutch in accordance with the laws of The Netherlands. Form 15, which is a
publicly available document, registered the increase of the issued share capital ad EUR
2,722.68 per September 18, 2002 and is evidenced by an extract from the Dutch Trade
Register for SPL WorldGroup B.V., dated October 1, 2002, which is also publicly available
and a copy of which 1s attached to this summary.

NY\755543.2
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KAMER VAN KOOPHANDEL;?
AMSTERDAM

File number: 33257798 Page 00001

English translation of an extract from the commercial register of the
Chamber of Commerce and Industries for Amsterdam

l.egal person:

Legal form :Besloten Vennootschap (Private Limited ........
Liability COMPANY) «vveeeercneeocacncncanocnaens
Name :8SPL Worldgroup B.V. ..... st e e s e s e e e
Statutory seat :Amsterdam ....cciieeneenn ceerereaenee ce et
First registration in the
commercial register :206-04-1994 ... .. ceeereesen e e e
Incorporation deed 128-03-1994 ... ... it ittt it it e Cee e e
Deed of latest amendment of
articles 105-06-2002 ..o ioeeennsontsensesatseonneoseans .
Authorized capital tEUR 3.403.351,62 ..icevrvoennens G h et s e e
Issued capital tEBUR 744,764,096 & i iiietieaennnenonssanennnnsanss
Paid up capital tBUR 744.764,96 .ttt eeeenneneeneanananesennns
There are different classes
of shares :Consult the commercial register file ........ .
Other information :See Dutch extract ...c.cvevvineen... Chesea e

Undertaking:

Tradename (s) :SPL Worldgroup B.V. ... e e e et et
Address :Teleportboulevard 140, 1043EJ Amsterdam cheaaa
Mailing address :Postbus 2838, 1000CV Amsterdam .......covueuuunn
Telephone number :020-5405800 ....... c e e et ece e s s eeaceenaetanenas
Fax number :020-6447011 ... it enenn ch ettt s ettt
Date of establishment :28-03-1994 ....... e ceeara N e seeen
Description of business

conducted :See Dutch exXtract ittt e it neneeroenesnane
Employees £ c et ee st e et e

Director(s):

Name :Winer, Trevor / 2 ..... Ceee st ettcesene e .
Date and place of birth :05-04-1939, Kroonstad, South-Africa ..... e
Address :Homewood Drive 7142, Oakland Californie 94611

United States of America ....ociveveenenannn. -
Date of entry into office :28-03-1994 ...... . .. et se e araaee e .o
Title b8 0515 of Yol ol =1 b § ol AN ..
Powers :Solely/independently authorised ............ .o
Name :Mor, Moshe Simha / 5 ..... St s e s se s e st e
Date and place of birth :13-12-1961, Haifa, Israel .....cceecvnnssnnanns
29,00 01-10-2002 Page 00002 follows.
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File number: 33257798

KAMER VAN KOOPHANDE@
AM §TERDAM

Address

Date of entry into office
Title
Powers

Name
Date and place of birth
Address

Date of entry into office
Title
Powers

Name
Date and place of birth

Address

Date of entry into office
Title
Powers

Name
Date and place of birth

Address

Date of entry into office
Title
Powers

Name

Date and place of birth
Address

Date of entry into office
Title

Powers

Name

Date and place of birth
Address

Date of entry into office

20,00 01-10-2002

Page 00002

:Broadway 1945, CA 94109 San Francisco, United .
States Of AMETYiCA +veeieeeeenascerenssocnosnnes
t01-06-1994 . ...ttt etterececcnsssassascassnsns
8 05 15 of=Yo8 ot =1 1 s ol N .
:Solely/independently authorised ...............
:Eilers, Daniel Lyle / 13 ..t iiteiiieiinnnn

:03-04-1955, Portland, United States of America
:Country Way 13300, CA 94022 L.Althos Hills, ...
United States Of AMEricCa ...veeiieeenreernnnoass
:30-05-1997 ..... . ..
E3 D0 15 o =T o4 ot = U s
:1Solely/independently authorised ...............

:Meresman, Stanley J. /7 14 .......ccu..
:28-10-1946, New York City, United States of ...
AMEYICA tiveivecennancanneannnns Crecee et .
:Huntington Lane 2971, CA 94024 Los Altos, .....

United States of AMErica .uveii e eneennnnenns
:09-02-1998 ... ... et e ensccesaneos t e et
DR o =Yod of =31 ol O C et s e
:Solely/independently authorlsed ............ .

:Hobbs, Clarence Dexter / 15 ... ...
:29-09-1943, Indianapolis, Indiana, United .....
States Of AMETrICa voveevererernnnnecenennonnnas
:139 Lincoln Drive Sausalito, California 94965.

United States of America ..... e e et e e
:28-09-2000 ... C e et s e es s s et e e et e
£ 00 5 o =Y o8 = | s «f e
:Solely/independently authorised ...............
:Folb, Lewis JONN / 16 .c.ieririeneeeroensnnneeros
:13-07-1945, Johannesburg, South-Africa ........
:15 Carmen Street, St Ives NSW 2075, Australia .
:28-12-2000 ... iiniie i c s st e s et et e e s e
IDIreCteUY ittt ereneersaneennns e eeaaee e
:Solely/independently authorised ......... N
tRotbard, B1iza / 17 .ueeeenrrerenooneonenensenns

:12-01-1946, Buenos Aires, Argentina ...........
:Sea&Fun, Rozenblum 8, IS- 6101 Tel-Aviv, Israel
:28-12-2000 ....

Page 00003 follows.
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File number: 33257798 Page 00003
Title | of ~Yo.4 =1 | b <l
Powers

---------------

Issued by the chamber of

49,00

commerce

Amsterdam, 01-10-2002

renoga
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Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders and Invitation to Nominate Directors
6 ‘_ A K ~on Of
Hed = T2 SPL WorldGroup B.V,

4 >
LN

-

I |
™)

The Annual Meeting of the Shareholders of SPL WorldGroup B.V. (the "Company") will be held
at the office of the Company, Leidsekade 98, 1017 PP Amsterdam, The Netherlands, on Friday, December
28, 2001 at 10 A.M., Netherlands time.

At the meeting, the shareholders shall vote for (i) the election of directors and (ii) such other
matters stated in the agenda of the meeting, which shall be provided to the shareholders prior to the
meeting.

As required by Section 2.4 of the Amended and Restated Preferred and Common Stock
Shareholders Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2000 (the “Shareholders Agreement”), the shareholders of the
Company are invited to nominate persons for election (or continuation) as Inside Directors and Outside
Directors. Only shareholders, or a group of shareholders owning directly or indirectly 1% or more of the
issued and outstanding common shares of the Company, are entitled to nominate persons for election as
Directors, except for the Designated Director, who is nominated by the holders of the Series A Preferred
and the Series B Preferred (collectively, the “Preferred Stock™). As of the date of this Notice, 1% of the
outstanding common shares of the Company equals 120,928 shares, par value NLG 0.12 per share.

Nominations must be in writing, signed by the nominating shareholder and the person being
nominated. All nominations must be received by the Company, Attention: Richard Zolezzi, General
Counsel, SPL WorldGroup B.V., 75 Hawthorne Plaza, 20" Floor, San Francisco, California 94105 USA,
no later than Wednesday, November 28, 2001. Nominations may be sent by fax to (+1) 415-974-8966. A
nomination form accompanies this notice.

As defined in the Shareholders Agreement, an “Inside Director” means a director who either (i) is
an employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; or (ii) is a Direct Shareholder holding directly, or
an Indirect Shareholder holding indirectly, more than 2% of the common shares of the Company; or (iii)
has (either alone or together with other members of his family) control of, or is the spouse, parent or lineal
descendant of, a Direct Shareholder holding directly, or an Indirect Shareholder holding indirectly, more
than 2% of the common shares of the Company. An “Outside Director” means a director who is not the
chief executive officer of the Company, an Inside Director or the Designated Director. In accordance with
the Shareholders Agreement, a Shareholder may not nominate or join in nominating more than two persons
for election as Inside Directors, nor more than one person for election as an Outside Director.

A list of the director nominees and a detailed agenda of the matters to be considered at the meeting
will be sent to each shareholder at least 15 days prior to the meeting. The agenda will be accompanied by a
proxy form for the convenience of those shareholders that do not plan on attending the meeting.

Dated: November 8, 2001

Richard Zolezzi
Senior Vice President and General Counsel



Annual Meeting
of
Shareholders of SPL WorldGroup B.V.
To be held on December 28, 2001

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

We hereby nominate the following candidate(s) for election (or continuation) to the Board of
SPL WorldGroup B.V.:

Name of Inside Director Candidate(s) Signature of Candidate(s)
1.
2.

Name of Outside Director Candidate Signature of Candidate
1.
Nominated by: Signature:

Note: Nominations are to be sent to: Richard Zolezzi, General Counsel, SPL WorldGroup B.V., 75 Hawthorne Plaza,
20" Floor, San Francisco, California 94105 USA, for receipt no later than Wednesday, November 2§, 2001. Fax no.
(+1) 415-974-8966. If difficulties are experienced with the fax transmission, please call (+1) 415-357-4767.



Notice of Annual Meeting of Shareholders and Invitation to Nominateli)i:feth,;'s .
of " ":g‘; >
SPL WorldGroup B.V. Y

The Annual Meeting of the Shareholders of SPL WorldGroup B.V. (the "Company") will be held
at the office of the Company, Leidsekade 98, 1017 PP Amsterdam, The Netherlands, on Tuesday, April 15,
2003 at 10 A.M., Netherlands time.

At the meeting, the Shareholders shall vote for (1) the election of directors; and (ii) such other
matters stated in the Agenda of the meeting, which shall be provided to the Shareholders prior to the
meeting.

As required by Section 2.4 of the Amended and Restated Preferred and Common Stock
Shareholders Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2000 (the “Shareholders Agreement”), the Shareholders of the
Company are invited to nominate persons for election (or continuation) as Inside Directors and Qutside
Directors. Only Shareholders, or a group of Shareholders owning directly or indirectly 1% or more of the
issued and outstanding common shares of the Company, are entitled to nominate persons for election as
Directors, except for the Designated Director, who is nominated by the holders of the Series A Preferred
and the Series B Preferred (collectively, the “Preferred Stock™). As of the date of this Notice, 1% of the
outstanding common shares of the Company equals 119,594 shares, par value NLG 0.12 per share.

Nominations must be in writing, signed by the nominating Shareholder and the person being
nominated. All nominations must be received by the Company, Attention: Richard Zolezzi, General
Counsel, SPL WorldGroup B.V., 75 Hawthome Plaza, 20" Floor, San Francisco, California 94105 USA,
no later than Monday, March 17, 2003. Nominations may be sent by fax to (+1) 415-974-8966. A
nomination form accompanies this Notice.

As defined in the Shareholders Agreement, an “Inside Director” means a director who either (i) is
an employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; or (i1) is a Direct Shareholder holding directly, or
an Indirect Shareholder holding indirectly, more than 2% of the common shares of the Company; or (iii)
has (either alone or together with other members of his family) control of, or is the spouse, parent or lineal
descendant of, a Direct Shareholder holding directly, or an Indirect Shareholder holding indirectly, more
than 2% of the common shares of the Company. An “Outside Director” means a director who is not the
chief executive officer of the Company, an Inside Director or the Designated Director. In accordance with
the Shareholders Agreement, a Shareholder may not nominate or join in nominating more than two persons
for election as Inside Directors, nor more than one person for election as an Outside Director.

A list of the director nominees and a detailed agenda of the matters to be considered at the meeting
will be sent to each Shareholder at least 15 days prior to the meeting. The Agenda will be accompanied by
a proxy form for the convenience of those Shareholders that do not plan on attending the meeting.

Dated: February 25, 2003

/s/ Richard V. Zolezzi
Richard V. Zolezzi
Senior Vice President and General Counsel




Annual Meeting
of
Shareholders of SPL WorldGroup B.V.
To be held on April 15, 2003

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

We hereby nominate the following candidate(s) for election (or continuation) to the Board of
SPL WorldGroup B.V.:

Name of Inside Director Candidate(s) Signature of Candidate(s)
1.
2.

Name of Outside Director Candidate Signature of Candidate
L.
Nominated by: Signature:

Note: Nominations are to be sent to: Richard Zolezzi, General Counsel, SPL WorldGroup B.V., 75 Hawthorne Plaza,
201 Floor, San Francisco, California 94105 USA, for receipt no later than Monday, March 17, 2003. Fax no. (+1)
415-974-8966. If difficulties are experienced with the fax transmission, please call (+1) 415-357-4767.



SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Report to Shareholders
February 25, 2003

Dear Shareholder:

This letter is to provide you an update of certain important events at SPL WorldGroup and a review of our
financial highlights for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2002. As described below, we are very pleased
to report that we exceeded our profitability target for the year—even in the face of the continued global
economic slump—on strong revenues that fell just short of our target.

Financial Summary

Our normal year-end audit will be conducted in April by our outside auditors, Emst & Young, and we expect
our Annual Report to be ready shortly thereafter. In the interim, we are pleased to report the following
unaudited consolidated results. For the year ended December 31, 2002, our revenues were US $107.5
million, generating net income of US $5.1 million, or 31 cents per share. This represents strong revenue
growth over the prior twelve months of 16%. License and maintenance revenues grew by 41% and 37%,
respectively, from the prior year, with service revenue growing by 7%. Operating margin for the current
year was 6.7%, a half percentage point higher than our budgeted operating margin of 6.2%. Cash on hand at
the close of 2002 was US $36.3 million, substantially equal to that of the prior year. Cash on hand was flat
due to some significant billings at year-end that were collected in January 2003.

During 2002, we signed sixteen software license transactions, consisting of five new customers licensing our
CorDaptix product, five new customers licensing our PeopleSoft CIS product, and six existing customers
expanding their use of either CorDaptix or CI§ PLUS. Our new customers covered four different countries:
the U.S,, the UK., Australia, and our first entry into the Brazilian market. We also entered the new vertical
market of Financial Services by licensing our product to our first US financial institution.

Global headcount of the Company across all divisions and subsidiaries is 715 compared to 645 at the
beginning of 2002. Our current employee base is roughly divided 55% in the Americas, 15% in EMEA
(Europe, Middle East and Africa), and 35% in Asia Pacific, which includes Australia.

While we performed well relative to budget and in light of market conditions, we need to be cognizant that
IT spending remains down in the global economy and even utility companies, the main market for our
products and services, are under increasing pressure to reduce IT spending. As we enter our current fiscal
year, we need to continue to contain costs and monitor very closely the sales we expect to close in the period.

CEO luitiatives for CY 02
Last year I established four strategic initiatives to address the growth and positioning of our Company:

Knowledge Management:

During the past year, I appointed Gavin Bunshaw, our managing director in Australia, to undertake the
extremely important tasks of hamessing the areas of knowledge that we call upon to execute our business,
and of developing a platform to make that knowledge available for our people globally. That effort has
spanned each practice area and is now being rolled out in our internal information portal known as
MySPL.com. Time and again we have come to realize that a key strength of SPL is its global presence and
our accumulated knowledge of doing business globally. MySPL.com will allow all of our business units to
quickly and efficiently locate the knowledge and resources they need in their daily projects.




Customer Satisfaction:

Customer satisfaction is central to all our offerings and is the key to our continued good reputation, follow-
on business and new sales. Prospective customers invariably interview our customer base and request site
visits to see our products and services first-hand. As our projects have grown in complexity and size, and as
we work more often with systems integrators or consultants hired by the customer, we have recognized the
need to institutionalize customer satisfaction. As part of this effort, we initiated a program to survey our
customers regularly during the course of our projects. We involve an outside survey organization to better
insure that the survey results are comprehensive and consistent across the various stages of the projects and
the geographies involved. The results of these customer satisfaction surveys directly impact the incentive
compensation of managers and employees involved in customer-facing roles.

Training:

To meet and exceed the training needs and expectations of SPL's clients and partners worldwide, we have
invested in the development of the training infrastructure and offerings, including CorDaptix partner
certification programs, to effectively position SPL as a best-of-breed product company. Our new VP of
Training, Conrad Metcalfe, has led the initiative to improve our training and knowledge transfer
methodologies and significantly expand professional training offerings to our system integrator partners and
clients. This initiative, formally implemented in the latter half of 2002, is already generating revenue and is
well received by our customers and partners.

Communication:

Over the past year, I have asked our human resources group to work closely with me to improve our internal
communications and empower each employee to understand our Company’s direction and goals. Highlights
for the year have been a series of informational web casts I have made to each SPL office, roundtable
discussions I have hosted in each of our principal offices to distill and capture from our longstanding
employees the core values that have always distinguished SPL, and internal databases and newsletters made
available to keep our employees apprised of local and regional SPL events.

Recent Project Implementations

I am pleased to report that SPL had an unprecedented number of project implementations in the second half
of the fiscal year. We implemented nine projects, including our project for Eskom in South Africa and for
Pacific Gas & Electric in California. PG&E, California’s largest utility, went live with CorDaptix to service
its over 10 million customers. PG&E retained SPL to develop its customer management system after PG&E
was unsuccessful with two prior vendors. Over the course of the last few years, we have worked very closely
with PG&E to develop the functionality it needed for the deregulated market in California. Rather than
switch on the system in a phased approach for its various tiers of customers, PG&E had the confidence to
switch over to CorDaptix in one “big bang” event for its full customer base. Unbeknownst to everyone at the
time, the trouble order functionality of the system would be put to the ultimate test a few days after the
system went live as Northern California suffered widespread power outages from a massive storm that left
hundreds of thousands of people without power in the days approaching Christmas. CorDaptix performed
very well.

Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and Election of Directors

We are giving advance notice that the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (‘AGM”) will be held on
April 15, 2003. Official notice of the AGM will be distributed before March 1. This will be an important
meeting because two of our directors, Daniel Eilers and Moshe Mor, will not be standing for re-election. In
anticipation of the decision of Dan and Moshe to resign from the Board, the Board instituted a search last
year to identify strong candidates that would round out and compliment the skills and business experience of
the remaining existing Board and help us as we broaden our business focus. I am very happy to report that

2



the Board identified two such candidates, Jean-Claude Gruffat and Roger Peirce, and has unanimously
nominated them to stand for election at the upcoming AGM. Jean-Claude is the head of Citibank in France
and is responsible for the bank’s relationship with its French customers worldwide and their multinational
affiliates. Roger is also a seasoned executive. He was the Chief Operating Officer of VISA until he joined
First Data Corporation in 1994. At FDC, he was responsible for its merchant billing operations with over
5,500 employees and pre-tax profit of US $275 million. Jean-Claude’s and Roger’s resumes are attached for
your information.

Challenges

It is important that I mention certain of the challenges facing our industry and SPL as we enter the current
fiscal year. While the global economy has been suffering for the past few years, it was not until last year that
the financial troubles of the utility sector started appearing in the daily newspapers. Each individual case is
perhaps a bit different, whether the troubles stemmed from deregulation, energy trading losses, fraud, or
simply financial pressure from a poor economy. In any event, these troubles put downward pressure on IT
spending by our principal market. At the same time, competition for the available IT projects remains
intense and our competitors for the major projects are all companies larger than SPL. These pressures will
require us to monitor our expected sales closely and be ready to adjust our business if the market continues to
falter.

The necessary expansion of our business into non-English speaking countries requires more resources and
presents particular issues. Our current principal market is the global utility industry. A benefit of having
business in various countries has been that we are able to exploit more vibrant markets during periods when
other markets may be experiencing slower growth. This has been particularly true since the US utility
market began its slowdown prior to the European market. Starting with our significant project for EDF
(Electricité de France) a few years ago, we have increasingly found ourselves bidding on projects in non-
English speaking countries. In fact, in our utility practice, we are currently working on such projects in
France, Brazil and the Netherlands, and are bidding on projects in other countries, including China (Hong
Kong) and Italy. Each new country requires significant R&D effort to address local country requirements
and the additional expense to translate the product and the product documentation for clients in non-English
speaking countries. As we know from our experience in France, implementing a project in a non-English
speaking country is more complex and requires us to be more reliant on local systems integrators who have
the local presence and language skills to facilitate the implementation. In spite of these challenges, we
cannot be captive to one geographic market or to only an English-speaking world. Therefore, we believe we
must continue to dedicate the necessary resources to effectively expand in these markets.

Our ability to expand our business outside of the utility sector remains a goal and a challenge. The global
utility market is a large market but competitive pressures and the sluggish economy effectively reduce the
portion of the market that we believe we can capture. We know our product can be adapted for use outside
of the traditional utility sector. We count as our clients Waste Management, Inc., the largest waste company
in the world, and a major Virginia-based US financial institution that is implementing CorDaptix to handle
its credit and collections billing. Although only a small part of our business is currently outside of the utility
sector, we intend to continue to look to other global industries, including financial services, as a way to
expand our business.

Management: Appointments and Moves

Robert Brnilovich joined SPL on December 1, 2002 as Senior Vice President, Global Professional Services.
Bob 1s a veteran of Price Waterhouse and Bearing Point (formerly KPMG Consulting) where he headed
Bearing Point’s global utility practice. Bob has taken over responsibility for all professional services at SPL,
which includes our global delivery organization, the account management team, our new training
organization, and our management consulting services provided through our TransFormance division. We
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are also pleased to announce that Jim Reardon, a longstanding SPL’er and utility industry executive, has
been appointed to handle global account management. Other additions to the senior management team
include Conrad Metcalfe, who joined SPL in October 2002 as the Vice President of Training. Finally, we
welcome back to SPL Yehiel Schindelhaim who takes over for Aya Zucker as the new project manager for
our on-going work at PG&E. Yehiel was a key member of SPL USA at the time of the formation of SPL
WorldGroup in 1994.

Alliances

We continue to establish alliances with the major global systems integration firms. Currently, American
Management Systems, Deloitte Consulting, Cap Gemini Emst & Young, IBM, NCS (Singapore) and Nihon
Unisys Limited (Japan) have joined our Implementation Partner Alliance program. As alliance partners, they
are encouraged to source business for SPL and to develop their own technical and business expertise around
our CorDaptix solution.

Geographic Expansion and Alignment

In a sign that we have come full circle from the Company’s roots in South Africa, we opened a South African
subsidiary last year in connection with our work for Eskom. Eskom is South Africa’s electric utility and the
largest utility in Africa. The subsidiary is focused on delivering the Eskom project, but will also be
important as we attempt to broaden our work in South Africa, including work that we are currently bidding
on for the City of Durban. We are also expanding our current facilities in Melbourne, Paris and Manila.

In addition, we are aligning the direction of our offices to optimize use of our resources. For example, given
the significant cost advantages of our Manila office, we are directing more software development projects to
it. Our Manila staff has always provided excellent assistance on our CorDaptix implementation projects
around the world and we expect to increase that participation. Similarly, we are expanding our Paris office
to better address our existing work in Europe and to allow us to staff our European efforts with more local
expertise. Increasingly, we will look to all of our offices to drive optimization of our business.

Investor Relations

We invite you to contact us if we can address any questions or comments you may have. Please contact us at
<investor_relations@splwg.com> or feel free to call me directly at my Morristown office +1 973 451-4238.

Personal regards,
/s/ CD Hobbs

CD Hobbs
Chairman and CEO

Attachments



Jean-Claude Gruffat
8, Avenue de Lowendal — 75007 —Paris

Sept 1998 Citibank Paris — Country Corporate Officer and Market
Manager France

March 1996-July 1998 Executive Vice President, Member of the Executive
Committee

Chairman Asia Pacific, Credit Agricole Indosuez

Implementing the integration of the bank’s operations and
securities activities (Indosuez WI Carr) in 19 Asian
countries.

Developing and origination capability in debt and equity in
the main financial centres of Tokyo, Hong Kong and
Singapore; successfully negotiated major divestitures
including the sale of a minority ownership in Multi-Purpose
Bank Bhd in Malaysia.

Also non-executive Chairman of Suez Asia Holdings,
managing a pool of US$200 million of pre-IPQOs, unlisted
investments.

July 1994-March 1996 Global Head Indosuez Capital, based in Paris, France

In charge of emerging markets, (Brazil, Mexico, Russia,
former Yugoslavia), equity product line worldwide (WI
Carr and Cheuvreux de Virieu) and leveraged financing
(LBOs) in the US market. Worked on several major
privatizations in France : Pechiney, Usinor-Sacilor, Seita...

Oct 1987-July 1994 Senior Regional Officer of North America with residence
in New York;

Turned a traditional foreign banking unit into a highly
focused and profitable capital market operation. Recruited
talented professionals from major Wall Street firms and
negotiated their compensation packages.

For two successive years, 1992 to 1994, also served as
chairman of the Institute of International Bankers, the
foreign banks association in the USA. Monitored and
developed high level contacts with Treasury officials,
leaders in Congress in banking and financing, MOF, and
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June 1983-Oct 1987

Sept 1973 to May 1983

Education

Personal

cvjeg

top level executives at major financial institutions in the
US, Europe and Asia.

Regional Executive for Greater China (Hong Kong, PRC
and Taiwan) in charge of several branches’ operations with
residence in Hong Kong.

Opened the second foreign bank branch in the PRC
Shenzhen special economic zone — after conducting

extensive negotiations with the regulatory authorities in
Beijing (1985).

From 1985 to 1987 also in charge of investment banking
and capital market (Indosuez Asia) for Asia; loan
syndications, corporate finance, direct investments.

Initiated in 1986 the acquisition by Indosuez of WI Carr,
one of the major equity brokers specialized in the Asian
markets, also advised a major French group — Lyonnaise
des Eaux — on their purchase of 38% of Electricity of
Macao.

Various assignments overseas, Thailand and Saudi Arabia
for Banque Indosuez including positions in loans, treasury
and foreign exchange, financial control, branch operations
and general management.

High level contact still maintained in Saudi Arabia,
Lebanon and Thailand, both in public as well as private
sectors.

PhD in Public Law, Lyon France 1972 Thesis (highest
honours) on “Conflicts of Interest for Members of
Parliament in French public law”

Masters in Political Science, Lyon France
Stanford Executive Program, GSB Stanford Palo Alto CA
Summer of 1987.

Born on November 6, 1944 in Lyon France. French
national with US permanent resident status. Married with
two children, one working in the USA and the other one in
the UK.

Distance runner. NYC Marathon finisher in 1991 and 1992.



Roger L. Peirce
12008 Emerald Hill Lane
Los Altos Hills, Ca 94022
(650) 941-6612 or (650) 941-6613 (fax)
rpeirce@pacbell.net (e-mail)

Personal:

I’ve been married 33 years, have two adult daughters, and have
lived in the south bay area since 1959, except for a three-
year assignment in Monterey. I'm 60 years old. My avocations
include flying (I own a CESSNA T210 and have held a pilot’s
license since 1965 with an instrument rating), golfing (I took
it up nine years ago and have become addicted), and, skiing.

Formal Education:

Attended San Jose State University for four years, graduating
in 1963 with a BA in mathematics. I also attended some
graduate level courses at IBM’s Systems Research Institute.

Professional:

IBM (1963 to 1981) - Immediately after graduating from college
in 1963, I began a career with IBM as a systems engineer
working out of their San Jose sales office. During each of
the first four years, I received awards to attend the annual
recognition event for system engineers. 1In 1968 I became a
commissioned salesman and achieved 100% of quota in every vear
thereafter for thirteen years. During that time until early
1981, I performed in various commissioned sales roles, with my
last assignment being that of the national account manager for
Visa.

While assigned to Visa, at Visa’s insistence, I managed all
IBM resources for several large development contracts to build
Visa’s global systems. In late 1980, the CEO of Visa
approached me to leave IBM and work for Visa.

Visa (1981 to 1994) - I began my career at Visa as a manager
of software development. In 1982, I took over all of systems
development reporting to the CEO. 1In 1985, I took over the
entire systems function including operations. 1In 1986, the
risk control function was added to my responsibilities. In
1987, sales marketing and advertising was added. 1In 1989, my
title was formalized into that of Chief Operating Officer. 1In



1991, Visa International and Visa USA separated, with
individual employees no longer able to hold dual titles and
roles. The CEO insisted that I go with him into Visa
International, consequently, some of my USA duties were
relinquished. The COO role was eliminated and never replaced.
Instead, my responsibility for oversight and global continuity
was defined by my appointment to the five Visa Regional
Boards. Other than the CEO, I was the only employee who was
on all the Visa Boards.

It probably goes without saying but during my 13 years at
Visa, I played a significant role in guiding Visa from
relative insignificance into its current position as a global
consumer payments force.

First Data (1994 to June 1998) - First Data approached me
while at Visa, after we developed several marketing efforts
together. I accepted their offer to become president of a
business unit and began in January 19%4. During my 4+ years
at FDC, I managed their merchant processing business from
approximately $100mm in annual sales to $1lbn. The First Data
Merchant Services organization is now the largest single
business unit in FDC, representing almost 25% of the company.
I had 5500 employees and pre-tax profits in excess of $275mm.

In addition to the merchant business, my team developed a bill
payment/bill presentment business, that was ultimately sold
for $1bn. We also developed the USA Value Exchange (US$SSAVE),
a targeted marketing approach using credit card customers’
purchase history.

With my business unit processing one out of every two Visa and
MasterCard transactions in the US, FDC became a significant
force in shaping the emergence of electronic commerce and the
evolution of electronic payment systems.

In early 1998, FDC went through a reorganization and
consolidation effort. I elected to retire. FDC asked that I
assist FDC in restructuring and relocating my functions.
These activities completed in June 1998.

U. S. Wireless Data (August 1998 to March 1999) - USWD was one
of the companies of which I was a Director. The Board asked
that I take over management of the company and assume the
roles of Chairman and CEO. My task was to redirect the
company and get it on a solid footing. I committed to the
Board that I could spend no more than one year at this



assignment. After six months, I had changed the strategy and
redirected the company. I reduced the burn rate and
established several strategic relationships with industry
leaders. It became apparent, however, that the company would
require a greater commitment over time than I was willing to
give and I resigned.

Board Affiliations:

At present, I am on several Boards, which are described below:

¢ Global Reach Internet Communications (GRIC) - This company
provides the mechanisms for the customers of one
organization to use the internet facilities of another
organization. A typical example of this is when the
customers of one ISP roam and use the local calling numbers
of another ISP (i.e. global roaming). GRIC became a public
company, launching a successful IPO in December 1999. I am
the Chairman of this company.

¢ IndiVos - This startup company holds the patents on and
provides the processes to support the use of biometrics as
a substitute for account numbers. The primary applications
of this process are in the payments sector and in frequency
and loyalty programs where a unigue relationship between
the consumer and his account exists. I am the Chairman of
this company.

e BeXcom - This company has developed services to facilitate
business-to-business e-commerce. It’s international scope
and its linkage to banks for integrated financial services
related to B to B e-commerce, gives it competitive
differentiation. It is a Singapore based startup company.

¢ First Web Bank - This startup company consists of a
licensed bank and a set of products and services that make
it easier for Internet companies to gain access to and use
banking functions not available directly to non-banks. I
am a founder and Chairman of the Executive Committee.

¢ Xoriant - At present this company provides programmers to
companies in need of Internet skills. Its business plan
calls for expansion beyond that of sourcing and into more
comprehensive Internet systems development activities. It
is a profitable, private company with significant revenues.

e ValueCentric Marketing Group - This is a startup company
with expertise and systems to support value-based targeted
marketing programs for merchants.
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Documentation Enclosures

The following documents relevant to the above Meeting are attached:

1. CEO Repor to Shareholders.
2. Notice and Agenda.
3. Notice of Director Nominations.

4. Pre-Meeting Voting Form and Table of persons nominated for election as directors. Only common stock

shareholders who are parties to the Amended and Restated Preferred and Common Stock Shareholders
Agreement participate in_the pre-meeting election. Only those persons should use the Pre-Meeting
Voting Form and should fax it as indicated to reach the fax address shown on the form not later than
midnight in Amsterdam on December 27, 2001.

5. PROXY. The Proxy should be completed and faxed as indicated to reach the fax address shown on the
Proxy not later than midnight in Amsterdam on December 27, 2001.

6. Audited Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001.

7. Recent Press Releases.

Dated: December 7, 2001

List of Enclosures- 122801-F



SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Report to Shareholders
December 7, 2001

Dear Shareholder:

As we come upon our next Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (“AGM”) on December 28, 2001, I am
pleased to provide you with this latest Shareholder Letter and share with you some of the principal events
over the past few months.

Financial Summary

The audited financial statements of the Company for the fiscal period ending June 30, 2001 are included with
the shareholder materials that accompany this letter. June 30, 2001 marked the end of our first full year
following the demerger transaction where we spun-off our general consulting business now known as
WorldGroup Consulting, and our non-CIS Israeli operations, now known as SPL Software. It is also the year
in which we have continued our focus to fully productize our customer management and billing solution:
CorDaptix™,

We are pleased to announce that our fiscal year 2001 revenue was US $87.4 million, representing a 32%
increase in revenue over the prior year. The Company’s operating loss was US $1.9 million, while our net
loss was US $344,000. At the start of FY01, we anticipated a loss somewhat larger than our results indicate,
thus we consider FY01 a solid transition year for SPL. We invested heavily in product development,
geographic expansion, and marketing, each program yielding significant benefit to our market presence and
penetration and market recognition for our extraordinary product. Given the general economic slow down
that depressed world markets in the early spring of 2001, we finished the year ahead of plan and with a
strong and profitable fourth quarter ended June 30™.

Notwithstanding the continued deterioration in the global economy, and particularly in the once high-flying
tech sector, we are pleased to report that our utility customer base has faired well in the downturn, showing
consistent demand for our services and products, allowing us to finish our first quarter ending September 30,
2001 profitable and ahead of plan. The Company entered the second quarter of FY02 with signed
transactions covering approximately 75% of our forecast revenue for FY02. Of course, we have to temper
these results to date in light of the continued economic and political uncertainty that can directly affect our
clients and our business. Mindful of these uncertainties, we have trimmed our operating costs below plan
and even reduced overall headcount by 4% prior to the end of the fiscal year. Staff reductions were mild
compared to industry standards and were centered in non-strategic areas to protect what we believe is our
core competitive advantage. Finally, in any period of economic uncertainty, it is critically important to
monitor cash on hand. As of November 30, 2001, we have cash on hand of over US $32 million, an increase
of approximately US $9 million over our June 30, 2001 balance.

Business Focus

Our business focus has been to capitalize on the long-standing technical excellence of our systems and
people to access ever higher and more strategic clients in the utility and related fields. Currently, SPL is the
only customer information and management system vendor that counts any of the world’s top ten utilities as
its customer. In fact, currently we have four of the top ten utilities as our customers. All of the others in the
top ten use proprietary systems that they have developed in-house. Our marketing efforts also include



greater cooperation with large systems integrators. Often as we market ourselves to large utilities and in
strategic sales, it is important to work closely with the systems integrators and other strategic product
vendors to offer a more comprehensive solution to the client’s needs. Over the past year, we have developed
close contacts with entities such as Accenture, Logica, Cap Gemini Emst & Young, and Siebel. We have
been pleased to date with these relationships and we expect to expand them. We are also exploring other
related vertical industries that can benefit from our technology. In July, we added Waste Management, Inc.,
the largest waste company in the world, as a client for our customer management solution, immediately
validating our product’s viability in that sector.

We now have installed systems in the US, Canada, Australia, the UK, France, and the Netherlands. Also,
reflecting the early roots of SPL, we are in the early stages of implementing a system for ESKOM in South
Africa--Africa’s largest utility and the sixth largest utility in the world. We are seeing strong activity in
Europe, not only from new clients, but also with follow on work with existing clients such as Electricité de
France. Similarly, Australia has been very active with follow on work for our various utility customers. Our
Australian operations have also been active, lending support to our other regions and exploring further
business opportunities in Asia. A less bright spot has been North American sales where I feel we have
suffered from the slower economy but also from a poorly focused sales force. While we continue to win
projects in the US, I have not been happy with our progress relative to the vast size of the market. We are
increasing our attention to the market and I am hopeful this will lead to improvement.

New Management Appointments

I am excited to announce a few managerial changes that [ believe will allow us to better address our markets.
We are blessed with very talented managers who have not been afraid to excel with our changing business
needs. Dave Mulit, formerly in charge of Global Delivery, was recently promoted to Chief Operating
Officer. As COO, Dave will oversee Global Sales, Global Delivery and Human Resources. Dave joined
SPL over five years ago after a long career with one of our major utility customers, PG&E. Iam also pleased
to announce that Peter Thomas has joined us as the new head of Global Sales, reporting to Dave Mulit. Peter
1s a seasoned sales executive in the utility field. Most recently, he was head of USA sales for the META
Group. Finally, Guerry Waters, who heads Product Strategy, has taken on the additional responsibility of
Chief Technology Officer. Guerry fulfilled this assignment for Southern Companies, a major global utility
based in the US. We have a strong group of senior managers who have spent a large part of their careers
working directly in the utility industry. This subject matter expertise, I believe, has been an important selling
point for SPL as utility customers entrust to us their mission critical customer management needs.

Marketing Update

Our marketing department continues to do an excellent job of showcasing our CorDaptix™ product,
informing the industry of our successes, and shaping our messages to communicate clearly with our target
markets. Over the past year, SPL’s profile has risen in the market. We are often contacted by the trade press
to contribute articles on the direction of the industry and to participate in speaking engagements at industry
conferences and panels. I am sending to you with this letter a collection of recent press releases and industry
articles to share with you the strength of our Marketing group.

Financing News

Over the course of the last few months, we have been working with Bear Stearns & Co., a large investment
bank, to explore a possible financing transaction for the Company. The goal of the financing would be to
provide additional working capital for the Company and certain liquidity for our existing shareholders. Bear
Stearns has identified a list of possible funding sources and, in conjunction with SPL senior management, has



been discussing the financing with them. All discussions to date have been preliminary and have focused
mainly on the financial condition, business and markets of the Company.

While our business results to date have remained healthy, the weak economy and the uncertain global
political climate have seriously dampened financing activity and the valuations of investment targets. Bear
Stearns’ research indicates that market valuations have decreased up to 30-35% since the dot-com implosion
and the September 11" terrorist attack on the United States. The strength of our market penetration, the
quality of our product, and the depth and stability of management and our Board have been important points
in Bear Stearns’ discussions with the investment community. We continue to see strong interest on the part
of potential investors, but the process of due diligence and scrutiny of potential investments is very slow and
thorough compared to a year ago. We would welcome a proposal for the re-capitalization of SPL
WorldGroup and hope to be able to report to the shareholders a proposal in the near future. However, both
the value of an offer and the timing are unpredictable in the current market. Your Board and management
are poised to act should an offer be made. Any such re-capitalization would require shareholder approval, so
you will be quick to know if a tangible opportunity presents itself for your consideration and decision. In the
meantime, based on our current results, we believe we are well positioned even if a financing is delayed.

Continuity of The Board

As I referred to above, I believe the current SPL management team and Board is a strong combination that
has served us well over the past year. I strongly believe that it is important for SPL to maintain continuity of
our board as we face the continuing business challenges and the concerns of possible investors for continuity
in our business. In particular, our outside, independent Board members are a precious commodity. Board
turnover will be closely scrutinized by any new investor. Board turnover is seen as a red flag when a
financing is under consideration. For this reason, I have recommended and the Board has unanimously
endorsed the current full Board for re-election at the upcoming AGM. I request that you, the shareholders,
support this nomination and vote to re-elect the current full Board.

Investor Relations

Finally, we have been pleased with the increased communications we have had with shareholders over the
past year, both through the periodic reports as well as from direct inquiries. We invite you to contact us if we
can address any questions or comments you may have. Please contact us at investor_relations@splwg.com

or feel free to call me directly at my Morristown office +1 973 451-4238.

Personal regards,

CD Hobbs
Chairman and CEO
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NOTICE AND AGENDA

Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
of
SPL WorldGroup B.V.
December 28, 2001

The Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of SPL WorldGroup B.V. (the "Company") will be held at the
offices of the Company, Leidsekade 98, 1017 PP Amsterdam, The Netherlands, on Friday, December 28, 2001.
The Meeting of the Preferred Stock shall be held at 9:30 A.M. and the Meeting of all Shareholders shall be held at
10:00 AM., Netherlands Time.

The following matters will be presented for vote by the shareholders of the Company at the meeting:

1.

2.

Election of two Inside Directors.
Election of three QOutside Directors.

Re-election of Moshe Mor as the Director designated by the holders of the Series A and Series B Preferred
Stock of the Company.

Re-election of CD Hobbs, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, as a Director.

To approve the compensation of those members of the Board of Managing Directors who received
compensation in their roles as a Director of the Company, as more fully explained below.

Approval of the proposed profit allocation for fiscal vear 2001 between the Series A Preferred Stock, the
Series B Preferred Stock and the Common Stock of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Incorporation. Based on Article 24, the Series A Preferred Stock is entitled to a profit allocation of US
$489,000, payment of which 1s deferred until conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock.

Adoption of the audited financial statements of the Company for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001.

Cancellation of a total of 187,767 shares of the Company’s Series B common shares repurchased, or to be
repurchased, by the Company from the following shareholders: Bruce W. Bourne (58,826 shares); Daan Mare
(38,110); STC International Limited, as trustee of the Chaz Trust (50,831 shares); and Say Han Tan (40,000
shares).

Authorization of each lawyer of Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam to take whatever actions necessary to
consummate the abovementioned cancellation of Series B common shares.

Further Information

Director Nominations

‘Eight persons have been nominated to fill the seven available positions on the Board of Directors. To maintain
consistency in the management of the Company, the Board recommended that each of the existing members of
the Board be nominated to stand for re-election, which members are: Daniel Eilers, Lewis Folb, CDD Hobbs,
Stanley Meresman, Moshe Mor, Alicia Rotbard and Trevor Winer.

Notice and Agenda-122801-F



Director Compensation

Under Article 17 of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the remuneration of the directors, other than the
managing director who 1s the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, is to be approved by the shareholders.
The remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer is recommended to the full Board of Directors by the
Compensation Committee, which is comprised of the three Outside Directors.

Subject to approval by the shareholders at the shareholders meeting, the Board of Directors has recommended
that as total compensation for calendar year 2002: (i) Outside Directors receive an option grant of 15,000 shares of
the Company’s common stock (representing a reduction of 10,000 shares per Outside Director over calendar year
2001 compensation); and (i) Inside Directors receive an option grant of 7,500 shares of the Company’s common
stock (representing a reduction of 5,000 shares per Inside Director over calendar year 2001 compensation). The
Designated Director of the Preferred Stock does not receive compensation for serving as a Director of the
Company. Currently, the fair market value of the common stock of the Company, as determined by the Board of
Directors, remains U.S. $4.20 per share, which would be the exercise price of the options.

Dated: December 7, 2001

/s/ Richard V. Zolezzi
Richard V. Zolezzi
Senior Vice President and General Counsel
SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Notice and Agenda-122801-F



Notice of Director Nominations
for the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
SPL WorldGroup B.V.
December 28, 2001

The nominees for election (or continuation in office) to the Board of Directors of SPL WorldGroup B.V. are
listed below. Eight individuals have been nominated for the seven available positions on the Board of
Directors. The current Board of Directors has nominated each of the existing Board members to stand for re-
election.

Board’s Recommended Slate
Daniel L. Eilers
Lewis Folb
CD Hobbs
Stanley J. Meresman
Moshe Mor
Alicta Rotbard
Trevor Winer

Other Nominee
Shaul Ashkenazi

Common stock shareholders of the Company who are parties to the Amended and Restated Preferred and
Common Stock Shareholders Agreement of the Company dated as of July 1, 2000 (the “Shareholders
Agreement”) are required to participate in a pre-meeting vote to select the directors of the Company under the
special cumulative voting procedure provided in the Shateholders Agreement. The attached Pre-Meeting
Votng Form lists the persons who have been nominated for election as Inside Directors and Outside
Directors of the Company pursuant to Section 2.4.2 of the Shareholders Agreement.

According to Section 2.4.5 of the Shareholders Agreement, a pre-meeting vote is to be submitted in writing to
the Company prior to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to determine the two persons from the
Inside Director nominees and the three persons from the Outside Director nominees listed on the attached
Pre-Meeting Voung Form, who are to be formally voted as the Inside Directors and Outside Directors,
respectively, at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. Under the pre-meeting voting process, each
Direct Shareholder or Indirect Shareholder, as defined in the Shareholders Agreement, who is a party to the
Shareholders Agreement, shall have the number of votes equal to two times the number of common shares
held by the shareholder with respect to voting to elect the Inside Directors, and three times the number of
common shares held by the shareholder with respect to voting to elect the Outside Directors. Shareholders
can vote their entire number of votes for any one nominee listed in the attached Pre-Meeting Voting Form or
allocate their total number of votes in any manner to one or more of the above nominees.

The Pre-Meeting Voting Form should be submitted to Mt. John Paans of Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam (fax
no. +31-20-620-7475) who is acting as proxy with respect to the pre-meeting vote and the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders. The Pre-Meeting Voting Form, which is attached to this notice, should be faxed to
Mr. Paans no later than December 27, 2001.

The two Inside Director candidates with the highest number of votes will be elected as Inside Directors, and
the three Outside Director candidates with the highest number of votes will be elected as Outside Directors.

Nouce of Director Nomination-122801-F



Dated: December 7, 2001

/s/ Richard V. Zolezzi

Richard V. Zolezzi
Senior Vice President and General Counsel
SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Notice of Director Nomination-122801-F



Please fax this form when completed but not later than December 27, 2001:

TO: Mr. John Paans,
Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam. Fax No. +31-20-620-7475

PRE-MEETING VOTING FORM
(FOR USE ONLY BY COMMON STOCK SHAREHOLDERS WHO ARE PARTIES TO THE AMENDED AND
RESTATED PREFERRED AND COMMON STOCK SHAREHOLDERS AGREEMENT)
for Election of Directors at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
of SPL WorldGroup B.V.
December 28, 2001

Name of Shareholder: No. of Shares Owned:

ELECTION OF INSIDE DIRECTOR*
No. of Votes (2 x No. of Shares Owned):

The undersigned casts the following number of votes for one or more of the following nominees as Inside Directors of SPL
WorldGroup B.V.

Ref. Name of Nominee No. of Votes
Cast
Lewis Folb
2, Trevor Winer
Total:

The total number of votes cast should not exceed two times the number of shares held by the shareholder.

ELECTION OF OUTSIDE DIRECTOR**
Management of the Company recommends the election Mr. Eilers, Mtr. Meresman and Ms. Rotbard.

No. of Votes (3 x No. of Shares Owned):

The undersigned casts the following number of votes for one or more of the following nominees as Qutside Directors of SPL
WorldGroup B.V.

Ref. Name of Nominee No. of Votes
Cast
1. Shaul Ashkenazi
2. Daniel L. Eilers
3. Stanley J. Meresman
4. Alicia Rotbard
Total:

The total number of votes cast should not exceed three times the number of shares held by the shareholder.

Dated: December ____, 2001

signature of shareholder

name of shareholder

Note: .

Pre-Meeting Voung Form-122801-0



*Voting For Inside Directors: Given that there are only two nominees for the two available positions of Inside Director,
any nominee for Inside Director that receives votes shall be elected as an Inside Director.

**Voting For Outside Directors: When voting in this election for Outside Directors, each shareholder has three votes for
each shate of common stock owned. Please enter the number of votes you wish to allocate to each Outside Director Nominee.
Bear in mind that based on 11,765,917 common shares votable by parties to the Amended and Restated Preferred and
Common Stock Shareholders Agreement, as amended, the total number of votes which any candidate needs to be certain of
election in the pre-meeting vote is 8,824,439, which represents just over one-fourth of the total number of votes which can be
cast by those parties. If any candidate receives more than this number of votes, the number of votes required for each other
candidate to be elected will be lower.

If you vote more than your entitlement for Inside Directors or Outside Directors, such votes will be pro-rated down and
rounded down to the nearest whole number.

Pre-Meeting Voting Form-122801-0



Please fax this form when completed, but not later than December 27, 2001:

TO: Mr. John Paans,

Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam. Fax No. +31-20-620-7475
PROXY
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of SPL WorldGroup B.V.
December 28, 2001

The undersigned, being a shareholder of record of SPL WorldGroup B.V. (the "Company"), does hereby
appoint John Paans, a lawyer of Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam, or any other lawyer or cml law notary of
Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam, true and lawful attomey, for and in the name, place, and stead of the
undersigned, to vote at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company to be held at the offices
of the Company, Leidsekade 98, 1017 PP Amsterdam, The Netherlands, at 9:30 AM. for the Preferred Stock
Shareholders and at 10:00 AM. for all Shareholders on December 28, 2001, or on any other day as the
meeting may be held by adjournment or otherwise, as fully as the undersigned could vote if personally
present, with full power of substitution and revocation, hereby ratifying and confirming all that the above
attorney or substitute may do in name, place and stead of the undersigned.

The proxy shall vote the shares of the undersigned as follows:
(Note: If you choose to wite agairst any item, you may delete “For” and write “A gairst™,)

FOR election to the Board of Directors of the Company of the two nominees receiving
the highest number of votes as Inside Directors in the pre-meeting election
conducted pursuant to Section 2.4.5 of the Amended and Restated Preferred and
Common Stock Shareholders Agreement dated as of July 1, 2000 among the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders Agreement”).

FOR election to the Board of Directors of the Company of the three nominees receiving
the highest number of votes as Outside Directors in the pre-meeting election
conducted pursuant to Section 2.4.5 of the Shareholders Agreement.

FOR re-election to the Board of Directors of Moshe Mor as the Director designated by
the holders of the Series A and Series B Preferred Stock of the Company pursuant
to Section 2.4.6 of the Shareholders Agreement.

FOR re-election to the Board of Directors of CD Hobbs, the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company.
FOR approval of the calendar year 2002 compensation of those

members of the Board of Managing Directors who receive compensation in their
roles as director of the Company, as detailed in Notice and Agenda.

FOR approval of the fiscal year 2001 proposed allocation of profit
between the Series A Preferred Stock, the Series B Preferred Stock and the
Common Stock of the Company, as provided in Article 24 of the Articles of
Incorporation of the Company.

Proxy-121500-F



Dated: December __, 2001.

Proxy-122801-F

FOR adoption of the audited accounts of the Company for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2001.

FOR approval of the cancellation of a total of 187,767 shares of the
Company’s Series B common shares repurchased or to be repurchased by the
Company from the following shareholders: Bruce W. Bourne (58,826 shares); Daan
Mare (38,110); STC International Limited, as trustee of the Chaz Trust (50,831
shares); and Say Han Tan (40,000 shares).

FOR authorization of each lawyer of Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam to
take whatever actions necessary to consummate the abovementioned cancellation of
Series B common shares.

sigrature of sharebolder

nane o shareholder



NOTICE AND AGENDA

Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
of
SPL WorldGroup B.V.
December 28, 2001

The Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of SPL WorldGroup B.V. (the "Company") will be held at the
offices of the Company, Leidsekade 98, 1017 PP Amsterdam, The Netherlands, on Friday, December 28, 2001.
The Meeting of the Preferred Stock shall be held at 9:30 AM. and the Meetmg of all Shareholders shall be held at
10:00 AM,, Netherlands Time.

The following matters will be presented for vote by the shareholders of the Company at the meeting;

1. Election of two Inside Directors.

2. Election of three Qutside Directors.

3. Re-election of Moshe Mor as the Director designated by the holders of the Series A and Series B Preferred
Stock of the Company.

4. Re-election of CD Hobbs, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, as a Director.

5. To approve the compensation of those members of the Board of Managing Directors who received
compensation in their roles as a Director of the Company, as more fully explained below.

6. Approval of the proposed profit allocation for fiscal year 2001 between the Series A Preferred Stock, the
Series B Preferred Stock and the Common Stock of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Incorporation. Based on Article 24, the Series A Preferred Stock is entitled to a profit allocation of US
$489,000, payment of which is deferred until conversion of the Series A Preferred Stock.

7. Adoption of the audited financial statements of the Company for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001.

8. Cancellation of a total of 187,767 shares of the Company’s Series B common shares repurchased, or to be
repurchased, by the Company from the following shareholders: Bruce W. Bourne (58,826 shares); Daan Mare
(38,110); STC International Limited, as trustee of the Chaz Trust (50,831 shares); and Say Han Tan (40,000
shares).

9. Authorization of each lawyer of Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam to take whatever actions necessary to
consummate the abovementioned cancellation of Series B common shares.

Further Information

Diregor Nomnatiors

Eight persons have been nominated to fill the seven available positions on the Board of Directors. To maintain
consistency in the management of the Company, the Board recommended that each of the existing members of
the Board be nominated to stand for re-election, which members are: Daniel Eilers, Lewis Folb, CD Hobbs,
Stanley Meresman, Moshe Mor, Alicia Rotbard and Trevor Winer.

Notice and Agenda-122801-F



Drrector Compersation

Under Article 17 of the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, the remuneration of the directors, other than the
managing director who is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, is to be approved by the shareholders.
The remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer is recommended to the full Board of Directors by the
Compensation Committee, which is comprised of the three Outside Directors.

Subject to approval by the shareholders at the shareholders meeting, the Board of Directors has recommended
that as total compensation for calendar year 2002: (1) Outside Directors receive an option grant of 15,000 shares of
the Company’s common stock (representing a reduction of 10,000 shares per Outside Director over calendar year
2001 compensation); and (i) Inside Directors receive an option grant of 7,500 shares of the Company’s common
stock (representing a reduction of 5,000 shares per Inside Director over calendar year 2001 compensation). The
Designated Director of the Preferred Stock does not receive compensation for serving as a Director of the
Company. Currently, the fair market value of the common stock of the Company, as determined by the Board of
Directors, remains U.S. $4.20 per share, which would be the exercise price of the options.

Dated: December 7, 2001

/s/ Richard V. Zolezzi
Richard V. Zolezzi

Senior Vice President and General Counsel
SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Notice and Agenda-122801-F



CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SPL WorldGroup B.V.
Years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999
with Report of Independent Auditors



SPL WorldGroup B.V.
Consolidated Financial Statements

Years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
SPL WorldGroup B.V.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of SPL WorldGroup B.V. as of
June 30, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2001. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of SPL WorldGroup B.V. at June 30, 2001 and 2000, and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended June 30, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States.
M ¥ MLLP

August 31, 2001

Ernst & Young LLP is a member of Emst & Young International, ttd. 1



SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, less allowances of $2,994 and $3,327 in

2001 and 2000, respectively
Prepaid expenses and other receivables
Deferred income taxes
Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Other assets
Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation and related expenses
Accrued liabilities and other
Income taxes payable
Current portion of long-term debt
Deferred revenue
Total current liabilities

Deferred income taxes
Long-term debt, less current portion
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies
Redeemable convertible preferred stock

Stockholders’ equity:
Convertible preferred stock
Common stock
Retained eamnings
Stockholder notes receivable
Cumulative translation adjustment
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See accompanying nofes.

June 30,

2001 2000
23,439 $ 44,574
36,562 18,877

2,019 2,136
1,854 4,111
63,874 69,698
6,307 5,704
81 123
70,262 $ 75,525
1,961 $ 1,896
8,855 8,766
5,979 7,446
1,935 9,648
55 262
15,241 7,180
34,026 35,198
- 150
- 124
34,026 35,472
6,019 5,530
5,861 5,861
9,467 9,553
23,304 23,648
(4,209) (2,408)
(4,206) (2,131)
30,217 34,523
70,262 $ 75,525




SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Consolidated Statements of Income

(In thousands)
Year ended June 30,
2001 2000 1999

Revenues:

Services $ 75109 $ 55971 § 42,835

License fees 12,251 9,969 15,271
Total revenues 87,360 65,940 58,106
Costs and expenses:

Cost of services 35,805 27,220 25,454

Cost of license fees 614 851 1,897

Product development 7,091 7,376 4,900

Sales and marketing 15,624 9,017 6,200

General and administrative 30,181 30,312 25,086
Total costs and expenses 89,315 74,776 63,537
Loss from operations (1,955) (8,836) (5,431)
Other income (expense):

Interest income 1,832 2,345 1,035

Interest expense (96) (280) (410)

Other 1,097 (61) 149

2,833 2,004 774

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income ,

taxes 878 (6,832) (4,657)
Provision for income taxes 733 2,794 2,712
Income (loss) from continuing operations 145 (9,626) (7,369)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations, net of income

taxes - 31,356 -
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes - 7,016 10,079
Net income 145 28,746 2,710
Preferred stock dividends and accretion 489 586 542
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders $ (344) § 28,160 $ 2,168

See accompanying notes.
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SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)

Operating activities
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash (used in) provided by operating

activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes
Forgiveness of stockholder notes receivable in exchange for services
Gain on disposal of discontinued operation, net of income taxes
Income from discontinued operations
Noncash charges related to issuance of put and warrants
Tax benefit from stock option exercises
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other
Accounts payable and accrued compensation and related expenses
Income taxes payable
Deferred revenue
Accrued liabilities and other
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities for discontinued operations

Investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment

Proceeds from sale of discontinued operations

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities

Net cash used in investing activities for discontinued operations

Financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of common stock

Exercise of put options by employees

Loans to stockholder

Borrowings (repayments) under bank line of credit, net
Borrowings of long-term debt

Repayments of long-term debt

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosure
Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds

Cash paid for interest

Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing and financing activities
Preferred stock dividends and accretion

Issuance of common stock for stockholder notes receivable
Cancellation of stockholder notes receivable
Repurchase of common stock to satisfy receivable

See accompanying notes.

Year ended June 30,

2001 2000 1999
$ 145 $ 28746 § 2,710
3,032 2,969 1,845
2,107 (954) 889

- 36 138

- (31,356) -
- (7,016) (10,079)

241 2,917 -

116 523 -
(19,760) 875 (2,533)
159 (950) 1,149
154 2,262 (437)
(7,713) 5,675 (1,623)
8,061 722 2,350
(1,467) 4,073 (3,489)
(14,925) 8,522 (9,080)
- (15,383) 14,455
(3,635) (2,975 (3,550)

- 43,188 -~
(3,635) 40,213 (3,550)
- (978) (1,039)

109 508 101
381) - -
1,972) (778) -

- (4,389) 3,889

- - 1,410
(331) (378) (2,569)
(2,575) (5,037) 2,831
(21,135) 27,337 3,617
44,574 17,237 13,620

$ 23439 § 44574 S 17237
$ 5553 S 14765 $ 6908
B 59 § 215§ 347
$ 489 S 58 S 542
$ S 1,19 § 354
$ 247 § - 3 —
$ - 3 - 8 210




SPL WorldGroup B.V.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2001

1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business

SPL WorldGroup B.V. (collectively “SPL” or the “Company”) is a provider of customer
management software solutions to the energy and services related industries in regulated and
competitive markets worldwide. SPL, a Netherlands company, was incorporated on March 28,
1994.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of SPL, which have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America,
include the accounts of SPL and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany
balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

On December 3, 1999, the Company sold its Enterprise Support division in the United States and
Australia. Effective June 30, 2000, the Company effected a “demerger” transaction under Dutch
law pursuant to which the Company’s consulting division was transferred to a newly formed
Dutch company, WorldGroup Consulting B.V. (“Consulting”) and the Company’s remaining
enterprise support division was transferred to a newly formed Dutch company, SPL Holdings
B.V (“Enterprise Support”). All of the capital stock of these two companies was then distributed
in the form of a tax-free pro rata spin-off (the “Spin-off”) to all existing stockholders of the
Company. The accompanying consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 2000, excludes the assets
and liabilities of the Consulting and Enterprise Support divisions. Additionally, the consolidated
balance sheet at June 30, 2000 reflects a reduction from amounts previously reported of
$2,851,000 to cash and retained earnings for subsequent distributions made to the companies in
the Spin-off. Operating results and cash flows from discontinued operations have also been
reclassified for the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.



SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, which consist primarily of cash and highly liquid short-term
investments with insignificant interest rate risk and maturities of three months or less at the date
of purchase, are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk
consist principally of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The Company places its
cash and cash equivalents with high-credit-quality financial institutions. While the Company’s
business is concentrated in the utilities industry, the Company believes its concentrations of
credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is mitigated by the number of geographic areas in
which the Company conducts business. Generally, the Company does not require collateral or
other security to support customer receivables, which are principally from end users of the
Company’s products and services. The Company performs periodic credit evaluations of its
customers and maintains an allowance for potential credit losses based on historical experience
and other information available to management. Actual credit losses may differ significantly
from estimated amounts included in the allowance for doubtful accounts, and such differences
could be material to the consolidated financial statements.

Included in accounts receivable at June 30, 2001 is $3.8 million for software and services from a
company that filed for protection under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. The Company
continues to provide services to this customer and payments for services provided subsequent to
the bankruptcy filing are being received in accordance with stated payment terms. Realization of
the accounts receivable at June 30, 2001 is subject to the outcome of the bankruptcy proceedings,
the results of which can not presently be determined.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Depreciation and amortization are provided over the estimated useful lives of three to five years
using the straight-line method. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis
over the lesser of the remaining lease term or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.



SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Software Development Costs

The Company accounts for software development costs in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 86, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer
Software to be Sold, Leased, or Otherwise Marketed,” under which certain software
development costs incurred subsequent to the establishment of technological feasibility are
capitalized and amortized over the estimated lives of the related products. Technological
feasibility is established upon completion of a working model. For the years ended June 30,
2001, 2000 and 1999, costs incurred subsequent to the establishment of technological feasibility
have not been significant, and all software development costs have been charged to product
development expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes,” which requires recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities based on
differences between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities measured using
enacted tax rates and laws that are expected to be in effect when the differences are expected to
reverse.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for employee stock options in accordance with Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”) and related
interpretations rather than adopting the alternative fair value accounting provided for under
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” Under APB 25, because the
exercise price of the Company’s stock options equals the fair value of the underlying stock on
the date of grant, no compensation expense is recorded.



SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign Currency Translation

All amounts included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements are stated in United
States dollars, which is the reporting currency of the Company. In general, the functional
currency of a foreign operation is deemed to be the local country’s currency. Assets and
liabilities of operations denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate
at the end of the applicable reporting period. The cumulative effects of foreign currency
translation adjustments are included as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Foreign
currency transaction gains and losses are included in other income. The accompanying
consolidated statements of income include net foreign currency transaction gains of
approximately $1,393,000, $1,089,000 and $524,000, for the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000
and 1999, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

The Company provides computer systems integration and software licenses to customers under
contractual arrangements. The Company recognizes revenues in accordance with provisions of
Statement of Position (“SOP”) 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition,” as modified by SOP 98-9
and SOP 81-1, “Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type And Certain Production-
Type Contracts.” Revenue is recognized when there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement,
the software is delivered, collection is probable, and the fee is fixed or determinable.

Revenue for integration services and related software license fees are recognized at the contract
amounts either as the services are performed (for time and material contracts) or under the
percentage-of-completion method (for fixed-price contracts). The percentage-of-completion
method is dependent on estimates of remaining effort required to complete the project and is
determined using the number of hours incurred as compared to the total estimated hours to
complete the contract. Actual remaining effort could vary significantly from the estimates, and
such differences could be material to the consolidated financial statements. For contracts with
customers that require retention amounts, subject to acceptance, such amounts are included in
accounts receivable in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Losses on contracts, if
any, are provided for in full in the period when determined.

When services being performed are essential to the functionality of the software licenses, license
revenue is recognized using the percentage-of-completion method and determined by the number
of hours incurred as compared to the total estimated hours to complete the contract.



SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Revenue Recognition (continued)

Revenue from maintenance contracts, which is included in service revenue, is recognized ratably
over the term of the maintenance agreement, generally one year. These contracts typically call
for the Company to provide support, software updates and upgrades to customers.

Royalty fees are generally recognized as they are reported by the reseller and included as license
fees in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

Accounts receivable includes revenue billed under the terms of the contract or agreement,
licenses and services revenue recognized but not yet billed, and out-of-pocket expenses that are
recoverable from the customer. Revenue earned but not billed at June 30, 2001 and 2000,
amounted to $2,039,000 and $2,921,000, respectively. Accounts receivable also includes
retention amounts due to the Company upon completion of the related contract. Retentions
included in receivables amounted to $3,374,000 and $1,290,000 at June 30, 2001 and 2000,
respectively, which will be due upon completion of the contract and customer acceptance.

Deferred Revenues

Deferred revenues relate primarily to license fees paid in advance of project completion, and
maintenance agreements, which are typically paid for by customers in advance of the
performance of those services.

Impact of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SFAS No. 133 establishes accounting and
reporting standards for derivative instruments and hedging activities and requires that entities
recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the statement of financial position and
measure those instruments at fair value. SFAS No. 133 is effective for all quarters of fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2000. The Company is not presently involved with derivative
instruments or hedging activities, and therefore does not expect that adoption of this Statement
will have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company.

10



SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impact of Recent Accounting Pronouncements (continued)

In June 2001, the FASB approved the final standards resulting from its deliberations on business
combinations and in July 2001 the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and
SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 141 prohibits the use of the
pooling-of-interests method for business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001. SFAS No.
141, which also includes the criteria for the recognition of intangible assets separately from
goodwill, is effective for any business combination accounted for by the purchase method that is
completed after June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 142, which includes the requirements to test goodwill
and indefinite lived intangible assets for impairment rather than amortize them, is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001 with early adoption permitted for companies
with fiscal years beginning after March 15, 2001, provided they have not yet issued their first
quarter financial statements. In all cases, SFAS No. 142 must be adopted as of the beginning of a
fiscal year. The nonamortization approach applies to previously recorded goodwill and to
previously recognized intangible assets deemed to have indefinite useful lives, as well as
goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets arising from acquisitions completed after the
application of SFAS No. 142. In place of amortization, an impairment test must be performed at
least annually at the reporting unit level. Any impairment charges on goodwill and indefinite
lived intangible asset would be presented as a separate line item within the operating section of
the statement of operations. The Company does not expect SFAS No. 141 and SFAS No. 142 to
have an impact on its consolidated financial position or results of operations for acquisitions
completed by the Company prior to June 30, 2001. Acquisitions subsequent to June 30, 2001 will
be accounted for in accordance with these new standards.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.
The consolidated balance sheet at June 30, 1998 reflects a reclassification in the amount of
$523,000 from amounts previously reported as stockholders’ equity (retained earnings) to
redeemable preferred stock for accretion of offering costs not previously recorded.

2. Discontinued Operations
Sale of Enterprise Support

On December 3, 1999, SPL completed the sale of its Enterprise Support division in the United
States and Australia to Software AG, a German corporation (“SAG™), pursuant to the terms of an
Asset Purchase Agreement between the Company and SAG dated November 10, 1999. The
Company received cash proceeds of $43,188,000, and realized a gain on disposal of
$31,356,000, net of income taxes of $10,723,000.

11



SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

2. Discontinued Operations (continued)
Spin-off of Divisions

Effective June 30, 2000, the Company and its stockholders approved a transfer of the Company’s
Consulting division to WorldGroup Consulting B.V. and of the Company’s remaining Enterprise
Support division to SPL Holdings B.V. (the “Discontinued Operations”), and the distribution of
the capital stock of these two companies, in the form of a tax-free distribution to the Company’s
existing stockholders, on a pro rata basis such that the stockholders of Consulting and Enterprise
Support were the same as the stockholders of the Company immediately prior to the distribution.
The combined revenues of Consulting and Enterprise Support were $55,352,000 and
$72,992,000 for the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The results of operation
of the discontinued businesses have been presented as income from discontinued operations. The
income taxes on operating results of the discontinued operations were $2,434,000 and
$3,873,000 for the years ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

None of SPL’s common general and administrative costs were allocated to the discontinued
operations, but rather are included in full in continuing operations for the years ended June 30,
2000 and 1999.

The components of assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2000, distributed in the Spin-off are
summarized below (in thousands).

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents § 16,509
Accounts receivable 12,305
Prepaid expense and other assets 1,628
Property and equipment 1,667
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 11,521
Deferred revenue and other 3,360
Redeemable convertible preferred stock 2,146
Net assets $ 15,082

12



SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

3. Related-Party Transactions
Related-Party Licensing Agreement

In February 1999, the Company entered into a Joint Development and Marketing Agreement
with PeopleSoft, Inc. (“PeopleSoft”), a stockholder of the Company. This agreement calls for the
development and marketing of a PeopleTools version of the Company’s proprietary customer
information system software (“CIS PLUS®™). Under this agreement, the Company receives
royalties on license and maintenance sales of PeopleTools CIS PLUS®. A minimum royalty of
$8 million is due over the five-year period ending June 30, 2003. In each period, the Company
recognizes the greater of the amount earned on sales of the PeopleTools product or the minimum
annual royalty amount. The Company recognized fees of $1.5 million, $1.9 million and $1.0
million under this agreement in the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The
Company also recognized an additional $500,000 in the year ended June 30, 1999 relating to
development fees associated with the sale of PeopleTools CIS PLUS® to PeopleSoft, which is
included in services revenue.

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following:

June 30,
2001 2000
(In thousands)

Computer equipment $ 9919 § 6,393
Office furniture and equipment 3,128 3,101
Automobiles 103 1,273
Leasehold improvements 1,588 1,202

14,738 11,969
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (8,431) (6,265)
Net property and equipment $ 6,307 § 5,704

5. Debt Obligations
Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt as of June 30, 2001 and 2000, consists of promissory notes with interest rates
between 7.5% and 9.7% and with maturity dates in October 2001.

13



SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6. Stockholders’ Equity
Capital Stock

As of June 30, 2001 and 2000, the Company’s capital stock consists of the following:

Shares
Series Outstanding at June 30,
Authorized 2001 2000
A redeemable convertible preferred 1,120,020 1,120,020 1,120,020
B convertible preferred 597,600 597,600 597,600
A common 4,480,000 None None
B common 52,302,300 11,943,522 11,946,436
C common 4,000,000 None None

The Company’s three classes of common stock have the same features and rights. Series A and
Series B preferred shares may only be converted into Series A and C common shares,
respectively.

Preferred Stock
Series A

The Company issued 1,120,020 shares of Series A redeemable convertible preferred stock for net
proceeds of $3,672,000. Subject to certain anti-dilution provisions, each share of Series A
preferred stock is convertible into one share of Series A common stock. Preferred shares
automatically convert into common stock upon a Qualified Initial Public Offering (“Qualified
IPO”). A Qualified IPO is defined as a public offering whereby aggregate net proceeds exceed
$17.5 million and the price per share is at least three times the Series A original issuance price
(or $11.25 per share). Dividends on the Series A preferred stock are cumulative at 8% of the
issue price, compounded. Dividends totaling $489,000, $586,000 and $542,000 were accrued in
the years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

These dividends were unpaid as of June 30, 2001 and are included with redeemable convertible
preferred stock in the consolidated balance sheets. At the election of any holder of Series A
preferred stock, up to 50% of that holder’s dividend may be payable in shares of the Series A
common stock. The dividend requirements of the Series A preferred stock must be satisfied prior
to payment of any dividends or distributions with respect to the Company’s other classes of
capital stock. The redemption provision of the Series A preferred permits holders, at any time
after October 31, 2000, to redeem their shares with the Company for the price paid plus any
accrued dividends. As of June 30, 2001, no shares have been redeemed.

14



SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6. Stockhdlders’ Equity (continued)
Preferred Stock (continued)
Series B

During the year ended June 30, 1998, the Company issued 597,600 shares of Series B
convertible preferred stock for net proceeds of $5,861,000. Subject to certain antidilution
provisions, each share of Series B preferred stock is convertible into one share of Series C
common stock. Preferred shares automatically convert into common stock upon a Qualified IPO.

At June 30, 2001, aggregate liquidation preferences were $6,019,000 and $4,183,000 for the
Series A and Series B preferred stock, respectively. Both Series A and Series B preferred
stockholders are entitled to voting rights equivalent to the number of common shares into which
their shares are convertible.

Warrants

In connection with the issuance of Series A preferred stock, the Company issued warrants to
purchase 750,400 shares of Series B common stock at an exercise price of $3.75 per share. The
warrants expire in October 2001 through February 2002.

During the year ended June 30, 2000, the Company issued warrants to purchase 25,000 shares of
Series B common stock at an exercise price of $4.20 per share. The fair value of the warrants
was estimated to be $107,500 using the Black-Scholes pricing model. The fair value of the
warrants was recorded as general and administrative expense with an accompanying increase in
common stock. The warrants are exercisable immediately and expire in August 2007.

Stockholder Notes Receivable

As of June 30, 2001, notes receivable in the amount of $1,459,000 from stockholders of the
Company arising from the issuance of 191,000 shares of common stock to employees have been
recorded as a reduction of stockholders’ equity in the consolidated balance sheets. The full
recourse notes bear interest at 7%. Stockholder notes receivable totaling approximately $36,000
and $138,000 owed by employees were forgiven in accordance with their terms during the years
ended June 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The forgiveness of the notes was recorded as
general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

15



SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6. Stockholders’ Equity (continued)
Stockholder Notes Receivable (continued)

During the year ended June 30, 2000, the Company granted to its former Chief Executive
Officer, an option to put to the Company 639,380 common shares owned by the officer at $4.20
per share. In connection with this put option, the Company recorded compensation expense of
$£2.8 million during the year ended June 30, 2000, which was included in general and
administrative expense in the accompanying consolidated statement of income, with an
accompanying increase in common stock. In March 2001, the former Chief Executive Officer
exercised his put option and received additional loans of $1,972,000. At June 30, 2001, the put
option had not yet been settled and the former Chief Executive Officer had notes to the Company
of $2,750,000. These notes receivable bear interest ranging from 4.8% to 6.4%. This stockholder
notes receivable and the related put option are being accounted for as a variable compensation
arrangement.

Shares Reserved for Future Issuance

At June 30, 2001, the Company had reserved 1,120,020 shares of Series A common stock for the
conversion of Series A preferred shares; 10,425,373 shares of Series B common stock for future
issuance, including 775,400 shares reserved for exercise of warrants and 9,649,973 shares for the
exercise of stock options; and 597,600 shares of Series C common stock for the conversion of
Series B preferred shares.

Stock Option Plan

The Company has stock and stock option plans that cover the issuance of stock purchase rights,
incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options (hereinafter collectively referred to as
“options”). The plans provide for the purchase of up to 10,852,872 shares of the Company’s
common stock. Stock purchase rights, entitling the grantee to purchase restricted stock, may be
granted under the 1998 stock plan. Under the terms of all plans, options may be granted to
qualified employees, directors and under certain plans, consultants at prices determined by the
administrator of the plan on the date of grant. The exercise price must be equal to at least 85% of
the current fair market value of the underlying shares in the case of a nonqualified stock option
or 100% in the case of an incentive stock option, except under the 1995 and 1997 Management
Stock Option Plans, which permit the granting of options with an exercise price as determined by
the Board of Directors, which may be below fair market value of the underlying shares. Vesting
periods are determined by the Board of Directors, and are generally three to four years from the

16



SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6. Stockholders’ Equity (continued)

Stock Option Plan (continued)

date of grant. Options expire at the earlier of ten years from the plan inception date for incentive
and nonqualified stock options granted under the Company’s 1995 or 1997 Option Plans (ten
years from the grant date under the 1998 Plan), or five years from the time of grant for incentive
stock options granted to a 10% stockholder or three months from the date of the optionee’s

termination of association with the Company.

Information relating to the outstanding stock options is as follows:

Outstanding at June 30, 1998
Granted
Exercised
Canceled
Outstanding at June 30, 1999
Authorized
Granted
Exercised
Repurchased
Canceled
Outstanding at June 30, 2000
Granted
Exercised
Canceled

Outstanding at June 30, 2001

Options Outstanding

Weighted-

Options Average

Available for Number of Exercise
Grant Shares Price
2,513,868 3,925,532 $2.11
(893,786) 893,786 3.83
- (219,877) 1.46
223,919 (223,919) 2.42
1,844,001 4,375,522 2.47
4,293,802 - -
(3,441,122) 3,441,122 3.99
- (716,609) 1.64
1,676 (1,676) 1.36
1,896,559 (1,896,559) 3.52
4,594,916 5,201,800 3.13
(3,343,028) 3,343,028 4.20
- (146,743) 1.72
784,197 (784,197) 3.72
2,036,085 7,613,888 $3.56

17



SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

6. Stockholders’ Equity (continued)
Stock Option Plan (continued)

The following table summarizes information with respect to stock options outstanding at
June 30, 2001:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-
Average Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining Average Average
Range of Number of Contractual  Exercise Number of  Exercise
Exercise Prices Shares Life (Years) Price Shares Price
$0.87-2.69 1,746,687 4.80 $1.97 1,742,086 $1.97
3.22-3.85 1,972,418 7.60 3.69 1,092,024 3.61
3.87-4.20 3,894,783 9.24 4.20 422,106 4.20
7,613,888 7.80 $3.56 3,256,216 $2.81

Pro Forma Disclosures of the Effect of Stock-Based Compensation

The weighted-average fair value at the grant date of options granted during the years ended
June 30, 2001, 2000, and 1999 was $0.97, $0.85, and $1.19, respectively. The fair value of each
option granted was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option valuation
model with the following weighted-average assumptions for the years ended June 30, 2001,
2000, and 1999, respectively: risk free interest rate of 4.3%, 6.0%, and 6.0%; no dividend yield,
no volatility factor of the expected market price of the Company’s common stock; and an
expected option life of six years.

If the Company had recognized compensation cost based on the fair value of the options as
prescribed by SFAS No. 123, pro forma net income attributable to common stockholders would
be as follows:

Year ended June 30,
2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
Pro forma net income (loss) attributable to
common stockholders $ (1,383) $ 27,200 § 1,397
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SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

7. Provision for Income Taxes

Significant components of the provision for income taxes consist of the following:

Year ended June 30,
2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
Current:

U.S. federal $ (2,417) $ 293 $ 245
State and local (796) - 33
Foreign 1,839 3,455 1,545
(1,374) 3,748 1,823

Deferred:
U.S. federal 1,887 - -
State and local - 150 100
Foreign 220 (1,104) 789
2,107 (954) 889
Total provision for income taxes $ 733 $ 2,794 $ 2,712

The provision for income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying the statutory
federal rate to pretax income as follows:

Year ended June 30,
2001 2000 1999

Federal statutory rate 35.0% (35.0%) (35.0%)
Unbenefitted net operating losses - 64.7% 47.3%
Foreign taxes in excess of U.S. statutory rates 7.9% 4.7% 37.8%
Increase in valuation allowance 50.3% - -
State and local taxes (90.8%) 2.2% 2.9%
Other 81.2% 4.3% 5.2%
Effective income tax rate 83.6% 40.9% 58.2%
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SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

7. Provision for Income Taxes (continued)

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

June 30,
2001 2000

(In thousands)
Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards $ 442 § 150
Compensation accruals 1,024 831
Accrued expenses 709 3,546
Deferred revenue 1,463 -
Other, net 701 498
4,339 5,025
Valuation allowance (2,237) (808)
2,102 4217
Deferred tax liabilities:
Unremitted earnings 150 150
Other, net 98 106
248 256
Net deferred tax assets $ 1,854 $ 3,961

The valuation allowance increased by $1,429,000 and decreased by $2,929,000 during the years
ended June 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Realization of the Company’s net deferred tax
assets is dependent on the Company generating sufficient taxable income in future years in
appropriate tax jurisdictions to obtain benefit from the reversal of temporary differences and
from tax credit carryforwards. The amount of deferred tax assets considered realizable is subject
to adjustment in future periods if estimates of future taxable income are reduced.

As of June 30, 2001, the Company’s subsidiary in the United Kingdom had an operating loss
carryforwards of approximately $500,000, which has no expiration date. Utilization of the
Company’s loss carryforwards may be subject to annual limitations due to change in ownership
provisions In various tax jurisdictions. Any such limitations could result in the expiration of the
net operating loss carryforwards before utilization.
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SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

8. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases its office facilities under operating leases with renewal options and
escalation clauses expiring through the year 2006. These leases require the Company to pay
operating costs, including property taxes, insurance and maintenance and generally contain
renewal options and provisions adjusting the lease payments based upon changes in the U.S.
Consumer Price Index or local equivalent.

Future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases having initial terms in
excess of one year are as follows (in thousands):

Year ending June 30,

2002 $ 2,656
2003 2,885
2004 2,981
2005 3,042
2006 2,849
Total $14,413

Rent expense amounted to approximately $2,404,000, $3,022,000, and $2,660,000 for the years
ended June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

9. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has multiple employee benefit plans covering groups of its employees within the
United States and throughout the world. Employee contributions are determined based upon
local standards and requirements. The Company’s contributions to these plans include both
mandatory and discretionary contributions. No discretionary contributions were made during the
years ended June 30, 2001, 2000 or 1999. Mandatory Company contributions for the year ended
June 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999 were approximately $1,488,000, $1,048,000 and $1,445,000,
respectively.
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SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

10. Information by Geographic Area

Information regarding operating information and identifiable assets for continuing operations by
geographic area is as follows:

Year ended June 30,
2001 2000 1999
(In thousands)
Revenues:
United States $ 76,285 § 47,974 $45,131
Foreign 11,075 17,966 12,975
$ 87,360 $ 65,940 $58,106
Operating income (loss) before income taxes:
United States $ (4,504) $(12,623) §$ (6,294)
Foreign 5,382 5,791 1,637
$ 878 $ (6,832) $(4,657)
As of June 30,
2001 2000
Total assets:
United States $ 46,770 $ 45,321
Foreign 23,492 30,204

$ 70,262 $ 75,525

11. Major Customers

Two customers accounted for approximately 23% and 11% of revenues for the year ended
June 30, 2001. One customer accounted for 20% of revenues for the year ended June 30, 2000.
Two customers accounted for approximately 14% each of revenues for the year ended June 30,
1999.

Three customers accounted for approximately 24%, 14% and 12% of accounts receivable at

June 30, 2001. Two customers accounted for approximately 17% and 15% of accounts
receivable at June 30, 2000.
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WITH THE RIGHT
TOOLS YOU CAN
HARNESS THE
POWER OF CHANGE.

in the era of increased competition, nothing can be taken for granted. 'Change’ is

the only constant in today's global energy industry. De-regulation, re-regulation,

privatization and liberalization are just some of the forces that now compel energy

companies to change, adapt and evolve their business models, cultural paradigms

and business practices.

At the center of today's energy paradigm
sits the customer. In many markets no
longer held captive to the local provider of
services, the customer is now free to choose
their suppliers of choice based on cost and
service quality. Now, products and services
must meet the needs and wants of
customers and at a price and within a

service model that satisfies them.

Understanding the customer, acquiring the
customer and servicing the customer are
now key weapons in the competitive battles
being waged around the world of energy
and related services.

In this dynamic landscape, a good customer
management strategy is a key component to
success. Whatever the energy company's
target market, from mass market to
Commercial & Industrial, retail to wholesale
or distribution, customer management is the
core business component necessary to
assure business longevity and competitive
advantage. Customer management is no
longer an IT 'brick-and-mortar’ commitment;
it is a mandate directly from senior
management to capture, support and

maintain satisfied customers.
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SPL WorldGroup® (SPL) provides leading
customer management solutions that
minimize risk for energy and service

companies who are actively positioning to

compete successfully in competitive markets.

Led by an experienced and visionary
management team, SPL builds solutions
that are innovative and adapt to changing
circumstances, enabling excellence in
customer management. SPL also boasts
an unbeatable 100% track record of

performance and delivery.

In fact, SPL's leaders have a background in
the energy industry and have had to tackle
the same problems as today's energy
company management. Because of this,
SPL understands that without the assurance
of solutions providing adaptability, reliability,
and scalability, the risks and stakes for
energy companies would remain very high at
a time when the energy industry is required

to take a pivotal step into the future.

SPL's customer management solutions are
designed to enable users to respond to
market changes and growth requirements.
SPL's customer management solutions are
adaptable and flexible enough to allow

you to enter new markets or transform your
business strategy without losing any of the
investment you have made in implementing

your core customer management solution.

SPL's Difference

SPL builds customer management

solutions that succeed.

SPL's commitment is to our clients

an installation that meets
expectations and satisfaction with
the accuracy and support required

to assure success.

SPL's commitment is to the clients’
‘customer’ - SPL designs systems
that allow energy companies to
service customers easily, efficiently
and cost-effectively so that
customers get timely, accurate,

and customer-focused service.

SPL partners with the best
companies in the world - and
leverages those relationships our

clients value.



SPL - Excellence and Innovation in Action [iB4de’ ]

iBde’

In a rapidly changing business environment,
such as today’s energy industry,
transformation cycle times are shorter
than performance cycle times. In this
environment, the prevailing industry
business model can change more rapidly
than a company’s efforts to achieve
operating excellence, making the existing
model irrelevant. The energy company
must be able to quickly develop the
improved business strategy and, just as

quickly, develop new business processes and

skill sets to support that strategy’s execution.

The successful energy company will need to
be both innovative and excellent !

€D Hobbs, SPL's President & CEQ, is well respected in the global

energy industry for his ability to provide practical advice grounded in

company executives as they try to optimize performance while
transforming their business to respond to eompetitive pressures and
industry drivers, Mr. Hobbs has promoted the concept of 'innovation

before excellence’ {iB4e).

This proposition requires an organization
that encourages the innovation of new and
creative responses to rapidly evolving
business models. At the heart of this
organization are systems that are adaptable,
scalable and flexible from a technical and

applications architecture point of view.

SPL is applying this mode! to its own
business with the introduction and evolution
of the company's CorDaptix™ product,

the development of strategic partnerships
and alliances, and continued excellence in

servicing SPL's customers.

a strong operating model. Recognizing the challenges faced by energy
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METHODOLOGY "

Leadership

The SPL team has extensive energy industry
knowledge and experience in delivering
successful customer management products,
solutions and advice across muiltiple energy
markets. SPLs knowledge and experience
is employed in stimulating and facilitating
innovative industry discussion, vision and
thought leadership that is consistently
demonstrated through industry
participation, innovative products, advice

and alliances.

CorDaptix-

CorDaptix - SPL's customer management
solution that grows and adapts with

your business

CorDaptix - the future of customer
management today - represents an
innovative departure from the old paradigm
of tight integration and extensive one-off
customization. Previously, these monolithic
CIS systems actually impeded your ability to
take advantage of continuous product
upgrades. Seamless incorporation of new
products, services and adaptation to new
business processes was nearly impossible.
SPL's CorDaptix is the best-in-class customer
management solution that finally changes
all of that.



CorDaptix is SPL's innovative, adaptable and
fully upgradeable customer management
product designed to withstand the tests of
time, growth, scale, and product-line
introduction and extinction.

CorDaptix is the universal customer
management engine that handles all
transactions from customer initiation
through product and service delivery -

through time.

Flexible and Adaptable

CorDaptix provides the ultimate in flexibility
and adaptability. With unparalleled depth
and breadth of functionality, the product
has been built to provide the adaptable core
of your customer management solution.

At the heart of your customer management
functions, CorDaptix is designed to support
a true best-of-breed approach, seamlessly
integrating with other modules and
components to provide the flexibility for
companies wanting to adapt and win in the
new world of "customer choice’.

CorDaptix is designed to provide seamless
real-time customer facing solutions and
supports access to information through
other third parties - supporting multi-
language, multi-jurisdiction, multi-currency,
multi-product and service lines. With
CorDaptix, you can service your customers

the way they want to be serviced.

And, as importantly, when your business

model changes, CorDaptix can change with

you without fosing the investment in your

core Customer Management solution.

Scalable

The entire CorDaptix product concept is to
provide a customer management solution
that grows with your business, scaling easily
as your business grows, and adapting just
as easily as the business evolves, without
forsaking the ability to seamlessly upgrade
and provide support as a standard

software product.

Functional and Robust

Designed around customer requirements,
CorDaptix is real-time and intuitive for
Customer Service Representatives (CSR)
facilitating enhanced customer service
capabilities and, through the use of
sophisticated workflow features, guides
the CSR through all of the necessary steps
to properly complete the activity.
Complying with market regulatory
requirements across geographies,
Jjurisdictions and product and service lines,
the product can be used across muitiple
energy and service markets.
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THE CUSTOMER MANAGEMENT CORE

cMC

Accurate and Safe

Featuring the most sophisticated and flexible
rating and billing engine available today,
CorDaptix allows the production of accurate
and timely bills to your customers.

Superior audit, tracking and workflow
features provide the checks and balances

required for peace of mind and security.

Easy to use

CorDaptix comes complete with an intuitive
and well-designed browser interface with
“drill-down” functionality. Featuring
multiple ways to explore the data in the
system, CorDaptix was designed to aid
CSRs in providing the best in responsive,

fast and accurate customer service.



Delivery & Support

SPL's perfect implementation success record
speaks for itself. Using methods and tools
built up over years of implementing
customer management solutions around
the world is one reason for this success.
Using responsive and reliable staff who have
experienced all aspects of customer
management system implementation and
have often worked in the energy industry

is another.

SPLs implementation staff take great

pride in delivering successful solutions.
That 100% success record includes projects
that initially had their challenges but the
SPL team helped the customer to
overcome the issues. SPL made sure the

customer was able to leverage the

investment that it had made in the software.

SPLs implementation team sticks by

its customers and this is reflected by

the assignment of experienced senior
executives to global accounts. Their role is
to ensure each SPL account receives the

highest quality of service possible.

"SPL's detailed product knowledge and their
experience in enterprise implementations for
major utility companies provided a very
valuable addition to our internal technical
and business process expertise. | believe this
was one of the smoothest implementations
with which we have been involved.”

Ron Hinsley, CIO, United Energy.

SPL provides 24x7 support 365 days

a year using experienced service personnel
immediately accessible for technical
inquiries. Knowledgeable support personnel
are there to help you get the best out of

your SPL customer management solution.
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Partnering for success

SPL places special importance on building
partnerships that benefit and extend our
product and service capabilities. Partners
include product alliances such as Siebel
Systems inc. and PeopleSoft, Inc. as well
as delivery partnerships with most of the

larger systems integration firms,

The CorDaptix product includes specially
designed interfaces that allow for seamless
integration with other vendors’ products for
a best-of-breed solution. CorDaptix also
comes with components that allow other

applications to seamlessly and appropriately

SPL’s promise to you

+ SPL is committed to providing
Customer Management Solutions

that manage the risk for our clients.

+ We are dedicated to maintaining a
100% track record of successful

implementations.

* SPL's products will continue to be
market leading and innovative to
enable competitive advantage
over time.

access services and data, such as the rating
and billing engine. Built with ultimate
flexibility in mind, CorDaptix can even be
accessed through third-party user interfaces.

SPL also has alliances with System
fntegrators and a unique "core surround”
implementation program that virtually
assures that product delivery is high quality
every time. SPL works closely with
integration partners to provide the necessary
product expertise in the project to ensure

a successful implementation.

+ SPL understands that it is not merely
a product but the relationship and
trust between our organizations that

makes the difference.

* As your partner, SPL is dedicated to
providing you the best service
possible now and into the future.

Sincerely ~
the employees of SPL WorldGroup
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ABOUT SPL WORLDGROUP

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is the leading
provider of best-of-breed customer management solutions
to the energy and service-related industries in regulated
and competitive markets worldwide. With 100% success
in implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its
place as the market leader in providing scalable and
adaptable customer management products that evolve
with client requirements and enable unrivaled business
responsiveness. The company employs more than 500
professionals in North America, Europe, Middle East and
Asia Pacific and has delivered its customer management

products to more than 50 energy customers worldwide.

lnnovate-Adapt-Excel”

www.splwg.com
800 ASK-4-SPL

SPL WorldGroup, Inc. 157 Headquarters Plaza, North Tower, 8th Floor, Morristown, NJ 07960 USA

Chicago - London - Manila » Melbourne < Morristown NJ - Paris + San Francisco - Sydney - Tel Aviv
For a complete listing of SPL WorldGroup's worldwide offices visit our web site at www.splwg /offices
©2001 SPL WortdGroup, Int, Al Rights Reserved.  SPL WorldGroup, SPL. the SPL WorldGroup logo, the SPL logo, CorDaptix and iB4e are trademarks owned by

SPL WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup, SPL, and the SPL WorldGroup logo are registered as trademarks in the United States and in certain foreign jurisdictions.
All other brand, product and company names herein are used for identification purposes only end are the property of their respective owners.




CIS/CRM

Do You Really Want to Own the Customer?

“OWNING THE CUSTOMER" IS a commonly stated objective
of many competitive energy companies. They believe that if
they can control the interface between customers and service
providers, they will have powerful influence over supply choic-
es customers make.

This assumes information about the customer can indeed
be owned and that placing the company between the cus-
tomer and other service providers will result in a trusting rela-
tionship with the customer. Both of these assumptions are
dangerously false.

Customers own information about themselves and their
preferences. However, the advance of information-sharing and
sophistication of information-collection has now placed con-
sumers’ ability to control information about themselves at risk.

The fundamental change in society

attributable to the ready availability of infor-
mation techniology is de-emphasis of group
power and reemergence of individual power.

One of the more disturbing experiences I ever had associ-
ated with a speaking engagement was at a meeting of CIOs of
a state government. The topic of the session was e-govern-
ment, but the discussion turned to opportunities to generate
revenue from the dissemination of information about private
transactions that resided in public records, e.g. automobile
registrations, property-tax records, births, marriages and so
forth. As a consultant, I was intrigued by the business oppor-
tunity; as an individual, I was horrified at the prospect that my
personal information, which I was required to provide, might
become a source of revenue to the state authority. Of course,
it is likely that this information is available today to anyone rea-
sonably wise about public data, let alone a hacker.

In the past, information provided to a supplier by a con-
surmer was unlikely to be shared with others. The mechanism
for broadcasting an individual’s information didn't exist and
society’s respect for the individual was robust. With today's
infrastructure and commercial environment, however, the
term “consumer” doesn’t mean individual, it means the total
revenue of a consuming entity. And the goal is to own the rela-
tionship that allows maximizing the proportion of total poten-
tial revenue that can be garnered—"owning the customer.”

I predict much stronger laws protecting individuals’ own-
ership of information will emerge. Privacy will be a significant
issue in future decades. I also predict the emergence of agents
or managers of customer information; agents who will repre-
sent your interests in the dissemination of information about

By CD HOBBS

your preferences to suppliers—agents who will protect your
ability to own both the rights to and the revenue from dissem-
ination of your information.

EARNING CONSUMER TRUST

The fundamental change in society attributable to the ready
availability of information technology is de-emphasis of group
power and reemergence of individual power. An individual
today can easily own the infrastructure required to record and
disseminate his intellectual capital for private gain—thus
removing the requirement to attach oneself to an organization
(group) that could afford to provide the infrastructure.

I recently read an article providing step-by-step instruction
on how to find the best price for a product on the Internet and
how, by using secondary Internet sources, to get a price
10% to 20% lower than the lowest price you could find
directly from a distributor. This is individual power, and
no one will own the customer who wrote that article,
except the company that consistently provides the best
value for the dollar spent.

The customer can't be owned. It will be impossible
to sustain a position between the customer and his ulti-
mate suppliers as there will always be another route to
the customer, courtesy of readily available technology and those
happy to exploit it. The goal therefore of owning the customer
is a fruitless endeavor. It is one small step from the franchised
monopoly. Owning the customer is not the intent of a com-
petitive energy market. It is an objective that will lose the
respect of the very consumers to whom it is directed.

THE RIGHT TO CHOOSE
The challenge of keeping pace with consumer requirements is
exacerbated by consumers’ access to information about prod-
ucts and providers using today's information infrastructure.
Not only must the energy competitor adapt to the shift of
choice to the customer, but also to a consuming environment
in which the individual has more market power than ever.
Effective customerrelationship management is molding
products and services with customer preferences so well that
offerings are chosen—freely chosen—over and over again.
Energy companies whose sights are set on “serving the cus-
tomer”—companies who overtly honor the customer's right to
choose—will be the winners in this evolution of the global
energy markets. &

CD Hobbs is president and chief executive officer of SPL WorldGroup BV.
He was previously executive officer of Meta Group Inc. where he
was responsible for building, developing and heading its energy-
industry strategies group. He can be reached at 973-4514238 or
cd_hobbs@splwg.com.
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By C D Hobbs,
President and Chief
Executive Officer, SPL
WorildGroup Inc.

ABOUT THE AUTHOR

C D Hobbs is widely
recognised in the energy
industry as both a thought
leader and visionary. In August
2000, he was appointed
President and CEQO of SPL
WorldGroup where he
provides leadership and vision
in pursuit of SPL's corporate
goals.

Formerly, Hobbs served as
executive officer of META
Group, Inc., where he was
responsible for building,
developing and heading META
Group's Energy Industry
Strategies group. Earlier, he
held several executive
positions with Portland
General Electric (PGE).

Hobbs has spoken around the
world on key issues and
drivers impacting on how
energy companies do
business. Additionally, he is
also extensively published on
the topic of change and its
impact on the energy
business.

Hobbs holds a BSBA and an
MBA in finance and business
administration, with post-
graduate concentration in
economics, international
finance and human behaviour.

HOW CUSTOMER-CENTRIC
ARE YOU?

There is no more profound result of the Internet and general availability of
information technology than the shift of power from institutions to individuals.
This impact is more profound than simply the availability of information to the

masses, or the ability to derive intelligence by processing this information.

What the individual has at his/her fingertips
is the complete picture of the market and
the options presented by the market.
Whether this picture is available today to
energy consumers matters little. The fact is
it will be available to them soon enough
and they will act on not only their complete
picture of the reality of their energy options,
but also on its relation to every other market
picture available to them.

What does this mean? That the energy
markets of the future will be designed by
and responsive to energy consumer
preferences, regardless of what the new
emerging energy institutions might prefer.
Any attempt to usurp the ‘power or
opportunity of choosing’ by any segment of
the energy markets will fail miserably!

CREATING THE INNOVATION ENGINE

The greatest danger for energy companies,
regulated or deregulated, emerging or
traditional, is their inability to innovate in
response to emerging consumer trends.
Energy companies need to listen to signals
provided by their commercial, industrial and
residential consumers and, as important,
have the ability to respond.

The ability to respond has been a sericus
deficiency for the energy industry
throughout its history. The ability to listen
and lead in the delivery of new solutions
has been largely absent. This is the
concept of the innovation engine. To
survive and prosper in the face of rapidly
changing rules (institutions) in today’s
globalising energy markets requires an
unprecedented ability to assimilate and
analyse consumer wants based on data
inputs, the ability to change rapidly in
response to consumer preferences and
market signals, and to develop new
solutions that are defined and preferred by
energy consumers.

This observation has led this writer to
propose that energy leadership adhere to
the principle of “ib4de™", innovation before

excellence. The traditional paradigm of
pursuing excellence in existing business
processes may lead to failure in a market
where business processes are changing at
rates that render the focal point of such a
strategy obsolete - that is, the business
processes superannuate before excellence
is possible, making adopting the new
emerged business processes far more
important than rendering them perfect.

Respecting the customer will not be an easy
task. It will require a redefinition of most, if
not all, of the business processes and
technology underpinnings associated with
the customer. It will require a new agility — a
new standard for customer response. It will
require a new sensitivity to customer
preferences. In fact, it will require a whole
set of new practices aimed at anticipating
the direction of energy customer
preterences, and offering, in advance of
clearly defined requirements, options that
move customers more quickly in directions of
their choice. Beyond business processes
and old world energy cultures, the new
requirement for energy companies to be
customer-centric rattles the technology
bedrock of these institutions. Legacy
Customer Information Systems (CIS) are
now the lumbering giant of old, ill-suited to
provide nimble response to changing market
conditions and customer requirements.
Customer choice also puts a new face on
CRM for energy companies today.

SUCH IS THE STUFF OF COMPETITIVE
ADVANTAGE

Building the organisation that innovates —
that continually reinvents itself in response
to changed consumer-driven market models
— is the worthy paradigm in today’'s energy
markets. And building this innovation engine
requires a redefinition of the people,
processes and technology that are
employed within the energy company (utility)
to define and deliver service to customers.mi
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Press Releases that were sent to the Company’s security holders in connection
with the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders held on Dec. 28, 2001 can be
found under category I1.11 of this submission.
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NOTICE AND AGENDA

Special Meeting of Shareholders
of
SPL WorldGroup B.V.
July 27, 2001

Dear Shareholders:

This is to notify you that a Special Meeting of the Shareholders of SPL WorldGroup B.V. (the
“Company”) will be held at the offices of the Company, Leidsekade 98, 1017 PP Amsterdam, The Netherlands,
on Friday, July 27, 2001. The Special Meeting of the Preferred Stock Shareholders shall be held at 9:30 AM,,
and the Special Meeting of the Common Stock Shareholders shall be held at 10:00 AM.

The meeting is being called to approve the remuneration of the Board of Directors of the Company in
accordance with Article 17 of the Company’s Articles, which provides as follows:

Article 17. Remuneration

The general meeting shall determine the remuneration of each Managing Director, as well as his other
terms and conditions of employment. If and so far as the general meeting has appointed a Chief
Executive Officer, the remuneration and other terms and conditions of employment of this Chief
Executive Officer of the Company shall be determined and approved by the Board of Managing
Directors.

The Compensation and Options Administration Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company has
recommended that the sole remuneration of the Board of Managing Directors, with the exclusion of the
Managing Director who is the Chief Executive Officer, be the grant to each such Managing Director of an
option to purchase a total of 50,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, par value NLG 0.12 per share,
which grant is to cover the two-year period from January 1, 2001 until December 31, 2002. The exercise price
per share of the option shall be the fair market value of the Company’ s common stock at the time of grant. The
options shall vest ratably over the 24-month period at the end of each month commencing January 2001. If any
director ceases to be a director of the Company prior to December 31, 2002, any unvested options shall be
forfeited.

Please sign and fax the accompanying Proxy to the address indicated
not later than midnight in Amsterdam on Thursday, July 26, 2001.

Dated: July 11, 2001

/s/ Richard V. Zolezzi

Richard V. Zolezzi

Senior Vice President Administration, and
General Counsel




Please fax this form when completed, but not later than July 26, 2001:

TO: Mr. John Paans,
Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam. Fax No. +31-20-620-7475

PROXY

Special Meeting of Shareholders of SPL WorldGroup B.V.
July 27, 2001

The undersigned, being a shareholder of record of SPL WorldGroup B.V. (the "Company"), hereby appoints John
Paans, a candidate civil law notary of Caron & Stevens/Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam, or any other lawyer or
(candidate) civil law notary of Caron & Stevens/Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam, the true and lawful attorney and
proxy for, and in the name, place, and stead of, the undersigned, to vote and act at the Special Meetng of
Shareholders of the Company as fully as the undersigned could be entitled to vote if personally present, with full
power of substitution and revocation, hereby ratifying and confirming all that the above-mentioned attorney and
proxy, or his substitute, may do in the name, place and stead of the undersigned. The Special Meeting shall be
held at the offices of the Company, Leidsekade 98, 1017 PP Amsterdam, The Netherlands at 9:30 AM. for the
Preferred Stock Shareholders, and at 10:00 AM. for the Common Stock Shareholders on July 27, 2001, or on any
other day as the meeting may be held by adjournment or otherwise.

The proxy shall vote the shares of the undersigned as follows:

FOR approval of the remuneration of the Board of Managing Directors of the Company
for calendar years 2001 and 2002, with the exclusion of the Managing Director
who is the Chief Executive Officer, consisting of the grant of an option to
purchase 50,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, par value NLG 0.12 per
share, which grant is to cover the two-year period from January 1, 2001 until
December 31, 2002. The exercise price per share of the option shall be the fair
market value of the Company’s common stock at the time of grant. The options
shall vest ratably over the 24-month period at the end of each month commencing

January 2001.

Dated: July  ,2001

Signature of Shareholder
(if acting in aapaaity as exeattor, adnuristrator,
trustee, or ather authorized person, please indicate below)

Print name (and title, if applicable)
of Shareholder



REVISED
NOTICE AND AGENDA
(Revised to reflect the new date of the Meeting as July 30, 2001)

Special Meeting of Shareholders

of
SPL WorldGroup B.V.
July 30, 2001 -
Dear Shareholders: ’\,

This is to notify you that the Special Meeting of the Shareholders of SPL WorldGroup B.V. (the:

“Company”), originally planned by the Company to be held on July 27, 2001 shall now be held on July 30, 2001. ’“-:;3

The meeting shall be held at the offices of the Company, Leidsekade 98, 1017 PP Amsterdam, The Netherlands.
The Special Meeting of the Preferred Stock Shareholders shall be held at 9:30 AM.,, and the Special Meeting of
the Common Stock Shareholders shall be held at 10:00 AM.

The meeting is being called to approve the remuneration of the Board of Directors of the Company in
accordance with Article 17 of the Company’s Articles, which provides as follows:

Article 17. Remuneration

The general meeting shall determine the remuneration of each Managing Director, as well as his other
terms and conditions of employment. If and so far as the general meeting has appointed a Chief
Executive Officer, the remuneration and other terms and conditions of employment of this Chief
Executive Officer of the Company shall be determined and approved by the Board of Managing

Directors.

The Compensation and Options Administration Commuttee of the Board of Directors of the Company has
recommended that the sole remuneration of the Board of Managing Directors, with the exclusion of the
Managing Director who is the Chief Executive Officer, be the grant to each such Managing Director of an
option to purchase a total of 50,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, par value NLG 0.12 per share,
which grant is to cover the two-year period from January 1, 2001 until December 31, 2002. The exercise price
per share of the option shall be the fair market value of the Company’s common stock at the time of grant. The
options shall vest ratably over the 24-month period at the end of each month commencing January 2001. If any
director ceases to be a director of the Company prior to December 31, 2002, any unvested options shall be
forfeited.

Please sign and fax the accompanying Proxy to the address indicated
not later than midnight in Amsterdam on Sunday, July 29, 2001.

Dated: July 13, 2001

/s/ Richard V. Zolezzi

Richard V. Zolezzi

Senior Vice President Administration, and
General Counsel

t



Please fax this form when completed, but not later than July 29, 2001:

TO: Mr. John Paans,
Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam. Fax No. +31-20-620-7475

REVISED PROXY
(Revised to reflect the new date of the Meeting as July 30, 2001)

Special Meeting of Shareholders of SPL WorldGroup B.V.
July 30, 2001

The undersigned, being a shareholder of record of SPL WorldGroup B.V. (the "Company”), hereby appoints John
Paans, a candidate civil law notary of Caron & Stevens/Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam, or any other lawyer or
(candidate) civil law notary of Caron & Stevens/Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam, the true and lawful attorney and
proxy for, and in the name, place, and stead of, the undersigned, to vote and act at the Special Meeting of
Shareholders of the Company as fully as the undersigned could be entitled to vote if personally present, with full
power of substitution and revocation, hereby ratifying and confirming all that the above-mentioned attorney and
proxy, or his substitute, may do in the name, place and stead of the undersigned. The Special Meeting shall be
held at the offices of the Company, Leidsekade 98, 1017 PP Amsterdam, The Netherlands at 9:30 AM. for the
Preferred Stock Shareholders, and at 10:00 AM. for the Common Stock Shareholders on July 30, 2001, or on any
other day as the meeting may be held by adjournment or otherwise.

The proxy shall vote the shares of the undersigned as follows:

FOR approval of the remuneration of the Board of Managing Directors of the Company
for calendar years 2001 and 2002, with the exclusion of the Managing Director
who is the Chief Executive Officer, consisting of the grant of an option to
purchase 50,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, par value NLG 0.12 per
share, which grant is to cover the two-year period from January 1, 2001 unul
December 31, 2002. The exercise price per share of the option shall be the fair
market value of the Company’s common stock at the time of grant. The options
shall vest ratably over the 24-month period at the end of each month commencing

January 2001.

Dated: July  ,2001

Signature of Shareholder
(if acting in capaqity as exeastor, adniristrator,
trustee, or ather authorized person, please indicate below)

Print name (ard title, if applicale)
of Shareholder



SECOND REVISED G
NOTICE AND AGENDA Sia
(Revised to reflect the new date of the Meeting as August 16, 2001) RS

Special Meeting of Shareholders
of
SPL WorldGroup B.V.
August 16, 2001

Dear Shareholders:

This is to notify you that the Special Meeting of the Shareholders of SPL WorldGroup B.V. (the
“Company”), planned by the Company to be held on July 30, 2001 shall now be held on August 16, 2001. The
meeting shall be held at the offices of the Company, Leidsekade 98, 1017 PP Amsterdam, The Netherlands. The
Special Meeting of the Preferred Stock Shareholders shall be held at 9:30 AM., and the Special Meeting of the
Common Stock Shareholders shall be held at 10:00 AM.

The Special Shareholders Meeting is being postponed until August 16, 2001 so that the
Company may address in this Second Revised Notice and Agenda certain questions that it has received
over the past few weeks conceming the terms of the proposed stock option grant to the Board of
Managing Directors, which is the subject of the Shareholders Meeting.

On December 14, 2000, the Compensation and Options Administration Committee of the Board of
Directors of the Company recommended that the sole remuneration of the Board of Managing Directors, with
the exclusion of the Managing Director who is the Chief Executive Officer, be the grant to each such Managing
Director of an option to purchase a total of 50,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, par value NLG 0.12
per share, which grant is to cover the two-year period from January 1, 2001 until December 31, 2002.

Exercise Price

The exercise price of the shares covered by the option is the fair market value of the Company’s common stock
at the time of the grant. Under the Company’s First Amended 1998 Stock Plan, the fair market value of the
Company common stock is determined by the Company’s Board of Directors. This amount then serves as the
exercise price for grants of stock options under the Plan. The current fair market value of the Company’s
common stock, as last determined by the Board of Directors of the Company, is US $4.20 per share. This is the
value upon which the demerger transaction was effected on July 1, 2000.

Vesting

The shares vest ratably over the 24-month period from January 1, 2000 until December 31, 2000. If at any time
a director ceases to be a director of the Company, all unvested share are then forfeited. Typically, the stock
options that have been granted to directors since formation of the Company have been subject to accelerated
vesting if a “change of control” event occurs with the Company. The specific provision in the Stock Option
Agreement defining a Change of Control event is:

1. Change of Control. In the event that:

(@ any person (as such term is used in Section 13 of the Exchange Act and the
rules and regulations thereunder and including any Affiliate or Associate of such person, as defined in
Rule 12b-2 under the Exchange Act, and any person acting in concert with such person) not entitled
to more than 50 percent of the voting power in the Company as of March 1, 1998 directly or indirectly
acquires or otherwise becomes entitled to more than 50 percent of the voting power in the Company;
or



(b) there occurs any merger or consolidation of the Company, or any sale, lease, or
exchange of all or any substantial part (as determined by the Board of Directors or the Committee
solely at its discretion) of the consolidated assets of the Company and its subsidiaries to any other
person and (A) in the case of a merger or consolidation, the holders of outstanding stock of the
Company entitled to vote in elections of directors immediately before such merger or consolidation
hold less than 50 percent of the voting power of the survivor of such merger or consolidation or its
parent; or (B) in the case of any sale, lease, or exchange, the Company does not own at least 50
percent of the voting power of the other person; or

© one or more new directors of the Company are elected and at such time five or
more directors (or, if less, a majority of the directors) then holding office were not nominated or
endorsed as candidates by a majority of the directors in office immediately before such election;

any non-vested portion of the Option shall vest immediately and the Option shall be deemed to pertain
to and apply to the securities to which a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock subject to the
unexercised portion of the Option would be entitled if he or she actually owned such shares immediately
prior to the record date or other time any such event became effective.

Certain shareholders raised the concem that if an acceleration event were to occur, the acceleration should
pertain only to the unvested options which would normally vest in the calendar year period in the director’s year
of service. The Company agrees with this. Therefore, for example, if an acceleration event were to occur on
September 1, 2001, only the unvested options that would normally have vested by December 31, 2001 shall have
their vesting accelerated. The vesting of options that normally would have vested in calendar year 2002 shall not
be accelerated. Similarly, if an acceleration event were to occur on March 1, 2002, the unvested options that
normally would have vested pro-rata per month in 2002 would immediately vest on the acceleration event.

Please sign and fax the accompanying Proxy to the address indicated
no later than midnight in Amsterdam on Wednesday, August 15, 2001.

Dated: July 27, 2001

/s/ Richard V. Zolezzi

Richard V. Zolezzi _

Senior Vice President Administration, and
General Counsel




Please fax this form when completed, but not later than August 15, 2001:

TO: Mr. John Paans,
Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam. Fax No. +31-20-620-7475

SECOND REVISED PROXY
(Revised to reflect the new date of the Meeting as August 16, 2001)

Special Meeting of Shareholders of SPL WorldGroup B.V.
August 16, 2001

The undersigned, being a shareholder of record of SPL WorldGroup B.V. (the "Company"), hereby appoints John
Paans, a candidate civil law notary of Caron & Stevens/Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam, or any other lawyer or
(candidate) civil law notary of Caron & Stevens/Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam, the true and lawful atorey and
proxy for, and in the name, place, and stead of, the undersigned, to vote and act at the Special Meeting of
Shareholders of the Company as fully as the undersigned could be entitled to vote if personally present, with full
power of substitution and revocation, hereby ratifying and confirming all that the above-mentioned attorney and
proxy, or his substitute, may do in the name, place and stead of the undersigned. The Special Meeting shall be
held at the offices of the Company, Leidsekade 98, 1017 PP Amsterdam, The Netherlands at 9:30 AM. for the
Preferred Stock Shareholders, and at 10:00 AM. for the Common Stock Shareholders on August 16, 2001, or on
any other day as the meeting may be held by adjournment or otherwise.

The proxy shall vote the shares of the undersigned as follows:

FOR approval of the remuneration of the Board of Managing Directors of the Company
for calendar years 2001 and 2002, with the exclusion of the Managing Director
who is the Chief Executive Officer, consisting of the grant of an option to
purchase 50,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, par value NLG 0.12 per
share, which grant is to cover the two-year period from January 1, 2001 until
December 31, 2002, as described in the Second Revised Notice and Agenda of
Special Shareholders Meeting, dated July 27, 2001

Dated: August 2001

Signature of Shareholder
(if acting in aapacity as executor, admiristrator,
trustee, or other asthorized person, please indicate below)

Print name (and title, if applicable)
of Shareholder



THIRD REVISED
NOTICE AND AGENDA [
(Revised to reflect the new date of the Meeting as August 23, 2001) e P
w2
Special Meeting of Shareholders =
of
SPL WorldGroup B.V.
August 23, 2001

Dear Shareholders:

This is to notify you that the Special Meeting of the Shareholders of SPL WorldGroup B.V. (the
“Company”), planned by the Company to be held on August 16, 2001, shall now be held on August 23, 2001. The
meeting shall be held at the offices of the Company, Leidsekade 98, 1017 PP Amsterdam, The Netherlands. The
Special Meeung of the Preferred Stock Shareholders shall be held at 9:30 A.M.,, and the Special Meeting of the
Common Stock Shareholders shall be held at 10:00 A.M.

The Special Shareholders Meeting has been postponed again so that the Company may address
in this Third Revised Notice and Agenda certain additional questions that the Company has received
concerning the terms of the proposed stock option grant to the Board of Managing Directors. The new
date of the Meeting is Thursday, August 23, 2001.

On August 6, 2001, the Compensation and Options Administration Committee of the Board of Directors
of the Company recommended that the sole remuneration of the Board of Managing Directors for calendar year
2001 be the grant to each Managing Director of an option to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock,
par value NLG 0.12 per share as stated below:

Qutside Directors 25,000 shares
Inside Directors 12,500 shares
Designated Director of the Preferred Stock 0 shares

The option is to vest ratably per month over the 12 months during a director’s tenure on the board, with the first
monthly vesting date being January 31, 2001, and shall be subject to accelerated vesting upon a change of control
as defined in the Company’s standard option agreement for managing directots.

The exercise price of the shares covered by the option is the fair market value of the Company’s common stock at
the time of the grant. Under the Company’s First Amended 1998 Stock Plan, the Company’s Board of Directors
determines the fair market value of the Company’s common stock. This amount then serves as the exercise price
for grants of stock options under the Plan. The current fair market value of the Company’s common stock, as last
determined by the Board of Directors of the Company, is US $4.20 per share. This is the value upon which the
demerger transaction was effected on July 1, 2000.

Please sign and fax the accompanyving Proxy to the address indicated
no later than midnight in Amsterdam on Wednesday, August 22, 2001.

Dated: August 6, 2001

/s/ Richard V. Zolezzi

Richard V. Zolezzi

Senior Vice President Administration, and
General Counsel




Please fax this form when completed, but not later than August 22, 2001:

TO: Mrt. John Paans,
Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam. Fax No. +31-20-620-7475

THIRD REVISED PROXY
(Revised to reflect the new date of the Meeting as August 23, 2001)

Special Meeting of Shareholders of SPL. WorldGroup B.V.
August 23, 2001

The undersigned, being a sharcholder of record of SPL WorldGroup B.V. (the "Company"), hereby appoints John
Paans, a candidate civil law notary of Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam, or any other lawyer or (candidate) civil law
notary of Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam, the true and lawful attorney and proxy for, and in the name, place, and
stead of, the undersigned, to vote and act at the Special Meeting of Shareholders of the Company as fully as the
undersigned could be entitled to vote if personally present, with full power of substtution and revocation, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that the above-mentioned attorney and proxy, or his substitute, may do in the name,
place and stead of the undersigned. The Special Meeting shall be held at the offices of the Company, Leidsekade
98, 1017 PP Amsterdam, The Netherlands at 9:30 A.M. for the Preferred Stock Shareholders, and at 10:00 A.M.
for the Common Stock Shareholders on August 23, 2001, or on any other day as the meeting may be held by
adjournment or otherwise.

The proxy shall vote the shares of the undersigned as follows:
FOR approval of the remuneration of the Board of Managing Directors of the Company

for calendar year 2001, consisting of the grant of an option to purchase shares of
the Company’s common stock, par value NLG 0.12 per share, as follows:

Outside Directots 25,000 shares
Inside Directors 12,500 shares
Designated Director of the Preferred Stock 0 shares

Dated: August ___, 2001

Signature of Shareholder
(if acting in capacity as executor, administrator,
trustee, or other authoriged person, please indicate below)

Print name (and title, if applicable)
of Shareholder



August 6, 2001
Shatreholders of SPL WorldGroup B.V.:

There has been considerable constructive communication from shareholders regarding the
proposal for board compensation in the form of options for a two-year period of service.
The summary of the major concerns is as follows:

1. Why 1s the proposal for two years when terms of service are one year?
Why do inside directors receive compensation in the form of options when they are
significant shareholders already? Why don’t they receive cash?

3. Why 1s the acceleration of vesting in the event of a change of control inclusive of the
grant for both years versus inclusive of grants only for the year in which the change
of control would occur?

I spoke with several of you regarding these concerns and engaged in some additional
research into the typical compensation of board members of privately held companies. I
polled the Compensation Committee of our Board and used our Human Resources surveys
and contacts to determine what is common practice. Here is what I have found to be the
norms:

1. Board members of privately held companies, particularly those, like SPL, that are
conserving cash are NOT paid 1n cash, but in options.

2. Inside board members — with inside defined as non-employee shareholders with
significant ownership of shares with assigned board seats or institutional investors
with assigned board seats are typically NOT compensated.

3. Inside board members who are employees of the company are NOT compensated
for their participation 1n the board.

4. Typical option grants are market determined, but generally greater the higher the
option price, In our case, $4.20 per share.

5. All directors are reimbursed for any out of pocket expenses and, in most cases,
allowed some travel perks, e.g. business class travel.

There are some reasons to treat SPL differently from the typical Silicon Valley start-up.
With Fiscal 2001 revenues of $87 million (note: this could change with the audit to be
completed mid-September) and a reasonable, though not excessive, working capital position,
we are larger and in better financial shape than many technology companies that have no
revenues and are consuming cash between financings. Our history is also longer than most
technology companies, with shareholders and operations of one form or another dating back
almost 30 years. '

I would also note that our non-employee inside directors, while well incented based on
existing shareholdings, are providing time to SPL and, due to their locadons, must travel a
long distance to participate in SPL board meetings. Thus I support recognizing their
dedication and service to the board with option grants, albeit at a lower rate than outside
directors.



Taking into account the concerns shared by shareholders, research into the norms of board
compensation and SPL’s configuration as a technology company, I am recommending a
revision in our board compensation program as follows:

1.

That we compensate outside directors for the calendar year of 2001 with options for
25,000 shares vesting monthly and accelerating fully on a change of control,

That we compensate inside directors appointed by the non-institutional SPL
shareholders for the calendar year of 2001 with options at a level of 50% of the
options to be recetved by outside directors; specifically, 12,500 shares.

That we eliminate options to be paid to directors appointed by institutional
investors, e.g., TCV, and

That we reimburse board members for out-of-pocket expenses consistent with SPL’s
current travel policies.

I have polled the SPL WorldGroup board and received concurrence with these
recommendations and have directed Richard Zolezzi, our General Counsel, to make a
change in the sharcholder’s meeting date and associated resolutions to be passed to effect
this recommendation.

Respectfully,

/s/ CD Hobbs

CD Hobbs
President and CEO



NOTICE AND AGENDA

Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
of
SPL WorldGroup B.V,
May 13, 2002

Dear Shareholders:

This 1s to notfy you that an Extraordinary General Meeting of the Shareholders of SPL WorldGroup
B.V. (the “Company”) will be held at the offices of the Company, Teleportboulevard 140, 1043 EJ,

Amsterdam,

and at 10:00

The Nethetlands, on Monday, May 13, 2002 at 9:30 A.M. for the Preferred Stock Shareholders,
A.M. for all Shareholders.

The meeting is being called:

®

@)

to adopt an amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of the Company in connection with the
proposed change of the Company’s fiscal vear from the annual period ending on June 30 of each
year to the annual period ending December 31 of each year. Subparagraph 1 of Article 22
currently reads: “The company's financial year shall run from the first day of July up to and
including the thirtieth day of June of the following year.” As amended, Article 22.1 would be and
read as follows:

“Article 22. Financial vear. Drawing up the annual accounts

1. The company's financial year shall correspond with the calendar year.”

to authorize each lawyer of Baker & McKenzie in Amsterdam to apply for the requisite
statement of no-objection from the Netherlands Ministry of Justice with respect to the
amendment, and to have draw up, to execute and to sign the deed of amendment to the Articles
of Incorporation.

Accompanying this Notice and Agenda is a form of Proxy for your attention.

The purpose of the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders is explained more fully below.

Please sign

and fax the Proxy to the following address not later than midnight in Amsterdam on

Sunday, May 12, 2002:

TO:

Mzr. John Paans
Baker & McKenzie
Amsterdam Fax No. +31-20-620-7475

Notice Special Sharcholder Meeting 1

May 13, 2002



Change in Fiscal Year to Correspond to_the Calendar Year

Management of the Company is proposing to the Shareholders of the Company that Article 22.1 of the
Company’s Articles of Incorporation be amended to change the Company’s fiscal year end date to December
31 of each year, beginning with the Company’s fiscal year ending in 2002. The purpose of this change is to
facilitate the Company’s accounting and audit process, and to align the Company with the more common
practice of having a fiscal year that is also the calendar year. Over the course of the past year, the Company
has worked extensively with its financial advisors to improve its financial reporting and the presentation of its
business and financial information. Financial information presented on a calendar year basis is the typical
practice. Management believes that if the Company adopts a calendar year as the fiscal year, it would allow
both our customers as well as potential outside investors to better understand our business and compare us to
the larger number of companies that report their financial information on a calendar year basis.

In connection with the proposed fiscal vear change, Management proposes to have our outside auditors take
the additional step of auditing our December 31, 2001 financial statements, which would likely be completed
and provided to the shareholders in June or July of this year. Thereafter, as a result of the proposed change,
the Company’s current fiscal year would end on December 31, 2002. The Company’s financial statements as
of that date would be similarly audited, and those audited financial statements would be provided to the
Shareholders within the customary 90 days following the end of the fiscal year, meaning by March 31, 2003.

Dated: April 26, 2002

/s/ Richard V. Zolezzi
Richard V. Zolezzi
Sentor Vice President and General Counsel

Notice Speeal Sharcholder Meeting 2
May 13, 2002



Please fax this form when completed, but not later than May 12, 2002:

TO: Mr. John Paans,
Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam Fax No. +31-20-620-7475

PROXY

Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of SPL WorldGroup B.V.

May 13, 2002

The undersigned, being a shareholder of record of SPL WorldGroup B.V. (the "Company"), does hereby
appoint John Paans, a lawyer of Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam, or any other lawyer or civil law notary of
Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam, true and lawful attomey, for and in the name, place, and stead of the
undersigned, to vote at the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company to be held at the
offices of the Company, Teleportboulevard 140, 1043 E]J, Amsterdam, The Netherlands, at 9:30 AM. for the
Preferred Stock Shareholders, and at 10:00 AM. for all Shareholders on May 13, 2002, or on any other day as
the meeting may be held by adjournment or otherwise, as fully as the undersigned could vote if personally
present, with full power of substitution and revocation, hereby ratifying and confirming all that the above
attorney or substitute may do in name, place and stead of the undersigned.

The proxy shall vote the shares of the undersigned as follows:

(Note: If you choose to wee agairst any item, you may delete “For” and wnite “A gairst”,

2l

FOR adoption of an amendment to Article 22.1 of the Aricles of
Incorporation of the Company so that, as amended, Article 22.1 shall be and read as
follows:

<

‘Article 22. Financial year. Drawing up the annual accounts
1. The company's financial year shall correspond with the calendar year.”

FOR authorization of each lawyer of Baker & McKenzie in Amsterdam
to apply for the requisite statement of no-objection from the Netherlands Ministry
of Justice with respect to the amendment to the Articles, and to have drawn up, to
execute and to sign the deed of amendment to the Articles of Incorporation.

Dated: May , 2002

Proxy-051302-F

Signature of Sharebalder

Nane (or title) of Sharehdlder



Innovate-Adapt-Excel

STRICTLY CONFIDENTIAL

April 26, 2002

To Our Common Shareholders:

We would like to thank all of you who responded to the questionnaire that we sent on March 22, 2002. The results
of the questionnaire are very clear: out of all the responses, shareholders holding less than 1% of the stock of the
Company on a fully diluted basis indicated any interest in selling shares at a price of US $3.50.

Over the past months, the Company has worked with its investment bankers to identify one or more funding
sources that could provide liquidity to shareholders interested in selling some or all of their stock in the Company
and that could also provide possible additional working capital to the Company. The valuations for our Company
discussed by these investment sources valued our Company in the range of less than one times projected FY 02
revenue of approximately US $98 million. After applicable transaction fees, the valuations would have equated to
as low as $3.50 per share. Neither management of the Company nor the Board of Directors expressed any interest
to support or recommend a transaction at that valuation. However, I personally wanted to poll the shareholders to
understand their interest and be able to draw to a close the current efforts to identify acceptable liquidity sources
for the shareholders. We will not pursue the current discussions with the funding sources. While our business has
continued to grow even during the recent recession, it is clear that company valuations, including those given to
our Company by the investment community, remain depressed.

Looking forward, I intend to continue to strive to build shareholder value and opportunities for our shareholders to
seek liquidity if they desire. My goal will be to continue to try to grow our business organically as well as possibly
considering strategic acquisition opportunities as they arise, which could assist us in extending our product offering
and possibly entering additional vertical markets that we currently are not able to access.

While we will continue to apprise you of our business in our periodic shareholder updates, I wanted to bring to
your attention that we wish to ask you to approve a change in our fiscal year end date from June 30 to December
31. Under Dutch law, this requires a simple amendment to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation. We are
circulating with this letter a Notice of Extraordinary General Meeting and a Proxy to effect the amendment. We
wish to make the change to bring our Company more into the mainstream and better align our fiscal year end with
the normal fiscal periods of our clients. If you approve the change, we will provide you with an audit of our
financial results for the six-month period ending December 31, 2001. Thereafter, we will provide you with audits
of full calendar years beginning with calendar year 2002.

Sincerely,

/s/ CD Hobbs

CD Hobbs
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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MINUTES
of a special meeting of shareholders of
SPL WorldGroup B.V.,
having its corporate seat at Amsterdam

(hereinafter referred to as the "Company")
held on August 23, 2001 in Amsterdam.

Chairman : Mr. John C.C. Paans
Secretary : Mr. Alex van Dootmn

The chairman opened the meeting and stated that the Company's Board of Managing Directors has
advised him that no depositary receipts for shares in the Company have been issued with the Company's
concurrence and there are no persons to whom the law attributes the right accruing to holders of
depositary receipts issued with the Company's concurrence.

The chairman established that the convocation of this meeting took place in accordance with the
Company's Articles of Incorporation and the statutory provisions. The chairman furthermore informed
the meeting that, according to the attendance list, which will be attached to the minutes of this meeting,
6,756,536 shares are represented at the meeting, constituting approximately 48.92 % of the entire issued
share capital, so that valid resolutions may be adopted in respect of all agenda items, provided they are
adopted with an absolute majonty.

The chairman brought up for discussion the following issue included in the agenda for this meeting:

The approval of the remuneration of the Board of Managing Directors of the Company for calendar
year 2001, consisting of the grant of an option to purchase shares of the Company’s common stock,
par value NLG 0.12 per share, as follows:

Qutside Directors | 25,000 shares
Inside Directors 12,500 shares
Designated Director of the Preferred Stock 0 shares

The meeting unanimously adopted the agenda as moved by the chairman.

The chairman then proceeded to the approval of the remuneration of the Board of Managing Directors of
the Company for calendar year 2001 as set forth above and observed that 6,530,121 votes (96.6% of the
votes cast) were cast in favor of this proposal and therefore this proposal is hereby accepted.



/Ammzdam, August 23},290',1;)
7 e

Since no other business was transacted and no participant wished to address the meeting, the chairman

adjourned the meeting.

Alex van Doom
:Chairman Secretary
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MINUTES
of the annual general meeting 2001

of shareholders of
SPL WorldGroup B.V.,
having its corporate seat at Amsterdam
(hereinafter referred to as the "Company"')
held on December 28, 2001 in Amsterdam.

Chairman: Mr John C.C. Paans
Secretary: Mr Alex van Doorn

The chairman opened the meeting and stated that the Company's Board of Managing Directors has
advised him that no depositary receipts for shares in the Company have been issued with the
Company's concurrence and there are no persons to whom the law attributes the right accruing to

holders of dépositary receipts issued with the Company’s concurrence.

The chairman established that the convocation of this meeting took place in accordance with the
Company's Articles of Incorporation and the statutory provisions. The chairman furthermore informed
the meeting that, according to the attendance list, which will be attached to the minutes of this meeting
10,144,032 shares are represented at the meeting, constituting approximately 73,4 % of the entire
issued share capital, so that valid resolutions may be adopted in respect of all agenda items, provided

they are adopted with an absolute majority.
The chairman brought up for discussion the following issues included in the agenda for this meeting:
1. the proposal to elect to the Board of Directors of the Company the two nominees receiving the

highest number of votes as Inside Directors in the pre-meeting election conducted pursuant to

Section 2.4.5 of the Amended and Restated Preferred and Common Stock Shareholders



Agreement dated as of July 1, 2000 améng the shareholders of the Company (the ““Shareholders

Agreement”).

the proposal to elect to the Board of Directors of the Company the three nominees receiving the
highest number of votes as Outside Directors in the pre-meeting election conducted pursuant to

Section 2.4.5 of the Shareholders Agreement.

the proposal to re-elect to the Board of Directors of the Company Moshe Mor as the Director
designated by the holders of the Series A and Series B Preferred Stock of the Company
pursuant to Section 2.4.6 of the Shareholders Agreement.

the proposal to re-elect to the Board of Directors C.D. Hobbs as Chief Executive Officer of the

Company.

the approval of the calendar year 2002 compensation of those members of the Board of

Managing Directors who receive companesation in their roles as director of the Company, as

detailed in Notice and Agenda.

the approval of the fiscal year 2001 proposed allocation of profit between the Series A Preferred
Stock, the Series B Preferred Stock and the Common Stock of the Company, as provided in

Article 24 of the Articles of Incorporation of the Company.
the adoption of the audited accounts of the Company for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001.

the approval of the cancellation of a total of 187,767 shares of the Company’s Series B
common shares repurchased or to be repurchased from the following shareholders: Bruce W.
Bourmne (58,826); Daan Mare (38,110 shares); STC Intemnational Limited, as trustee of the Chaz
Trust (50,831 shares); and Say Han Tan (40,000 shares). '

the authorization of each lawyer of Baker & McKenzie, Amsterdam, to take whatvever actions

necessary to consummate the above mentioned cancellation of Series B common shares.



The meeting unanimously adopted the agenda as moved by the chairman.

The chairman then proceeded to the first item on the agenda. The chairman informed that there were
only two nominees for Inside Director in the pre-meeting election. The chairman proposed to appoint
both the nominees as Inside Director of the Company effective per the date of the meeting. This

proposal, which was subsequently put to a vote, was unanimously accepted by the shareholders present

at the meeting.

The chairman proceeded to the second item on the agenda, being the election of the three nominees
receiving the highest number of votes as Outside Directors of the Company. The chairman put the
proposal to a vote and observed that the shareholders of the Company voted as follows:

Shaul Ashkenazi, 2,388,822 votes;

Daniel L. Eilers, 6,200,137 votes;

Stanley J. Meresman, 11,122,503 votes; and

Alicia Rotbard 9,681,176 votes.

The chairman observed that as a result of the voting, Daniel L. Eilers, Stanley J. Meresman and Alicia

Rotbard were elected as Outside Directors of the Company effective per the date of the meeting.

Subsequently the chairman moved to the third item on the agenda, being the re-election of Mr.
Moshe Mor as Director to the Board of Directors of the Company. The chairman put this proposal
to a vote and observed that 10,020,503 votes (98,9%) were cast in favor of this proposal and 123,529

votes (1,1%) were cast against this proposal, therefore this proposal is hereby accepted.

The chairman then proceeded to the fourth item of the agenda, being the re-election of Mr. CD.
Hobbs to the Board of Directors of the Company and observed that all votes were cast in favor of this

proposal and therefore this proposal is hereby accepted.

The chairman proceeded to the fifth item on the agenda, being the approvel of the calendar year 2002
compensation of those members members of the Board of Managing Directors who receive

companesation in their roles as director of the Company, as detailed in Notice and Agenda.



This proposal, which was subsequently put to a vote, was unanimously accepted by the shareholders

present at the meeting.

The chairman proceeded to the sixth item on the agenda, being the approval of the fiscal year 2000
proposed allocation of profit between the Series A Preferred Stock, the Series B Preferred Stock and
the Common Stock of the Company, as provided in Article 24 of the Articles of Incorporation of the
Company. This proposal, which was subsequently put to a vote, was unanimously accepted by the

shareholders present at the meeting.

Then the chairman moved to the seventh agenda item, being the adoption of the audited accounts of
the Company for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001. This proposal was put to a vote and the

chairman observed the this proposal was unanimously accepted by the shareholders present at the

meeting.

Subsequently the chairman proceeded to the eighth item on the agenda, being the approval of the
cancellation of a total of 187,767 shares of the Company’s Series B common shares repurchased or
to be repurchased from the following shareholders: Bruce W. Boumne (58,826); Daan Mare (38,110
shares); STC International Limited, as trustee of the Chaz Trust (50,831 shares); and Say Han Tan
(40,000 shares). "I'his proposal, which was subsequently put to a vote, was unanimously accepted by

the shareholders present at the meeting.

Then the chairman moved to the ninth agenda item, being the authorization of each lawyer of Baker
& McKenzie, Amsterdam, to take whatvever actions necessary to consunmate the cancellation of
Series B common shares mentioned under agenda item 8. This proposal was put to a vote and the

chairman observed the this proposal was unanimously accepted by the shareholders present at the

meeting,

Since no other business was transacted and no participant wished to address the meeting, the

chairman adjourned the meeting.



Amsterdam, December 28, 2001.

/ ﬂL// oz
i ; -

John C.C. Paans Alex van Doom

Chairman Secretary
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MINUTES
of the extraordinary general meeting

of shareholders of
SPL WorldGroup B.V.,
having its corporate seat at Amsterdam
(hereinafter referred to as the "Company")
held on May 13, 2002 in Amsterdam.

Chairman: Mr John C.C. Paans
Secretary: Mr Alex van Doom

The chairman opened the meeting and stated that the Company's Board of Managing Directors has
advised him that no depositary receipts for shares in the Company have been issued with the
Company's concurrence and there are no persons to whom the law attributes the right accruing to

holders of depositary receipts issued with the Company's concurrence.

The chairman established that the convocation of this meeting took place in accordance with the
Company'’s Articles of Incorporation and the statutory provisions. The chairman furthermore informed
the meeting that, according to the attendance list, which will be attached to the minutes of this
meeting, 8,440,082 shares are represented at the meeting, constituting approximately 61,1 % of the
entire issued share capital (excluding the shares that were repurchased by the Company, i.€.187,767

shares).
The chairman brought up for discussion the following issues included in the agenda for this meeting:
1. the proposal to adopt an amendment to Article 22.1 of the Articles of Incorporation of the

Company so that, as amended, Article 22.1 shall be and read as follows:

“Article 22. Financial vear. Drawing up the annual accounts

1. The company’s financial year shall correspond with the calendar year.”
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2. the proposal to authorize each lawyer of Baker & McKenzie in Amsterdam to apply for the
requisite statement of no-objection from the Netherlands Ministry of Justice with respect to the
amendment to the Articles, and to have drawn up, to execute and to sign the deed of

amendment to the Articles of Incorporation.
The meeting unanimously adopted the agenda as moved by the chairman.

The chairman then proceeded to the first item on the agenda, being the amendment to the Articles of
Incorporation of the Company. The chairman put this proposal to a vote and observed that the

proposal was unanimously accepted by the shareholders present at the meeting.

The chairman proceeded to the second and last item on the agenda, being the authorization of each
lawyer of Baker & McKenzie in Amsterdam to apply for the requisite statement of no-objection
from the Netherlands Ministry of Justice with respect to the amendment to the Articles, and to have
drawn up, to execute and to sign the deed of amendment to the Articles of Incorporation.

The chairman put this proposal to a vote and observed that all votes were cast in favor of this

proposal and therefore this proposal is hereby accepted.

Since no other business was transacted and no participant wished to address the meeting, the

chairman adjouned the meeting.

Amsterdam, May 13, 2002.

/’ John C.C. Paans Alex van Doom

Chairman Secretary
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Information the Company has Posted on the Company’s Internet Website, www.splwg.com
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SPL WorldGroup - Customer Management Solutions

Innovate-Adapt-Excel” B2

Solutions & Services: News & Achievements:

Page 1 of 1

About SPL WorldGroup: TransFormance Group:

[Go to...

{Go to...

|Go to...

SPL's CorDaptix™: The Leading Customer Management
Software Solution

CorDaptix has been designed for markets where
products and services are always changing, and
where the only constant is the need for a customer-
focused billing system that can adapt to change.
CorDaptix’'s open, scalable and modular
architecture provides the adaptable core for a
customer management solution supporting multi-
fanguage, multi-jurisdictional, multi-currency, muiti-
product and service lines. :

CASE STUDY: SPL Customer Management Software Helps
Eskom Electrify South Africa

Find out how SPL helped a utility company which
generates 95% of the electricity in South Africa
improve their debt recovery and credit & collection
functionality, while helping an economically
struggling population plan and pay for electricity
use. (PDF Format, 99K)

Learn More...

“Corporate Ethics and the Failure of Leadership” - An Article
by SPL President & CEO, CD Hobbs

CD Hobbs addresses values, ethics and the
responsibilities of chief executives to shareholders,
customers and employees in his
October/November 2002 Guest Column in Pipeline
& Gas Joumal.

SPt VyorkdGeonp
FOINTQFVIERY

Learn More...

Legal Notice  Copyright © 2003 $PL WorldGroup. All rights reserved

http://www.splwg.c m/

SPL In The News:

Feb. 3: Nine Go-Lives Accelerate SPL
WorldGroup's
End-of-Year Momentum

Dec. 11: Partnership with SPL
WorldGroup_Helps Minnesota Power Save

Dec. 9: Robert Brnilovich Joins SPL
WorldGroup To Head Global Customer
Management Services Operations

Nov. 26: Las Vegas Valley Water District
Chooses SPL WorldGroup's Customer
Management System

Nov. 18: SPL Reports Sharp Rise in the
Quarter's Revenue

Nov. 7: SPL WorldGroup’s CD Hobbs to
Offer View of the Future at Energy IT
Conference

More Press Releases...

Upcoming Events:

Mar. 12-13:  The Future of Utilities

- UK, London, England

May 31-Jun. 3: CIS Conference -
Platinum Sponsor,
Nashville, TN

2/4/2003
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Soluations & Services:

CorDaptix:

Product Overview
Solutions For:

Energy - Distribution
Energy - Retail

Water Industry
Services:
Implementation Services

Customer Service Group

News & Achievements:
Press Releases
Case Studies

Articles/Abstracts

About SPL WorldGroup:

Company Information

Executive Team
Partners

Worldwide Offices

Contact Us
Careers at SPL

SPL Home Page

TransFormance Group:

|Go to:
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SPL WorldGroup (SPL) is the leading provider of best-of-
breed customer management software products and solutions
to the energy and service-related industries in regulated and
competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% implementation
success record, SPL demonstrates its place as the market
leader in providing scalable and adaptable customer
management products that evolve with client requirements
and enable unrivaled business responsiveness.

SPL Vision

SPL offers a crucial advantage in an increasingly customer-
centric environment — the proven ability to attract, nurture
and maximize the value of customers through billing
excellence and innovation in customer management, sales
and marketing.

Led by an experienced and visionary management {eam, SPL builds solutions that
are innovative, adapt to changing business requirements, and enable excellence in
customer management.

The SPL team has extensive energy industry knowledge and experience in
delivering successful customer management products, solutions, and advice across
mutltiple energy markets. This is employed in stimulating and facilitating innovative
industry discussion, vision and thought leadership and is consistently demonstrated
in industry participation, innovative products, advice and alliances.

The company employs more than 600 professionals throughout North America,
Europe, the Middle East and Asia Pacific and has delivered its customer
management products to more than 50 companies worldwide.

SPL WorldGroup Cuiture, Values and People

Our people make the difference. SPL WorldGroup is a place where world-class
industry professionals unlock the potential of technology. Our people are our
greatest asset, and the driving force behind every SPL customer success.

SPL WorldGroup History: A Start-up with more than 30 Years of History
SPL WorldGroup opened its offices in Johannesburg, South Africa in 1968. The
main motivation of the founders of SPL was to create a "different kind of software
company” which became SPL's unique culture.

Over the years, spurred by the entrepreneurial sense of adventure, independent
"replicas" of SPL were created in Israel (1977), Australia (1978), the United States
{1982) and Scuth East Asia (1984). All of those SPLs, while independent, were in
the same business of providing software products and solutions and more
importantly, shared the same SPL culture.

In 1994, these entrepreneurs came together to explore the idea of once again
becoming a single global entity. It was clear that joining forces would create an
immediate opportunity to share investment, and its expertise in worldwide markets,
bringing added value to customers, shareholders and employees. All of the SPLs
merged to take on a new global dimension, and SPL WorldGroup was born.

Copyright © 2003 SPL WorldGroup. All rights reserved

2/3/2003



- SPL WorldGroup - Customer Management Software Solutions Page 2 of 2

http://www.splwg.c m/m in/c rp r te_inf . sp 2/3/2003



SPL: Executive Team
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Guerry Waters
Chief Technology Officer and
Senior Vice President Marketing Strategy

Michael Martini
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Peter M. Thomas
Senior Vice President, Global Sales

Julian Brandes
Senior Vice President, Global Accounts, Managing Director of EMEA

Jim Reardon
Senior Vice President, Global Accounts

Robert Brnilovich
Senior Vice President, Global Professional Services

Madeline Selig
Senior Vice President

Richard Zolezzi
Senior Vice President, Administration and General Counsel

Joanne Kelley
Managing Director, TransFormance Group

Geoff Holloway

President, Search Software America

Copyright © 2003 SPL WorldGroup. All rights reserved

2/3/2003



Scolutions & Services:

CorDaptix:

Product Overview

Solutions For:
Energy - Distribution

Energy - Retail

Water Industry

Services:
Implementation Services

Customer Service Group

News & Achievements:
Press Releases
Case Studies

Articles/Abstracts

About SPL WorldGroup:

Executive Team
Partners
Worldwide Offices
Contact Us

Careers at SPL

SPL Home Page

TransFormance Group:

{Go to: %

Legal Notice

http://www.splwg.c m/m in/execs/cdh bbs. sp

Page 1 of 1

CD Hobbs

President and Chief Executive Officer

CD Hobbs is recognized throughout the utility and service
industries as a thought leader who emphasizes the
importance of organizational innovation and customer
relationships as keys to excellence in a rapidly changing
marketplace. He was appointed to the position of President
and Chief Executive Officer of SPL WorldGroup in August
2000.

Prior to joining SPL, Mr. Hobbs was Senior Vice President at
META Group, where he developed and led the Energy
information Strategies group from inception to its position as
a major information technology advisory group to the energy industry. in 1998, he
assumed responsibility for all of META's vertical industry practices and its
Executive Services.

Between 1977 and 1991, Mr. Hobbs held several executive positions with Portland
General Electric, including Senior Vice President, Business Development, and
Chief Financial Officer. He played a key role in formulating and executing Portland
General's strategy for transition in the rapidly changing industry.

Mr. Hobbs holds a B.S. in business administration and organizational development
and an MBA in finance. He has keynoted around the world on the issues and
drivers that affect the way energy companies do business, and he has published
extensively on the topic of change and its impact on the energy business.

Copyright © 2003 SPL WorldGroup. All rights reserved
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Guerry Waters

Chief Technology Officer and Senior Vice President,
Marketing and Strategy, SPL WorldGroup

Guerry Waters has more than 30 years experience in global
information technology strategy, organization, architecture,
and business-driven IT solutions. He has been the Senior
Vice President of Marketing and Strategy at SPL
WorldGroup since November 2000.

Prior to joining SPL, Mr. Waters was Vice President of
Energy Information Strategy at META Group, where he
focused on customer management and alignment of the
information technology function with the energy lines of
business. His previous responsibilities in the energy industry
included the positions of CTO and Director of Technology Strategy and Engineering
at Southern Company.

Mr. Waters' educational background includes concentrations of studies in business,
technology and extensive course work and studies in management, strategy
development, and implementation planning. He is a frequent speaker and writer on
issues surrounding the transformation of information technology and the creation of
customer-related strategies and solutions in an increasingly competitive global
market.

Copyright © 2003 SPL WorldGroup, All rights reserved
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Michael Martini

Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Michael Martini is Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer for SPL
WorldGroup. An expert in analyzing new business opportunities as well as in re-
engineering existing processes, he has more than 20 years of experience in
strategic and financial analysis and planning in telecommunications and technology
enterprises.

Prior to joining SPL, Mr. Martini was Vice President and CFO / West Region for
AT&T Broadband, then the largest cable television provider in the U.S. and a leader
in residential broadband high-speed data and telephone products. He was
previously Vice President, High Speed Data Operations for the company's
residential data business in California.

Mr. Martini has served in a variety of senior management roles in finance and
business development with Pacific Bell/SBC Communications, including Vice
President and CFO for Pacific Bell Communications and Executive Director,
Business Planning and Analysis, for Pacific Bell Corporation.

Mr. Martini holds a Bachelor of Science in Finance and Economics from California
State University, Sacramento, and an MBA in Finance from Golden Gate
University, San Francisco.

Copyright © 2003 SPL WorldGroup, All rights raserved
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Energy -.Distribution Senior Vice President, Global Sales

rgy - Retail Peter M. Thomas has more than 20 years of experience in
international high technology, consulting, finance, and
energy-related companies. He joined SPL Worldgroup in

2001 as head of global sales.

Water Industry

Services:

Implementation Services Prior to joining SPL, Mr. Thomas held several senior
marketing, management, and technical positions in
established worldwide corporations as well as in start-ups.
He was most recently Senior Vice President, U.S. Sales at
META Group, a research and advisory company serving
global companies. He previously headed U.S. sales for
META's energy vertical. Mr. Thomas has also held positions at a major financial

services corporation and at several international high-technology companies.

Customer Service Group

News & Achievements:
Press Releases
Case Studies

Mr. Thomas holds a B.S. from University College of Swansea.
Articles/Abstracts
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Julian Brandes

Senior Vice President, Global Sales, Managing Director of EMEA

Julian Brandes has decades of experience in implementing
information technology systems. In his current role, he
focuses on customer service and support for key SPL
customers and prospects.

Mr. Brandes joined SPL in South Africa in 1973 and
advanced through systems analysis and design to the
management of large application development projects. In

S . 1981, he co-founded SPL USA and was the company's chief
& S L =13 executive officer until the formation of SPL WorldGroup in
1994. He was responsible for blending the methodologies
and business practices of the various companies that merged to form SPL
WorldGroup, then subsequently headed SPL's Delivery practice, which was
responsible for the implementation of the CIS PLUS® product.

Mr. Brandes holds bachelor's degrees in mathematics and mathematical statistics.

Copyright © 2003 SPL WorldGroup. All rights reserved
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Energy. - Distribution Senior Vice President, Global Sales

Energy - Retail Jim Reardon has been appointed to the position of Senior

Vice President, Global Accounts. Mr. Reardon joined SPL in
November of 1995 and has played a significant role in the
growth of SPL's Energy business.

Water Industry

Services:

Prior to his work at SPL, Mr. Reardon was the Vice
President of Customer Service for Elizabethtown Gas/NUI.
He began his work at Elizabethtown in 1980 and held
various IT and Customer Service positions. While he was
i « there, Mr. Reardon implemented new technologies in the
field service, greatly expanded customer service revenue,
and established customer service as a separate business unit.

Implementation Services

Customer Service Group

News & Achievements:
Press Releases

Case Studies Jim Reardon received his bachelor's degree in economics from Wharton School of

. Business, University of Pennsylvania.
Articles/Abstracts
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Robert Brnilovich

Senior Vice President, Global Professional Services

As head of SPL's professional services organizations,
Robert Brnilovich has operating authority over worldwide
product installations, business technology transformation
services, and global training.

Prior to joining SPL, Mr. Brnilovich had an extensive career
with leading systems integrators BearingPoint, (formerly
KPMG), Andersen, and PricewaterhouseCoopers. He
directed utility-industry customer technology projects
throughout North America, focusing on CIS/CRM and ERP
strategies, process reengineering, and organization
realignment. He gained broad experience in providing end-to-end solutions for core
business processes, with expertise in strategy, application selection and
implementation, and the extraction of value from existing business systems. He is
also an expert in leveraging technologies like IVR, imaging and content
management, and the Internet as a part of customer management solutions.

Mr. Brnilovich holds a Bachelor of Science degree from Miami University and an
MBA from George Mason University. He is a Certified System Professional and a
member of the Institute of Certified Computer Professionals.

Copyright & 2003 SPL WorldGroup. All rights reserved
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Energy - Distribution Senior Vice President, Product Development

Ms. Selig joined SPL in September 2000 to take
responsibility for global product development and customer
support. Ms. Selig is focused on ensuring that SPL evolves
into a true software product company offering its global
customers world-class support. Ms. Selig has an extensive
background in managing and leading the development of
mission-critical software products as well as in customer
support and responsiveness.

Energy - Retail

Water Industry

Services:!
Implementation Services

Customer Service Group

Ms. Selig's background in managing and leading product
development, product support and information technology
service functions includes working in a variety of key roles at a number of large
software vendors. Her 20+ year career includes executive and management

News & Achievements:

Press Releases

Case Studies positions with Spear Technologies, Inc., where Ms. Selig was most recently Vice
S President, Engineering, Health Systems Design Corporation, Silverrun
Articles/Abstracts Technologies, Synon Corporation, Pansophic Systems, and Computer Systems

and Applications, among others.

About SPL WorldGraup: Ms. Selig has a B.A. in Sociology, B.S. in Electronics Technology and undertook

Company Information graduate studies in Political Science at the University of Houston.

Executive Team
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Solutions & Services:;
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Product Overview

Solutions For: Richard ZOleZZi

Energy - Distribution Senior Vice President, Administration and General Counsel

Energy - Retail Richard Zolezzi is the Company's Senior Vice President,
Administration and General Counsel. In this capacity he is
responsible for the legal affairs of the Company worldwide
and the Company's facilities. Mr. Zolezzi joined SPL in 1996
as the Vice President Corporate Development and General
Counsel and has been a major proponent of the Company's
expansion in Europe.

Water Industry

Services:

Implementation Services

Customer Service Group
Mr. Zolezzi was previously a partner at Lillick & Charles in
San Francisco, where he served as principal legal advisor to
SPL WorldGroup's founding team. He was also a senior
fawyer with Rogers & Wells in New York, where he worked in the firm's mergers &
acquisitions and finance groups.

News & Achievements:
Press Releases

Case Studies

. Mr. Zolezzi holds a Bachelor's degree in Economics from Stanford University and
Articles/Abstracts received his law degree from Hastings College of the University of California.
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Joanne Kelley

Managing Director, Transformance Group

Joanne Kelley has more than 20 years of global experience
with energy companies, consulting in benchmarking,
outsourcing, sales force automation, due diligence, product
and service feasibility, and organizational and business
alignment resulting from deregulation.

Prior to joining SPL WorldGroup, Inc., Ms. Kelley was Vice
President of Executive Services at META Group, where she
started an energy consulting practice, offering consulting
services to energy/utility companies and to third-party
providers to the energy industry. She was previously Vice
President of the Energy/Utilities practice at Renaissance, an international
consulting firm, where she focused on business strategy and information
technology. Ms. Kelley also worked with the utility industry in sales management,
marketing management and consuiting roles at both Hewlett Packard and Digital
Equipment Corporation (now Compagq), where she was Director of Utility Industry
Marketing for the Americas.

Ms. Kelley holds a B.A. from Goucher College and an M.A. from Smith College.
She also received an M.B.A. in Marketing from Simmons College, the Graduate
School of Management. She is on the Board of Directors of the Chemical Paper
Manufacturing Corporation, a privately held corporation.

Copyright © 2003 SPL WorldGroup. All rights reserved
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Geoff Holloway

President, Search Software America

Geoff Holloway is the President as well as the Director of Research and

Development of Search Software America, a division of SPL WorldGroup, which he
founded.

Geoff has been concentrating on the development of the SSA-NAME3 range of
products to solve high volume name search, identification and matching problems
ever since he moved to the USA in 1986 to market research his proposal for a

"Name Search" business. In 1987, Search Software Inc. was incorporated as a
subsidiary of SPL Australia.

Geoff started with SPL in South Africa in 1871. His executive experience
commenced in 1974 when he was appointed to the Board of Systems
Programming Ltd. In 1977 Geoff moved to Australia to establish a new company for
SPL, and expanded this company into New Zealand, Hong Kong and Singapore.

Geoff Holloway has an honors degree in economics from the London School of

Economics. He started his computing career with IBM in 1960 at their research
laboratories in England.

Copyright © 2003 SPL WorkiGroup. All rights reserved
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SPL WorldGroup - Customer Management Software Solutions

Global Offices

United States

SPL WorldGroup: New Jersey
157 Headquarters Plaza

North Tower, 8th Floor
Morristown, NJ 07960

Phone: (973) 539-6268

Toll free: (800) 275-4775

Fax: (973) 539-3778

SPL WorldGroup: San Francisco
75 Hawthorne Plaza, 20th Floor
San Francisco, CA 84105

Phone: (415) 541-94862

Fax: (415) 541-0224

Asia-Pacific

SPL WorldGroup: Sydney
Level 8

12 Castlereagh Sireet
Sydney

New South Wales 2000
Phone: 61-2-8258-8200
Fax: 61-2-8258-8201

SPL WorldGroup: Melbourne
Level 2, 15-29 Bank Street
South Melbourne

Victoria 3205

Phone: 61-3-9674-8300

Fax: 61-3-9674-8399

Page 1 of 2

SPL WorldGroup: Chicago

8750 West Bryn Mawr Ave., Ste 200
Chicago, IL 60631

Phone: (773) 380-3016

Fax: (773) 380-3052

Search Software America
1445 East Putnam Avenue
Old Greenwich, CT 06870
Phone: (203) 698-2399
Fax: (203) 698-2409

Search Software America (Pty) Ltd
Suite 8A,12-16 Tryon Road

Lindfield, NSW 2070

Phone: 61-2-9416-9922

Fax: 61-2-9416-9944

SPL WorldGroup: Philippines
Yuchengco Tower, Suite 2301
RCBC Plaza

6819 Ayala Avenue

Makati 1200

Metro Manila

Phone: 632-580-7400

Fax: 632-580-7401

Europe and Middle East

SPL WorldGroup (UK) Ltd:
London

6th Floor Mutual House

70 Conduit Street

London, England W1S 2GF
Phone: + 44 20 7851 6840
Fax: + 44 20 7851 6841

SPL WorldGroup S.A.S.: France
Les Collines de L'Arche, Madeleine
D

http://www.splwg.c m/m in/gl b 1 ffices. sp

SPL WorldGroup: Israel
3B Yoni Natanyahu Street
Or-Yehuda 60200, Israei
Phone 972-3-7356000
Fax 972-3-7356001

Search Software America EMEA
SSA House, 9 Headley Road,
Woodley

Reading, Berkshire RG5 4JB
England
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76 route de la Demi - Lune Phone 44-118-944-9688
Paris - La Defense 92057 Cedex Fax 44-118-044-9699
France

Phone: +33-01-4803-7850
Fax: +33-01-4903-7855

Copyright € 2002 SPL WorldGroup. All rights reserved
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SPL WorldGroup's CorDaptix is the innovative, adaptable and
fully upgradable customer management product designed to
provide scalable solutions that withstand the tests of time,
growth, and product and service line introductions and
extinctions.

CorDaptix is the universal customer management core that
handles all transactions, from customer initiation through _
product and service delivery, allowing you to provide excellent

customer service,

CorDaptix provides best-of-breed customer management
components supported by an underlying adaptable
architecture that enables your business to deliver rapid innovation and
responsiveness for competitive advantage.

Learn More about CorDaptix:

o CorDaptix: Product Overview

¢ Component Advantage (Including: Rating, Interval Data
Management, Billing, and Credit & Collections)

o Enterprise Application Integration

e Enterprise Architecture

s Security

&« Solutions for Energy ~ Distribution
# Solutions for Energy — Retail
« Solutions for the Water industry

* |mplementation Services
» Customer Service Group (CSG)

Copyright € 2003 SPL WorldGroup. All rights reserved
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| CorDaptix: Component Advantage

Replacing monolithic customer management systems with component-based
architectures is frequently the best route to obtain flexibility - especially when these
architectures are designed from the outset to operate in this new mode. SPL's

CorDaptix™ is an outstanding example of this approach.

CorDaptix provides best-of-breed customer-care and management features in an
architecture that supports open integration standards based on XML, allowing parts
of CorDaptix to be naturally realized in a component-based environment. CorDaptix
components work with other best-of-breed components to deliver state-of-the-art

customer care to the enterprise environment.

Integration

CorDaptix provides an XML-based Application Integratin (XAl} layer as part of its
integration strategy and is an industry standard. The run-time XAl engine provides
a multi-purpose connector that supports the Java Message Service (JMS); it can
thus easily connect to the industry leading platforms (e.g., products from

SeeBeyond, TIBCO, webMethods, IBM and BEA to name a few).

CorDaptix components currently include:

Rating

CorDaptix Rating is the industry's most flexible pricing and rating engine. It provides
a comprehensive set of calculation algorithms for virtually any kind of product or

service.

Interval Data Management

Includes such robust, scalable, time-series data-management functions as pre-
treatment of raw interval data, aggregation and conversion to billable data, mapping
to time-of-use periods, pricing and billing. Sophisticated tools build time-of-use
maps for interval data, manage curtailment and interruption periods, and handle
pricing and billing. CorDaptix Interval Data Management is offered as an add-on to

CorDaptix Rating.

Credit and Collections

This comprehensive and flexible set of workflow products includes analysis of debt
by segment and other attributes, user-defined collections procedures, severance
procedures, write-off procedures, and collection agency referrals. CorDaptix Credit
and Collections works across many vertical industries and allows organizations to
define flexible, automated collections policies for multiple jurisdictions while

maintaining compliance with local regulations.

Billing

CorDaptix Billing can be implemented in several different ways: in pairing with
CorDaptix Rating, as a stand-alone component provided with bill-ready data from
elsewhere in the system, or in combination applications in which bill-ready data is
augmented with additional calculations. CorDaptix Billing provides a rich set of
functions for all consolidated and summary billing requirements. Robust accounting
features provide a reliable, auditable view of finances. CorDaptix Billing reliably
meets the business need for customer bills that include multiple and diverse

products and services.

http://www.splwg.c m/m in/cdx/cdx_c mp nent. sp
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. SPL: Cordaptix - Component Advantage

For more information on CorDaptix Components, please send an email to:

splinfo@splwg.com.

Page 2 of 2

Learn More about CorDaptix:

- CorDaptix: Product Overview

Component Advantage (Including: Rating, Interval Data
Management, Billing, and Credit & Collections)

- Enterprise Application Integration

Enterprise Architecture

Security.

Solutions for Energy — Distribution

Solutions for the Water industry

Implementation Services
Customer Service Group (CSG)

Copyright © 2003 SPL WorldGroup. Al rights reserved
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Integrating multiple applications so that they can talk to one another throughout an
organization has long been an information technology goal. Today, this goal,
Enterprise Application Integration (EAl) has become a reality through widespread
adoption of the Extensible Markup Language (XML) and the development of toois like
SPL's XML Application Integration (XAl) tool, which "opens" CorDaptix to the
enterprise.

XAl facilitates corporate-wide solutions that integrate customer management with
distribution management, financial applications, and a host of other functions. XAl
helps organizations with web-based and portal services maintain business and
process integrity. It eases transfer of bulk data (such as payment files) between
applications.

How XAl works

Combining standards with a loasely coupled approach to solving application
challenges, XAl delivers an XML message-passing architecture; published APls and
simple integration of CorDaptix with other applications regardless of platform or
operating system. XAl has been successfully used already to integrate CorDaptix
through EAI tools from SeeBeyond (including e*Gate™), TIBCO™ and IBM (especiall
the MQ Series).

Learn More about CorDaptix:

» CorDaptix: Product Overview

+ Component Advantage (Including: Rating, interval Data Management,
Billing, and Credit & Collections)

* Enterprise Application Integration

Enterprise Architecture

& Security

-

« Solutions for Energy — Distribution
» Solutions for Energy — Retail

* Implementation Services
» Customer Service Group (CSG)

Copyright © 2003 SPL WorldGroup. All rights reserved
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Enterprise-wide software systems are crucial to today's corporations. Because so
much of a company's present and future rests on its information technology, much
is required. Systems must be scalable, flexible, open, upgradable.

CorDaptix responds to ali these requirements. Its design reflects considerate
choices among techniques so that achieving one level of quality does not result in
limitations on others.

Scalability

CorDaptix applies load balancing in a stateless, n-architecture to permit farge
numbers of concurrent users without system degradation. In batch mode,
CorDaptix achieves transaction scalability through load balancing, parallel
processing, caching, and other advanced design techniques that accommodate a
few thousand customers - or many millions.

Flexibility

CorDaptix provides a ready-to-go solution that has, at the same time, an extensive
set of configuration options and a library of plug-in algerithms to which a company
can add its own functions without compromising upgradability.

Openness

XAl a real-time XML-based interface to an organizations's Enterprise Application
Integration layer that permits CorDaptix to exchange information with applications
across the organization. Staging tables, efficient use of a highly normalized
database, n-tier architecture, and much more contribute to the openness of
CorDaptix.

Upgradability

CorDaptix divides highly variable functions into separate plug-in modules that can
be individually upgraded or traded out. It uses metadata-defined applications that
permit the system to track it's own changes form release to release. And
companies can upgrade other system components independent of CorDaptix.

Learn More about CorDaptix:

* CorDaptix: Product Overview

» Component Advantage (Including: Rating, Interval Data -
Management, Billing, and Credit & Collections)

s Enterprise Application Integration :

Enterprise Architecture .

s Security o

* Solutions for Energy — Distribution -
s Solutions for Energy — Retail -1
s Solutions for the Water industry

» |mplementation Services
» Customer Service Group (CSG)
Copyright © 2003 SPL WorldGroup. All rights reserved
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CorDaptix:

CorDaptix: Security

Product Overview

Selutions For: CorDaptix architecture meets the challenge of protecting mission-critical data by

Energy - Distribution filling all three data-security requirements:

Energy - Retail Integrity
Enures complete and accurate data through business logic
Water Industry managed only in the application server, minimizing the risk that bad
data can infiltrate the system through outdated data-entry modules,
Services: faulty input, or user errors. The data model is designed without

. . redundancy, eliminating possible conflicts in duplicate information.
Implementation Services

Customer Service Group Confidentiality
SPL combines a robust CorDaptix security engine with partner-
. based roots in a four level security model that provides for: User
News & Achievements: Authentication, Functional-level Security, Account Access Security,

Field Level Security.
Press Releases

Case Studies Availability
Ensuring that users can access the data they need, when they need
Articles/Abstracts it. ‘

About SPL WorldGroup: Learn More about CorDaptix:

Company Information ¢ CorDaptix: Product Overview
& Component Advantage (Including: Rating, interval Data
Executive Team Management, Billing, and Credit & Collections)

# Enterprise Application Integration

Partners » Enterprise Architecture
#» Security

Worldwide Offices

Contact Us & Solutions for Energy — Distribution
® etail

Careers at SPL . ndustry

SPL Home Page
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CorDaptix is the adaptable customer management solution for energy retailers
operating in both mass markets and Commercial & Industrial markets.

With CorDaptix at their fingertips, your Customer Service Representatives will be
able to provide superior service to quickly and easily, and your customers can be
assured of receiving accurate and timely bills.

SPL's CorDaptix for Energy Retailers enables:

Flexible billing

Billing and calculation rules can vary significantly across today's deregulated
energy markets. CorDaptix delivers consolidated and dual fuel billing, bili-ready,
rate-ready and rules-based accounts receivables functionality required for your
company to thrive.

Commodity and non-commodity products and services

Energy retailers need to be continuously innovative in highly competitive retail
markets. CorDaptix is flexible enough to support all types of commodity and non-
commodity products and services.

Automated handling of Direct Access Service Requests (DASR)

Responding promptly and efficiently to energy retailers' DASR is a key requirement
for an energy distributor in deregulated markets. By sending the enrollment request
electronically, SPL's CorDaptix workflow processing engine automates the multi-
step business process associated with customer switching.

Customer-centric

SPL's CorDaptix customer-centric data model seamlessly integrates the critical
demographic, geographic, product and service information needed to meet and
exceed your customers' expectations.

Support for Asset Management and Field Services

CorDaptix easily integrates with third-party asset management systems (among
others) to allow efficient field service, work order management and asset
management.

Scalable
CorDaptix is used by clients serving as few as 6,000 customers and as many as 8
million.

Intuitive interface

The CorDaptix browser-based interface provides an intuitively designed workspace,
enabling access to key information so that you can provide responsive and efficient
customer service.

Learn More about CorDaptix:

¢ CorDaptix: Product Overview
s Component Advantage (Including: Rating, Interval Data

2/3/2003
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Management, Billing, and Credit & Collections)
» Enterprise Application Integration
& Enterprise Architecture
& Security

s Solutions for Energy — Distribution
» Solutions for Energy — Retail
s Solutions for the Water industry

#« |mplementation Services
* Customer Service Group (CSG)
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The SPL Implementation Commitment

SPL's enviable 100% implementation track record rests in part on outstanding
product architecture that provides the adaptability and flexibility companies need to
meet the challenges of today's evolving markets. Even more important, SPL makes
implementation commitments to every client to:

e Provide a top-quality implementation team that delivers the high
standards of professionalism and technical excellence. The average SPL
field employee has more than ten years of solid IT experience. Clients
receive efficient, effective work from a team sized to their needs and able to
get systems working smoothly, accurately, and on schedule.

& [ntegrate best-of-breed components {0 achieve integrated systems that
work smoothly through major changes in business strategy, custemer mix,
and regulatory regime. SPL also helps reengineer business processes to
take full advantage of new functionality.

» Use a design-centric Project Implementation Methodology that helps all
participants understand critical requirements while also clarifying
implementation responsibilities and timelines.

+ Sponsor independent project reviews that help keep projects on track by
providing insight into common project issues, offering solutions and tracking
milestones. SPL's project reviews, which are independent of the project
team, serve as early warning systems to help impiementers detect and
correct issues before they cause delays.

* Solve problems first, negotiate second. Every project runs into
unexpected difficulties - a serious ambiguity in the description of the way a
system handles data, a late-breaking requirement, a critical area that slips
behind schedule. This is the time to work through the issue and get the
project back on track, and back on schedule. SPL develops long-term
business relationships with clients equally committed to fairness and mutual
success. It's the only worthwhile way to do business.

& Measure quality routinely. SPL surveys every customer quarterly to
ensure solid performance in key areas like staffing, business dealings,
product management, professionalism, and quality of deliverables.

Learn More about CorDaptix:

¢ CorDaptix: Product Overview

= Component Advantage (Including: Rating, Interval Data
Management, Billing, and Credit & Collections)

» Enterprise Application Integration

Enterprise Architecture

» Security

» Solutions for Energy = Distribution
s Solutions for Energy — Retail
e Solutions for the Water industry

s Implementation Services
e Customer Service Group {CSG)

http://www.splwg.c m/m in/implement ti n. sp 2/3/2003



~ SPL: Implementation Services Page 2 of 2

Copyright © 2003 SPL WoridGroup. All rights reserved

http://www.splwg.c m/m in/implement ti n. sp 2/3/2003



Information the Company has Posted on the Internet Website of its Wholly-Owned
Subsidiary which Does Business as Search Software America, www.searchsoftware.com

NY\757394.2



1 Jo 1 a8ed

£00¢/LT/T W)Y XOpul/W 931 MY SYOI as mmm//:dny
‘pansesas spybu 1y oul auemyos dRBIBPIOA 4G Jo uoISIND v "BILIBIIY BIBMYOS YoIEAS £00Z0
SA Pewios | Hoddng | $801A198 | Sjanpold | U0 jawoisny) | Siauped |
| $8116]& J8lioIsN7) | STUSAT 5 smap | suonedijddy | SO Inoqy | 8hoH
saseqeieq
uogduosqng u uonesiidng Bugusasid <
pases|aY TZA SAWYN-VSS <
$5000Ng B AB(] J2WO0ISND MN < S . 3 X iy
paseajay |z UolsioA SAl < L eI gy B ol
_ ~JONIHAINGTD HISN EDOZ USS:
ADUBIDIUOD DAY SIosu0dS MM vSS < R ; .
AIN S.LYVHM ‘e1ep Amuspl o
‘suoneoydde sadA} e Joj uonebisaaul g 6uidnoib
Buryojew 8 4oIeas Auapl Jauio |je pue ‘Buptuy BJep yojeq xog-aui-jo-ingo - 300 wBo Jowosno
a\mcwcﬂzm_%_ \@m>oow_n agjeoiidnp ‘uoneibaiul ejep ids asn-0}-Ases ue ul pabesoed
ur Aygenb ybiy Aisa Jenyap o} ElEp SSBIpPpPE B SUIBU swyLoBle yolew g yotess ‘Ao s1oupEg
InoA Ul UoHBUEBA PUB JOLIS S|QERIOABUN 34} SWODIBA0 _
Ayenb ybiy AisA - EINWVYN-VSS
s1npoid alemyos Buiysiew g yoleas s yss
‘Wi JaAI9S yoseeg Ajuap) S9lI0}S Jawosny
‘SOSEgRIED YI0M)aU pue SWB)SAS inuamod e yum pajdnoo ejep
JaIndwod sy uiyiim ejep Aljuspl dnoib pue yojew fuspi jo Buixepul swi [eay - SdI , SJUBAF R SMIN
‘puly ‘'Yyoseas oy Ajjige s,uoneziuebio ue asueyua ]
Ajjueoyiubis jey} s1onpold a1em)os [euoieulajul :sjonpoud suonesjddy
sjoyieW pue sdojoAap BOUBWY SIBMYOS Uoiess asemyjos burydjew pue yoieas vss
\ A ~ , . SN noqy
JWOH
R e B
oty CURETILTY
EDjI3WYBIEM}OSY2IRES

44

2

sponpoid ‘oremijos Surydep puy yoless eie ANUop[ - BOLDWY 2IBMJOS [oIRaS



tUOC/LTT

B Uey) alow Woy Jyausg
daousuadxy

‘Buiun} pue

ubisap ajy ‘ubisap uoyeoidde
yoseas-aweu ul buyinsuoo
padxa Aq papoddns ag
asnuodxy

"HoyD fewuiw

yum swisoperd aydinwi
uoNN|OS BLeS 3y} s
Mingeriod

"sjuawalinbal

ssauisnq jualayip

Joj sjinsas ayy sun Ajisey
Aupqixey

"swiyobie sy aziwecysno
Ajjesiewoine 0) ejep

umo s,uoneziuebio ay} asn
@oudbljjeuy

‘uono9|es

aAoldwi pue umoys

4O Jaquinu ay) aonpal
yolym sasepajul Jasn ubisag
Aupgesn

'S9SS$IUPPE PUE SILUBU
yojew pue Auapl ‘xapu|
pbusng

‘saibajens

ysleoas ajqeun) pue sAay
yau ‘passardwod Aybiy asn
aosuewWIOUDd

‘passiw

Aisnoinaid sayojew pul4
Ayjgeley

JOVINVAQY VSS FHL

SN JoBIULN Meddng

z3o 1 23eq

uny'smn q ju 991 MY

ay) swo21aA0 Jsnw ABojouyoa) buiyojew pue Guyoleag

"suonduosap pue ‘ssalppe

‘aweu Aq Biep Siy) Yojew pue yoieas 0) pasu siasn ‘Alpua
ssautsng tay)o Aue o ‘saoeid ‘siapuayo ‘siaquaw ‘saluedwoo
‘saafojdwa ‘siojqap ‘sjoadsold ‘sisLioysnd Jnoge si

) JBYIBYAA BjEpP UOonEeoyuapt Jo saseqejep Buimolb yim adoo
0} SWA)SAS SSBUISN( 10} paau e aq jjim sAem|e pue sey asey|

AHdJOSOTHd dNO

+punoie atemyos Buiyojew aweu ajesnose

pue juabjayu 3sows ayy Aldugs a3np,. ABojouyos) sy dosy
0} YSS alqeus ‘UoISIAIP 02y Pajeodipap pue wes] [eotuyoa)
Buouis ‘aseq JaWwio}sno apIMpPHOM S UM S3SIIAOR S YSS

"pHOM ay) Ul alaymAue uonesydde oy ‘ABojouyos) Buinosdw
Aisnonuguoo ypm ‘Auedwod paysiiqe)sa |[om e sI )t ‘sieak
Gl uey) al1ow 1o} uoneziedads Jo BaJe sy} Ui Udaq sey yYSS

"S3IPOQ JUBLIBAOL) |BISpa 4

pue ajels Auew se [jlom se Buynsuos splojeq ‘ainjusody
‘leanuopy O dueg YIOA MON jO Yueg 'shejoieg ‘vYSIA 1sabig
siapeay ‘leydesn 39 ‘191 apnjoul SIBWO0)SNY "SBLUN0D 0§
19A0 woy elep Buyoless sIBWOISND QPG UBY] 2JOW SeY YSS

‘Juawdoisaap uoneoydde

sJasn ayj yoddns o} papinoid ale sapeifdn pue Buginsuon
‘voddng jeauyoss ] ‘sjonpoid W3O 10 suoieoydde padojaasp
JBWOISND UM ASN 10§ PAsUADY S| pue SUOREISHION puUBR
saWeyue ‘SISAIBS UO Ssuns alemyos inO swaishs Bunaxysep
pue uonodaljo) xe] ‘uonebnsanuj pnei4 ‘aouablyaiu] jeuruLD
‘uoyiesynuapi Jawo)sny se yons suonealidde  Buiyojew

pue yoleas aweuy, jeonuo o} Ajjenb pue asuabyjjayul, sppe

SyoI as'mmm//:dny ‘

Ny
SSUN0D IV
suoddng ysS

uiboT sowoysny
siauped
S3110)S J3WO0ISNY)

SJUDAT @ SMBN

UDIYM 2IEMYOS U1 SBZIeDads (YSS) BOLBWY SIEMOS YoIeas suonealddy
sM no
EOLIBWY 9JEM)JOS UoIeas ninoav
awoH
FHINIAE s1onpoid ‘monn.&c‘nu‘
BOUBWIYRIBMYOSYDIRIS

@S

BOLIDUIY 2IEM1JOS YoIeag - sn Eom?N



£00¢/LT/T

7 Jo 7 93e(

uny'snn q /W 991 M)J SYoI as-mmm/sdny

“Japes| Asnpul ay)

Aejs 0] aanoalqo Jesio e sey
yoiym Auedwod pljos e ypm
Bujjeap aie nok jey) mouy|
aimn4

"HOY8 jewljuiul ypm

pliom 3y} punoJe Wol eyep
uo Buiysjew Ayenb anaiyoy
Jeuoneuidyuy

Juawdojaasp pue

yoJeasal oiweuAp Jo apesap

aoUe[9 B Je sjoeH VYSS

‘SWIdYsAs uoneoyiuapl pue Buiyojew ‘yaieas s,M0L0W0)

pue s,Aepo} jo spasau Buibueyd ayj 10} SUOIN|OS B|GE3|RIS
Ajenb ybiy Jaalep o) sanunuod weiboud juswdojaasp

pue yoleasal s,ySS ‘Sjuawalinbal paueA sIsSwWosnd Jno
Asnes o} sejdisuud s woyy paubissp Apijos aJe sponpoud ino

"'Spaau [BORLD JSOW 3y}
uans Asiies o} |eonoeld §i Buijew ‘Loys winwiuw YIm swalsAs
Bunsixa pue mau ojur pajeibisjul Afisea ale suonnjos INQ

"S|aA8) ysu pue suonejndod sy ‘swa)shs ‘sassasoid ssauisng
[enpIAIpUI JO SPa8U 8y} 0} a|qeun) Ajises ale swypoble inp

"BJEP JO SSLUNJOA SLUBIIXS

pue abie| yum pue 'sajy [Bulajxa pue umo s,uoneziuebio
Y} YIim ‘9)els MBI S} Ul IO pauea|d ‘ejep papeulojun

1o pajiewo} yym sjinsal Ayjenb ybiy sspinosd azemyos ino

"BJep uonedsyijuapl 1aylo pue suonduossp

‘sassalppe ‘'salieu uo paseq ejep buidnoib so Buiyojew
‘Buiyoseas uaym Ajigeljal sjqissod 3saybiy ay) Jandp
swiyiuobie 1no 'uoieolidnp pue uonelea ‘Jous sy} aydsaq

. BIEp yolieas, al) se awes ay)

10 ‘18UJ0 yses se awes ay} aq Ajqissod pjnod jey) salepipues
ay} e puy 0} JapJo ul Jasn ssauisng padxa ay) duiw

0} uoneoiidde sy} smojje atemyos s ySS ‘Buljew 104 uonds|as
e a104aq sisi| bunaxtep buibiapy oy ssacold Bulysjew

yojeq e 10 ‘Yydoleas splooay [eULLID B 10 ‘uonesyjuap|
Jawolsny axy Annbu auij-uo ue si uonesidde sy JSYIBUAN

FAVYMLI0S ¥NO

‘Ejep uoneoyjusp
plOM [E3] || Ul SIND20 JBY) UOIJELIBA PUB JOLI® 3|qEPIOABUN

BOLISUIY 9I8M]JOS YoIeag - sn Eom<



WORLDGROUP
COMPANY

SearchSoftwareAmerica
“Facts at a Glance”

[

The Market ' |

Commercial organizations need to identify and maintain custormer relationships and to build
loyalty to ultimately increase profitability. As more organizations implement customer-focused
systems, the need to quickly and correctly identify customers is key to gaining the competitive
advantage. As more markets are consolidated and internal infrastructures are merged, the need
to combine diversified identity data, which may span country borders, is key to maximizing
potential client relationships.

Heightened security together with a need to better manage risk requires improved reliability in
identity screening and verification, regardiess of the countries and languages of origin.

Government and Law Enforcement organizations, as well as Commercial Fraud Investigators,

while needing to maintain effective customer relationships, also need to discover, identify and
prevent fraudulent or criminal activity.

The C‘bmpan;y i

Search Software America (SSA), a division of SPL WorldGroup Inc., is the pioneer in enabling
organizations to build and maintain high-quality identity data search and matching software
solutions. SSA develops and markets software products that significantly enhance an organization's
ability to search, find, match and group identity data within its computer systems and network
databases. The Company provides specialist services to assist organizations with the design,
implementation and use of its products. SSA supplies product for local market places as well
as for multi-national corporations.

SSA provides its software products and services via direct sales, strategic alliances, Sl's, OEM's
and VAR channels.

SSA has been in this area of specialization for more than 15 years, and has over 500 clients

worldwide who rely on its robust enterprise-wide software. The Company has offices in the
United States, the United Kingdom, Australia and Brazil, and agents in other countries.

The Mission | /|

Search Software America's mission is to provide data intelligence, quality and perforrmance for
medium and large sized Companies, Government agencies and Global 1000 organizations with
critical system needs or disparate data spread across heterogeneous environments. SSA intends
to stay at the forefront of this market space by continuing research and develocpment into improved
methods of overcoming more extreme variation in identity data; by providing ready solutions for
an increasing number of countries and languages (currently over 50 are supported); by making
the products even easier to use and implement; and by ensuring that the products integrate with
the latest technologies.

www.searchsoftware.com



SearchSoftwareAmerica
Products

Identity Systems (IDS)

SSA's identity Systems (IDS) product provides on-line and batch searching, matching and duplicate discovery
for all types of identification data stored in Oracle, DB2/UDB and SQL/Server tables. High-performance
indexes are automatically maintained without changes to existing application programs. The Identity Search
Server™ performs the entire search, maich, filter & rank process for the client's business applications.
Custom search clients can be developed using an easy-to-use AP|. Utilizing the SSA-NAMES Algorithms,
IDS overcomes the vast majority of error and variation found in Identity data, despite the quality or country
of origin. IDS uses an n-tier architecture, making it the ideal solution for organizations implementing the
latest technologies, including web-based applications.

SSA-NAME3

SSA’s core technology, SSA-NAMER3, is a software development kit that enables organizations to build
business application programs to search and match records about people, companies, addresses, products
and other naming data. SSA-NAME3 can be used for data stored in any database, regardless of the quality
or format of the data. The software contains algorithms for computing ‘fuzzy’ keys and search strategies,
as well as algorithms for complex matching of identity data. The SSA-NAME3 Algorithms support any
country and language.

Data Clustering Engine

The Data Clustering Engine (DCE) is a stand-alone, batch data grouping and investigation engine for all
forms of identification data. The DCE, utilizing the SSA-NAME3 Algorithms, performs a thorough analysis
of the relationships between people, companies, addresses, products and other entities. This powerful
data-matching software, used by leading corporations and institutions for deduplication, file matching,

householding, fraud and data investigation, does not require programming and is highly scalable for the
processing of large and extreme data volumes.

T s an. guages.: 0.
echnology uses various techniques.to overcome the vast:majority of error ‘and. vdriation in-the'identi
ng Y ' es viali

KeyFeatures =~ | .

Adds intelligence and quality to critical identity data search and matching applications
Solutions for Mainframes, Unix and Win32 servers

Licensed for use with customer-developed applications or OEM software packages
Algorithms that deliver the highest possible reliability

Highly scalable

Provides high-quality results with formatted or unformatted data

Easily integrated into new and existing systems

Flexible architecture supports all countries and languages

Platform independant

Resolves consistency errors such as spelling, typing, phonetics and other variations
Allows organizations to manage customer relationships more effectively and securely
Allows organizations to minimize the risks associated with poor identity matching

PPOPOPPORPOO®

Argentina Australla & Asla Brazil South Africa UK & Europe USA & Canada
54-11-4343-2003 61-2-8604-9936 55-11-5092-5691 27-11-483-5519 44.118-944-5638 203-698-2339
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SPL WorldGroup Builds On Unique 100%
Implementation Record

Eight new customers achieve successful implementations so far this year

Morristown, New Jersey—July 19th, 2001. SPL WorldGroup B.V. (SPL), the leading
provider of customer management solutions to the global energy industry, reports that eight new
customers have gone live with customer management software solutions from SPL through the
first half of the year. Demonstrating the versatility and range of the company’s innovative
customer management software products, SPL continues to excel in ensuring that customers
obtain the benefits from their software investment with an unmatched 100% implementation
success track record.

Ranging from among the largest fully integrated energy companies in the world, to retail
operations, distribution companies and municipal service providers, each of these customers is
now successfully using SPL software to support their day-to-day operations. The impressive
list includes Electricité de France, Dayton Power & Light, UtiliCorp Networks, People’s Energy
Services, Cedar Rapids Water Department, Grays Harbor Public Ultilities District, Benton Public
Utilities District and California Water Services.

“SPL is the only customer management software solution provider that can demonstrate a 100%
successful implementation track record. We have never failed a customer.” said CD Hobbs,
President and Chief Executive Officer, SPL WorldGroup. “The eight companies that have
implemented our solutions so far this year represent the entire range of energy companies in
terms of the business and markets they serve. It is a testament to our company, products and
people that we can meet the changing requirements facing the retail and distribution needs of the
investor owned market, as well as those of the public sector energy companies.”

About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer
management solutions to the energy and service related industries in regulated and competitive
markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful implementations, SPL continues to
demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and scalable customer
management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable unrivaled business
responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia



Pacific and has delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water and
waste management customers worldwide. Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973)
539-6268 (New Jersey), (415) 541-9462 (San Francisco), or within the US and Canada, (800)
275-4775.

2001 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are trademarks owned by SPL
WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United States
and in certain foreign jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company names herein are used for identification
purposes only and are the property of their respective owners.
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Eskom inks major deal with SPL WorldGroup for
CorDaptix™

Investment in world-class software demonstrates commitment to future
of electricity supply in Africa

Johannesburg South Africa & Morristown, NJ — August 16th, 2001. Jacob Maroga,
Executive Director of the Distribution Group of Eskom and CD Hobbs, CEO and President of
SPL WorldGroup BV (SPL WorldGroup), today formally signed a major new partnership
between the two companies in an official ceremony at Eskom’s head office, Megawatt Park.

The ceremony signals the commencement of a major project to implement SPL WorldGroup’s
world-leading customer management software, CorDaptix™, across the distribution operations
of Africa’s largest utility. Eskom is one of the world’s top seven utilities, supplying electricity
to over 3.2 million customers in South Africa, and is a major innovator in the continuing
development of electricity supply on the continent.

CorDaptix will replace Eskom’s existing legacy customer information system to facilitate
improved customer service.

“Eskom continues to invest in South Africa’s electricity infrastructure. The
implementation of this world-class software package will allow us to offer better service
to our growing customer base and prepare for changes in the way in which power is
distributed,” said Maroga. “In selecting SPL WorldGroup’s CorDaptix, we have chosen
a product with a proven ability to scale and adapt to some of the largest energy utilities in
the world. We will also benefit through the exposure of our staff to outstanding energy
industry intellectual capital and best practice as a result of comprehensive product
training.”

“It is an honor to be present in Johannesburg, South Africa, where SPL WorldGroup was
originally conceived and created, to sign this significant agreement with Eskom,” said
CD Hobbs, President and Chief Executive Officer of SPL WorldGroup. “Eskom is one
of the world’s largest and most visionary electricity generators and distributors, supplying
over 95% of South Africa’s power. In choosing SPL WorldGroup and CorDaptix,
Eskom has formed a relationship with a product innovator and a company
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that maintains a 100% successful track record of delivery. We are looking forward to
working together over the next 18 months and beyond.”

About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best- of breed customer
management solutions to the energy and service-related industries in regulated and
competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful implementations,
SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and
scalable customer management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable
unrivalled business responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North
America, Europe and Asia Pacific, and has delivered its customer management products
to more than 50 energy, water and waste management customers worldwide. Visit SPL
WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973) 539-6268 (New Jersey), (415) 541-9462
(San Francisco), or (800) 275-4775 within the US and Canada.

About Eskom

Eskom is South Africa’s national electricity utility. It supplies 95 percent of the electricity
requirement in South Africa and in the process generates electricity equating to more than all
other suppliers in Africa combined. This electricity is provided at prices that are among the
lowest in the world, and at a time when it is undergoing transformation to prepare itself for a
more competitive environment. In 2000, it eamed revenue from electricity sales of 178 192
GWh, amounting to R23 569 million.

This achievement is a reflection of Eskom’s goal to remain the provider of the world’s
lowest-cost electricity for national growth and prosperity. As a result of lowered costs
and effective management, it has kept its annual price increases to below the rate of
inflation for more than 12 consecutive years. Eskom undertook to maintain this trend by
reducing the price of electricity, in real terms, by 15 percent between 1994 and 2000, and
achieved this by 1999. In this way, Eskom has reduced the price of electricity in real
terms and contributed to the lowering of inflation in South Africa as well.

Eskom is currently one of the top seven utilities in the world in terms of size and sales
and it intends to retain this position by adopting strategies that strengthen its ability to
react to changing requirements while at the same time embracing flexibility to deal with
uncertainty. This position is embodied in Eskom’s strategic intent — to be a provider of
energy and related services of global stature.

To this end, Eskom has been diversifying its areas of interest. It not only focuses on
electricity, but also leverages its core competencies into energy and related services, such
as gas, telecommunications and information technology. Apart from the business of
electrical energy, Eskom 1is positioning itself at the cutting edge of technological
innovations. It is currently developing a variety of energy technologies, has immense
telecommunications capacity, and its information technology capacity has been
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combined and reconfigured with that of two other state-owned organizations to form one
of the largest IT organizations in the country.
©200! SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup SPL and CorDaptix are trademarks owned by

SPL WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United States
and in certain foreign jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company names herein are used for identification

purposes only and are the property of their respective owners.
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SPL WorldGroup Launches New Consulting Division Focused

On Innovation
TransFormance Group Formed To Meet Challenges Of New Business Dynamics

Morristown, New Jersey August 21st, 2001. SPL WorldGroup B.V. (SPL), the leading provider
of customer management solutions to the global energy, water and waste management industries,
has created a new consulting division: TransFormance Group. TransFormance Group will help
companies develop people, processes and technology to enable and foster innovation and
transformation in response to rapidly evolving industry business models.

“To compete effectively at today’s pace of business evolution, managers must develop
organizations that are more nimble and innovative while simultaneously sustaining operating and
financial performance. Building this innovation engine is the challenge of today’s CEO.” said
CD Hobbs, President & CEO of SPL WorldGroup. “In response, SPL has formed
TransFormance Group to focus on helping organizations become more innovative as they face
this business environment.”

Leveraging SPL’s experience with global best practices for customer management in the service
sector, along with the company’s philosophy centering on adaptability through innovationl,
TransFormance Group will help its clients identify key customer-centric areas where innovation
can support sustained competitive advantage.

The new consulting division will apply proven methodologies to align business imperatives with
market conditions and work with clients to successfully apply innovation across human, process
and technology systems. Innovation metrics will measure each client’s success in building
TransFormance (the ability to adapt to new business models while simultaneously maintaining
performance levels) into their organization. TransFormance Group’s service offerings will
initially focus on the energy, water and waste management industries.

1 SPL’s vision on innovation has been published in a number of articles and white papers that are currently available at the Company’s website.

About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leadmg provider of best-of-breed customer
management solutions to the energy and service related industries in regulated and competitive
markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful implementations, SPL continues to
demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and scalable customer
management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable unrivaled business



responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia
Pacific and has delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water and
waste management customers worldwide.

Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973) 539-6268 (New Jersey), (415) 541-9462
(San Francisco), or within the US and Canada, (800) 275-4775

2001 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are trademarks owned by SPL
WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United States
and in certain foreign jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company names herein are used for identification
purposes only and are the property of their respective owners.
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SPL WorldGroup Appoints Joanne B. Kelley To Head
TransFormance Group

Morristown, New Jersey—August 29th, 2001. SPL WorldGroup, B.V. (SPL) has appointed
Ms. Joanne B. Kelley as the Managing Director of the company’s newly formed TransFormance
Group. The new consulting division helps companies develop people, processes and technology
to enable and foster innovation and transformation in response to rapidly evolving industry
business models through a process called TransFormancesm. Ms. Kelley, who has an
impressive track record of developing business in the strategy and information technology areas
of energy companies and utilities, will head the new division.

“We welcome Joanne to TransFormance Group and SPL where we know she will be extremely
effective in bringing considerable extra value to our customers.” said CD Hobbs, “In today’s
business climate, where change and unpredictability reign supreme, the company that can
develop a culture, organization and technical infrastructure to promote innovation, as well as
business efficiency, will be successful. TransFormance Group, under Joanne’s expert direction,
will help our clients realize that vision.”

Ms. Kelley was most recently VP of Consulting, Executive Services, at META Group where she
established and developed that company’s industry leading consulting practice in the energy
sector. Previously, she has held sentor management posts in both consulting and marketing
including tenure at Renaissance Worldwide, Inc., Hewlett-Packard Company and Digital
Equipment Corporation.

“I am delighted to be at SPL WorldGroup, leading TransFormance Group to assist CEOs in
focusing their companies on innovation. Today’s service industry leaders are being challenged
to create an innovation engine capable of rapidly migrating from one industry model to another.
We will help clients in this mission by assessing, supporting and measuring their organization’s
capacity to innovate. We will also help clients make the necessary changes to build, sustain and
measure their organization’s innovation engine and excel in the new innovation environment.”
said Ms. Kelley.

About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer
management solutions to the energy and service related industries in regulated and competitive
markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful implementations, SPL continues to



demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and scalable customer
management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable unrivaled business
responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia
Pacific and has delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water and
waste management customers worldwide.

About TransFormance Group

A division of SPL WorldGroup, B.V., TransFormance Group was established in 2001.
TransFormance Group helps companies develop people, processes and technology to enable and
foster innovation and transformation in response to rapidly evolving business models through a
process called TransFormancesm.

Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973) 539-6268 (New Jersey), (415) 541-9462
(San Francisco), or within the US and Canada, (800) 275-4775

2001 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are trademarks owned by SPL
WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United States
and in certain foreign jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company names herein are used for identification
purposes only and are the property of their respective owners.
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SPL WorldGroup Appears on Alexander Haig’s World

Business Review TV Series
Discusses CRM to the Energy World

Boca Raton, FL — Multi-Media Productions (USA), Inc. is proud to announce the
appearance of Guerry Waters, senior vice president of Marketing and Strategy of SPL
WorldGroup on Alexander Haig’s World Business Review. The episode airs September
1" through September 5™ on U.S. public television stations, including New York, Chicago,
San Francisco and Miami. For specific market-by-market air dates and times, please e-
mail healingm@mmpusa.com. Host, Alexander Haig, former Secretary of State for
President Reagan and former COOQO and president of United Technologies, discusses "CRM
to the Energy World.” Joining in the discussion as industry expert is Daniel T. Miklovic,
vice president of Collaborative Commerce at Gartner.

SPL WorldGroup

SPL Worldgroup (SPL) developed the first customer management system in North America
specifically to handle the complexities of the deregulated energy market. “SPL WorldGroup
was chosen for the show due to its solution-based approach to the challenges faced by today’s
domestic, as well as global energy companies,” said Barry Reuben, the show’s senior
programming executive.

The company is currently operating with the third generation of its application, named
CorDaptix. SPL’s application currently bills over 20 different energy and non-energy
products and services from a single system, providing a single bill for the customer.

“At SPL we believe that the future of the utilities market lies in the ability of companies
to innovate and adapt to today’s changing markets. Furthermore, a battle is being fought
among utility companies to retain, service and acquire clients providing them with the
services they demand. In order to make this process as simple as possible, SPL has
created CorDaptix, which sits at the core of the customer management process, and
provides any company with the flexibility to adapt and tailor their solution to meet
customer needs. If companies are to succeed in the utilities sector today, they must adopt



innovative solutions capable of providing them with competitive advantage,” said
Waters.

Taped in Washington, DC, World Business Review may also be viewed on PBS The
Business & Technology Network, Bloomberg Television, United Airlines, or through
video on demand via Yahoo!Broadcast. Additionally, WBR airs on local affiliates of
major television networks (ABC, CBS and FOX) throughout the United States. WBR’s
program guide magazine is distributed to a targeted business demography, and may also
be accessed onboard Continental Airlines and in its President’s Club executive lounge.

WBR’s continuing education series is being used in a variety of business and technology
courses or within the Business School libraries at Carnegie Mellon University, University
of Notre Dame, Dartmouth College, Duke University, DePaul University, Georgetown
University, University of Florida, and the City University of Hong Kong, among other
distinguished institutions of higher education.

Videotapes or continuing education systems (via Indiana State University) are available
by calling 1-800-WBR-1032 or by visiting www.wbrtv.com.
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JEA Tackles Customer Management Using SPL
WorldGroup’s Solution

Morristown, New Jersey—September Sth, 2001. SPL WorldGroup B.V. (SPL), the leading
provider of customer management solutions to the global energy, water and waste management
industries, has been selected by JEA, Florida's largest municipally owned electric power and
water utility, to supply their market leading customer management product. Designed and
built by SPL and marketed by PeopleSoft, Inc. in to the municipal market, JEA will implement
the product to help manage and serve their 340,000 electric and water customers in
Jacksonville and parts of three adjacent counties.

After an extensive search process, JEA selected SPL over numerous other vendor
solutions citing the superior flexibility of SPL’s product and the company’s unique 100%
implementation track record. Mr. Jim Dickenson, Executive Vice President Services at
JEA noted “We looked at several criteria during our selection process but the major
reasons that we selected the SPL solution were the product’s capability to meet JEA’s
short and long term business needs and, provide a financially viable and attractive option
that minimized JEA’s risk.”

“JEA is an established leader in the large municipal energy market place and SPL’s
selection against fierce competition is very pleasing.” said CD Hobbs, President and
Chief Executive Officer, SPL WorldGroup. “SPL continues to demonstrate an ability to
meet the changing business requirements that face public sector energy companies as
well as retail and distribution needs in the investor owned market.”

About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer
management solutions to the energy and service related industries in regulated and
competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful implementations,
SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and
scalable customer management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable
unrivaled business responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North
America, Europe, and Asia Pacific and has delivered its customer management products
to more than 50 energy, water and waste management customers worldwide. Visit SPL
WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973) 539-6268 (New Jersey), (415) 541-9462
(San Francisco), or within the US and Canada, (800) 275-4775.




About PeopleSoft CIS for Public Enterprise

Developed and built by SPL WorldGroup using the PeopleSoft tool set, the PeopleSoft
CIS for Public Enterprise solution is marketed to municipals across North America by
PeopleSoft, Inc. The package is designed, developed, implemented and supported by
SPL WorldGroup.

About JEA

JEA, established by the City of Jacksonville in 1895, owns, operates and manages the
electric system, water and wastewater system. Compared to other municipally owned
electric utilities, JEA is Florida's largest and the eighth largest in the United States. JEA
currently serves more than 340,000 customers in Jacksonville and parts of three adjacent
counties. For more information JEA, visit their web site at http://www jea.com.

© 2001 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are trademarks owned by SPL
WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United States
and in certain foreign jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company names herein are used for
identification purposes only and are the property of their respective owners.
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TransFormance Group Adds Expertise
Recruits Marc F. Jacobson As Principal

Morristown, New Jersey—October 16th, 2001. TransFormance Group, a consulting
division of SPL WorldGroup B.V., announced that Mr. Marc F. Jacobson has joined them as
Principal. The TransFormance Group helps companies develop people, processes and
technology to enable and foster innovation and transformation in response to rapidly evolving
industry business models. The new division of SPL was first announced last August and is
headed by Managing Director, Joanne Kelley.

Jacobson has an impressive background in customer management and its processes, having
held positions with answerthink, Inc., Accenture, KPMG Peat Marwick, Cap Gemini Emst &
Young, and other leading management consulting firms. He will play a key role in the on-
going development of TransFormance; its tools and methodologies as well as in leading client
projects.

“We are excited to welcome Marc to TransFormance Group where his extensive knowledge
and experiences in Customer Management and associated processes will be well utilized to
help our clients innovate, adapt and excel.” said Ms. Kelley, “TransFormance Group applies
proven methodologies to align business imperatives with market conditions and works with
clients to successfully apply innovation across human, process and technology systems.
Marc’s background and particular skill sets in Customer Management will be critical in the
continued development of the Division.”

About TransFormance Group

A division of SPL WorldGroup B.V., TransFormance Group was established in 2001.
TransFormance Group helps companies develop people, processes and technology to
enable and foster innovation and transformation in response to rapidly evolving business
models through a process called TransFormance™.

About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer
management solutions to the energy and service related industries in regulated and
competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful implementations,
SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and



scalable customer management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable
unrivaled business responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North
America, Europe, and Asia Pacific and has delivered its customer management products
to more than 50 energy, water and waste management customers worldwide.

Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973) 539-6268 (New Jersey),
(415) 541-9462 (San Francisco), or within the US and Canada, (800) 275-4775

© 2001 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are trademarks owned by SPL
WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United States
and in certain foreign jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company names herein are used for
identification purposes only and are the property of their respective owners.
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SPL Build Further Market Dominance In Australia’s
Deregulating Utilities Sector

Australian expertise leads the way for US, European providers '

Morristown, NJ. October 31st, 2001. SPL WorldGroup BV, the leading provider of
customer management solutions to the global energy, water and waste management
industries, is set to expand its already dominant position as the leading provider of billing
and customer management solutions in the Australian utilities marketplace with full retail
contestability imminent for the country’s two most populous states.

SPL client implementations currently support billing for approximately 2.5 million
customers out of a potential market of eight million. By comparison, its nearest
competitor bills less than 1.4 million clients. Additionally, when the two largest states in
terms of customer numbers, New South Wales (NSW) and Victoria, introduce full retail
contestability in early 2002, SPL is expected to support billing for up to four million
customers; half the projected market. Three long-term SPL customers: AGL, United
Energy and Texas Utilities, dominate the Australian market serving a substantial majority
of the country’s eight million total customers.

When Victorian-based United Energy became the first utility in Australia to move
forward with a new customer management billing solution for the deregulated market
more than four years ago, it selected SPL as its solution provider. The SPL/United
Energy project resulted in a successful implementation that delivered United Energy
numerous cost, productivity and customer service benefits, and assisted SPL in securing
new customers in the US and Europe.

“United Energy’s initiative gave SPL the opportunity to work with a company that
wanted to lead the market and this is consistent with SPL’s philosophy. We welcome the
opportunity to work with companies who embrace innovation to lead their markets
locally and worldwide,” said CD Hobbs, President & CEO of SPL WorldGroup.
“Australia has deregulated more aggressively and in a shorter timeframe than the US.
With United Energy as a client, SPL made a lot of enhancements to our products to
support Australia’s early maturation cycle. These enhancements have made our solution
very attractive to companies in the US and Europe. The enhanced product not only



served our customers’ needs for the market in Australia, but also our deregulation
experience helped SPL secure new business internationally, including two of the largest
utilities in Europe: nPower in the UK and Electricite de France (EDF).”

In line with the country’s aim to adopt a national energy market, Australia has introduced
deregulation in the national electricity market for both generation and retail. The
transmission and distribution segments — monopolistic by nature — will remain fully
regulated.

Australia has traveled much further down the deregulation path than the US and most of
Europe, with the exception of the UK. Australia has been a world leader in embracing
deregulation of its utilities market since a 1991 Industry Commission report
recommended restructuring the industry to promote efficiency through competition. The
staggered introduction of full contestability will see South Australia follow NSW and
Victoria in 2003, with other states yet to commit to a timetable.

“The plan is for a national market here and where that makes most sense is where you
have the densest population in the smallest geographic area, and that is the east coast of
Australia, particularly NSW and Victoria. That is where the early adoption of
deregulation is happening and that is where SPL and our major customers are
dominating,” said Mr. Brenton McPherson, SPL’s Senior Vice President of Sales for the
Asia Pacific region.

A key lesson from the Australian experience for utility providers in other states and
countries undertaking deregulation is the importance of flexible, customer-focused billing
systems, as companies broaden their product and service portfolios. One of SPL’s key
customers, AGL (formed in 1837 as a gas company) became the first Australian energy
company to offer natural gas, LPG and electricity to customers. It has now bought a
mobile phone business — providing SPL with the opportunity to modify, enhance and
integrate a legacy billing system to support the range of new offerings.

“One of the things deregulation has brought to utilities is the need to offer different types
of products and services. Because companies are offering more products, flexibility in
billing is critical. Today our system bills more than 20 energy and non-energy products
for customers,” Mr McPherson said.

Reflecting its commitment to tailor its products and services to meet local customer and
market needs, SPL’s Australia operation has introduced a formalized applications support
and maintenance offering for AGL. “Whether a utility is regulated or deregulated, these
types of systems need the highest level of availability for customers. We formalized the
maintenance process with a dedicated team to provide dedicated support for AGL. Itis
an extra service that helps ensure maximum uptime,” Mr McPherson said.

While SPL’s next-generation customer management software CorDaptix was only
unveiled in Australia in August, it has already attracted significant interest from existing



and potential SPL customers. Mr McPherson expected all customers to migrate from CLS
PLUS, SPL’s original customer management system, to CorDaptix within the next year.

© 2001 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup, SPL, CorDaptix and CIS PLUS are trademarks owned by
SPL WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United States and in certain
Joreign jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company names herein are used for identification purposes only and are the

property of their respective owners.
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SPL WorldGroup Announces Record Revenues
And Installed Base Growth Through 2001

Morristown, New Jersey—November 13th, 2001. SPL WorldGroup B.V. (SPL), the
leading provider of customer management solutions to the global energy, water and waste
management industries, reported that global company revenues have increased by more than
30% over the previous financial year. These financial results follow a year in which the
company announced new products and services, organizationally realigned to maintain its
market leading focus, and signed a significant list of new customers in the U.S., Europe, Asia
and Australia.

“These very pleasing financial results reflect a year of achievement for SPL around the globe,”
said CD Hobbs, President and CEO of SPL WorldGroup. “Not only have we signed 11 new
customers and successfully implemented seven others, but we also introduced an innovative
new product, CorDaptix™, that significantly strengthens our market position, as well as
launched TransFormance Group, a new consulting division. SPL has now laid the foundations
on which the company will continue to serve our customers and maintain our position as
market leader worldwide.”

SPL’s strength is evidenced through the signing of 11 new customers during the year. In
North America, where SPL already maintains the largest installed base in the top 256 utilities,
the company signed City of Cedar Falls, City of Cedar Rapids, City of Ocala, Grant County
PUD, JEA Corporation, Richmond Power & Light and Waste Management, Inc., the world’s
largest waste management company. Of particular note was the company’s strong
performance in Europe and Africa where revenues increased by more than 250% largely
attributed to success in adding significant new customers including Atlantic Electric & Gas,
N.V. DELTA Nutsbedrijven, Npower and Eskom.

The addition of these customers represents a significant achievement and is indicative of a
natural expansion of SPL’s focus beyond energy into a variety of other customer-focused
industries including water, waste management and other services. Additionally, SPL now
counts 4 out of the world’s top 10 utilities as customers.



SPL maintained its unique 100% implementation success record completing implementations
at Atlantic Electric & Gas, Greys Harbor PUD, Lafayette Utilities System, Npower, Omaha
Public Power District, PES and Utilicorps Networks Canada.

Following the appointment of CD Hobbs as President & CEQ late last year, SPL has re-
organized with a focus on delivering leading customer management products to energy and
services markets worldwide. Recognizing that many of these industries face unprecedented
change at a rapid pace, SPL’s vision has been to deliver a software product that can adapt with
business change and provide the scalable and extensible platform or core architecture to
support customers now and in the future.  SPL’s new customer management core product,
CorDaptix, was released earlier in the year representing the fruition of this vision.

As aresult of the company’s stronger focus on software products, SPL also strengthened its
management team in product strategy and product development. These appointments were
designed to ensure that CorDaptix more than matched the company’s vision and to deliver
product quality unmatched in the industry.

In line with the company’s best-of-breed product emphasis, SPL has built a number of
relationships with other vendors and service providers including a key alliance with Siebel
Systems. This strategic alliance seamlessly integrates the leading customer management and
CRM products in the market.  Closer ties with leading services organizations such as
Accenture and Logica translated into new customers and new opportunities throughout the
year.

About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer
management solutions to the energy and service related industries in regulated and
competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful implementations,
SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and
scalable customer management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable
unrivaled business responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North
America, Europe, and Asia Pacific and has delivered its customer management products
to more than 50 energy, water and waste management customers worldwide. Visit SPL
WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973) 539-6268 (New Jersey), (415) 541-9462
(San Francisco), or within the US and Canada, (800) 275-4775.

© 2001 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup, SPL and CorDaptix are
trademarks owned by SPL WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered
as trademarks in the United States and in certain foreign jurisdictions. All other brand, product and
company names herein are used for identification purposes only and are the property of their respective
owners.
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Atlantic Electric And Gas Underpins Market Expansion With
Powerful Billing System From SPL WorldGroup

Morristown, New Jersey - November 21st, 2001. Atlantic Electric and Gas, one of the UK’s
few non-aligned energy suppliers which offers a ‘fresh new approach’ for Britain’s residential
and commercial energy users, has invested in a new multi-million pound customer billing system
to reinforce its customer service commitment.

The system, supplied by customer management solutions provider SPL WorldGroup, supports
the complex billing requirements of the UK’s deregulated competitive energy market and is a
vital element in Atlantic’s plan to expand its customer base and market share.

Atlantic chief executive officer Jeff Percival comments: “Deregulation of the UK’s energy
supply market offers major opportunities for new firms like Atlantic to offer attractive
combinations of value-for-money and high customer service standards. To be a serious player, as
we aim to be, you have to invest significantly in support systems that are proven and can grow
with your business. And our business is growing fast because we deliver what customers want.”

Atlantic’s decision to purchase the SPL system, which recently went live after extensive testing,
results from fierce competition in the energy supply market. Atlantic is one of the few
independent energy providers competing in all sectors of the UK market including residential;
most providers are offshoots of existing regional electricity companies or energy generators.

As part of its “fresh approach’, which focuses on cheaper energy and high customer service
standards, Atlantic needed a billing system capable of handling dual fuel billing for electricity
and gas supply — a key requirement for its rapidly growing base of thousands of business and
domestic customer sites across the UK.

In addition to SPL’s application, Atlantic has also installed and integrated the market-proven
MMTPowerQuote and Logica Nexus electricity and gas registration system to meet regulator



OFGEM’s licence criteria. With customer service and satisfaction at the heart of its business
strategy, Atlantic sees all of these technology investments as key to its projected growth.

All Atlantic’s systems are hosted at Logica Services' Data Centre in Bridgend with full back-up
and disaster recovery procedures in place. Adds Percival:

“Some supply companies have managed to get away with installing ‘lower scale’ systems. That
could rebound badly on them as accurate billing is an important satisfaction criteria for
customers. Atlantic’s system had to be capable of handling single or multi-site customers,
multiple products and a variety of billing formats and options, never mind the scores of
thousands of new customers that we aim to win in the next year or two.”

Using SPL’s customer billing system, Atlantic is able to integrate individual customer
information into an easy-to-use, real-time system that enables Atlantic to enhance customer
satisfaction with increased billing flexibility and accuracy. According to OFGEM, billing is one
of the main sources of customer complaints in the energy supply industry.

“At Atlantic, we are committed to meeting and exceeding the needs of our customers, and we
know that billing is something that can really irritate people if it is late, inaccurate or doesn’t
have enough information. Our investment in SPL’s solution enhances the way we manage this
important process and get it right,” comments Percival. “Currently, energy customers are
demanding increased flexibility in their billing and many utilities companies ignore this growing
market trend. At Atlantic, we listen and respond to what our customers want, and this is exactly
why we have invested in the SPL solution. It provides the technology to deliver what our
customers want because that is central to Atlantic’s business proposition.”

“We are delighted to be working with Atlantic at such an exciting time in its development,”
commented Robert Fillmore, Vice President & Managing Director, EMEA, SPL. “We have
been particularly impressed by the expertise of Atlantic’s management and the ease in which
their staff have implemented the systems. SPL provides its customers with proven technologies
that help them achieve their core business goals, while being scaleable and flexible enough to
cope with company and market evolution for years to come. Atlantic’s highly customer-focused
approach ensures that the company is well positioned to become a major player in the UK energy
market and SPL provides the core platform for their strategic approach to customer
management.”

About Atlantic

Atlantic started selling electricity to domestic and business users in the UK in 2000. The
company, which currently has a customer base of over 25,000 sites, including The National Trust
and Manchester Airport, is supported by Sempra, one of the biggest energy traders and suppliers
in the US. Its headquarters are in Gloucester and its customer service center is in Cardiff.

Visit Atlantic Electric and Gas at http://www.atlanticeg.com or call 01452 55 11 55.




About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer
management solutions to the energy and service related industries in regulated and competitive
markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful implementations, SPL continues to
demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and scalable customer
management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable unrivaled business
responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia
Pacific and has delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water and
waste management customers worldwide.

Visit SPL WorldGroup at http://www.splwg.com or call +44 207 8516840
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SPL WorldGroup Elevates Level In Siebel Alliance
Program And Announces Siebel Validation

Common Customers and Energy Companies Benefit From Tightly Integrated Solution

MORRISTOWN, NJ, November 29th, 2001—SPL WorldGroup, Inc., the leading provider of
customer management solutions to the global energy, water, and waste management industries, today
announced that it has upgraded its level of participation in the Siebel Alliance Program to that of a
Premier Software Partner. Siebel Systems, Inc. (Nasdaq: SEBL) is the world’s leading provider of
eBusiness applications software. SPL and Siebel Systems have developed a joint business plan and will
be working closely together to deliver solutions to the utility market that provide both regulated utilities
and energy service companies with increased business flexibility, efficiency, and improved customer
satisfaction.

As the first step in this expanded alliance, SPL announced that it has successfully validated the
integration of its CorDaptix application version 1.2.5 with Siebel eEnergy 2000. Siebel eEnergy is a
comprehensive suite of eBusiness applications designed specifically for the energy and utility industries
that enables sales, marketing, and customer service across all customer touchpoints including the Web,
call centers, field service representatives, and a mobile direct sales force. SPL’s CorDaptix is the
market-leading customer management solution that handles all transactions from customer initiation
through product and service delivery to minimize risk for energy and service companies who are
positioning to compete successfully in energy markets.

With this validation, customers of Siebel Systems and SPL WorldGroup can now leverage the detailed
customer usage and purchasing history captured on an invoice, bill, or statement, creating a more
complete view of the customer for sales, service, and marketing. Customer service representatives using
Siebel eEnergy can see and interact with exactly what customers see on their printed statement, enabling
representatives to provide more efficient and focused service to the customer. Using a number of
proven integration methods, the integrated solution allows real-time access to billing information,
resolution of customer billing inquirtes, and metering and settlement processing, and enables the use of
billing and user profiles for targeted up-sell and customer retention marketing.



“We share a number of marquee customers with Siebel Systems—including Electricite de France, TXU,
and nPower—and since they have already selected the Siebel eBusiness Applications and SPL
WorldGroup applications, we felt it was important to also offer them a proven, integrated solution,
validated by Siebel Systems, that would ultimately improve the return on their technology investment,”
said CD Hobbs, President and Chief Executive Officer of SPL WorldGroup. “With the CorDaptix
integration to Siebel eEnergy, our joint customers can now improve the efficiency, quality, and
responsiveness of customer management by delivering more interactive and dynamic billing and
enrollment information directly to the customer service representative’s desktop.”

To leverage the strengths of each application, the Siebel eEnergy—CorDaptix integration has been
designed such that Siebel eEnergy is the repository for customer relationship data and CorDaptix
manages the billing information. Siebel Systems’ and SPL’s rich integration architectures provide the
flexibility and assurance of seamless interoperability through the use of XML as the standard language
between the two applications. The main data keys are synchronized, allowing a minimalist approach to
the amount of data replication required to support the business operation.

“Our customers are increasingly choosing SPL WorldGroup as their customer management solution,”
said Jim McCray, General Manager of Siebel eEnergy at Siebel Systems. “The integration of

Siebel eEnergy with SPL’s CorDaptix improves the delivery of enrollment and billing-related customer
management by enabling bill adjustments, customer sign-up and enrollment, service requests, and
invoice management. Equipped with that concentration of account information, the call center
representative has the power to deliver sharper, more efficient, and better-focused customer service,
allowing companies to reduce costs and effectively build dynamic customer relationships.”

The Siebel Validation Program applies rigorous technical scrutiny to evaluate the integration of third-
party solutions with Siebel eBusiness Applications. Integrations that meet the strict standards of Siebel
Systems’ testing criteria are validated and documented by the Siebel Alliance Program. The validated
connector for this joint solution is available immediately for license from SPL WorldGroup.

About SPL. WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer management
solutions to the energy and service-related industries in regulated and competitive markets worldwide.
With a 100% record of successful implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the
market leader in providing flexible and scalable customer management solutions that evolve with client
requirements and enable unrivaled business responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professionals in
North America, Europe, and Asia Pacific and has delivered its customer management products to more
than 50 energy, water, and waste management customers worldwide.



Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973) 539-6268 (New Jersey), (415) 541-9462 (San
Francisco), or within the U.S. and Canada, (800) 275-4775.
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SPL WorldGroup Customer Management Solution Deployed

By Grant County PUD
11-Month Implementation project completed

Morristown, New Jersey—December Sth, 2001. SPL WorldGroup B.V. (SPL), the leading
provider of customer management solutions to the global energy, water and waste management
industries, has successfully implemented SPL’s customer management software product for the
public utility market at Grant County Public Utility District. Grant County PUD supplies
electric power to over 40,000 residential, commercial and industrial customers in the Central
Washington area.

Grant County selected the SPL customer management solution, marketed by PeopleSoft, Inc.,
as a replacement for an in-house legacy system. The in-house system had been temporarily
modified to address the Y2K date problem and was replaced by the SPL system after a
successful implementation that took just 11 months after final selection.

“SPL’s customer management product is excellent,” said Ms. Suzy Anderson, Project Manager
for the Grant County PUD. “Many of the other potential solutions that we looked at did not
have the rating flexibility that we required to properly service our irrigation customers but
SPL’s product had that capability and they have delivered.”

Grant County PUD chose the SPL solution based, in part, on its superior rating engine
flexibility and capabilities. Over 4,000 Grant County PUD customers are irrigation users.
Irrigation power services utilize multiple rate levels that may be combined and calculated
dependent upon usage and usage period. The PUD also required the ability to modify rates
and recalculate pro-rated charges based on the date of a pump change out. These
requirements introduce an unusual element of rating and billing complexity for the public
utility service provider that had to be addressed by the system.  Additionally, customer
invoices are now easier to read and, in moving from whole dollar to penny billing, are more
accurate.

“The Grant County PUD’s rating needs clearly demonstrate the requirement for
flexibility in core customer management system functions,” said CD Hobbs, President
and Chief Executive Officer, SPL WorldGroup, “The SPL rating engine is the most
sophisticated rating engine in the world and its tremendous flexibility and ability to
handle complex rating situations, as well as provide users the ability to modify complex
rates swiftly, has been well proven in practice.”



“We approached this project with great care, notifying our customers in advance of the
impending changes in bill presentment and content, in ensuring management and project
team commitment and, in a well-defined project scope™ said Ms. Anderson. “SPL
greatly assisted us with the success and timely implementation of this system and our
customers have benefited from easier to read bills and improved billing accuracy.”

About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer
management solutions to the energy and service related industries in regulated and
competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful implementations,
SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and
scalable customer management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable
unrivaled business responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North
America, Europe, and Asia Pacific and has delivered its customer management products
to more than 50 energy customers worldwide.

Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973) 539-6268 (New Jersey),
(415) 541-9462 (San Francisco), or within the US and Canada, (800) 275-4775.Visit

About PeopleSoft CIS for Public Enterprise

Developed and built by SPL WorldGroup using the PeopleSoft tool set, the PeopleSoft
CIS for Public Enterprise solution is marketed to municipals across North America by
PeopleSoft, Inc. The package is designed, developed, implemented and supported by
SPL WorldGroup.

Grant Count PUD.

The Grant County Public Utility District, located in Central Washington, is a municipal
corporation of the state of Washington authorized by a majority vote of the citizens of
Grant County in 1938.

A consumer-owned public utility, the District has a five-member board of Commissioners
comprised of local citizens elected on a nonpartisan basis by the people of Grant County.
The Commissioners meet weekly to set policy, review operations, and approve budget
expenditures.

The District is a major generating utility with two large hydroelectric developments on
the Columbia River and two small generating plants on local irrigation canals. Electricity
is sold on a nonprofit retail basis to Grant County residents and wholesale to utilities
serving customers in seven Western and Northwestern states.

© 2001 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are trademarks owned by SPL
WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United States
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SPL WorldGroup Prepares For Further Global
Growth With Appointments of COO And CTO

Morristown, New Jersey - December 12th, 2001: Following a year of sustained
global revenue and installed base growth, SPL WorldGroup, B.V. (SPL), has
announced the creation of new Chief Operating Officer (COO) and Chief
Technology Officer (CTO) senior management positions. Additionally, company
President & CEQ; CD Hobbs was recently appointed Chairman of SPL's Board of
Directors. The new management positions are designed to increase the efficiency
of the SPL senior management team and of management oversight as SPL
continues its growth, especially in overseas markets.

Mr. David Mulit has been appointed SPL's new COO. Mr. Mulit most recently
served as SPL's Senior Vice President of Global Delivery, a responsibility that he
will maintain in his new role, which now includes SPL's Global Sales and HR
functions.

Mr. J. Guerry Waters' role will increase to that of CTO, where he will manage
Information Technology, along with his existing Global Marketing and Product
Strategy responsibilities. Mr. Waters will be responsible for the technical footprint of
the company's software products as well as overseeing development of the
infrastructure critical to the execution of SPL's business strategy.

"Dave Mulit has a track record of strong leadership and management in global
delivery where SPL maintains a remarkable 100% implementation track record. He
will now expand his abilities and expertise over a broader set of functions critical to
SPL's continued success”, said CD Hobbs, SPL President & CEQ. "Guerry Waters
was previously CTO for one of the world's largest utilities and we are leveraging his
valuable experience and insight in his newly expanded role at SPL. Under his
direction, SPL's winning technology and product strategies will gain even greater
industry visibility.”

Additionally, SPL has appointed Mr. Peter M. Thomas to the role of Senior Vice
President, Global Sales. Mr. Thomas was previously Senior Vice President, U.S.
Sales for META Group, Inc. a leading research and advisory company. While at
META, Mr. Thomas was instrumental in building the successful vertical industry
sales teams and had previously led its Energy industry sales team. With a
successful track record of working in operational management and sales roles in
both the technology and software sectors, including key contributions with Eurosoft
International, inc. and Precision Software, Inc., Mr. Thomas brings tremendous
experience to the SPL management team.
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"With a strong sales background in technology and software, along with valuable
experience gained in building successful vertical industry sales teams with META
Group, | am looking forward to contributing to SPL's ongoing success"”, said Mr.
Peter Thomas. "l have enormous respect for CD Hobbs' vision and the strong
management team that he has formed at SPL and | believe that, when combined
with SPL's innovative software products and services, SPL is strongly positioned to
continue to deliver success.”

The company's growing global customer base now spans energy, waste
management and water industries. These new roles and responsibilities will assist
SPL to build the infrastructure and maintain the management focus it believes is
required to sustain its growth while continuing to provide its customers with market-
leading implementations and customer-support services.

HHE
About SPL WorldGroup
Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed
customer management solutions to the energy and service-related industries in
regulated and competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful
implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its piace as the market leader in
providing flexible and scalable customer management solutions that evolve with
client requirements and enable unrivalled business responsiveness. SPL employs
over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia Pacific and has
delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water and
waste management customers worldwide.

For More Information:

To learn more about SPL WorldGroup, or to request a full media kit, please
contact Richard Virgilio at Stephenson Group for SPL WorldGroup at (973)
989-1177, or Tracey Mitchell at (973) 401-7525.

©2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup, SPL, and
CorDaptix are trademarks owned by SPL WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL
WorldGroup, SPL, and CorDaptix and are registered as trademarks in the United
States and in certain other jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company
names herein are used for identification purposes enly and are the property of
their respective owners.

Except for the historical information contained herein, this press release contains
forward-looking statements that involve risk or uncertainties. Future operating
results of SPL WorldGroup may differ from the results discussed or forecasted in
the forward-looking statements due to factors that include, but are not limited to,
risks associated with customer relations, such as the availability of SPL products
and services, customer implementation of products and services, third-party
vendors and systems integrators, the pace of deregulation in the global utility
industry, concentration of revenues in a relatively small number of customers,
significant current and expected additional competition and the need to continue
to expand product distribution and services offerings.

Copyright © 2003 SPL WorldGroup. All rights reserved
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SPL Forms Alliance With Logica To Target
Deregulated Energy Sector

Morristown, New Jersey - January 7th, 2002: SPL WorldGroup, the leading
supplier of customer management and billing applications to the global energy
industry, has today announced a strategic implementation alliance with Logica, the
global solutions company. By the terms of the agreement, SPL's customer
management product, CorDaptix™, will be integrated into Logica's energy and
utilities portfalio for target markets in Europe, Middle East and Africa (EMEA).

In these newly deregulated and liberalised markets, energy companies are facing a
number of significant challenges. Customer retention and acquisition are now key
issues, as customers are offered more choice and, as a consequence, are no
longer dependent on their local utility for electricity, natural gas and other utility
supplies. In these increasingly competitive markets, SPL and Logica are working
together to provide strategic solutions capable of adapting to fluctuating market
demands.

Both SPL and Logica have an extensive history of working with energy companies
in deregulated markets and this partnership takes advantage of the core
competence of each partner while building further expertise in the market. Coupled
with Logica's experience in the delivery and integration of Customer Relationship
Management systems (CRM) globally, SPL will allow companies to develop
solutions tailored to specific market requirements.

"In preparation for deregulation, utilities have to make effective customer
management a primary business objective," said Ken Whittaker, International
Manager of CRM and Billing for Utilities at Logica. "Working with SPL allows us to
extend the solutions we provide to our energy customers, helping them to
strengthen current customer relationships while providing the tools necessary to
expand their customer base.

"Leveraging Logica's strength in business and IT consulting, systems integration,
metering and Customer Relationship Management, together with SPL's best-of-
breed customer management and billing application, will provide energy and
service customers with an end-to-end solution," said Robert Filimore, vice president
and managing director of SPL WorldGroup's EMEA operations. "This alliance of
products, skills and expertise will help provide our mutual customers with reliable
customer management solutions that provide the flexibility, breadth and depth of
functionality to truly support operations in deregulated markets.”

SPL's CorDaptix represents the next-generation of customer information systems

http://www.splwg.c m/m in/pr/010702_1 gic _ 1li nce.shtml 2/3/2003
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by providing an adaptable customer core. Companies can use plug-ins to adapt this
core product rapidly to meet specific business requirements. CorDaptix was
launched in the European market in June 2001.

About Logica

Logica (LOG.L) is a leading global solutions company providing management and
IT consultancy, systems integration, products, services and support. Logica's
clients operate across diverse markets including telecom, financial services, energy
and utilities, industry, distribution and transport and the public sector. The company
has over 12,000 staff in 30 countries worldwide. Founded in 1969, Logica is listed
on the London Stock Exchange where it is part of the FTSE100 index of the largest
UK listed companies. More information can be found at www.logica.com

HH
About SPL WorldGroup
Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed
customer management solutions to the energy and service-related industries in
regulated and competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful
implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in
providing flexible and scalable customer management solutions that evolve with
client requirements and enable unrivalled business responsiveness. SPL employs
over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia Pacific and has
delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water and
waste management customers worldwide.

For More information:

To learn more about SPL WorldGroup, or to request a full media kit, please
contact Richard Virgilio at Stephenson Group for SPL WorldGroup at (973)
989-1177, or Tracey Mitchell at (873) 401-7525.

©2002 SPL WoridGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup, SPL, and
CorDaptix are trademarks owned by SPL WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL
WorldGroup, SPL, and CorDaptix and are registered as trademarks in the United

tates and in certain other jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company
names herein are used for identification purposes only and are the property of
their respective owners.

Except for the historical information contained herein, this press release contains
forward-looking statements that involve risk or uncertainties. Future operating
resuits of SPL WorldGroup may differ from the results discussed or forecasted in
the forward-fooking statements due to factors that include, but are not limited to,
risks associated with customer relations, such as the availability of SPL products
and services, customer implementation of products and services, third-party
vendors and systems integrators, the pace of deregulation in the global utility
industry, concentration of revenues in a relatively small number of customers,
significant current and expected additional competition and the need to continue
to expand product distribution and services offerings.

Copyright € 2003 SPL WorldGroup. All rights reserved
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TransFormance Group Study Highlights Pitfalls For
Australian Electricity Suppliers In State Of Victoria

New Research Shows Consumers Expect Significant Price Cuts in 2002

Morristown, New Jersey - 14™ January, 2002. Energy companies in Australia’s State of Victoria face
significant new challenges in meeting customer expectations as full retail contestability (FRC) comes into effect
on Ist January 2002. That’s the finding of new research by Transformance Group, who found that over 80% of
Victorian consumers are aware of FRC and hope for significant reductions in electricity prices as a result of
increased competition.

TransFormance Group, the consulting division of SPL WorldGroup, a leading provider of best-of-breed customer
management solutions to the energy and service related industries, was recently established to help organisations
become more innovative as they face the challenges of new business dynamics. The division is conducting a series
of market studies to track the impact of full retail contestability on the energy industry in Victoria, Australia.

Transformance Group principal, Trevor Aronson, said one of the key findings of the initial research was that
consumers are expecting the deregulation process to deliver substantially cheaper prices. “We found that
consumers across the board generally believe that energy companies enjoy large profit margins and expect
increased competition to provide opportunities for them to save money on their electricity bill,” he said. “Ninety
percent of those surveyed said they would switch suppliers for a saving on their energy bill, with most expecting
reductions of at least 10 percent. However, the reality is that electricity companies operate on margins as low as
two or three percent and prices are more likely to stay the same, or even increase, as a result of deregulation.

The challenge for electricity suppliers will be to effectively communicate the benefits they offer to customers
while taking full advantage of opportunities to reduce overheads,” he said.

According to the survey, January 1st will not see massive customer churn with most customers (82 percent
SMEs and 75 percent residential) expressing varying degrees of satisfaction with their current energy supplier.
Fifteen percent of SMEs and 17 percent of residential customers said they would remain loyal while 47 percent
of SMEs and 56 percent of residential customers plan to wait and see what options are introduced.

However, Mr Aronson said there would be significant opportunities for proactive energy companies, with a
substantial proportion of customers (37 percent SMEs and 27 percent residential) planning to investigate their
options in a deregulated environment.

“It’s too early to say if there will be customer churn in the energy sector, but we will track their behavior over
time. Certainly, the fact that 25 percent of SMEs and 16 percent of residential customers said they would
consider using an interstate supplier indicates that the interstate players entering the Victorian market have much
to gain,” he said. “High value customers were not distributed equally between suppliers. This means that
suppliers with a large proportion of high value customers will find their customer base under significant threat,
while suppliers with more low value customers are less likely to be targeted,” explained Mr Aronson. “In alow
margin environment where customers are very price conscious, perceived value will become key to attracting
and retaining customers.”

Other important findings of the research were the existence of a significant degree of brand confusion with 10
percent of consumers unable to name their electricity supplier. “TransFormance Group will use the results of
this and future studies to identify ways to assist our energy clients to tailor their products and services for a



deregulated market, helping them to become best-of-breed in their operation and customer service delivery,” he
said.

The research, conducted for TransFormance Group by market research company DBM Consultants, surveyed
150 SMEs and 200 residential customers in the State of Victoria, Australia.

About TransFormance Group

TransFormance Group, the consulting division of SPL WorldGroup, helps companies develop people, processes and
technology to enable and foster innovation and transformation in response to rapidly evolving industry business
models.

© 2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup, SPL and CorDaptix are trademarks owned by SPL WorldGroup
B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United States and in certain foreign jurisdictions. All
other brand, product and company names herein are used for identification purposes only and are the property of their respective owners.
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City Utilities Of Springfield, MO Enhances
Customer Management Flexibility Using SPL
WorldGroup Software

(973) 401-7525
tracey_mitchell@splwg.com

Morristown, New Jersey - January 24th, 2002. SPL WorldGroup B.V. (SPL), the
leading provider of customer management solutions to the global energy, water and
waste management industries, has successfully implemented SPL's customer
management software product at City Utilities of Springfield, MO

(www cityutilities.net). City Utilities is a customer-owned utility that serves
approximately 90,000 customers in southwest Missouri with electric power, natural
gas and water.

City Utilities selected the SPL software to replace an internally developed legacy
system. With an eye on the potential for future de-regulation, City Ulilities' in-house
system was hard to maintain and costly to enhance making the implementation of
new business requirements difficult. After a selection process that was completed
in 2000, City Utilities chose the SPL software, in part, based on the current and
future technical architecture of the product. The product architecture is fully
upgradeable and designed to accommodate future customer growth, product-line
introduction/extinction and scale.

"The flexibility of the SPL system provides us with a core solution that will grow with
and support our business through time," said Mr. Tracy Wilkins, Senior Systems
Integrator for City Utilities.

City Utilities is using the software to bill customers for electric power, natural gas,
water services and sewer services that are billed on behalf of the City of
Springfield. Customers now receive a single bill for all services. Additionally, City
Utilities expects the system to help them maintain high standards of customer
service through the use of the software's intuitive screens. "The screens are easy
to use when dealing with customers on a day-to-day basis and we expect to be
able to empower our employees to a greater extent than we could in the past,”
reports Mr. Wilkins.

"As City Utilities responds to whatever market pressures may occur, we are
confident that the SPL product will be flexible enough to evolve with them and
provide a significant return on their software investment," said CD Hobbs, President
and Chief Executive Officer, SPL WorldGroup.

About City Utilities Of Springfield, MO
City Utilities of Springfield, MO is a progressive, customer-owned utility serving
southwest Missouri for more than 50 years with electricity, natural gas, water,
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telecommunications and, public transportation services. City Utilities' customers
enjoy electricity prices ameng the Jowest in the United States; the convenience of
one bill for all utilities; and dependable, hometown services delivered with a
personal touch.

Hit
About SPL WorldGroup
Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed
customer management solutions to the energy and service-related industries in
regulated and competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful
implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market feader in
providing flexible and scalable customer management solutions that evolve with
client requirements and enable unrivalied business responsiveness. SPL employs
over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia Pacific and has
delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water and
waste management customers worldwide.

For More Information:
To learn more about SPL WorldGroup, or to request a full media kit, please

contact Richard Virgilio at Stephenson Group for SPL WorldGroup at (973)
989-1177, or Tracey A

©2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup, SPL, and
CorDaptix are trademarks owned by SPL WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL
WorldGroup, SPL, and CorDaptix and are registered as trademarks in the United
States and in certain other jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company
names herein are used for identification purposes only and are the property of
their respective owners.

Except for the historical information contained herein, this press release contains
forward-looking statements that involve risk or uncertainties. Future operating
results of SPL WorldGroup may differ from the results discussed or forecasted in
the forward-looking statements due to factors that include, but are not limited to,
risks associated with customer relations, such as the availability of SPL products
and services, customer implementation of products and services, third-party
vendors and systems integrators, the pace of deregulation in the global utility
industry, concentration of revenues in a relatively small number of customers,
significant current and expected additional competition and the need {o continue
to expand product distribution and services offerings.

Copyright € 2003 SPL WorldGroup. All rights reserved
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npower Simplifies Its Gas, Electricity and Telco
Billing Process With SPL WorldGroup

Six-month Implementation Keeps Promise to Customers and Shareholders

Morristown, New Jersey — February 4th, 2002. SPL WorldGroup, the leading provider of customer
management solutions to the global energy industry, and npower, one of the UK's largest retail
energy companies, has successfully implemented SPL’s industry leading customer management
application. Meeting an aggressive six-month timetable for implementation, npower is now able to
provide its new gas and electricity customers with a single bill for both energy products.

"As we looked at ways to compete in the deregulated market, it became clear that offering our
customers additional products and services, including combined gas, electricity and telephone, was a
critical first step to achieving competitive advantage,” said Philip Addis, Director of Business Systems
for npower. "People want to simplify their lives and if we can help with our part, thanks to SPL's
flexible and scaleable billing and customer management system, we will be in a better position to
further strengthen our position in the UK energy market."

As a result of the de-merger of National Power in 1998 and the integration of a number of subsequent
acquisitions, Innogy, a UK FTSE Top 100 company, was formed. Innogy has been quick to exploit
opportunities in the newly re-regulated UK market. It formed npower with a specific purpose of
pursuing an aggressive vertical integration strategy that focuses on Commercial & Industrial (C&!)
and residential retail markets. Ultimately, npower will provide all customers with combined electricity
and gas bills and, at a later stage, the ability to receive their telephone charges on the same bill.

An independent big five consultancy, that worked with npower to help manage their transition to a
competitive energy services company, recommended SPL’s customer management solution to meet
this demanding commitment. In March 2000, SPL and npower began a three-month proof of concept
project for its dual-billing functionality. Following that successful trial, npower selected the SPL
WorldGroup software as their customer management platform on which a viable customer
relationship management strategy could be built.

“Successful on time delivery, especially in such a short period as six months, is not something you
associate with most customer management implementations,” continued Addis. “However, SPL's
team was confident it could deliver and build on the company’s 100 percent success track record.
We are thriiled with the business impact that the implementation has already had and are looking
forward to rolling the project out to all of our customers.”



npower has expanded both through organic growth and the acquisition of four companies over the
last 18 months. It was important for the company to develop a core customer management platform
that was flexible enough to accommodate its changing product portfolio as well as scale to
accommodate its rapidly expanding customer base.

"Our partnership with SPL has put us well on our way to driving down the cost of servicing each and
every one of our customers as well as improving the way we service their very specific needs,” said
Addis. "As we continue to provide added value service and products to the market, we are confident
that the SPL solution will provide us with the right infrastructure to cope with the demands placed on
our company within an increasingly competitive marketplace."

Subsequent phases of the project ran through January 2002, bringing 500,000 small and medium-
sized enterprise (SME) customers on board and migrated the company’s current seven million retail
customer base to the SPL product.

About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer management
solutions to the energy and service-related industries in regulated and competitive markets
worldwide. With a 100% record of successful implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its
place as the market leader in providing flexible and scalable customer management solutions that
evolve with client requirements and enable unrivalled business responsiveness. SPL employs over
600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia Pacific and has delivered its customer
management products to more than 50 energy, water and waste management customers worldwide.

Visit SPL WorldGroup at www, splwg.com or call +44 207 851 6840, or, within the US and Canada call
(800) 275-4775,

About npower

npower is the customer-facing arm of Innogy, a UK FTSE 100 company. Innogy is the major power
generation operation formed from the de-merger of National Power, which uses both conventional
and green power sources side by side to generate a significant proportion of the UK's energy.

The company is focused on driving down cost in operations and energy management and, providing
value added service to the customer base. npower now supplies power to around 7 million
customers making it the leading supplier of electricity and, the 2nd largest gas supplier in the UK. In
the financial year ended 31st March 2000, npower's turnover exceeded £1.3 billion. For more
information call npower’s press office on +44 121 212 0998 or visit www.npower.com

2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are trademarks owned by SPL WordGroup
B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United States and in certain foreign
jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company names herein are used for identification purposes only and are the
property of their respective owners.
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Powerful SPL Customer Management Solution Aids
Lafayette Utilities System’s New Telecom Service

Morristown, New Jersey—March 13th, 2002. Lafayette Utilities System (LUS), which implemented SPL
WorldGroup's (SPL) customer management solution in September 2000, has now commenced providing
telecommunications service to its customers. LUS has extended its use of the industry-leading SPL software to
bill its customers for telecom as well as power, water, waste-water and, on behalf of the Public Works Department,
waste management services. LUS serves approximately 60,000 residential and commercial customers in the City
of Lafayette, LA.

Designed and built by SPL and marketed by PeopleSoft, Inc. to the municipal market, the SPL customer
management software features a powerful billing engine that allows new services to be added with ease. LUS
added the new telecom services without modification or enhancement to the system. "The SPL software makes it
simple to add new services and rates,” reports Mr. A. Duhon, customer and support services manager for LUS,
"We really value the flexibility of the system and have been able to handle rating complexities, particularly around
water and wastewater, with relative ease.”

The SPL solution replaced a 30 year-old legacy system, enabling LUS to improve customer service as well as bill
presentment and readability. "Our old system was very limited in respect of the information that we could print on a
bill. Now we can provide customers with a rich variety of information regarding their services, including graphical
representation of 13 months of consumption history," said Mr. Duhon. LUS provides a multiple service bill to its
customers that includes both an account summary as well as bill segments for each service.

LUS has also seen its ability to improve customer service increase as a result of the implementation of the SPL
software. "Applications for service and disconnections are much easier to process, and we can now bill the
customer’s deposit, whereas previously, the customer actually had to show up in person to pay it," said Mr. Duhon.

"The SPL rating and bitling engine is world-class and has proven its flexibility across a wide variety of industry
business environments, from the world's largest investor-owned utilities to the smallest municipal utilities,” said CD
Hobbs, president and chief executive officer, SPL WorldGroup. "SPL's customer management solution is designed
to support businesses through time as their business environment changes, and LUS’s need and ability to add
telecom services demonstrates how important this is to our customers. LUS is well positioned to continue to
respond to changes in its business environment, including de-regulation, when it occurs in Louisiana.”

SPL WORLDGROUP, INC.

157 HEADQUARTERS PLAZA NORTH TOWER 8™ FLOOR MORRISTOWN NJ 07960 TEL:973-539-6268 FAX:973-539-3785
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About SPL WorldGroup
Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer management solutions to the
energy and service-related industries in regulated and competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of
successful implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and
scalable customer management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable unrivaled business
responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia Pacific and has
delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water and waste management customers
worldwide. Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973) 539-6268 (New Jersey), (415) 541-9462 (San
Francisco), or within the US and Canada, (800) 275-4775.

About PeopleSoft CIS for Public Enterprise

Developed and built by SPL WorldGroup using the PeopleSoft tool set, the PeopleSoft CIS for Public Enterprise
solution is marketed to municipals across North America by PeopleSoft, Inc. The package is designed,
developed, implemented and supported by SPL WorldGroup.

About Lafayette Utilities System

For more information on Lafayetie Utitities System, visit its web site at hitp://www.lus.org.

2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are trademarks owned by SPL
WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United States
and in certain foreign jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company names herein are used for identification
purposes only and are the property of their respective owners.
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New Alliance Between SPL And Cap Gemini Ernst &
Young Will Build On SPL’S Record Of 100%
Implementation Success

Morristown, NJ, April 16th, 2002 - SPL WorldGroup, the leading provider of customer
management solutions to the global energy industry, today announced a strategic implementation
alliance with the Cap Gemini Ernst & Young Group (CGE&Y), one of the largest management
and IT consulting firms in the world. Under the terms of the agreement, CGE&Y will add SPL's
best-of-breed customer management solution, CorDaptix™, to its industry solution portfolio for
the utilities sector.

Both SPL and CGE&Y have an extensive history of service to energy companies in regulated and
competitive markets worldwide. Under the terms of the alliance, SPL and CGE&Y will combine
resources and use pre-built adapters to integrate specific CorDaptix functionality into complex
client customer relationship and management systems that facilitate operations across diverse
geographies and energy sectors.

Commenting on the announcement, CD Hobbs, CEO, SPL WorldGroup said, "Utility and service
companies face increasingly complex challenges to deliver high-quality customer care. The effective
and complete business solutions offered by the SPL/CGE&Y alliance will help them meet those
challenges by enhancing customer service, satisfaction, and retention.”

Success through integration of best-of-breed solutions

The SPL WorldGroup partner programme fosters alliances between SPL and the best
complementary product, service and technology providers. Through the programme, the partners
combine strengths to offer more value to end-users than any single party could offer alone,
enhancing customers’ competitive edge now and in the future.

“We are pleased to partner with CGE&Y—one of the world’s largest and most respected
management consultancies, with a powerful track record in the utilities sector,” added Hobbs.
“This alliance is of strategic importance to both organisations, building on our respective expertise
and core competencies. Most important, it will help a growing list of energy and service
companies take advantage of SPL's industry-leading CorDaptix customer management system,
which provides the scalability, flexibility and rich functionality companies need to serve current
customers and enter emerging markets.”

“In these newly de/re-regulated and liberalised markets, energy companies are facing significant
challenges,” commented Colette Lewiner, Vice President Global Leader of CG&EY Energy &



Utilities Global Sector Unit. “As customers are offered more choice, customer retention and
acquisition are key issues. SPL and CGE&Y are working together to provide strategic solutions
capable of adapting to fluctuating market demands. The alliance will allow CGE&Y to further
enhance its ability to get an implementation up and running very quickly, improving our clients’
time to market and return on investment.” '

About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer
management solutions to the energy and service related industries in regulated and competitive
markets worldwide. With a 100 per cent record of successful implementations, SPL continues to
demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and scalable customer
management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable unrivalled business
responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professianals in North America, Europe, and Asia Pacific
and has delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water and waste
management customers worldwide.

SPL's CorDaptix"™ represents the next-generation of customer information systems by providing
an adaptable customer core. Companies can use plug-ins to adapt this core product rapidly to
meet specific business requirements. CorDaptix was formally launched in mid-2001.

For further information visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com.

About Cap Gemini Ernst & Young Group

The Cap Gemini Ernst & Young Group is one of the largest management and IT consulting
organisations in the world. The company offers management and IT consulting services, systems
integration, and technology development, design and outsourcing capabilities on a global scale to
help businesses continue to implement growth strategies and leverage technology. Early 2002,
the organisation employed more than 56,500 people worldwide and reported 2001 global
revenues of more than 8.4 billion euros.

More information about individual service lines, offices and research is available at
www.cgey.com.

Cap Gemini Ernst & Young Energy, Utilities & Chemicals

Cap Gemini Ernst & Young has more than 6,000 dedicated consultants engaged in energy and
utilities projects across Europe, North America and Asia Pacific. The group’s global sector unit —
Cap Gemini Ernst & Young Energy and Utilities — serves the business consulting and information
technology needs of more than 80 per cent of the top 30 private and global utilities and all five of
the publicly held oif and gas “super majors”. For more information visit
hitp://iwww.cgey.com/utilities.

© 2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup, SPL and CorDaptix are
trademarks owned by SPL WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are
registered as trademarks in the United States and in certain foreign jurisdictions. All other brand,
product and company names herein are used for identification purposes only and are the property of
their respective owners.
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SPL WorldGroup Emphasizes Unique Benefits of
Proven, Market-Tested Component-Based Architecture
for Regulated, Unregulated, and Transitioning
Energy and Services Companies

Booth 529 at June CIS Conference in Baltimore Will Be “Information Central” for
SPL’s Thoroughly Tested, Implemented Customer Management System

Morristown, New Jersey — June 4, 2002. “We are the only company in the market
today whose client base can attest to the advantages of a successful component-based
strategy that bolsters unique corporate strategies,” says SPL. WorldGroup CEO CD
Hobbs.

“It’s easy to talk about successful integration of best-of-breed components,” he continues.
“SPL’s difference is that we have customers who are already using components to their
advantage.” SPL will be emphasizing its market-leading position at the annual CIS
Conference at the Baltimore Convention Center June 9-12. The company will provide

- case studies and customer testimonials that back up claims with facts and figures based
on real-life implementations. As one example, SPL customer npower, will discuss how
and why SPL components form the backbone of its customer management strategy for
the next five years.

Coping with Uncertainty

“Given the market uncertainties facing energy and services companies,” says Hobbs,
“this year’s CIS Conference attendees want a more complete understanding of how
component-based systems can solve problems today and help them prepare for
tomorrow’s contingencies.”

Elaborating on those uncertainties, SPL’s Chief Technology Officer Guerry Waters says,
“IT budgets are still feeling lingering effects from last year’s recession and many energy
deregulation programs have failed to deliver on promises. So no company wants to be
locked into an inflexible customer management approach that might not accommodate
tomorrow’s market requirements or may limit the ability to realize return on investment.
At the same time,” he continues, “systems are aging; there’s a limit to their useful lives.”



SPL will share its proven components strategy with a new set of CorDaptix™ literature,
to be distributed at the Conference. “We explain ‘The CorDaptix Component
Advantage’ in detail,” says Waters. Based on information from our customers in the
field, component-based environments permit companies to:

e Migrate easily from legacy applications. Companies can migrate one component at a
time, reducing risk while addressing immediate needs.

¢ Add or change components and features incrementally, as the need arises, while
paying only for functionality currently needed.

o Follow a best-of-breed system development strategy that permits companies to
choose the best, most flexible features and functions for each business requirement.

e Operate more effectively in an environment that includes external trading partners.
Component-based solutions are designed from the outset to operate with other
applications, including those that are outside the enterprise.

About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer
management solutions to the energy and service related industries in regulated and
competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful implementations,
SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and
scalable customer management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable
unrivaled business responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North
America, Europe, and Asia Pacific and has delivered its customer management products
to more than 50 energy customers worldwide.

About CorDaptix™

SPL WorldGroup’s CorDaptix™ is the innovative, adaptable and fully upgradeable
customer management product designed to provide scalable solutions that withstand the
tests of time, growth, and product and service line introductions and extinctions.
CorDaptix is the universal customer management core that handles all transactions from
customer initiation through product and service delivery allowing you to provide
excellent customer service. CorDaptix provides best-of-breed customer management
components supported by an underlying adaptable architecture that enables your business
to deliver rapid innovation and responsiveness for competitive advantage. It also helps
you keep track of your assets such as meters, efficiently manages work orders for field
services, and interfaces with other systems and devices in the field for meter reading.

Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973) 539-6268 (New Jersey),
(415) 541-9462 (San Francisco), or within the US and Canada, (800) 275-4775.
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SPL WorldGroup and Retail Customer npower
To Highlight Benefits of Component-Based Customer-Management Strategy
In Joint Presentation at CIS Conference in Baltimore

Morristown, New Jersey - June 5, 2002. To illustrate the many advantages of SPL’s
component-based architecture in a retail setting, SPL WorldGroup’s Mal Collins and
npower’s Phil Addis will share a podium at the CIS Conference June 11 (Track 7F) at the
Baltimore Convention Center. The two will describe how npower used SPL customer-
management components to implement npower’s Four to Five plan—its goal to sell four
or five products to four or five million customers over four to five years.

Need for New System

The relationship between npower and SPL started when npower found that its legacy
Customer Account Management system was running on a robust but inflexible
mainframe integrated to a number of disparate databases. Fragmented information meant
the company could not create a holistic view of customer profiles or understand
customers’ specific needs. Although reliable, npower’s Customer Account Management
system was an obstacle to driving loyalty through personalized interactions with
customers.

In addition, npower’s existing system could not accommodate a host of business
requirements that were essential for fostering loyal, profitable customers. If, for example,
the company wished to re-engineer a particular rate and bill calculation, the legacy
system would require several months of re-coding to make the necessary rate changes.
The company was consequently restricted from competing effectively against other
market players to attract and retain customers.

The SPL Difference

Today, using its new SPL customer management system, npower now executes those
same rate changes in just two days—and in some cases hours—saving a considerable
sum of money every time a rate change is applied and, in the process, becoming more
responsive.

Additionally, npower has used SPL components as a springboard from which it can



integrate service offerings from a variety of acquired companies. Offerings now include
electricity, gas, appliances, telecommunications services, and insurance.

Further enhancing customer service is the interface between SPL components and a
Siebel CRM system.

Read more about npower’s success with SPL components by viewing the case study at
www.splwg.com.

About npower

As the retail arm of the U.K.’s Innogy, npower provides gas, electricity and other
essential home services, such as insurance and telecommunications, to 6.8 million
customer accounts. Last month, Innogy was acquired by the German multi-utility RWE.

About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer
management solutions to the energy and service related industries in regulated and
competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful implementations,
SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and
scalable customer management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable
unrivaled business responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North
America, Europe, and Asia Pacific and has delivered its customer management products
to more than 50 energy customers worldwide.

Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973) 539-6268 (New Jersey),
(415) 541-9462 (San Francisco), or within the US and Canada, (800) 275-4775.
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SPL WorldGroup, Siebel Systems, Sun Microsystems
Join Forces to Demo
Benefits of Pre-Integrated Components

“Smart Partners” Will Be in Booth 529 at June CIS Show in Baltimore

Morristown, New Jersey —June 6, 2002. “Today, it can be very easy to integrate best-
of-breed products from different vendors,” says SPL WorldGroup CEO CD Hobbs.

To illustrate this market advance, Siebel Systems and Sun Microsystems will join SPL in
its booth at next week’s CIS Conference in Baltimore to demonstrate the pre-integrated
approach to building cost-effective, flexible solutions across the enterprise.

“Our partnerships with Siebel and Sun provide a series of scalable, integrated multi-
channel solutions,” says Hobbs. “ The result is a platform for outstanding customer
service.”

Hobbs points out that integrating Siebel eEnergy with SPL’s CorDaptix™ allows
companies to manage customer life-cycle processes efficiently—from creating prospect
interest through winning the contract, delivering the service or product, billing,
processing payments, and even following up on delinquent debt. Companies can, as a
consequence, deliver consistent customer service across multiple delivery channels
through a common user interface—without the need for complex data replication
strategies.

SPL’s partnership with hardware-manufacturer Sun provides similar benefits, according
to Hobbs. “Both our companies focus on bringing the benefits of truly open systems to
customers,” he says. “Our hardware and software work in tandem to maximize the
benefits and minimize the costs of a component-based IT strategy.”

About SPL WorldGroup
Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer
management solutions to the energy and service related industries in regulated and



competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful implementations,
SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and
scalable customer management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable
unrivaled business responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North
America, Europe, and Asia Pacific and has delivered its customer management products
to more than 50 energy customers worldwide.

About CorDaptix™

SPL WorldGroup’s CorDaptix™ is the innovative, adaptable and fully upgradeable
customer management product designed to provide scalable solutions that withstand the
tests of time, growth, and product and service line introductions and extinctions.
CorDaptix is the universal customer management core that handles all transactions from
customer initiation through product and service delivery allowing you to provide
excellent customer service. CorDaptix provides best-of-breed customer management
components supported by an underlying adaptable architecture that enables your business
to deliver rapid innovation and responsiveness for competitive advantage. It also helps
you keep track of your assets such as meters, efficiently manages work orders for field
services, and interfaces with other systems and devices in the field for meter reading.

Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973) 539-6268 (New Jersey),
(415) 541-9462 (San Francisco), or within the US and Canada, (800) 275-4775.
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NEW PAN-EUROPEAN SURVEY FINDS NO MAGIC RECIPE TO
ATTRACT UTILITY CONSUMERS

London, 15 July 2002 — “Our most recent numbers suggest that utilities are best placed to attract and retain consumers if they
permit them to choose among service and billing alternatives,” says Andrew Dean, vice president, sales for Europe, the Middle
East, and Africa at SPL WorldGroup.

Dean’s conclusion is one of several resulting from an SPL-commissioned survey of utility consumers conducted in May/June

by independent marketing-research company Ipsos/Capibus.

The survey asked utility consumers in the UK, France, and Italy about:

® Factors that would lead them to switch suppliers.

®  Preferences for single or multiple suppliers.

®  Benefits they expect if they choose a single supplier.

¢ Non-energy services they would consider buying from a single supplier.

® How they use the internet, with emphasis on interactions with utilities.

Based on the survey results, SPL has concluded that:

®  Price is still the main driver of customer choice. However, some consumers already see service as a primary reason for

switching suppliers.

e Contrary to some expectations, the internet is not currently a vehicle to service the majority of customers.

SPL WORLDGROUP, INC.

157 HEADQUARTERS PLAZA NORTH TOWER 8™ FLOOR MORRISTOWN NJ 07950 TEL:973-539-6268 FAX:973-539-3785
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¢  While much has been made in the utility trade press of the advantages available to utilities that offer multiple services and

consolidated billing, the majority of consumers prefer to receive separate bills for each utility service. Although they
expect that sourcing all products from the same supplier leads to a better price, they are split in their preference for single

or multiple utility suppliers.

®  There are education and marketing opportunities for utilities among the substantial minority of consumers who “don’t

know” if they would consider buying telecom, financial, and other services from their utility supplier.

“The numbers we’re seeing suggest that there is no single ‘formula for success’ in the evolving European utility and services
market,” Dean concludes. “Our market has given consumers many new choices, and they’re not all choosing the same ones. In

fact, some are uncertain as to what, if anything, they will choose in the future.”

“These uncertainties give clear positioning advantages to utilities with flexible customer management systems,” Dean says.
“When utilities record and respond to customer preferences, then alter practices and procedures to meet those preferences both
now and as preferences evolve, they can offer consumers the right products and services through the right channels. It’s a path
toward attracting and retaining customers for the long run.”

#HEH

The entire SPL analysis “Utility Consumer Preferences in the UK, Italy, and France: A Report by SPL
WorldGroup Based on a Survey Conducted by Ipsos/Capibus”, the supporting Ipsos/Capibus data are
available by email request through splinfo@splwg.com or by calling (800) 275-4775.

About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer management solutions to the energy and
service-related industries in regulated and competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful implementations,
SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and scalable customer management solutions
that evolve with client requirements and enable unrivalled business responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professionals in
North America, Europe, and Asia Pacific and has delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water
and waste management customers worldwide.

Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (800) 275-4775.

2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are trademarks owned by SPL WorldGroup
Inc. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United States and in certain foreign
Jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company names herein are used for identification purposes only and are the
property of their respective owners.
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Report Finds SPL WorldGroup Leads Current Vendors in Number of Utilities

Using Its Systems and Number of Customers They Serve

Morristown, NJ, July 29, 2002 — According to the Chartwell Report on CIS Installations in North America, more
utilities—a total of 39 out of 337 analyzed by Chartwell —use customer management systems from SPL
WorldGroup than from any other vendor currently in the market.

Additionally, SPL systems serve more utility customers than do other vendor-supported systems—a total of 14
million. In a segmented analysis of the market, Chartwell found that SPL systems serve 10 percent of all customers
at investor-owned utilities and 15 percent of all customers at municipal utilities.

Slightly more than 100 utilities, Chartwell found, use CIS systems developed in-house. Utility staff developed
about two-thirds of those systems; consultants developed the remaining third. An additional 19 utilities serve 32
million customers with the Customer/1 CIS system, developed by Accenture (formerly Anderson Consulting),
which no longer supports it.

“We are pleased that Chartwell has confirmed what we have long known,” commented SPL CEO CD Hobbs. “SPL
customer management systems have won outstanding support in North American utilities, as they have worldwide,
in regulated, competitive, and transitioning markets. As for the future,” he continued, “we are dedicated to ensuring
that our flagship product, the CorDaptix™ customer management system, continues to evolve with all of our
markets to solidify and expand our leading position.”

The Report on CIS Installations is based on Chartwell’s proprietary database of North American utility CIS/billing
installations. The database accounts for more than 139 million end-use customer accounts from electric, gas, and
water utilities in the U.S. and Canada.

Additional information about the Report is available at www.chartwellinc.com or by calling (800) 432-5879.

HHEHH

SPL WORLDGROUP, INC.
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About Chartwell

Based in Atlanta, Ga., Chartwell provides executives and managers in the utility and retail energy business with up-
to-date, unbiased information on the issues facing them as they strive to meet the demands of a rapidly changing
industry. The company publishes research reports, newsletters, books and online publications and information
services on issues facing utility and energy company executives. Chartwell also organizes the annual EMACS
(Energy Marketing and Customer Service) Conference and Expo.

About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer management solutions to the
energy and service-related industries in regulated and competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of
successful implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and
scalable customer management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable unrivalled business
responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia Pacific and has delivered
its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water and waste management customers worldwide.

Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (800) 275-4775.

2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are trademarks owned by SPL
WorldGroup Inc. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United States
and in certain foreign jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company names herein are used for identification
purposes only and are the property of their respective owners.
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Market-Leading Customer Management Software Gets Even Better

Morristown, NJ - July 31st, 2002 — “There’s an unrelenting pressure on utilities and services companies to improve
customer service while also cutting costs,” said CD Hobbs, CEO of SPL WorldGroup. “Our new enhancements to
SPL’s flagship customer management software, CorDaptix™, will help companies meet ambitious service goals,
satisfy emerging customer needs, and achieve strong positioning in both regulated and competitive markets
worldwide.”

Hobbs spoke about the introduction of Release 1.4, a new package of enhancements to CorDaptix, SPL’s flexible,
scalable, and easily upgradable customer management product. Since its introduction last year, CorDaptix has won
enthusiastic support in the marketplace. The enhancements just introduced:

e Improve usability and efficiency. A flexible, intuitive portal framework eases the task of finding and displaying
customer information. It also provides a “Dashboard” portal that stays with users as they navigate the system,
providing quick access to frequently used links and keeping the user in context while navigating the system.

e Offer additional complex billing functions for energy retail and distribution. The new release augments the rich
set of existing CorDaptix interval data management features with tools to manage “raw” data received at the
channel level, automatically generate time-of-use maps, and automatically manage curtailment and
interruptions.

e Facilitate the use of customer management information in sales and marketing campaigns. CorDaptix now
helps companies define packages of products and services, collect relevant information about potential
customers for those products and services, apply rules to determine eligibility, and conduct marketing activities.
These new campaign features also support enrolment and similar functions for companies moving from
regulated to competitive markets.

“These new CorDaptix features are one more way that SPL demonstrates its commitment to partnering with our
customers to further their market strategies and meet their obligations to customers,” said Hobbs. “As needs
expand, and as markets change, CorDaptix enhancements will keep our customers ahead of the curve.”

For more information about CorDaptix customer management software and the new enhancements, go to
www,splwg.com or call (800) 275-4775.

SPL WORLDGROUP, INC.
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About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer management solutions to the energy and
service related industries in regulated and competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful implementations,
SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and scalable customer management solutions
that evolve with client requirements and enable unrivaled business responsiveness. SPL has delivered its customer management
products to more than 50 energy, water and waste management customers worldwide. SPL employs over 600 professionals in
North America, Europe, and Asia Pacific.

2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are trademarks owned by SPL
WorldGroup Inc. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United States
and in certain foreign jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company names herein are used for identification
purposes only and are the property of their respective owners.
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Growing Interest in Interval Pricing Leads to New Features in SPL’s

Customer Management Software

Morristown, NJ — July 31st, 2002 — ‘Utilities have long had contracts with a few large industrial customers that
priced their energy in short intervals—typically 30 or 60 minutes for electricity, 24 hours for gas,” said SPL
WorldGroup CTO Guerry Waters. “SPL has responded to the increasing market demand for interval pricing,” he
continued, “by enhancing our flagship customer management software, CorDaptix™, with features that ease the
administration of this complex billing arrangement.”

Interval pricing is designed to share the risk of energy price volatility between utilities and their customers while at
the same time providing time-based management of demand. It helps utilities avoid blackouts by using pricing to
discourage industrial consumption during routine periods of peak usage or when unexpected system constraints
place limits on the power available. It can also reduce costs and environmental emissions by encouraging industrial
customers to use electricity that might otherwise be wasted during periods of non-peak use. Interval pricing also
helps industrial customers manage their energy expenditures and ensure that the energy component of their product
does not force its costs above market value.

Previous releases of CorDaptix supported interval pricing and billing, time-of-use mapping and pricing, and several
contract-level interval data management functions. The new Release 1.4 introduces:

e Interval meter-read pre-treatment functions that aggregate, store, validate, and edit raw interval data before 1t is
fed into the main billing program. This effectively manages channel-level interval data.

o Support for the management of interruptible rates, curtailments, and interruptions. This new feature permits
overriding existing contract prices and other terms for a specific time period—either as a one-time event or as
an occasionally recurring event. Utilities can also use this function to offer incentives to their customers that
keep their use within specific parameters for certain time periods.

e A time-of-use map generation tool. Because most time-of-use maps contain recurring patterns, CorDaptix now
provides administration via templates that form building blocks for specific contract agreements.

SPL WORLDGROUP, INC.
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For more information about CorDaptix customer management software and the new enhancements, go to
www.splwg.com or call (800) 275-4775.

About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer management solutions to the
energy and service related industries in regulated and competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of
successful implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and
scalable customer management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable unrivaled business
responsiveness. SPL has delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water and waste
management customers worldwide. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia
Pacific.

2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are trademarks owned by SPL
WorldGroup Inc. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United States
and in certain foreign jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company names herein are used for identification
purposes only and are the property of their respective owners.
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SPL’s Customer Management Software Enhancements Speed Service, Increase ROl

Morristown, NJ — August Sth, 2002 — “Customer service improves when service representatives can find the
information they need quickly, answer questions accurately, and provide additional information that customers need
to use products and services effectively and safely,” according to SPL WorldGroup CTO Guerry Waters. “That’s
why SPL has enhanced our flagship customer management software, CorDaptix™, with features that provide
information with fewer keystrokes plus a new portal page that’s highly intuitive and easy to use.”

CorDaptix Release 1.4, now entering the marketplace, lets companies design portal pages with unique content
zones that provide the customer information most often needed to do a specific job. Individuals can further
customize their portals by arranging the content zones and adding a “Dashboard” that moves with users as they
navigate the system, lists frequently used links, and keeps the user in context while navigating the system. Users
can add and subtract content zones; pages dynamically resize to the screen area available.

The new CorDaptix release also includes a Business Process Assistant that can, through dialogs and screen
prompts, lead staff through complex processes, remind them of products and services that might be of value to
specific customers, and suggest alternative solutions to complex customer problems.

Additionally, the new CorDaptix release:

Reduces the number of keystrokes needed to retrieve most information.

Permits users to navigate the system using either the mouse or the keyboard.
Populates new-order pages with information already in the system.

Provides many shortcuts for the experienced user.

Manages recent search result sets and provides efficient navigation through the list.

“These new features permit staff to find information they need, answer customer questions quickly, and reduce
tedious back-office searches followed by time-consuming call-backs,” said Waters. “Customers perceive a marked
increase in service. Additionally,” he continued, “when users have options like keyboard vs. mouse and varying
paths to information, they can customize their work patterns in ways that increase their efficiency and
effectiveness.”

For more information about CorDaptix customer management software and the new enhancements, go to
www.splwg.com or call (800) 275-4775.

SPL WORLDGROUP, INC.
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About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer management solutions to the
energy and service related industries in regulated and competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of
successful implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and
scalable customer management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable unrivaled business
responsiveness. SPL has delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water and waste
management customers worldwide. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia
Pacific.

2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are trademarks owned by SPL
WorldGroup Inc. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United States
and in certain foreign jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company names herein are used for identification
purposes only and are the property of their respective owners.
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New Release of SPL Software Hélps Companies Combine Sales and
Marketing Functions with Customer Management

Morristown, NJ — August 8th, 2002 —- “Increasingly, utilities and services companies are expanding the products
and services they offer their customers,” said Guerry Waters, CTO of SPL WorldGroup. “To do so cost-effectively,
they cannot afford to tolerate a gulf between software designed to serve ongoing customers and software designed
to attract new customers and expand product lines.”

As aresult, Waters explained, the latest set of enhancements to SPL’s flagship customer management product,
CorDaptix™, facilitates the use of customer management information in sales and marketing campaigns. CorDaptix
now helps companies:

e Conduct, store, and analyze surveys that help companies define packages of products and services needed in
their markets.

e Sort information about existing and potential customers to determine possible interest in new products and
services.

e Apply rules to determine eligibiiity. Third-party analytic tools can, for instance, extract prospects from a file of
existing customers or determine whether a customer inquiring about a service lives in an appropriate area or has
the required premises set-up for a new service. Eligibility determination can be highly sophisticated and further
refined through the use of additional plug-in algorithms.

s Conduct marketing activities that both acquire new customers and offer new products to existing customers.
These activities may involve customer enrolment and similar functions needed when companies move from
regulated to competitive markets. Companies can, for instance:

0 Define packages of products to offer; e.g., electricity and gas combined with a multi-product
discount.

0 Organize those packages into multi-channel campaigns.

SPL WORLDGROUP, INC.
157 HEADQUARTERS PLAZA NORTH TOWER 8™ FLOOR MORRISTOWN, NJ 07960 TEL:973-539-6268 FAX:973-539-2843
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0 Define and aid customer service representatives in the completion of the order-taking process. The
system automatically fills in existing information about customers and uses dialogs to provide
simple, one-stop customer enrolment for all scenarios. Aids include features that map new services
to existing customer preferences so that, for instance, customers using specific billing options are
immediately asked if they want to continue those options for purchase of the new product or
service.

@ Track individual orders, manage them through use of tools like automatically generated “ToDo”
lists, and then analyze overall results.

For more information about CorDaptix customer management software and the new enhancements, go to
www.splwg.com or call (800) 275-4775.

About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer management solutions to the energy and
service related industries in regulated and competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful implementations,
SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and scalable customer management solutions
that evolve with client requirements and enable unrivaled business responsiveness. SPL has delivered its customer management
products to more than 50 energy, water and waste management customers worldwide. SPL employs over 600 professionals in
North America, Europe, and Asia Pacific.

2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are trademarks owned by SPL
WorldGroup Inc. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United States
and in certain foreign jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company names herein are used for identification
purposes only and are the property of their respective owners.
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Growing Interest in Interval Pricing Leads to New
Features in SPL's Customer Management
Software

Morristown, NJ, August 12, 2002 - "Utilities have long had contracts with a few
large industrial customers that priced their energy in short intervals-typically 30 or
60 minutes for electricity, 24 hours for gas,” said SPL WorldGroup CTO Guerry
Waters. "SPL has responded to the increasing market demand for interval pricing,”
he continued, "by enhancing our flagship customer management software,
CorDaptix™, with features that ease the administration of this complex billing
arrangement.”

Interval pricing is designed to share the risk of energy price volatility between
utilities and their customers while at the same time providing time-based
management of demand. It helps utilities avoid blackouts by using pricing to
discourage industrial consumption during routine periods of peak usage or when
unexpected system constraints place limits on the power available. It can aiso
reduce costs and environmental emissions by encouraging industrial customers to
use electricity that might otherwise be wasted during periods of non-peak use.
Interval pricing also helps industrial customers manage their energy expenditures
and ensure that the energy component of their product does not force its costs
above market value.

Previcus releases of CorDaptix supported interval pricing and billing, time-of-use
mapping and pricing, and several contract-level interval data management
functions. The new Release 1.4 introduces:

» Interval meter-read pre-treatment functions that aggregate, store, validate,
and edit raw interval data before it is fed into the main billing program. This
effectively manages channel-level interval data.

» Suppoert for the management of interruptible rates, curtailments, and
interruptions. This new feature permits overriding existing contract prices
and other terms for a specific time period-either as a one-time event or as
an occasionally recurring event. Utilities can also use this function to offer
incentives to their customers that keep their use within specific parameters
for certain time periods.

& A time-of-use map generation tool. Because most time-of-use maps contain

recurring patterns, CorDaptix now provides administration via templates that
form building blocks for specific contract agreements.

2/3/2003
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About SPL WorldGroup
Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed
customer management solutions to the energy and service-related industries in
regulated and competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful
implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in
providing flexible and scalable customer management solutions that evolve with
client requirements and enable unrivalled business responsiveness. SPL employs
over 800 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia Pacific and has
delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water and
waste management customers worldwide.

For More Information:

To learn more about SPL WorldGroup, or to request a full media kit, please
contact Richard Virgilio at Stephenson Group for SPL WorldGroup at (973)
989-1177, 0or T s Mitchell at (873) 401-7526.

©2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup, SPL, and
CorDaptix are trademarks owned by SPL WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL
WorldGroup, SPL, and CorDaptix and are registered as trademarks in the United
States and in certain other jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company
names herein are used for identification purposes only and are the property of
their respective owners.

Except for the historical information contained herein, this press release contains
forward-looking statements that involve risk or uncertainties. Future operating
results of SPL WorldGroup may differ from the resuits discussed or forecasted in
the forward-looking statements due to factors that include, but are not limited to,
risks associated with customer relations, such as the availability of SPL products
and services, customer implementation of products and services, third-party
vendors and systems integrators, the pace of deregulation in the giobal utility
industry, concentration of revenues in a relatively small number of customers,
significant current and expected additional competition and the need to continue
to expand product distribution and services offerings.

Copyright & 2003 SPL WorldGroup. Al rights reserved

http://www.splwg.c m/m in/pr/081202_interv l.shtml 2/3/2003
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Contacts (in Australia):

Des Petherick Envestra Ltd 08 8227 1500
Terri Darwent SPL WorldGroup 02 8252 8200
Shuna Boyd BoydPR » 02 9418 8100

CorDaptix from SPL WorldGroup selected by Envestra for Full Retail
Contestability

Sydney, Australia, August 16 2002 - Envestra Limited, Australia’s largest natural gas distributor has become the
first utility in the region to commit to use SPL’s next-generation CorDaptix customer management solution. It will
facilitate the introduction of full retail contestability (FRC) for the 465,000 consumers supplied via Envestra’s
networks in Victoria.

The Company is well advanced in implementing the package after signing a five-year licensing and maintenance
agreement with SPL.

With assets of Aus$2.5 billion, including 17,500 kilometres of natural gas distribution networks and 1,110
kilometres of transmission pipelines, Envestra delivers gas to about 900,000 consumers in South Australia, Victoria,
Queensland, New South Wales and the Northern Territory.

Envestra’s Managing Director, Ollie Clark said the CorDaptix solution will enable Envestra to comply with the
requirements of the Victorian Energy Networks Corporation (VENCorp) for operating within a competitive
marketplace.

“CorDaptix was the best solution for our needs, delivering the functionality and management capabilities we require
in the new market place,” he said.

“Envestra already has a relationship with SPL through the development and implementation of a new Asset
Management System for the Company in 2001”

In developing CorDaptix, SPL applied its extensive knowledge and experience in the utilities sector to deliver a
best-of-breed solution that is highly flexible, scalable, robust and easy to use, with full Web-enablement

“CorDaptix will provide the data necessary to manage the relationships and operations with the retailers who use
our networks, and as such, the system is a core business function for Envestra,” said Mr Clark

SPL WORLDGROUP, INC.

157 HEADQUARTERS PLAZA NORTH TOWER 8™ FLOOR MORRISTOWN, NJ 07960 TEL:973-539-6268 FAX:973-539-2843
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It will also generate data for reporting and statutory requirements associated with Envestra’s role as a gas
distributor.

W

About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer management solutions to the
energy and service related industries in regulated and competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of
successful implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and
scalable customer management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable unrivaled business
responsiveness. SPL has delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water and waste
management customers worldwide. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia
Pacific.

2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are trademarks owned by SPL WorldGroup Inc. or its
subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United States and in certain foreign jurisdictions. All other
brand, product and company names herein are used for identification purposes only and are the property of their respective owners.

SPL WORLDGROUP, INC.
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Richard Virgilio Tracey Mitchell _
Stephenson Group SPL WorldGroup Inc.
(973) 989 1177 (973) 401 7525
rvirgilio@stephensongroup.com tracey_mitchell@splwg.com

SPL WorldGroup Announces Revenue Milestone —

More Than $100 Million for Fiscal Year 2001-02
SPL Also Achieves Outstanding Growth in Profitability

Morristown, New Jersey - September 3, 2002. SPL WorldGroup, the leading provider of customer
management solutions to the global energy, water, waste management and services industries, announced
that sales exceeded $100 million for the fiscal year ended June 30" 2002. This represents 15 percent
revenue growth compared to the previous fiscal year.

“These excellent financials reflect not only the outstanding success of our new flagship customer
management product, CorDaptix™, but also the tireless effort and initiative of SPL employees around
the globe,” said SPL CEO CD Hobbs. “Our revenue growth, sustained profitability, and positive cash
flows are especially notable given the marked slow-down in the North American economy during our
just-ended fiscal year and some reexamination of direction on the part of utility companies affected by
the uncertain speed of deregulation in the U.S.”

“While many of our competitors have faltered as a result of market conditions, SPL has maintained its
momentum,” Hobbs continued. He noted that SPL has signed 11 new customers during the fiscal year,
including Eskom in South Africa, City of Ocala, Nicor Gas, Las Vegas Valley Water District in North
America, Envestra Limited (parent company of Origin) in Australia, and has shown strong entry into
South America with the signing of its first customer in that region.

Furthermore, significant new contracts with existing customers were signed with EDF in France and

AGL and TXU in Australia. SPL successfully implemented systems at 10 other utilities, including Atlantic
Electric and Gas, npower and Delta Utilities in Europe, Cal Water, TXU, City Utilities of Springfield, Grant
County PUD, and Cedar Falls Utilities.

Hobbs also noted that TransFormance Group, SPL’s consulting division launched last summer, has already
experienced one profitable quarter and he believes is now well positioned to contribute significantly to
the bottom line.

SPL WORLDGROUP, INC.
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Chartwell recently confirmed SPL’s position as the world’s leading customer management/information
systems company, with more utility installations than any other vendor currently in the market. SPL
counts 4 out of the world’s top 10 utilities as customers. The company continues to maintain its unique
100% implementation success record. Over the past year, SPL customers used its products to compete in
such newly deregulating markets as Texas and Ontario, to continue strong participation in transition
markets like Australia and the U.K., and to maintain regulated businesses around the world.

SPL’s focus remains on delivering its industry-leading customer management software product,
CorDaptix, to provide the scalable and extensible platform or core architecture that helps companies
adapt with business change. In support of this focus, the company recently restructured its marketing
and solutions strategy organization to respond more rapidly to emerging industry challenges and trends.

Earlier this year, the SPL Board of Directors directed management to change the company’s fiscal year to
coincide with the calendar year. As a result, SPL will undergo a 6-month transition period between July
and December 2002, and begin its next full fiscal year on January 1, 2003.

About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer management
solutions to the energy and service related industries in regulated and competitive markets worldwide.
With a 100% record of successful implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market
leader in providing flexible and scalable customer management solutions that evolve with client
requirements and enable unrivaled business responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professionals in
North America, Europe, and Asia Pacific and has delivered its customer management products to more
than 50 energy, water and waste management customers worldwide.

Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973) 539-6268 (New Jersey), (415) 541-9462 (San
Francisco), or within the US and Canada, (800) 275-4775.

© 2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup, SPL and CorDaptix are trademarks owned by SPL WorldGroup
or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United States and in certain foreign jurisdictions. All other
brand, product and company names herein are used for identification purposes only and are the property of their respective owners.

fiiizd
Except for the historical information contained herein, this press release contains forward-looking statements that involve risk or uncertainties. Future operating
results of SPL WorldGroup may differ from the results discussed or forecasted in the forward-looking statements due to factors that include, but are not limited to,
risks associated with customer relations, such as the availability of SPL products and services, customer implementation of products and services, third-party
vendors and systems integrators, the pace of deregulation in the global utility industry, concentration of revenues in a relatively small number of customers,
significant current and expected additional competition and the need to continue to expand product distribution and services offerings.

SPL WORLDGROUP, INC.
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SPL WorldGroup Appoints Conrad Metcalfe as Global VP of Training

Morristown, NJ, October 14, 2002 — SPL WorldGroup has appointed Conrad Metcalfe to its top training position.
Metcalfe will work with SPL customers and systems integration partners to ensure that training for the company’s

. flagship CorDaptix™ customer management product keeps pace with the rapidly changing requirements in energy
and services markets around the world.

“The information age has changed the way we perceive information,” says SPL CEO CD Hobbs. “As a result,
training must be re-packaged and enhanced with just-in-time performance support mechanisms that make
knowledge transfer more efficient. The increasing change of pace in the industries we serve dictates that we make
training more flexible and responsive to ensure that our customers have the information they need to successfully
compete in today's markets.”

Metcalfe comes to SPL after ten years as head of Training Development Services, a consultancy with clients that
include Cisco Systems, Volvo Penta, Prudential, iGeneration, Cigna Healthcare, United Healthcare, and Ethan
Allen.

“Conrad Metcalfe brings to SPL a wealth of experience in technology product training, certification, and distance
learning initiatives,” Hobbs says, “as well as expertise in standards development, automated multimedia training
and testing tools, on-line reference, and performance support systems.”

“Among my initial priorities,” Metcalfe says, “will be the extension of training courses into methodology, project
management, and best practices—areas in which SPL customers frequently need higher levels of in-house
expertise.” Metcalfe will also oversee the ongoing evolution of component-based, Internet-driven, and self-service
CorDaptix training.

Prior to his work with Training Development Services, Metcalfe held various training positions at Cigna
Corporation. He holds a BA in Design Analysis from the Evergreen State College in Olympia, Washington, and is

the author of several award-winning training programs.

HHHH
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About SPL

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer management solutions to the
energy and service related industries in regulated and competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of
successful implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and
scalable customer management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable unrivaled business
responsiveness. SPL has delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water and waste
management customers worldwide. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia
Pacific. Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973) 539-6268 (New Jersey), (866) 468-6775 (San
Francisco), or within the US and Canada, (800) 275-4775.

© 2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup are trademarks owned by SPL WorldGroup B.V. or its
subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United States and in certain other jurisdictions.
All other brand, product and company names herein are used for identification purposes only and are the property of their
respective owners.

SPL WORLDGROUP, INC.
157 HEADQUARTERS PLAZA NORTH TOWER 8™ FLOOR MORRISTOWN NJ 07960 TEL:973-539-6268 FAX:973-530-3785
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SPL WorldGroup’s Guerry Waters to Define CRM
at EMACS 2002

Morristown, NJ, October 22, 2002 - "I think of customer relationship management
(CRM) broadly," says Guerry Waters, CTO at SPL WorldGroup. "The term includes
all the business functions that companies use to address their customers.”

Waters will keynote the CRM frack at the EMACS 2002 conference to be held this
week in New Orleans. He will focus on:

& The functional elements of a total CRM program.

s Ways to determine which components can best enhance corporate
strategy.

» How to structure those components into a cohesive program.

« How to expand CRM programs as companies address emerging markets
and new customer requirements.

Waters will speak on Wednesday, October 23, at 1:30 p.m. Immediately following
his presentation, Paul Naquin from TXU Energy Services, an SPL client, will
present a case study on his company's approach to the energy marketplace using
multiple CRM functions.

SPL is a Gold Sponsor of EMACS. SPL's CorDaptix™ customer management
solution will be featured at Booth #31.

EMACS 2002, the Energy Markets and Customer Service Conference, is an annual
event sponsared by Chartwell. It is being held this year at the Hyatt Regency New
Orleans.

#HHt
About SPL WorldGroup
Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed
customer management solutions to the energy and service-related industries in
regulated and competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful
implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in
providing flexible and scalable customer management solutions that evolve with
client requirements and enable unrivalled business responsiveness. SPL employs
over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia Pacific and has
delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water and
waste management customers worldwide.

About CorDaptix™

2/3/2003
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SPL's CorDaptix is the innovative, adaptable and fully upgradeable customer
management product designed to provide scalable solutions that withstand the test
of time, growth, and product and service line introductions and extinctions. Its
automated handling of direct-access service requests and its billing flexibility-
including its ability to handle combinations of commodity and non-commodity
products and services-make it particularly well suited for energy retailers. CorDaptix
scales readily from a few thousand customers to many millions, and its intuitive
interface and customer-centric data model give retailers' customer service
representatives the immediate information access they need to serve and retain
customers.

For More Information:

To learn more about SPL WorldGroup, or to request a full media kit, please
contact Richard Virgilio at Stephenson Group for SPL WorldGroup at (973)
989-1177, or Tracey Mitchell at (873) 401-7525.

©2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup, SPL, and
CorDaptix are trademarks owned by SPL WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL
WorldGroup, SPL, and CorDaptix and are registered as trademarks in the United
States and in certain other jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company
names herein are used for identification purposes only and are the property of
their respective owners.

Except for the historical information contained herein, this press release contains
forward-looking statements that involve risk or uncertainties. Future operating
results of SPL WorldGroup may differ from the resuits discussed or ferecasted in
the forward-looking statements due to factors that include, but are not limited to,
risks associated with customer relations, such as the availability of SPL products
and services, customer implementation of products and services, third-party
vendors and systems integrators, the pace of deregulation in the global utility
industry, concentration of revenues in a relatively small number of customers,
significant current and expected additional competition and the need to continue
to expand product distribution and services offerings.

Copyright © 2003 SPL WorldGroup. Ali rights reserved

http://www.splwg.c m/m in/pr/102202_crm_ tem ¢s2002.shtml 2/3/2003
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Brazil's Comgas Replaces Legacy Billing System.-
with SPL WorldGroup’s Customer Management
Software

Morristown, NJ, October 24, 2002 - Comgas, the largest natural gas distributor in
Brazil, has selected SPL WorldGroup's CorDaptix™ customer management
software to complete its extensive retooling of the company's entire information
technology infrastructure.

The legacy system CorDaptix replaces was plagued by lack of flexibility, security
gaps, and poor usability, according to Comgas ClO Rodolfo Dantas. In contrast,
tests show CorDaptix to be "robust, flexible, secure, and dependable,” he said.
"The CorDaptix SPL solution has been validated by the market and has received
very high marks in technical evaluations.”

During an intensive selection process, Comgas representatives visited npower in
the United Kingdom (Npower) to further verify the ability to CorDaptix to fill
Comgas's business needs as it expands over the next several years.

"The trends and experiences in the gas seclor in other countries demonstrate that
Comgas will need to be prepared to play in a more competitive market with muitiple
services where companies sell and bill for products in addition to commodity
energy,” Dantas said. "This can best be achieved using a solution like CorDaptix,
which has best practices from other utilities already embedded.”

SPL will work with global professional services organization Deloitte Consulting to
implement the CorDaptix system at Comgas.

"Comgas operates in a deregulating market that is both challenging and constantly
changing," said SPL CEO CD Hobbs. "We are proud to be selected as a partner in
helping Comgas fulfill its customers' product and service needs. Comgas is our first
major Latin American customer, and we are confident that it is just the first of many
new SPL partnerships in this region.”

HH

About SPL. WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed
customer management solutions to the energy and service-related industries in
regulated and competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful
implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in
providing flexible and scalable customer management solutions that evolve with
client requirements and enable unrivalled business responsiveness. SPL employs
over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia Pacific and has

2/3/2003
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delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water and
waste management customers worldwide.

About Comgas

Comgas, Brazil's largest distribution company, serves approximately 350,000
customers (including 570 industrial and 7 000 commercial facilities) in the country's
industrial heartland. The company is jointly owned by BG (British Gas) plc. and
Royal Dutch Sheii.

About Deloitte Consulting

Deloitte Consulting is one of the world's leading management consulting firms, and
is uniquely known for its straightforward approach to solving today's most complex
business challenges. Deloitte Consultants work hand-in-hand with clients to
improve business performance, drive shareholder value, and create competitive
advantage. The firm has 15,000 professionals in 33 countries, and serves more
than one-third of the companies in the Global Fortune® 500. It is the only
consulting firm with five straight appearances on Fortune Magazine's list of "100
Best Companies to Work for in America.” The firm recently announced that it will
change its name to Braxton later this year. Deloitte consulting site: www.dc.com.

For More Information:

To learn more about SPL WorldGroup, or to request a full media kit, please
contact Richard Virgilio at Stephenson Group for SPL WorldGroup at (873)
989-1177, or Tracey Mitchell at (873) 401-7525.

©2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. Ali Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup, SPL, and
CorDaptix are trademarks owned by SPL WorldGroup 8.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL
WorldGroup, SPL, and CorDaptix and are registered as trademarks in the United
States and in certain other jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company
names herein are used for identification purposes only and are the property of
their respective owners,

Except for the historical information contained herein, this press release contains
forward-locking statements that involve risk or uncertainties. Future operating
results of SPL WaorldGroup may differ from the results discussed or forecasted in
the forward-looking statements due to factors that include, but are not limited to,
risks associated with customer relations, such as the availability of SPL products
and services, customer implementation of products and services, third-party
vendors and systems integrators, the pace of deregulation in the global utility
industry, concentration of revenues in a relatively small number of customers,
significant current and expected additional competition and the need to continue
to expand preoduct distribution and services offerings.

Copyright © 2003 SPL WorldGroup. All rights reserved
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SPL WorldGroup's CD Hobbs to Offer View of
the Future at Energy IT Conference

Morristown, NJ, November 7, 2002 — CD Hobbs, President & CEO of SPL
WorldGroup, will speak about the technologies, products and R&D trends that have
the potential to transform energy company operations in the 21st century on
November 8 at the Energy IT conference in Las Vegas.

Innovation, Hobbs points out, is key to capitalizing on the power of technology. "We
define innovation as the capacity for first thought,” Hobbs says. "The true direction
of the markets lies in the collection of ‘first thoughts’ that manifest in the markets,
versus any one of them."

Hobbs continues, "Unlike the formation of the energy industry, which relied on first
thoughts around science applied to generation, transmission and distribution
technelogies; the foundation for current transformation of the energy industry lies in
first thoughts around energy markets, products and services. Information
technology plays in the foreground of these market innovations, overshadowing
developments in transmission, distribution and generating technologies."

Commenting on those who see the energy industry as turning away from
innovation, Hobbs says, "Not every market player has put its head in the sand or
pulled back into its shell." That doesn't mean, however, that all innovation goes in
the right direction. "Trading innovators are reeling from non-productive ‘first
thoughts’ about how to shape that market sector,” he points out. "Regulators are
reeling from non-productive market structures and poor attention to infrastructure
requirements of deregulatory schemes.” On the other hand, Hobbs says, "Market
restructuring is alive and well, and innovators continue to experiment and look for
the gold at the end of the rainbow.”

Other futurists on the platform with Hobbs will be Nick Noecker, IBM; Jeff Wacker,
EDS; and John Boucher, KEMA Consulting. Jon Arnold, Editor-in-Chief of Platt's
Energy Business and Technology Magazine, will moderate the group’s discussion.
Energy IT is presented by the American Gas Association, the Edison Electric
Institute, and Platts.

More information about the conference is located at: www.platts.com/energyitexpo

SPL, a conference sponsor, will exhibit its industry-leading CorDaptix™ customer
management product at Booth #200.

2/3/2003



SPL PR: CD Hobbs to Offer View of the Future at Energy IT Page 2 of 2

HH
About SPL WorldGroup
Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed
customer management solutions to the energy and service-related industries in
regulated and competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful
implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in
providing flexible and scalable customer management solutions that evolve with
client requirements and enable unrivalled business responsiveness. SPL employs
over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia Pacific and has
delivered its customer management products tc more than 50 energy, water and
waste management customers worldwide.

About CorDaptix™

SPL's CorDaptix is the innovative, adaptable and fully upgradeable customer
management product designed to provide scalable solutions that withstand the test
of time, growth, and product and service line introductions and extinctions. Its
automated handling of direct-access service requests and its billing flexibility ~
including its ability to handle combinations of commodity and non-commaodity
products and services — make it particularly well suited for energy retailers.
CorDaptix scales readily from a few thousand customers to many miliions, and its
intuitive interface and customer-centric data model give retailers’ customer service
representatives the immediate information access they need to serve and retain
customers.

For More Information:

To learn more about SPL WorldGroup, or to request a full media kit, please
contact Richard Virgilio at Stephenson Group for SPL WorldGroup at (873)
989-1177, or Tracey Mitchell at (973) 401-7525.

©2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup, SPL, and
CorDaptix are trademarks owned by SPL WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL
WorldGroup, SPL, and CorDaptix and are registered as trademarks in the United
States and in certain other jurisdictions. All cther brand, product and company
names herein are used for identification purposes only and are the property of
their respective owners.

Except for the historical information contained herein, this press release contains
forward-looking statements that invelve risk or uncertainties. Future operating
resuits of SPL WorldGroup may differ from the results discussed or forecasted in
the forward-looking statements due to factors that include, but are nct iimited to,
risks associated with customer relations, such as the availability of SPL products
and services, customer implementation of products and services, third-party
vendors and systems integrators, the pace of deregulation in the global utility
industry, concentration of revenues in a relatively small number of customers,
significant current and expected additional competition and the need to continue
to expand product distribution and services offerings.

Copyright & 2003 SPL WorldGroup. Al rights reserved
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SPL Reports Sharp Rise in the Quarter’s Revenue

Morristown, NJ, November 18, 2002 — SPL WorldGroup, the leading provider of customer management solutions
to the global energy, water, waste management, and services industries, reported that the quarter ending September
30 saw a 23 percent rise in revenue over the same quarter in 2001, from $22.689 million to $27.971 million.

“SPL’s worldwide reputation for outstanding products and services continues to expand,” said SPL President and
CEO CD Hobbs. “While market uncertainties have depressed overall utility spending on information technology,
our customers recognize the need to provide outstanding customer service. CorDaptix™ customer management
software is an investment that will pay off no matter what the future holds.”

The high-performance quarter follows SPL’s announcement in September that its fiscal year ending June 30 broke
all previous records, with revenue exceeding $100 million—a 15 percent growth over the previous year’s results.

Hobbs said he was particularly pleased given the overall state of the industry. “For internal purposes,” he explained,
“we benchmark against a group of 131 leading software companies, as evaluated by an independent research firm.
Comparing this quarter with the same quarter a year ago, revenue in that group dropped 1.1%; and growth for that
same group in the 12 months ending in September was a negative 5.1 percent.”

Earlier this year, the SPL Board of Directors directed management to change the company's fiscal year to coincide
with the calendar year. As a result, SPL is currently in a 6-month transition period that will end in December. The
company will begin its next full fiscal year on January 1, 2003.

HHH#

About SPL

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer management solutions to the
energy and service related industries in regulated and competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of
successful implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and
scalable customer management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable unrivaled business
responsiveness. SPL has delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water and waste
management customers worldwide. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia
Pacific.

SPL WORLDGROUP, INC.
157 HEADQUARTERS PLAZA NORTH TOWER 8™ FLOOR MORRISTOWN NJ 07960 TEL:973-539-6268 FAX:973-539-3785
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Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973) 539-6268 (New Jersey), (866) 468-6775 (San Francisco),
or within the US and Canada, (800) 275-4775.

© 2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup, SPL, and CorDaptix are trademarks owned
by SPL WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup, SPL, and CorDaptix are registered as trademarks
in the United States and in certain other jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company names herein are
used for identification purposes only and are the property of their respective owners.

SPL WORLDGROUP, INC.

157 HEADQUARTERS PLAZA NORTH TOWER 8™ FLOOR MORRISTOWN NJ 07960 TEL:973-539-6268 FAX:973-539-3785
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Las Vegas Valley Water District Chooses
SPL WorldGroup’s Customer Management System

Morristown, NJ, November 26, 2002 — After a wide-ranging, 18-month evaluation, Las Vegas Valley
Water District (LVVWD) has chosen a customer management system from SPL WorldGroup to replace
its in-house utility billing system. LVVWD will license PeopleSoft CIS-Utility Billing Software,
developed by SPL, and contract directly with SPL for implementation services. The total value of the
license and service contracts to SPL is estimated to exceed $5 million.

The evaluation processes involved a number of demonstrations, responses and follow-ups to the LVVWD
Request for Proposals, and a number of detailed gap analysis meetings to define/refine the project scope.

According to the public documents supporting the LVVWD Board of Director’s June 4 Agenda:

The District’s current billing system, WSIS, is now over fifteen years old and is no longer capable
of meeting current and future needs. A team, with representation from all affected departments,
developed District-wide requirements for the new system. After a thorough evaluation of the
technical capabilities of various products, PeopleSoft’s CIS software was selected. . . . [to] support
billing and customer service activities. The new system will be integrated with the following
systems: Avaya telephone system, meter reading, remittance processing, general ledger, accounts
payable, collections, work order management, mobile workforce management, and engineering
project management.

“Las Vegas Valley Water District is an industry leader in initiatives to ensure continuing water service to
a burgeoning population in a desert environment,” said SPL. CEO CD Hobbs. “We look forward to
working with LVVWD as they expand vital communications with and services to Southern Nevada
consumers and businesses.”

HeEH#H

SPL WORLDGROUP, INC.
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About Las Vegas Valley Water District

The Las Vegas Valley Water District, created in 1954, provides water to more than 800,000 people at almost 300,000 premises
in Southern Nevada.

LVVWD has 850 employees and is governed by an elected seven-member board of Clark County Commissioners. It is a
member agency of the Southern Nevada Water Authority, formed in 1991 to manage the region's water resources and develop
solutions that will ensure adequate future water supplies for the Las Vegas Valley.

More information is available at www.lvvwd.com or by calling 702-258-3930.

About SPL

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer management solutions to the energy and
service related industries in regulated and competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful
implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and scalable customer
management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable unrivaled business responsiveness. SPL has delivered
its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water and waste management customers worldwide. SPL employs
over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia Pacific.

Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973) 539-6268 (New Jersey), (866) 468-6775 (San Francisco), or within the
US and Canada, (800) 275-4775.

SPL WORLDGROUP, INC.
157 HEADQUARTERS PLAZA NORTH TOWER 8™ FLOOR MORRISTOWN, NJ 07960 TEL:973-539-6268 FAX:973-539-2843



Robert Brnilovich Joins SPL WorldGroup To Head Global
Customer Management Services Operations

December 9, 2002, Morristown, NJ, USA — CD Hobbs, CEO of SPL WorldGroup,
announced today that Robert Brnilovich is SPL's new Senior Vice President, Global
Professional Services. Brnilovich, who had an extensive career with leading systems
integrators BearingPoint, (formerly KPMG), Andersen, and
PricewaterhouseCoopers, will have operating authority over worldwide product
installations, business technology transformation services, and global training.

For the past 18 years, Brnilovich has directed utility-industry customer technology
projects throughout North America, focusing on CIS/CRM and ERP strategies,
process reengineering, and organization realignment. “With his broad experience in
providing end-to-end solutions for core business processes,” Hobbs said, “he will
strengthen SPL’s position as the market leader in customer management and lead
the deployment of the next generation of services that surround our CorDaptix™
customer management product.”

Hobbs further explained, “SPL is intimately involved in our customers’
implementations—in fact, we have 11 sites that are ‘going live’ this quarter alone. As
our clients engage us earlier in their business-case evaluations, our services must
keep pace with and anticipate our customers’ needs. Today, we see other vendors
moving away from a deep vertical focus on energy in an attempt to reduce both R&D
and operating expenses; but SPL has expanded energy-related R&D, training
investments, and strategic initiatives. We remain committed to energy and to our
clients’ success.”

“SPL,” said Brnilovich, “is the energy industry’s customer-management leader. SPL’s
CorDaptix solution as well as its business and process experience stand head and
shoulders above the rest of the marketplace. And SPL's unprecedented revenue
growth over the past year is witness to the fact that energy companies recognize and
appreciate this excellence.

“I am committed,” he concluded, “to ensuring that SPL continues to support energy
companies around the world, supplying them with top-quality products and services
that will enable them to respond to tomorrow's challenging market conditions.”

#HHEHH

About SPL

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer management
solutions to the energy and service related industries in regulated and competitive markets worldwide.
With a 100% record of successful implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the
market leader in providing flexible and scalable customer management solutions that evolve with
client requirements and enable unrivaled business responsiveness. SPL has delivered its customer
management products to more than 50 energy, water and waste management customers worldwide.
SPL employs more than 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia Pacific.

Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call 1-973-539-6268 (New Jersey), 44-207-851-
6840 (London), or 61-2-8258-8200 (Sydney), Within the US and Canada, call 1-800-275-4775.

About CorDaptix



SPL's CorDaptix™ is the innovative, adaptable and fully upgradeable customer management product
designed to provide scalable solutions that withstand the test of time, growth, and product and service
line introductions and extinctions. Its automated handling of direct-access service requests and its
billing flexibility—including its ability to handle combinations of commodity and non-commodity
products and services—make it particularly well suited for energy retailers. The CorDaptix solution
scales readily from a few thousand customers to many millions, and its intuitive interface and
customer-centric data model give retailers’ customer service representatives the immediate
information access they need to serve and retain customers.

© 2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup, SPL, and CorDaptix are
trademarks owned by SPL WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are
registered as trademarks in the United States and in certain other jurisdictions. All other brand,
product and company names herein are used for identification purposes only and are the property of
their respective owners.
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Partnership with SPL WorldGroup Helps Minnesota Power
Save Money, Lead in Customer Management

Morristown, NJ, December 11, 2002 - “We’re saving $3-to-$4 million annually as a result of the new system.” That’s the
estimate of Pat Mullen, vice president for distribution operations and customer service at Duluth-based Minnesota Power—an
SPL WorldGroup customer for more than a decade.

Benefits

Using its SPL system, Minnesota Power has been able to:

Provide single-billing capability for multiple utility services, loan repayments, and rents on land around reservoirs leased
for vacation cottages.

Consolidate the City of Duluth’s previous 450 utility bills into one monthly statement.

Reduce customer service staff while simultaneously holding steady or improving customer service satisfaction. The
reduction was possible because the new system permitted administrative work, previously divided among area offices, to
be centralized in a Call Center. Area offices remained in place but were closed to walk-in service.

Slash the need for programmers from an entire department to one. System users can implement rate changes over one or
two days that previously required months.

Level workload, thus improving efficiency. “The system is intuitive,” says CIS Administrator Luann Lavalley, “so staff
can readily switch among positions.”

Enable “what-if” scenario development that fully vets business propositions before implementation.

Facilitate outsourcing of bill printing and mailing and the negotiation of better rates with outside credit and collections
service providers.

educe training costs. ere’s a good flow from screen to screen,” says Lavalley, “which helps users learn.
Reduce tr ts. “Th d flow fr t ” says Lavalley, “which help 1 »

Permit data entry from many different sources, ensuring complete records and shortening conversations with new
customers.

Schedule services. Concurrent meter reads and disconnects, for instance, reduce field personnel costs.

Green Programs

As customers explore ways to reduce energy’s environmental impact, Minnesota Power’s new Rate Subsystem:

Automatically nets out bills for a customer with a windmill and two meters—one measuring grid electricity consumed, the
other measuring electricity sold back to the grid.

Captures data that permits a single-meter approach to combined grid consumption and sellback for large co-generators.
SPL WORLDGROUP, INC.

157 HEADQUARTERS PLAZA NORTH TOWER 8™ FLOOR MORRISTOWN NJ 07960 TEL:973-539-6268 FAX:973-538-3785
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¢ Accommodates weatherization credits and other conservation initiatives.

® Provides tables and graphics that help customers manage consumption.

Both Lavalley and Mullen praise SPL staff’s technical and industry. “They’re interested in our business,” says Mullen. “Our
system has already exceeded our cost and quality expectations, but SPL still wants to help us make our business better.”

That’s a commitment that will continue, says SPL CEO CD Hobbs. “Our work with Minnesota Power has been invaluable to
the evolution of our CorDaptix™ customer management product,” he says. “We share Minnesota Power’s customer-centric
vision, and we are gratified to play a role in the many ways they support and serve their community.”

HAHHA

About Minnesota Power

Minnesota Power, an ALLETE company (NYSE: ALE) (www.allete.com), is an investor-owned utility that serves 145,000
customers in northeastern Minnesota and northwestern Wisconsin with affordable electricity. The company supplies wholesale
electric power to 16 municipal systems and markets power across the Midwest through its membership in Split Rock Energy
LLC.

About SPL WorldGroup
Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer management solutions. With
a 100% record of successful implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader,
providing companies with flexible and scalable customer management solutions that offer a crucial advantage in an
increasingly customer-centric environment—the proven ability to attract, nurture and maximize the value of
customers through billing excellence and innovation in customer management, sales and marketing. With
particular strength in energy sector markets that require multi-language, multi-jurisdiction, multi-currency, and multi-
product service lines, SPL has delivered its customer management solutions to financial services, energy, water
and waste management customers worldwide. The company employs more than 650 professionals in North
America, Europe, and Asia Pacific.

Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call 1-973-539-6268 (New Jersey), 1-866-468-6775 (San Francisco), or,
within the US and Canada, 1-800-275-4775.

About CorDaptix

SPL's CorDaptix™ is the innovative, adaptable and fully upgradeable customer management product designed to provide
scalable solutions that withstand the test of time, growth, and product and service line introductions and extinctions. Its
automated handling of direct-access service requests and its billing flexibility—including its ability to handle combinations of
commodity and non-commodity products and services—make it particularly well suited for energy retailers. CorDaptix scales
readily from a few thousand customers to many millions, and its intuitive interface and customer-centric data model give
retailers’ customer service representatives the immediate information access they need to serve and retain customers.

© 2002 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup, SPL, and CorDaptix are
trademarks owned by SPL WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are
registered as trademarks in the United States and in certain other jurisdictions. All other brand,
product and company names herein are used for identification purposes only and are the
property of their respective owners.

SPL WORLDGROUP, INC.
157 HEADQUARTERS PLAZA NORTH TOWER 8™ FLOOR MORRISTOWN NJ 07960 TEL:973-539-6268 FAX:973-539-3785
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Nine Go-Lives Accelerate SPL WorldGroup’s End-of-Year Momentum

Implementations take place around the world for multiple services at large and small,
regulated and competitive, investor-owned, co-op, and municipal utilities

Morristown, NJ, February 3, 2003 — SPL WorldGroup announced today during the final four
months of 2002, an additional 17 million service points received bills through SPL’s customer
management solutions.

The new service points result from nine customer go-lives during the period:

¢ Nicor Gas, Illinois, USA, went live on September 1 with a credit and collection system from
SPL. Nicor is continuing to implement additional components from the CorDaptix customer
management series.

e AGL in South Australia, went live on September 9 with 750,000 service points.

e On October 15, the City of Tallahassee, Florida, USA, went live with 90,000 customers and a
total of seven services (electric, gas, water, sewer, storm water, solid waste and fire service).

e Envestra, Australia’s largest natural gas distributor went live on October 26 with a
distribution version of CorDaptix, with 470,000 service points.

e Working with Houston firm ACS, Rappahannock Electric Co-op implemented CorDaptix on
November 4 as part of its participation in Virginia’s deregulating electricity market.

e On the same day, half-way around the world, TXU Australia went live with 430,000 service
points.

o Eskom, which generates 95% of the electricity used in South Africa, implemented CorDaptix
on November 11 for 700,000 commercial, industrial and residential customers.

SPL WORLDGROUP, INC.

157 HEADQUARTERS PLAZA NORTH TOWER 8™ FLOOR MORRISTOWN, NJ 07960 TEL:973-539-6268 FAX:973-530-
2843
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e Knoxville Utilities Board in Tennessee, USA, went live on November 25 with 200,000
customers. ‘

o The largest of the end-of-year implementations took place at PG&E, which went live on
December 6 with approximately 10 million service points being billed monthly.

“SPL’s customer management solutions are the choice of a wide range of companies, including
regulated, deregulated, investor-owned, municipally-owned, and co-operative utilities,” said CD
Hobbs, SPL Chief Executive Officer. “These last few months have set new records for SPL’s
implementation teams and have demonstrated our ongoing dedication to the highest level of
customer service.”

- MORE -

About SPL WorldGroup, Inc.

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer management solutions to the
energy and service related industries in regulated and competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of
successful implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and
scalable customer management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable unrivaled business
responsiveness. SPL has delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water and waste
management customers worldwide. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia
Pacific.

Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973) 539-6268 (New Jersey), (866) 468-6775 (San Francisco),
or within the US and Canada, (800) 275-4775.
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Pacific Gas & Electric and SPL WorldGroup
Implement World’s Largest Packaged Energy
Billing System

CorDaptix™ Customer Management Solution Handles 6.7
Million+ Accounts and 10 Million+ Service Agreements,
Processes 250,000+ Bills Per Night

Morristown, New Jersey - February 24, 2003: SPL WorldGroup today released
information on the successful go-live of the largest packaged CIS application
running anywhere in the global energy industry, at California’s Pacific Gas and
Electric (PG&E).

SPL’s CorDaptix™ solution went live at PG&E December 8, replacing a legacy
billing system that could meet neither the company's strategic objectives nor
customers’ needs for real-time information.

With CorDaptix in place, PG&E now has the platform on which to build flexible
programs that can make rapid changes and improve response time to customers.

“The PG&E installation of SPL's CorDaptix product is, at this point in time, the
largest customer management system ever in operation within the global energy
industry,” according to META industry analyst Zarko Sumic. “PG&E needed a
robust system that could handle the rigorous environment of the California
marketplace.”

Calculating bills at PG&E is complex. While Californians are currently under an
electricity rate freeze, there are constant changes to the financials underlying bill
components. The company must perform a large number of bill calculations —
about 150 per bill for the most basic residential customer, and up to 450 to create
one bill for a standard industrial and commercial firm; it must also handle muitiple
versions of bills for both gas and electricity.

"SPL has worked hand and hand with PG&E through many months of a very
complex imptementation,” says SPL CEO CD Hobbs. “PG&E’s focus and
unrelenting commitment to bringing in the largest CIS application ever to run in the
energy industry speaks to the leadership and keen project management of both
organizations. PG&E has confronted marketplace change with innovation and a
commitment to success.”

2/24/2003
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About Pacific Gas & Electric
Pacific Gas and Electric Company, incorporated in California in 1905, is one of the
largest combination natural gas and electric utilities in the United States, serving 13
million people throughout a2 70,000-square-mile service area in Northern and
Central California. Based in San Francisco, the company is a wholly owned
subsidiary of PG&E Corporation.

About CorDaptix™

SPL's CorDaptix solution is the innovative, adaptable and fully upgradeable
customer management product designed to provide scalable solutions that
withstand the test of time, growth, and product and service line introductions and
extinctions. Its automated handling of direct-access service requests and its billing
flexibility—including its ability to handle combinations of commodity and non-
commodity products and services—make it particularly well suited for energy
retailers. The CorDaptix solution scales readily from a few thousand customers to
many millions, and its intuitive interface and customer-centric data mode! give
retailers’ customer service representatives the immediate information access they
need to serve and retain customers.

About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed
customer management solutions. With a 100% record of successful
implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader,
providing companies with flexible and scalable customer management solutions
that offer a crucial advantage in an increasingly customer-centric environment—the
proven ability to attract, nurture and maximize the value of customers through
billing excellence and innovation in customer management, sales and marketing.
With particular strength in energy sector markets that require multi-language, multi-
jurisdiction, multi-currency, and multi-product service lines, SPL has delivered its
customer management solutions to financial services, energy, water and waste
management customers worldwide. The company employs more than 650
professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia Pagific.

For More information:

To learn more about SPL WorldGroup, or to request a full media kit, please
contact Richard Virgilio at Stephenson Group for SPL WorldGroup at (973)
988-1177, or Tracey Mitchell at (973) 401-7525.

©2003 SPL WoridGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup, SPL, and
CorDaptix are trademarks owned by SPL WoridGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL
WorldGroup, SPL, and CorDaptix and are registered as trademarks in the United
States and in certain other jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company
names herein are used for identification purposes only and are the property of
their respective owners.

Except for the historical information contained herein, this press release contains
forward-looking statements that involve risk or uncertainties. Future operating
results of SPL WorldGroup may differ from the results discussed or forecasted in
the forward-looking statements due to factors that include, but are not limited to,
risks associated with customer relations, such as the availability of SPL products
and services, customer implementation of products and services, third-party
vendors and systems integrators, the pace of deregulation in the global utility
industry, concentration of revenues in a relatively small number of customers,
significant current and expected additional competition and the need to continue
to expand product distribution and services offerings.

Copyright © 2003 SPL WoridGroup. All rights reserved
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FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

Contacts:

Deborah Biscomb

SPL WorldGroup

44 20 7851 6845
deborah_biscomb@splwg.com

SPL WorldGroup Releases Customer
Management Solution CorDaptix™ in French

Morristown, New Jersey - February 26, 2003: SPL WorldGroup has announced
that its industry-leading CorDaptix ™ customer management software is now
available in French. Electricite? de France is the first SPL customer to use the new
version.

“CorDaptix in French goes far beyond the translated—or partially transtated—
screens that many companies call multi-language support,” says SPL Chief
Technology Officer Guerry Waters. “In our case, everything the user sees—error
messages, documentation—is in colloguial French. Codes derive from French;
there's no clumsy use of ‘w,’ for instance, to indicate ‘water,’ because the French
word for ‘water dcesn’t begin with a 'w.”

Even more important, Waters says, is the fact that “CorDaptix in French
incorparates French as part of base product. It's not part of an implementation
project—it's not added on at the site. And SPL is supporting French on an cngoing
basis; upgrades will also be shipped with French already incorporated. That's part
of our commitment to rapid upgradability and overall efficiency.”

Using CorDaptix in French, Waters explained, “French-only end users can perform
all functions, without reference to English-language documents or programs. That
speeds learning and reduces errors.”

And because SPL implements language information at the database level, Waters
explains, it is both easy and efficient for one organization to make the system
available to its staff in multiple languages. “Each user has a default language
associated with the log-in ID,” says Waters, “and that is the language presented on
screen. Two colleagues can be looking at the same time at the same customer
record, but one can see the fields labeled in French, the other in English.”

Development

The process of developing CorDaptix in French involved a holistic approach that
SPL is following as it makes CorDaptix available in other languages. Elements
include:

2 A linguistic team (in this case, SPL staff in France, professional translators,
and industry professionals) whose members review all CorDaptix processes
and, based directly on their findings, develop a glossary of hundreds of
industry terms.

¢ Machine translation of all labels and terms used in the system.

http://www.splwg.c m/m in/pr/022603_french.shtml 2/26/2003
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& Review of all information by the linguistic team and by additional native
speakers within the context of CorDaptix. These reviewers use the product
and specially developed scripts to verify translations and ensure that all
processes are described correctly.

« Complete translations of SPL’s extensive language elements, including
labels, drop down lists, tool tips, system data, error messages, and online
user documentation—everything an end user sees when using the system.

“It is rare for software companies to take this holistic approach to multi-language
software development,” says SPL CEO CD Hobbs. "SPL leads the pack in this
area.”

Hobbs further explains, “Providing and fully supporting the CorDaptix customer
management product in multiple languages is part of SPL’s long-term commitment
to the global marketplace.”

_ HHH
About SPL WorldGroup
Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed
customer management solutions to the energy and service related industries in
regulated and competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful
implementations, SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in
providing flexible and scalable customer management solutions that evolve with
client requirements and enable unrivaled business responsiveness. SPL has
delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy, water and
waste management customers worldwide. SPL employs over 600 professionals in
North America, Europe, and Asia Pacific.

Call +44 207 851 6840 (London}), +33-01-4803-7850 (Paris), 973-539-6268 (New
Jersey), 866-468-6775 (San Francisco), 800-275-4775 (within the US and
Canada), +61-2-8258-8200 (Sydney), or +61-3-9674-8300 (Melbourne),

For More Information:

To learn more about SPL WorldGroup, or to request a full media kit, please
contact Richard Virgilio at Stephenson Group for SPL WorldGroup at (873)
989-1177, or Tracey Mitchell at (873) 401-7525.

©2003 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup, SPL, and
CorDaptix are trademarks owned by SPL WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL
WorldGroup, SPL, and CorDaptix and are registered as trademarks in the United
States and in certain other jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company
names herein are used for identification purposes only and are the property of
their respective owners.

Except for the historical information contained herein, this press release contains
forward-looking statements that involve risk or uncertainties. Future operating
results of SPL WorldGroup may differ from the results discussed or forecasted in
the forward-looking statements due to factors that include, but are not timited to,
risks associated with customer relations, such as the availability of SPL products
and services, customer implementation of products and services, third-party
vendors and systems integrators, the pace of deregulation in the global utility
industry, concentration of revenues in a relatively small number of customers,
significant current and expected additional competition and the need to continue
to expand product distribution and services offerings.

Copyright © 2003 SPL WorldGroup. All rights reserved
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SPL WorldGroup B.V. [

Report to Shareholders
July 11, 2001

Dear Shareholder:

We are pleased to provide you with this latest Shareholder Letter. We would like to share with you some of
the principal events over the past few months.

Launch of CorDaptix™

We are very proud to announce the launch of our new customer management product, CorDaptix™. We
timed the launch to occur at the annual CIS conference, held in Albuquerque, New Mexico in May, which is
the premier utility conference in the US. We had excellent visibility at the conference and it did not hurt that
one of the keynote speakers stated in his address that SPL has licensed more systems to the largest investor-
owned utilities in the US than any other IT company. Our CorDaptix solution is a fully web-enabled solution
that has been re-architectured to make it the most powerful and flexible customer management solution
available to the utility industry. It comprises the key functionality desired by the utility industry today, and is
architectured in such a way that new functionality can be easily added through plug-in modules as the
industry continues to evolve and new functionality is needed. We are actively marketing CorDaptix not only
to new customers, but also to our many existing customers who are using our prior CIS PLUS® solution.

At the end of June, we celebrated the European launch of CorDaptix at the successful industry conference
that was held in Vienna, Austria. The Pan-Asian launch is scheduled for the last week in July in Australia.
At the conclusion of this launch program, CorDaptix will be available worldwide as SPL’s flagship customer
management product.

New Management Appointments

Michael Tabbert joined SPL as our Senior Vice President of Global Sales. Mike came to us from two well-
known IT vendors to the utility industry: Indus International and Severn Trent. I am also pleased to
announce that Joanne Kelley joined us in May from my former employer, META Group, where she ran
META’s consulting business. I have asked Joanne to form for us a high-end strategic consulting practice,
which will be called our Transformance™ Group. Finally, Hettie Wiesner, who has served SPL in many
capacities over the years, has been named our Vice President of International Marketing, based in Australia.
Hettie will provide leadership of our marketing initiatives in both EMEA (Europe, Middle East and Africa)
and the Asia-Pacific region.

Office News

After many years in our Manila office and no further room to grow, we are moving into larger space. Our
Manila staff works on our projects throughout the world and will be a key adjunct to our product
development group in developing additional modules to our new CorDaptix product. In Europe, we are
increasing our presence as well. In London, we are moving from temporary space to regular offices. In
Paris, we are expanding our existing office to better handle our work for Electricité de France. In March,
WorldGroup Consulting, our former affiliate, vacated space we were sharing at our San Francisco offices.
This has allowed us to consolidate and reduce some of the space we were occupying in San Francisco.



Recent Wins

Over the past few months, we have been awarded various projects. Most recently, through our partner,
PeopleSoft, Inc., we won the bid to supply the customer management system to Waste Management, Inc., the
largest waste company in the United States. This win was particularly important because it demonstrates the
flexibility of our system to address customer management outside of the traditional electric, water and gas
utility field. The project was also important because it was a good victory over SAP AG, the German ERP
vendor, that has become our principal competitor at large utilities. We also won a large project for the
Jacksonville Electric Authority in Florida; Delta Energy, a Rotterdam-based electric company; Nicor Gas in
Chicago; Alliant Energy in Wisconsin; and, Eskom, the largest utility in South Africa. In the smaller
municipal utility industry, we completed projects for Benton Public Utility District and EnWin Utilities Ltd.
in Ontario, Canada.

PG&E Bankruptcy

When we won the PG&E project a few years ago, [ am sure no one would have believed that we would have
to report that PG&E filed a petition in bankruptcy. PG&E did file a reorganization petition in April to
protect itself from price imbalances largely caused by the new laws deregulating the California electric
industry. The reorganization procedure is designed to allow PG&E to restructure its debt and return to
normal operations. Notwithstanding PG&E’s regulatory problems, we remain a strategic vendor to PG&E
and continue to do work for them. Since PG&E’s bankruptcy filing, our bills for current work continue to be
paid on time.

Marketing News

Over the past few months, I believe the Company’s marketing efforts have hit their stride. Our product
brochures and press kit deliver a professional and consistent message surrounding CorDaptix. The major
industry publications feature our product and, since my last letter to the shareholders, I have published
various articles in the energy industry press. A copy of one of these articles and of our press releases over
the past months accompany this letter.

Investor Relations
We would like to hear from you if you have any questions our comments. Please contact us at
investor_relations@splwg.com or feel free to call me directly at the Morristown, New Jersey office (973)

451-4238.

Personal regards,

CD Hobbs
President and CEO



Management strategy
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By CD HoBBS

The rules of the energy industry are
changing so quickly that companies
uld be wasting resources fine-
tuning business processes that may
become obsoi@t@l To cope, CEOs
must make tho rms more focused

§ead@rs and p@rsorm@% of @nergy
companies will need new
information and new skills—among
them an u;'wderstandmg- of change
visionary
I{iaadf;}ffsh;;) s{y e, and {,E’}@ rght
strategic partners

Tt
S

he energy industry general-
ly accepts the pursuit of oper-
ating excellence as a valid
management strategy. In the-
ory, companies that find ways
to make their business processes run
more efficiently minimize their pro-
duction costs. Those lower costs then
lead to a larger market share, greater
profitability, the opportunity to acquire
competitors, a higher stock price, and
a more favorable credit rating that
reduces the company’s cost of the cap-
ital needed to fuel further growth.
So goes the operating excellence
paradigm—in theory. In practice, how-
ever, energy companies that focus on
improving operating efficiency alone
could be unwittingly setting the stage
for their failure or their own acquisi-
tion. Why? Because they ignore the
fact that business models for energy pro-
duction, trading, delivery, and mar-
keting are changing more rapidly than
ever—in some jurisdictions, literally
overnight. Like lemmings that follow
the herd over the cliff and into the sea,
energy companies that blindly buy into
today’s ascendant philosophy of oper-
ating excellence could find that they
have become world-class in business
processes that an evolving energy envi-
ronment has rendered obsolete.

Global Energy Business, January/February 2001



Three fundamental presuppositions
are required to support the position
that energy companies are over-focus-
ing on operating excellence:

1. With the exception of the oil sec-
tor, the energy industry was unaffect-
ed by the operating excellence move-
ment of the 1970s and 1980s because
its wholesale and retail segments
remained regulated worldwide. As a
result, energy executives have a pent-
up need to demonstrate that they can
achieve the same levels of operating
excellence that their colleagues in
other industries have.

2. Encouraged by Deming
and the global quality move-
ment, the operating excellence
paradigm remains very fash-
ionable at the dawn of the new
millennium. It has even proved
its validity in more stable mar-
kets. But many are confused
about why focusing on operat-
ing excellence alone doesn’t
always produce the desired
results. :

3. Privatization, deregulation
in North America, liberaliza-
tion in Europe, and their con-
sequence—the unbundling of
utilities—should be viewed as
initial efforts by governments to
lower their citizens’ and indus-
trial companies’ energy bills.
They too shall pass, because
the invisible hand of the free
market cannot work its magic in
energy while restrained by ersatz
political and deregulatory solu-
tions. Just examine the progress of
deregulation in California for a prime
example of market interference at its
worst.

These presuppositions paint a pic-
ture of industry executives anxious
to demonstrate their command of oper-
ating excellence, but forced to use
management tools whose applicabil-
ity is ephemeral. The interference of
regulators and politicians in the devel-
opment of competitive energy mar-
kets today all but guarantees that
today’s industry business model will
soon be invalid.

For this reason, operating excel-
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Operating
excellence

Cycle time
Performance

Business
strategy Business transformation window (TW)

Vianagement strategy

lence may not be the ticket to heav-
en for energy executives that it has
proved to be for leaders of compa-
nies in other competitive industries.
But that doesn’t mean that the para-
digm should be thrown out with the
bath water, so to speak. For energy
executives, crafting a successful cor-
porate flight plan—given today’s very
unsettled climate—requires striking
a delicate balance between excellence
and innovation.

Each CEO must determine how much
to spend on improving existing busi-
ness processes, and how much on

1. TransFormance model

Cycle time

efforts to uncover, borrow, adapt,
and/or adopt new ones of unproven
but potentially great worth. Ideally,
this decision will be company-spe-
cific and informed by several key fac-
tors—such as the characteristics of
the company’s targeted market, and
whether its business is energy gener-
ation, transmission, trading, delivery,
or marketing. To an energy company
and its personnel and shareholders,
the relative share of resources to be allo-
cated to excellence and innovation is
perhaps the most important and chal-
lenging one a CEO will make. But
that’s why CEOs make telephone-

number salaries. For as the remain-
der of this article shows, what is just
as important as understanding and
using management theories and devel-
oping strategies to exploit them is a
CEQ’s ability to lead.

Transforming while
performing

TransFormance™ is a term coined to
describe the CEQO’s challenge to trans-
form the business while sustaining its
financial performance. In the act of
TransFormance, executives must make
tradeoffs between adopting a new
business strategy and improving the
performance of the company’s
existing one. Figure 1 illustrates the
relationship between operating
excellence and business strategy
transformation.
The TransFormance model
depicts two windows of oppor-

Industry  tunity. The business performance
;. business . . .
model  window (PW}) is the cycle time

required to drive business process-
es to their limit of operating
excellence. The business trans-
formation window (TW) is the
cycle time required to introduce
anew business tactic, for exam-
ple, choosing an energy suppli-
er. The intersection of these two
windows, Sg, is the business strat-
egy chosen to correspond to the
durations of the two windows of
opportunity. Sg, in other words,
is the time needed to achieve
excellence in operations in busi-
ness processes, while those process-
es remain part of the prevailing indus-
try business model.

The achievement of operating excel-
lence and the prevailing industry busi-
ness model are contextually related. The
relationship between the cycle times
of the two windows is crucial to a
multitude of choices that executives
must make. If TW is relatively short-
er than PW, for example, more exec-
utive attention will have to be paid to
maintaining a relevant business model
than to becoming adept at operating
within the prevailing industry busi-
ness model.
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NMew age, new
windows

The operating excellence para-
digm became ascendant during a
period in which the cycle time for
achieving operating excellence

2, Exploiting
op eratmg
exceliene
(PW<TH)

Transform

was shorter—often much short-

Market exploitation window

er—than the cycle time over which
the prevailing industry business
model changed. Both technology
and information played a signifi-
cant role in promoting the operating
excellence paradigm. Because
technology and information were
expensive, and information tech-
nology was immature, industry
business models changed slowly.
During this era, production tech-
nology was a primary determinant
of business model evolution in the
fields of generation, transporta-
tion, and manufacturing. But after-
wards, production technologies
also took on longer cycle times. As
performance windows grew short-
er than transformation windows
(PW<TW), competitive advan-
tage came to be defined by the
level of operating excellence
achieved in the business process-
es that were part of the prevailing
industry business model.

The change in the business envi-
ronment is illustrated in Figure 2,
which depicts the PW<TW scenario
and shows why it is advantageous to
be the first competitor in an industry
to achieve operating excellence. By

Focus of the
successful
market strategy
is efficiency
(doing things right)

becoming a lower-cost producer using
business strategy Si, a company can
exploit a market exploitation win-
dow, during which it can gain market
share and realize higher margins than
its competitors. In theory, if this mar-
ket exploitation window were to last
long enough, and its competitors were

3. The energy transformation window J

Change in the industry
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to continue to face barriers to achiev-
ing operating excellence, a firm
could end up with 100% market
share. In reality, however, com-
petitors usually close the market
exploitation window for the indus-
try leader by doing things like
improving their production tech-
nology, creating a new value propo-
sition for customers, and/or differ-
entiating their service package.

The energy
transformation window

Deregulation has added a second
page to the history of energy business
models. From the end of World War
II to 1990, the energy business and
1ts model remained largely
unchanged—despite the 1974 oil
embargo, the overbuilding of gener-
ation in the early 1980s, and the
impact of the Public Utility Regula-
tory Policies Act (Purpa) in the late
1980s. Regulation gave utilities no
incentive to pursue operating excel-
lence, because any profits reaped by
creating and exploiting a market
exploitation window would be passed
on to ratepayers. The cycle time for
transformation of energy business
models was, for all practical purpos-
es, infinity.

Beginning in 1990, the introduction
of competition into wholesale and
retail energy markets began bringing
the cycle time for transformation of
energy business models down to

Global Energy Business, January/February 2001



Earth. Figure 3 shows not only that the
cycle time for business transformation
in energy has shortened significant-
ly, but also that it continues to grow
shorter. Note also the shortening of the
duration of the performance window,
particularly for energy companies dri-
ven more by information technology
than production technology.

Also worth noting here is that the
relationship between business trans-
formation and operating excellence
cycle times is not the same across all
segments of the energy business. The
ratio of the two numbers is different in
production, trading, delivery, and mar-
keting. Although that is clear, the rea-
sons for it are not; careful analysis of
the factors that drive cycle times in
each of these segments is rare. But
while it is obvious that the greatest
activity—and shortest cycle times—
in the industry today are in marketing
and trading, any assumption that that
makes generation business models, for
instance, relatively more stable should
be taken with a grain of salt.

Exploiting the
transformation
window

Figure 4 depicts the converse
of the scenario shown in Fig-
ure 2. Here, because transfor-
mation cycle times are shorter
than performance cycle times, the
prevailing industry business
model could change more quick-
ly than a company’s efforts to
achieve operating excellence,
making them irrelevant.
Creating a market exploita-
tion window in the TW<PW sce-
nario requires that a company
be able to redefine its market
model (for example, a new cus-
tomer acquisition process, a new
form of service package, new
billing options, etc.) faster than
the competition. In a market
already characterized by rapid
change in the underlying business
model, participants are focused
on shortening the cycle even fur-
ther. Successfully truncating the

1

< Patform
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transformation cycle time produces a
new business model and a new strate-
gy, S1, surprising the market and shift-
ing demand to your product or service.
As long as competitors cannot match
the new model, the market exploita-
tion window stays open.

Shortening the cycle time of the
prevailing industry business model
represents a radically different and
innovative corporate strategy. It is
probably unduly generous to credit
this as a conscious strategy by most
energy companies today—except per-
haps a few of the more sophisticated
energy marketers or traders. Whether
conscious or unconscious, however, the
fact that shortening the industry trans-
formation cycle time is a winning
strategy underscores that pursuing
operating excellence alone is a los-
ing one—either for gaining market
share or improving profit margins.

In the TW<PW world, the prevail-
ing industry business model changes
quickly, obsoleting business process-
es faster than companies can improve

4. Exploiting innovation
T <P

Exploiting innovation
requires:

« Innovating within the
transformation window

+ Given the constraints of

.‘Pe_rforr‘ﬁ ik

the market and

technology, there is some

minimum size to the
Market " . > ~°  transformation
exploitation window—IT has been

compressing the window
since 1990

window:

“Transform.:..

them. In this game, a firm’s ability to
transform its business processes trumps
even successful efforts by its com-
petitors to achieve operating excel-
lence. Energy companies have been
slow to understand this new reality. In
a recent study of more than 120 of
them worldwide, 65% of respondents
were found to be executing a strate-
gy that focuses on achieving operat-
ing excellence. Among them, two tell-
tale characteristics stand out: (1) They
treat IT spending as a budget line
item—a cost element to be minimized;
and (2) management holds that busi-
ness strategy and technology strategy
are unrelated.

Buiiding an innovation
engine

Why do energy executives continue
to focus on tweaking business process-
es that may be blown away by the
winds of change sweeping the energy
industry? Inertia and inexperience are
two big reasons. Creating an organi-
zation capable of anticipating changes
in the structure and rules of the mar-
ket, and retooling its business process-
es to deal with them are much dif-
ferent-—and far more difficult—tasks
than building an organization capa-
ble of squeezing the last few cents of
cost from a set of stable business
processes. Energy executives, expe-
rienced at running a company in an
unchanging industry, are now essen-
tially being challenged to create in
their firm an innovation engine capa-
ble of rapidly migrating from one
industry business model to another.
Figure 5 graphically represents
this challenge. Today’s energy com-
pany must be able to quickly devel-
op the “improved” business strate-
gies Sg, S1, Sz, and S3, and—as
quickly—develop new business
processes and skill sets to support their
execution. As each change in the
industry business model takes effect,
shareholders will pressure manage-
ment to come up with a new business
strategy that is more competitively
advantageous. In turbulent times
like the present, strange new alliances
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will emerge as new strategies are test-
ed and new value propositions are
made. An example: Billboards in Penn-
sylvania offer customers a 25% discount
in their energy bill for signing up with
the New Power Company, a joint ven-
ture of Microsoft, Enron, and Amer-
ica Online.

iBde: Innovation
hefore excellence

Speaking of strange bedfellows, it
turns out that a mnemonic which should
be familiar to anyone who had trou-
ble remembering how to spell the
word “receive” correctly in grade
school also embodies the moral
of the TW<PW story. As applied
to today’s energy industry, how-
ever, iB4e stands for innovation
before excellence, and is a useful
way to remember that the former
is more important than the latter
to achieving business success.

Operating excellence still mat-
ters; energy companies must simul-
tancously transform themselves
and perform efficiently to maxi-
mize profits. Achieving excel-
lence in business processes like-
ly to survive industry restructuring
makes good management sense.
However, the message explicitly
stated by iB4e is that the suc-
cessful energy company will be
both innovative and excellent. But
iB4e also carries an implicit mes-
sage: that balancing the two is a
feat that demands real manage-
ment leadership during this period of
industry upheaval.

Changing leadership
traits

Companies that focus on operating
excellence benefit from the single,
static nature of their vision and the rigid
nature of their organizational hier-
archy. They typically use traditional
command and control practices, includ-
ing management “by the numbers,” or
profit margins. The planning cycle
is annual, and a three-to-five year
plan determines long-term financial
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commitments. Energy companies that
focus on operating excellence usu-
ally view technology and automation
as tools for increasing the efficiency
of business processes in reliable,
repeatable fashion.

By contrast, companies that focus
on innovation have multiple visions
of the future, giving them a choice of
innovation initiatives. Their leaders
are willing and able to ride more than
one strategic horse, and are prepared
to switch mounts as changes in the
industry business model alter the rel-
ative prospects for success of cor-

porate business strategies.

The dynamism of the TW<PW envi-
ronment demands that the leadership
role in an energy company be assumed
by the best qualified executive—not
the organizationally anointed leader.
Among his or her qualifications is the
ability to defer to others at appropri-
ate times, such as when someone sug-
gests an obviously excellent solution
to a thorny problem.

In companies with a strong focus
on innovation, planning is typical-
ly scenario-based and projects have
short cycle times. Many firms that
have succeeded in shortening the

cycle time of the prevailing indus-
try business model have done so
through dynamic planning, that is,
planning within the traditional annu-
al cycle, a technique that also helps
them change their strategic course
and/or implement new organizational
directions quickly.

Typically, the focus of such com-
panies is more on market position than
on profit margins. They value flexibility
and agility over perfection, and view
technology as a tool of effectiveness
rather than of efficiency—doing the
right things as opposed to doing things

right. Leaders and managers of
iB4e companies treat technology
strategy and business strategy either
as inseparable, or as two sides of
the same coin.

People, processes,
and technology

A company in an industry in tran-
sition—such as energy—requires
more than just a leader with vision.
It also needs valuable people, and
the traits that make someone valu-
able in the new, transformation-
al world are quite different than
those in the old, performance-
focused one. The best employees
a company seeking to reinvent
itself constantly can have are
smart, flexible people who are
comfortable dealing with ambi-
guity and risk. They can be put in
charge of the company’s innova-
tion efforts, while others who pre-
fer more stability in their daily tasks
can be made responsible for the com-
pany’s ongoing pursuit of operating
excellence. In general, it is desir-
able that all employees be able to
think at a higher contextual level
during periods of rapid industry and
company transformation. In other
words, they must be able to see the
“big picture” of change.

Business processes themselves face
similar requirements for change.
While business processes driven to
excellence tend to be well integrat-
ed and consistent, the transforma-
tional environment will componentize
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business processes for easy recom-
bination into wholly different process-
es better suited to the new market’s
new requirements and opportunities.
As competition intensifies, business
processes will become more cus-
tomer-facing than inward-focused.

To appeal to energy companies
obsessed with performance excel-
lence, technology solutions empha-
sized the gains in transaction effi-
ciency they enable. The ideal IT
solution promised low-cost, high-
volume performance through precise
functionality, and it was developed in-
house and fully integrated with other
solutions. When operating excellence
was all that mattered, the strategic
technology solutions of choice were
tightly integrated enterprise resource
planning (ERP) systems.

As the importance of innovation
has risen to equal and surpass that of
excellence, perspectives on technol-
ogy solutions have changed. To keep
pace with constantly changing indus-
try business models, IT architectures
must be adaptable. Applications will
increasingly be reduced to key com-
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ponents that can be recombined into
wholly new applications sets aimed at
supporting new business processes.
Systems will have to be scalable to exe-
cute those new processes.
Reflecting the industry’s faster evo-
lutionary pace, technologies will be
considered valuable to the extent that
they enable a company to react to
changes in the rules of the game more
quickly than the market can. They
will emphasize market intelligence,
decision support, modeling, and agili-
ty. Their key feature will be their
architectural flexibility rather than
their functionality, and they will
increasingly be off-the-shelf rather
than homegrown. The strategic tech-
nology solutions of choice will be
loosely integrated enterprise appli-
cation integration (EAI) systems,
because they are more adaptable than
tightly integrated ERP systems.
Under the new, innovation para-
digm, the integration of business and
technology strategies will take on
new significance. Accountability for
assuring that the company’s IT infra-
structure can support new business

strategies and processes will rest with
the CEO. Meanwhile, the board of
directors will establish a technolo-
gy committee to oversee the compa-
ny’s integration of its technology and
business strategies.

A few good partners

For energy companies, the final piece
of the iB4e puzzle involves the need
to forge strategic alliances. To share
the load of building an innovation
engine, suppliers, trading partners,
and even competitors will increas-
ingly seek to bond with those with
complementary corporate objectives.
Energy companies will be looking to
partner with suppliers that are equal-
ly committed to innovation.

Partners will be expected to add
insight and original thinking to the
alliance’s pursuit of its strategic
vision. They will move along paral-
lel paths through changes in the indus-
try’s business model, while remain-
ing committed to maintaining their
partners’ competitive edges. They
also will be expected to bring to the
relationship some comparative or
absolute advantage—such as a best-
of-breed solution. The most fruitful
relationships will be among partners
that are in them for the long run.

That said, it must be noted that the
short history of alliances in the ener-
gy industry hardly inspires optimism.
Suppliers’ commitment to innova-
tion waxes and wanes. Finding sup-
pliers willing to stay the course through
tough market climates has been a
challenge. Finding suppliers com-
mitted to provide migration paths
through the transformational maze
has been even more challenging. And
energy company CIOs looking to off-
the-shelf applications to maintain
their competitive edge have often
regretted their decision to rely on
third-party suppliers.

CD Hogss I1s PRESIDENT aND CEO
oF SPL WorLb Group, INC.,
San Francisco.

49



Marketing Press Release Ty

Title: Benton PUD Goes Live With SPL Customer Management Solution Author: Michele Albanese
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
Contact:
Dr. Gary M. Vasey Ms. Lori Hobbs
VasMark Group, Inc. SPL WorldGroup, Inc
(281) 681 8020 (973) 451 4237
Gary@vasmarkgroup.com Lori_hobbs@splwg.com

Benton PUD Goes Live With SPL Customer Management
Solution

Morristown, New Jersey—June 28th, 2001. SPL WorldGroup B.V. (SPL), the leading
provider of customer management solutions to the global energy industry, today announced that
the Benton Public Utility District has successfully implemented SPL’s market leading customer
management product for the municipal market. Benton PUD provides approximately 40,000
customers in the State of Washington with electric power and other services.

Anticipating the potential for de-regulation in the state, which was originally planned for October
1999 and has now been deferred indefinitely, the utility decided their internal systems needed
replacement. The PUD’s commitment to customer service warranted a customer management
system that was flexible, scalable and was designed with the energy customer in mind.  After
reviewing a number of potential solutions, they selected SPL’s customer management software
that is marketed to the municipal energy industry by PeopleSoft, Inc.

“We looked at quite a few systems during the selection process, but we found SPL’s customer
management software to be the most robust and well-designed of all the products we viewed,”
said Mr. Jack Swanson, Manager of Information Systems, Benton PUD and Project Manager for
the implementation. “We really liked the system’s flexible technical architecture and
sophisticated database structure. In fact, the SPL software provides us options to enhance
customer service levels and gives us a customer management solution that assures our ability to
respond quickly to any future regulatory or business changes.”

“Having Benton PUD go live with SPL’s customer management solution was very important to
us, especially since it was part of a larger systems implementation project.” said CD Hobbs,
President and Chief Executive Officer, SPL WorldGroup, “SPL’s 100% implementation success
record is maintained in part by employing excellent implementation and technical staff but is
also a result of the exceptional initial quality and flexibility of SPL’s software.”



About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer
management solutions to the energy and service related industries in regulated and competitive
markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful implementations, SPL continues to
demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and scalable customer
management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable unrivaled business
responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia
Pacific and has delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy customers
worldwide.

Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973) 539-6268 (New Jersey), (415) 541-9462
(San Francisco), or within the US and Canada, (800) 275-4775

About PeopleSoft CIS for Public Enterprise

Developed and built by SPL WorldGroup using the PeopleSoft tool set, the PeopleSoft CIS for
Public Enterprise solution is marketed to municipals across North America by PeopleSoft, Inc.
The package 1s designed, developed, implemented and supported by SPL WorldGroup.

About Benton Public Utility District

Benton PUD is a leading electric power and related services provider serving approximately
40,000 in Washington State. They contribute value to their community and customers by
providing energy and related services using reliable and efficient delivery systems. Visit Benton
PUD at www.bentonpud.org or call (509) 582-1209 for further information.

2001 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup, SPL and CorDaptix are trademarks owned
by SPL WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United
States and in certain foreign jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company names herein are used for
identification purposes only and are the property of their respective owners.
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EnWin Utilities Tackles Canadian Electric Restructuring using
SPL WorldGroup Solution

Canadian firm successfully implements critical software in eight months

Morristown, New Jersey—June 12th, 2001. SPL WorldGroup B.V. (SPL), the leading
provider of customer management solutions to the global energy industry, reports that EnWin
Utilities Ltd. (EnWin) has successfully implemented SPL’s market leading customer
management product for the municipal market. EnWin installed SPL’s software as part of the
company’s plans to meet the complex unbundling requirements created by the Energy
Competition Act that required restructuring of the electricity industry in Ontario, Canada.

EnWin needed to find a cost effective solution that could meet the business requirements of a
new and rapidly changing competitive market in Canada and also be up and running in only
eight months.  After reviewing the available solutions, EnWin selected the SPL software,
which is marketed to the municipal utility industry by PeopleSoft, Inc. Once selected, the SPL
implementation team took less than eight months to get EnWin in to production with project
costs right on budget. EnWin now is offering billing services to other energy companies in
Ontario utilizing SPL’s solution through an Application Service Provider (ASP).

“SPL staff represent seasoned professionals in the area of customer information system
implementation.” Said Mr. John St. Aubin, VP Customer Services for EnWin, “They are a true
resource and we relied on their experience throughout the field installation.”

“The successful implementation of EnWin is significant for SPL as it once again
demonstrates SPL’s ability to meet the dynamic needs of energy companies in
deregulating environments.” said CD Hobbs, President and Chief Executive Officer, SPL
WorldGroup, “By being innovative, SPL has provided EnWin with a full solution set
enabling EnWin to adapt to a new and changing market, and to excel and outperform the
competition.”

About SPL. WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer
management solutions to the energy and service related industries in regulated and
competitive markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful implementations,
SPL continues to demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and
scalable customer management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable
unrivaled business responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North



America, Europe, and Asia Pacific and has delivered its customer management products
to more than 50 energy customers worldwide.

Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973) 539-6268 (New Jersey),
(415) 541-9462 (San Francisco), or within the US and Canada, (800) 275-4775.Visit

About PeopleSoft CIS for Public Enterprise

Developed and built by SPL WorldGroup using the PeopleSoft tool set, the PeopleSoft
CIS for Public Enterprise solution is marketed to municipals across North America by
PeopleSoft, Inc. The package is designed, developed, implemented and supported by
SPL WorldGroup.

EnWin Utilities Ltd.

EnWin Utilities Ltd. is a successor corporation of the Windsor Utilities Commission formed
January 1, 2000. EnWin Utilities is a management company providing administrative and
customer service support to EnWin Powerlines Ltd., EnWin Energy 1.td., Windsor Canada
Utilities Ltd. and the Windsor Utilities Commission.

© 2001 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are trademarks owned by SPL
WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United States
and in certain foreign jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company names herein are used for
identification purposes only and are the property of their respective owners.
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SPL WorldGroup Tops Independent Industry Survey
Leader in installed base for both CIS and CRM categories

Morristown, New Jersey—May 31st, 2001. SPL WorldGroup B.V. (SPL), the leading supplier
of customer management solutions to the global energy industry, had its industry leading
position independently confirmed during the recent 2001 CIS Conference. The “2001
CIS/CRM Survey” soon to be published by independent industry research firm, Warren B.
Causey Ltd., was previewed in a key presentation entitled “Ready for takeoff? The CIS/CRM
Flight to the Future” during the conference by Mr. Warren B. Causey. Mr. Causey reported that
SPL had the largest installed base in almost every CIS and CRM category that was examined by
the firm.

The survey, which was conducted using telephone interviews with IT executives in 103 US
utilities, set out to establish trends and issues around CIS/CRM in the industry. It found that
SPL had the largest vendor installed base for both CIS and CRM among Investor Owned
Utilities (IOU’s) and Municipals and, in the CRM category, demonstrated that SPL had more
than twice the installed base of any other vendor.

“This is pleasing independent verification of something that we have known to be true for
sometime,” said CD Hobbs, SPL’s President and CEO. “SPL has installations at 4 of the world’s
10 largest utilities, a category in which no other vendor currently has a single installation, and an
unparalleled 100% implementation success rate. We expect that our innovative new product
CorDaptix, will help us to maintain and grow our position in the industry as the leader in
providing customer management solutions that scale and evolve with our customers’
requirements.”

“It should be borne in mind that this survey covered only the largest utilities with over 50,000
customers in the United States,” said Causey. “SPL certainly appears to have a lead in that
group.”



About SPLL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer
management solutions to the energy and service related industries in regulated and competitive
markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful implementations, SPL continues to
demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and scalable customer
management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable unrivaled business
responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia
Pacific and has delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy customers
worldwide.

Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973) 539-6268 (New Jersey), (415) 541-9462
(San Francisco), or within the US and Canada, (800) 275-4775.

About Warren B. Causey Ltd.

Warren B. Causey Ltd. was founded in 1996 by Warren B. Causey, an independent researcher,
writer and editor with more than 35 years of experience. The company produces written
materials in a variety of formats, conducts primary and secondary research, and provides some
limited consulting primarily in the areas of information technology, market research, publishing
and strictly related areas. The company is a closely held Georgia Corporation with offices in
Dallas, GA, near Atlanta

Phone 770-443-5866 or visit www.whcausey.com for further information including the “2001
CIS/CRM Survey” report.

2001 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup, SPL and CorDaptix are
trademarks owned by SPL WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are
registered as trademarks in the United States and in certain foreign jurisdictions. All other
brand, product and company names herein are used for identification purposes only and are the
property of their respective owners.
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SPL WorldGroup Set To Unveil The Future of Customer
Management Software

Morristown, New Jersey - May 3rd, 2001 SPL WorldGroup B.V. (SPL), the leading supplier
of customer management solutions to the global energy industry, will launch its new and
innovative flagship customer management software product - CorDaptix -at this year's 25th
Annual CIS conference in Albuquerque, NM. The CIS conference launch activities will mark
the start of a global product rollout by SPL that will see CorDaptix formally introduced to
Europe in late June and to Asian markets later in July. CorDaptix has been through months of
extensive testing with implementations at two of North America’s largest energy companies
including TXU, as well as with Delta in the Netherlands.

SPL's groundbreaking customer management solution will be the focal point of the company’s
booth at the CIS conference. SPL will be demonstrating CorDaptix, using a number of key
business scenarios that showcase how retailers and distributors around the world can gain
competitive advantage through use of the product. Also on show will be a demonstration of the
real-time seamless integration between CorDaptix and Siebel System's eEnergy solution.

SPL’s new product is designed to be the flexible core of a company’s customer management
solution, providing a standard product platform that can adapt and evolve with changing business
models. Through state-of-the-art design with flexibility, scalability and ease of use in mind,
CorDaptix is set to change the concept of customer management solutions across the industry.

“To meet the challenge of rapidly evolving energy consumer preferences, providers of energy
and related services must adopt systems and business processes that can change as rapidly as
their market’s preferences. CorDaptix does just that,” said CD Hobbs, SPL’s President and
CEO. “CorDaptix was designed and built as a best-of-breed “customer management core”



solution that can support innovation and rapid customer response while remaining a standard
software product upgradable as new versions become available.”

Find out more about CorDaptix and spend time with SPL WorldGroup's executive and technical
team at booth #613 at the CIS show in Albuquerque.

About SPL WorldGroup

Established in 1994, SPL WorldGroup is a leading provider of best-of-breed customer
management solutions to the energy and service related industries in regulated and competitive
markets worldwide. With a 100% record of successful implementations, SPL continues to
demonstrate its place as the market leader in providing flexible and scalable customer
management solutions that evolve with client requirements and enable unrivaled business
responsiveness. SPL employs over 600 professionals in North America, Europe, and Asia
Pacific and has delivered its customer management products to more than 50 energy customers
worldwide. -

Visit SPL WorldGroup at www.splwg.com or call (973) 539-6268 (New Jersey), (415) 541-9462
(San Francisco), or within the US and Canada, (800) 275-4775.

2001 SPL WorldGroup, Inc. All Rights Reserved. SPL WorldGroup, SPL and CorDaptix are trademarks owned
by SPL WorldGroup B.V. or its subsidiaries. SPL WorldGroup and SPL are registered as trademarks in the United
States and in certain foreign jurisdictions. All other brand, product and company names herein are used for
identification purposes only and are the property of their respective owners.



Additional Press Releases that were sent to the Company’s security holders in
connection with the Report to Shareholders dated July 11, 2001 can be found under
category I1.11 of this submission.
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SPL WorldGroup B.V.

December 13, 2001

Shareholders
SPL WorldGroup B.V.

I have met only a few of you since I joined SPL in August of 2000. Of the shareholders I have
met, Trevor, Julian, Geoff and Moshic have had an opportunity to get to know me personally and
professionally. Trevor and Moshic, of course, were on the Board at the time I was hired, and
Julian and Geoff still work within the Company. I have met others of you casually or in brief
conversations. I know that direct personal relationships are important, so please feel free to
contact Trevor, Moshic, Julian, or Geoff to get a read on my leadership of SPL. In fact, I urge you
to do so. I believe the Company and its market position have improved materially in my tenure
as CEO and that we are now well positioned for the future. But why would I suggest you check
me out with your fellow shareholders who have worked with me? Because I am about to appeal
to you for support in the upcoming board election, and the relationships I’ve formed with these
individuals may be important to you as you consider supporting my request.

As you know we are in the process of seeking a re-capitalization of SPL WorldGroup. An
important part of the re-capitalization is to provide liquidity for those shareholders who are
seeking to capture the current value of their investment in the Company. In addition to your
interest in liquidity, the recapitalization would provide an opportunity for the Company to raise
additional capital to expand our market offerings. I received a clear message through your inside
representatives on the Board that this re-capitalization is a high priority to you. I heard the
message and I believe we are very close to being able to present to you one or more offers to
purchase outstanding shares of SPL. The decision of whether to accept these offers will be in
your hands. As no offer has been made as of this date, there has been little to communicate to
shareholders as a group. Bear Stearns is working as our financial advisor for this transaction and
we are currently in due diligence with at least six very credible equity investors, meaning that
they are investigating our business and finances to determine whether they wish to proceed with
an offer.

Because of the sensitivity of this transaction, your Board of Directors, on my recommendation,
has unanimously recommended reelection of the current Board members. 1 made this
recommendation on the advice of Bear Stearns and members of our Board who are experienced in
such matters. I strongly make this recommendation to each of you.

I also discussed this recommendation with our largest shareholders. In spite of my
recommendation, we have, with the nomination of Shaul Ashkenazi, one more outside director
nominated than can be elected, and the possibility of NOT electing the existing slate of directors.
I believe this to be the result of continuing political discontent with activities of the Company in
the years preceding my joining SPL WorldGroup as CEO. However cloaked in good wishes and
rationalized as business wisdom, these initiatives are quite directly against my recommendations
and, in my judgment, risk the value of your investment. Also, it will reduce the number of



independent outside directors and increase the number of SPL insiders on the Board, which I
strongly believe is not in the best interests of the Company, especially at this time.

It 1s a fact that your Board will undergo substantial change in the near future, whether a re-
capitalization occurs or not. With the Company emerging as a premier global service provider to
the energy industry, our Board needs to also change to support our initiatives in the energy
market. Even if no re-capitalization occurs, I expect to constitute a nominating committee of the
Board to search and identify new directors who provide both experience and contacts appropriate
for the execution of the Company’s strategy. A number of Board participants have indicated a
desire to leave the Board when appropriate replacements are identified. Each of these individuals
has graciously agreed to support both SPL and me as CEO until we find suitable replacements or
complete the re-capitalization. I am grateful for their continued support. Should the re-
capitalization occur, the change in Board structure would be quite early in 2002,

I am very proud to be the CEO of SPL WorldGroup. 1 believe in our product, our market
position, and our committed management and staff. I believe we are positioning the Company to
take a prominent position in the energy markets as a premier provider of customer management
products and services. 1 believe what we have accomplished in this past year will have a posttive
impact on what we are offered by investors in the re-capitalization, in spite of the difficult market
we face. I also believe I am obligated to bring to those of you who are demanding liquidity, the
offer of liquidity for your investment.

I am asking for your support. We have a Board that works together well, is supportive of the
initiatives of the Company, and works diligently on your behalf. Keeping this Board intact
through this phase of the re-capitalization makes good business sense, regardless of what strong
feelings might remain from past relationships, decisions and actions. With your support, I feel
confident we can succeed together.

Best regards,

/s/ CD Hobbs
CD Hobbs
President and CEO
SPL WorldGroup B.V.
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STRICTLY CONFIDENTIAL

March 22, 2002

To Our Common Shareholders:

In June 2001, we hired an internationally recognized investment banking firm as our financial advisor to
help us identify private equity investors who might be interested in providing some liquidity for our
common shareholders and some working capital for the Company. Over the past several months, we have
met with a number of qualified potential investors and discussed possible equity transactions to meet those
goals. Based on those discussions, we may have opportunities to pursue possible transactions that would
provide common shareholders, and maybe also the Company, with an opportunity to sell shares to a third
party investor. We would like to gather preliminary nonbinding indications of interest from our common
shareholders to help us determine whether to pursue those opportunities.

As currently proposed, common shareholders who participate in a liquidity transaction would be asked to
bear their proportionate share of the transaction expenses, including the fees of our financial advisor. We
are not making any recommendation regarding the net price per share indicated on the attached nonbinding
questionnaire or whether shareholders should express an interest in selling at that price, any other price or at
all. However, we are aware of the liquidity concerns of our common shareholders and therefore would like
to provide you with an opportunity to express a preliminary, nonbinding indication of interest. Each
shareholder must determine for itself, along with its own advisors, whether it is interested in a particular net
price based upon its own goals and circumstances. In addition, we are not expressing a view as to whether
the Company would intend to raise financing at the indicated net price per share. However, shareholders
should be aware that any new issuances of common shares by the Company could result in dilution to
existing shareholders both economically and as to voting power. The net price per share indicated on the
attached questionnaire does not include any transfer, income, withholding or other taxes that may apply to
you.

Attached is a nonbinding questionnaire that we ask you to complete and return. Your response will be one
factor that will assist us in determining whether or not to expend any additional management and other
resources in pursuing the prospective investors we have already identified. Returning a questionnaire is
completely voluntary. It is not binding on you or us. It will only show a current indication of your potential
interest and will in no way obligate or entitle you to sell, or receive any consideration for, any shares, and
will not obligate us to take any action with respect to potential offers or sales of shares or any other matter.
You will not be precluded from participating in a possible future transaction solely by reason of your failure
to reply.

Neither this letter nor the attached questionnaire, together or separately, constitutes an offer by the
Company or any other person to buy, or a solicitation of an offer to sell, common shares or any other
securities of the Company.

1

SPL WORLDGROUP B.V.
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To ensure that we have sufficient time to review and analyze responses, we would appreciate
receiving your questionnaire by April 5, 2002. Please send your response, via e-mail (which is preferred),
facsimile or regular mail, to:

SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Mr. Richard Zolezzi
Senior Vice President, Administration
and General Counsel
75 Hawthorne Plaza, 20" Floor

San Francisco, CA 94105
Tel: (415) 3574767
Fax: (415) 974-8966

Email: richard_zolezzi@splwg.com

Please feel free to contact me or Richard Zolezzi if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

/s/ CD Hobbs

CD Hobbs
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Neither this letter nor the attached questionnaire, together or separately, constitutes an offer by the
Company or any other person to buy, or a solicitation of an offer to sell, common shares or any other
securities of the Company.



NONBINDING QUESTIONNAIRE

Name of Shareholder:

Number of Shares Held:

If the Company pursued a possible transaction that could result in your having an
opportunity to sell any of your shares at a net price of US $3.50 per share, what percentage
of your shares, if any, would you consider selling? Please check one of the following:

up to 100%

up to 75%

up to 50%

up to 25%

None.

Other comments:

Please submit only one reply per shareholder or group of related shareholders.

Neither this letter nor the attached questionnaire, together or separately, constitutes an offer by the
Company or any other person to buy, or a solicitation of an offer to sell, common shares or any other
securities of the Company.



SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Report to Shareholders e/
July 31, 2002

Dear Shareholder:

Following shareholder approval last May, the Company changed its fiscal year-end date for accounting
purposes from June 30 to December 31 of each year. Our auditors then proceeded to audit our accounts for
the calendar year period ending December 31, 2001. We are very pleased to provide to you a copy of that
audit report with this letter, and to take the opportunity to report to you some of the principal events over the
past few months.

Financial Summary

As noted above, our new fiscal year ends on December 31. The audited financial statements of the Company
for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2001 are enclosed with this letter. Our next audit will be performed
as of December 31, 2002 so you should expect to receive those audited statements on or before March 31,
2003.

As we just closed our financial year ending June 30, we are pleased to summarize those unaudited results for
you. For the year ended June 30, 2002, our revenues were US $100.1 million and our operating margin for
the year was 6.5%. This represents revenue growth over the prior twelve months of 15% and operating
margin of US $6.5 million versus an operating loss as of June 30, 2001 of US $1.9 million. Cash on hand
increased from US $23.4 million as of June 30, 2001 to a healthy US $43.3 million as of June 30, 2002.
Operating margin for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2002 was even stronger at 10%. While we are proud
of these results, particularly in the current depressed general business climate, we appreciate that the global
economy is suffering and we must be aware that the business climate may begin to negatively affect our
clients and their demand for our product and services as we move forward.

Release of CorDaptix™ 1.4

Today marks a very nice milestone for SPL with the on-time release of CorDaptix 1.4. This new version of
our product represents over nine months of work by our Product Development Group. Among many new
features, Version 1.4 incorporates sophisticated interval billing functionality that allows our largest utility
customers to easily offer varying energy rates to their customers throughout a normal business day. Version
1.4 also offers expanded utility sales and marketing functionality that is necessary for the customer service
representatives of a utility to better service the utility’s customers. We are a reflection of our people and
nowhere is that more true than in our world class and dedicated Product Development Group.

Geographic Expansion

In June we signed our first license agreement for use of our product CorDaptix™ in South America. We are
licensing CorDaptix™ to Deloitte Consulting for use by Comgas in Brazil. We view this project as an
important first step to be able to enter the market in South America and also an important collaboration with
a global implementation partner. Since joining SPL almost two years ago, I have accelerated the pace set to
become a products company. As part of that strategy, we encourage collaboration with large-scale
implementation partners, such as the large consulting firms, to better enable us to access large customers and
to work in geographies where we have little or no presence. This strategy has facilitated our ability to work



with many utilities around the world. Notably, we are working with Accenture to implement CorDaptix at
Eskom in South Africa and at Nicor Gas in the US, with Logica at Delta N.V. in the Netherlands, and with
Cap Gemini at Electricité¢ de France. In recognition of the global nature of the utility industry, our product is
available in English and French and we are currently translating it into Chinese, Japanese and Portuguese.

Business Ethics

Given the recent notorious failures of once respected companies such as Enron, WorldCom and Vivendi in
France, I want to mention that the conservative, customer-centric culture of SPL stands our Company in
good stead in our current business atmosphere. We believe our employees are proud to be a part of SPL,
which is a company that takes pride in doing good business: meaning business that is good for SPL and good
for our customers as well. We have been audited by Emst & Young for the prior seven years. They know
our business well and we maintain a close, professional relationship with them.

Management: Appointments and Moves

We are happy to announce that Michael Martini, a veteran of the telecom and cable industries, joined SPL as
Chief Financial Officer in January 2002. Mike brings over 20 years experience in Finance for these service
industries and long experience in SEC reporting and compliance. Additionally, to bring added strength to
our efforts in EMEA (Europe, Middle East and Africa) we promoted Andrew Dean, our senior Australian
sales executive, to be the new Vice President, Sales for EMEA. Andrew is now based in London. We also
appointed SPL veteran, Julian Brandes, to be the Managing Director for our business efforts in EMEA.
EMEA has been a very active market for us. The assignments of Andrew and Julian demonstrate our
commitment to exploit the EMEA opportunity with some of our best and longstanding SPL employees.

Marketing News

In June, the annual CIS trade show was held in Baltimore, Maryland. This conference gave us the
opportunity to demonstrate the expanded functionality in CorDaptix, as well as to show the market the close
integration our product has with other related software vendors, such as Siebel Systems. In fact, Siebel
Systems shared the SPL booth at the show where we jointly demonstrated the easy integration we now have
with the Siebel product. Siebel is one of the leading global sellers of customer relationship management
software and we jointly pursue projects with them. Both Siebel Systems and Sun Microsystems had their
only presence at the CIS show in the SPL booth, a marketing coup for SPL!

Our Marketing Group continues to be very active in raising our presence in the market and positioning
CorDaptix as the market-leading customer management solution for the global utilities industry. In support
of the release of CorDaptix 1.4, SPL Marketing is scheduling webcasts with our customers and partners
around the world to introduce them to the new version and reinforce our communication channels for input
into future product functionality that they need.

At a time when the utilities are facing so much change, particularly from deregulation and increased
economic pressures, we believe we are viewed as the innovative solution provider, managed by seasoned ex-
utilities executives who have something to say to the industry. SPL senior management regularly
participates on industry conference panels. Over the past year, I have given addresses at utility conferences
in Vancouver and Prague. We also regularly contribute articles to the trade press on the direction of
Information Technology to the global utility industry.



Investor Relations
We strive to be responsive to you, the owners of SPL, and invite you to contact us if we can address any

questions or comments you may have. Please contact us at investor_relations@splwg.com or feel free to call
me directly at my Morristown office +1 973 451-4238.

Personal regards,

CD Hobbs
Chairman and CEO

Attachment
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Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
SPL WorldGroup B.V.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of SPL WorldGroup B.V. as of
December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2001 and the period from July I, 2000
through December 31, 2000. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles.used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of SPL WorldGroup B.V. at December 31, 2001 and 2000,
and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31,
2001 and the period from July 1, 2000 through December 31, 2000, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

émt-f l LLP

May 3, 2002



SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands)

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, less allowances of $3,491
and $3,709 in 2001 and 2000, respectively

Prepaid expenses and other receivables
Deferred income taxes
Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Other assets
Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable

Accrued compensation and related expenses

Accrued liabilities and other
Income taxes payable
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Deferred income taxes
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies
Redeemable convertible preferred stock

Stockholders’ equity:
Convertible preferred stock
Common stock
Retained earnings
Stockholder notes receivable
Cumulative translation adjustment
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See accompanying notes.

December 31,

2001 2000
$ 36,294 $ 34215
23,942 20,590
2,357 2,385
1,874 3,621
64,467 60,811
6,697 6,108
97 185

$ 71,261 S 67,104
$ 1,126 $ 2,145
10,010 8,462
4,354 7,529
1,752 3,362
14,617 7,250
31,859 28,748
149 ~
32,008 28,748
6,260 5,773
5,861 5,861
6,684 9,557
24,876 22,941
(228) (2,309)
(4,200) (3,467)
32,993 32,583
s 71261 $ 67,104




SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Consolidated Statements of Income

(In thousands)
Period from
July 1, 2000
Year ended through
December 31, December 31,
2001 2000
Revenues:
Services $ 77,910 $ 34,898
License fees 14,642 6,933
Total revenues 92,552 41,831
Costs and expenses:
Cost of services 36,975 16,601
Cost of license fees 672 213
Product development 8,125 4,036
Sales and marketing 15,244 7,147
General and administrative 29,039 15,664
Total costs and expenses 90,055 43,661
Income (loss) from operations 2,497 (1,830)
Other income (expense):
Interest income 1,196 1,125
Interest expense 8 (52)
Other 227 1,263
1,415 2,336
Income before income taxes 3,912 506
Provision (benefit) for income taxes 1,492 (227)
Net income 2,420 733
Preferred stock dividends 485 244
Net income attributable to common stockholders $ 1,935 $ 489

See accompanying notes.
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SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)

Period from
July 1,2000

Year ended through
December 31, December 31,
2001 2000

Operating activities
Net income $ 2,420 $ 733
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortiz ation 2,767 1,274
Deferred income taxes 1,726 340
Interest on stockho Ider notes receivable ($9] (73)
Compensation recognized for acc eleration of stock options 70 171
Tax benefit from stock option exe reises 7 116
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (4,085) (3,049)
Prepaid expenses and other 116 (386)
Accounts payable and accrued compensation and related expenses 531 (55)
Income taxes payable, net (1,440) (6,286)
Deferred revenue 7,367 70
Accrued liabilities and other (1,806) (1,292)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 7,664 (8,437)
Investing activities
Purchase of property and equipment (3,356) (1,678)
Net cash used in investing activities (3,356) (1,678)
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 9 178
Exercise of put options by employees (168) 214)
Loans to stockholder (1,892) -
Repayments of long-term debt (178) (208)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,229) (244)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,079 (10,359)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 34,215 44,574
Cash and cash equival ents at end of year $ 36,294 $ 34215

Supplemental dis closure
Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds $ 234 $ 5,181

Cash paid for interest 3 12 $ 41

Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing and financing activities
Preferred stock dividends $ 485 $ 244

@

Cancellation of stockholder notes receivable 3,982 $ 247

See accompanying notes.



SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2001

1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of Business

SPL WorldGroup B.V. (collectively “SPL” or the “Company™) is a provider of customer
management software solutions to the energy and services related industries in regulated and
competitive markets worldwide. SPL, a Netherlands company, was incorporated on March 28,
1994,

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of SPL, which have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America,
include the accounts of SPL and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany
balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Effective June 30, 2000, the Company effected a “demerger” transaction under Dutch law
pursuant to which the Company’s consulting division was transferred to a newly formed Dutch
company, WorldGroup Consulting B.V. (“Consulting”), and the Company’s remaining
enterprise support division was transferred to a newly formed Dutch company, SPL Holdings
B.V. (“Enterprise Support”). All of the capital stock of these two companies was then distributed
in the form of a tax-free pro rata spin-off (the “Spin-off”) to all existing stockholders of the
Company. The accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2001 and 2000
exclude the assets and liabilities of the Consulting and Enterprise Support divisions. The July 1,
2000 retained earnings balance includes a reduction of $1,196,000 from amounts previously
reported with a corresponding increase in accrued liabilities for subsequent returns of capital
made to Consulting and Enterprise Support in the Spin-off.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.



SPL WorldGroup B.V.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, which consist primarily of cash and highly liquid short-term
investments with insignificant interest rate risk and maturities of three months or less at the date
of purchase, are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.

As part of a collateral requirement with a customer as of December 31, 2001, the Company is
required to maintain on deposit $1,349,000 in a certificate of deposit.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk
consist principally of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The Company places its
cash and cash equivalents with high-credit, quality financial institutions. While the Company’s
business is concentrated in the utilities industry, the Company believes its concentrations of
credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is mitigated by the number of geographic areas in
which the Company conducts business. Generally, the Company does not require collateral or
other security to support customer receivables, which are principally from end users of the
Company’s products and services. The Company performs periodic credit evaluations of its
customers and maintains an allowance for potential credit losses based on historical experience
and other information available to management. Actual credit losses may differ significantly
from estimated amounts included in the allowance for doubtful accounts, and such differences
could be material to the consolidated financial statements.

Included in accounts receivable as of December 31, 2001 is $3.8 million for software and
services from a company that filed for protection under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code.
The Company continues to provide services to this customer and payments for services provided
subsequent to the bankruptcy filing are being received in accordance with stated payment terms.
Realization of the accounts receivable at December 31, 2001 is subject to the outcome of the
bankruptcy proceedings, the results of which cannot presently be determined; however, the
Company believes that resolution of this matter will not result in a material loss.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Depreciation and amortization are provided over the estimated useful lives of three to five years
using the straight-line method. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis
over the lesser of the remaining lease term or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Software Development Costs

The Company accounts for software development costs in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 86, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer
Software to be Sold, Leased, or Otherwise Marketed,” under which certain software
development costs incurred subsequent to the establishment of technological feasibility are
capitalized and amortized over the estimated lives of the related products. Technological
feasibility is established upon completion of a working model. For the year ended December 31,
2001 and the period from July 1, 2000 through December 31, 2000, costs incurred subsequent to
the establishment of technological feasibility have not been significant, and all software
development costs have been charged to product development expense in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for
Income Taxes,” which requires recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities based on
differences between financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities measured using
enacted tax rates and laws that are expected to be in effect when the differences are expected to
reverse.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for employee stock options in accordance with Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB 25”) and related
interpretations rather than adopting the alternative fair value accounting provided for under
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” Under APB 25, because the
exercise price of the Company’s stock options equals the fair value of the underlying stock on
the date of grant, no compensation expense is recorded.

Foreign Currency Translation

All amounts included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements are stated in United
States dollars, which is the reporting currency of the Company. In general, the functional
currency of a foreign operation is deemed to be the local country’s currency. Assets and
liabilities of operations denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate
at the end of the applicable reporting period. The cumulative effects of foreign currency
translation adjustments are included as a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Foreign
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign Currency Translation (continued)

currency transaction gains and losses are included in other income. The accompanying
consolidated statements of income include net foreign currency transaction gains of
approximately $230,000 and $1,412,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001 and the period
from July 1, 2000 through December 31, 2000, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

The Company provides computer systems integration and software licenses to customers under
contractual arrangements. The Company recognizes revenues in accordance with provisions of
Statement of Position (“SOP”) 97-2, “Software Revenue Recognition,” as modified by SOP 98-9
and SOP 81-1, “Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain Production-Type
Contracts.” Revenue is recognized when there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement, the
software is delivered, collection is probable, and the fee is fixed or determinable.

Revenue for integration services and related software license fees are recognized at the contract
amounts either as the services are performed (for time and material contracts) or under the
percentage-of-completion method (for fixed-price contracts). The percentage-of-completion
method is dependent on estimates of remaining effort required to complete the project and is
determined using the number of hours incurred as compared to the total estimated hours to
complete the contract. Actual remaining effort could vary significantly from the estimates, and
such differences could be material to the consolidated financial statements. For contracts with
customers that require retention amounts, subject to acceptance, such amounts are included in
accounts receivable in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Losses on contracts, if
any, are provided for in full in the period when determined.

When services being performed are essential to the functionality of the software licenses, license
revenue is recognized using the percentage-of-completion method and determined by the number
of hours incurred as compared to the total estimated hours to complete the contract.

Revenue from maintenance contracts, which is included in service revenue, is recognized ratably
over the term of the maintenance agreement, which is generally one year. These contracts
typically call for the Company to provide support, software updates and upgrades to customers.

Royalty fees are generally recognized as they are reported by the reseller and are included as
license fees in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Pelicies (continued)

Accounts receivable includes revenue billed under the terms of the contract or agreement,
licenses and services revenue recognized but not yet billed, and out-of-pocket expenses that are
recoverable from the customer. Revenue earned but not billed as of December 31, 2001 and 2000
amounted to $1,622,000 and $3,421,000, respectively. Accounts receivable also includes
retention amounts due to the Company upon completion of the related contract. Retentions
included in receivables amounted to $4,219,000 and $2,508,000 as of December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively, which will be due upon completion of the contract and customer acceptance.

Deferred Revenues

Deferred revenues relate primarily to license fees paid in advance of project completion and
maintenance agreements, which are typically paid for by customers in advance of the
performance of those services.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed during the periods in which they are incurred. Advertising
expenses for the years ended December 31, 2001 and for the period from July 1, 2000 through
December 31, 2000 were approximately $399,250 and $25,970, respectively.

Impact of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets” (“FAS 144”), which addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or
disposal of long-lived assets and supercedes SFAS No. 121, “Accounting for the Impairment of
Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of,” and the accounting and
reporting provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations”, for a
disposal of a segment of business. FAS 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning December 15,
2001, with earlier application encouraged. The Company expects to adopt FAS 144 as of
January 1, 2002, and it does not expect that the adoption of the Statement will have a significant
impact on the Company’s financial position and results of operations.

In November 2001, the Emerging Issues Task Force issued an announcement on the topic of
“Income Statement Characterization of Reimbursements for Out of Pocket Expense Incurred”
(the “Announcement”). The Announcement requires companies to characterize reimbursements
received for out of pocket expenses incurred as revenue in the income statement. The
Announcement will be applied in financial reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2001,
and comparative financial statements for prior periods should be reclassified to comply with the
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

1. Description of Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impact of Recent Accounting Pronouncements (continued)

guidance in the Announcement. The Company will adopt the Announcement as of
January 1, 2002. The Company netted reimbursements received for out of pocket expenses
against related expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. The
Announcement will have no impact on gross profit or net loss and should not significantly
increase services revenue and cost of services revenue.

2. Licensing Agreement with Related Party

In February 1999, the Company entered into a Joint Development and Marketing Agreement
with PeopleSoft, Inc. (“PeopleSoft”), a stockholder of the Company. This agreement calls for the
development and marketing of a PeopleTools version of the Company’s proprietary customer
information system software (“CIS PLUS®”). Under this agreement, the Company receives
royalties on license and maintenance sales of PeopleTools CIS PLUS®. A minimum royalty of
$8 million is due over the five-year period ending June 30, 2003. In each period, the Company
recognizes the greater of the amount earned on sales of the PeopleTools product or the minimum
annual royalty amount. The Company recognized fees of $2.3 million and $0.7 million under this
agreement in the year ended December 31, 2001 and the period from July 1, 2000 through
December 31, 2000, respectively.

3. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consists of the following:

December 31,
2001 2000 .

(In thousands)

Computer equipment $10,879 $ 9,123
Office furniture and equipment 3,453 2,849
Automobiles 87 141
Leasehold improvements 2,254 1,176
16,673 13,289
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (9,976) (7,181)

Net property and equipment $ 6,697 $ 6,108

11
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

4. Debt Obligations
Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt of $178,000 at December 31, 2000, consists of promissory notes with interest
rates between 7.5% and 9.7% and with maturity dates in October 2001. This amount is included
in accrued liabilities and other in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. There was no
long-term debt outstanding at December 31, 2001.

5. Stockholders’ Equity
Capital Stock

As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company’s capital stock consists of the following:

Shares
Series Outstanding at December 31,
Authorized 2001 2000
A redeemable convertible preferred 1,120,020 1,120,020 1,120,020
B convertible preferred 597,600 597,600 597,600
A common 4,480,000 None None
B common 52,302,300 11,947,395 11,979,063
C common 4,000,000 None None

The Company’s three classes of common stock have the same features and rights. Series A and
Series B preferred shares may only be converted into Series A and C common shares,
respectively.

Preferred Stock

Series A

The Company issued 1,120,020 shares of Series A redeemable convertible preferred stock for net
proceeds of $3,672,000. Subject to certain anti-dilution provisions, each share of Series A
preferred stock is convertible into one share of Series A common stock. Preferred shares
automatically convert into common stock upon a Qualified Initial Public Offering (“Qualified
IPO”). A Qualified IPO is defined as a public offering whereby aggregate net proceeds exceed
$17.5 million and the price per share is at least three times the Series A original issuance price
(or $11.25 per share). Dividends on the Series A preferred stock are cumulative at 8% of the
issue price, compounded. Dividends totaling $485,000 and $244,000 were accrued in the year
ended December 31, 2001 and the period from July 1, 2000 through December 31, 2000,
respectively.

12
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

5. Stockholders’ Equity (continued)
Preferred Stock (continued)

These dividends were unpaid as of December 31, 2001 and are included with redeemable
convertible preferred stock in the consolidated balance sheets. At the election of any holder of
Series A preferred stock, up to 50% of that holder’s dividend may be payable in shares of the
Series A common stock. The dividend requirements of the Series A preferred stock must be
satisfied prior to payment of any dividends or distributions with respect to the Company’s other
classes of capital stock. The redemption provision of the Series A preferred permits holders, at
any time after October 31, 2000, to redeem their shares with the Company for the price paid plus
any accrued dividends. As of December 31, 2001, no shares have been redeemed.

Series B

Shares of Series B convertible preferred stock are subject to certain antidilution provisions, each
share of Series B preferred stock is convertible into one share of Series C common stock.
Preferred shares automatically convert into common stock upon a Qualified IPO.

At December 31, 2001, aggregate liquidation preferences were $6,260,000 and $4,183,000 for
the Series A and Series B preferred stock, respectively. Both Series A and Series B preferred
stockholders are entitled to voting rights equivalent to the number of common shares into which
their shares are convertible.

Warrants

In connection with the issuance of Series A preferred stock, the Company issued warrants to
purchase 750,400 shares of Series B common stock at an exercise price of $3.75 per share. At
December 31, 2001, warrants to purchase 485,340 shares of Series B common stock expired
unexercised. The remaining warrants to purchase 265,060 shares of Series B common stock
expire in February 2002.

The Company has warrants to purchase 25,000 shares of Series B common stock at an exercise

price of $4.20 per share outstanding which are exercisable immediately and expire in August
2007.

13
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

5. Stockholders’ Equity (continued)
Stockholder Notes Receivable

During the period ended June 30, 2000, the Company granted to its former Chief Executive
Officer, an option to put to the Company 664,605 common shares owned by the former Chief
Executive Officer at $4.20 per share. In March 2001, the former Chief Executive Officer
exercised his put option. The Company paid cash and received additional notes receivable of
$1,892,000 supplemental to the $2,058,000 of loans, including interest previously granted. These
notes receivable bear interest ranging from 4.8% to 6.4%. The stockholder notes receivable and
the related put option were accounted for as a variable compensation arrangement.

As of December 31, 2001, notes receivable in the amount of $228,000 from stockholders of the
Company arising from the issuance of 32,450 shares of common stock to employees have been
recorded as a reduction of stockholders’ equity in the consolidated balance sheets. The full
recourse notes bear interest at 7%.

In July 2001, the Company loaned $2,791,000 to Stitching SPL. WorldGroup Employee Stock
(“SES”), a foundation established under Dutch law. This note is due in July 2004. The objectives
of SES are to stimulate and promote the shareholding by employees of SPL and other interested
parties of shares in the capital of SPL, whether or not in connection with an employee stock plan.
In July 2001, the former Chief Executive Officer sold 664,605 shares of Company common
stock to SES, which shares are treated as outstanding by the Company. In accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles, SES has been consolidated with the Company.

Shares Reserved for Future Issuance

At December 31, 2001, the Company had reserved 1,120,020 shares of Series A common stock
for the conversion of Series A preferred shares; 9,936,160 shares of Series B common stock for
future issuance, including 290,060 shares reserved for exercise of warrants and 9,646,100 shares
for the exercise of stock options; and 597,600 shares of Series C common stock for the
conversion of Series B preferred shares.

Stock Option Plan

The Company has stock and stock option plans that cover the issuance of stock purchase rights,
incentive stock options and nonqualified stock options (hereinafter collectively referred to as
“options”). The plans provide for the purchase of up to 10,852,872 shares of the Company’s
common stock. Stock purchase rights, entitling the grantee to purchase restricted stock, may be
granted under the 1998 stock plan. Under the terms of all plans, options may be granted to
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

5. Stockholders’ Equity (continued)
Stock Option Plan (continued)

qualified employees, directors and under certain plans, consultants at prices determined by the
administrator of the plan on the date of grant. The exercise price must be equal to at least 85% of
the current fair market value of the underlying shares in the case of a nonqualified stock option
or 100% in the case of an incentive stock option, except under the 1995 and 1997 Management
Stock Option Plans, which permit the granting of options with an exercise price as determined by
the Board of Directors, which may be below fair market value of the underlying shares. Vesting
periods are determined by the Board of Directors, and are generally three to four years from the
date of grant. Options expire at the earlier of ten years from the plan inception date for incentive
and nonqualified stock options granted under the Company’s 1995 or 1997 Option Plans (ten
years from the grant date under the 1998 Plan), or five years from the time of grant for incentive
stock options granted to a 10% stockholder or three months from the date of the optionee’s
termination of association with the Company.

Information relating to the outstanding stock options is as follows:

Options Outstanding

Weighted-

Options Average

Available for Number of Exercise
Grant Shares Price
Outstanding at July 1, 2000 4,594916 5,201,800 $3.13
Granted (2,178,715) 2,178,715 4.20
Exercised - (142,284) 1.73
Canceled 364,771 (364,771) 3.90
Outstanding at December 31, 2000 2,780,972 6,873,460 3.45
Granted (2,261,366) 2,261,366 4.20
Exercised - (8,332) 2.15
Canceled 993,110 (993,110) 3.50
Outstanding at December 31, 2001 1,512,716 8,133,384 $3.65
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5. Stockholders’ Equity (continued)
Stock Option Plan (continued)

The following table summarizes information with respect to stock options outstanding at
December 31, 2001:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-
Average Weighted- Weighted-
Remaining Average Average
Range of Number of Contractual  Exercise Number of  Exercise
Exercise Prices Shares Life (Years) Price Shares Price
$0.87 - $2.69 1,549,011 4.29 $1.98 1,583,125 $1.98
$3.22 - $3.85 1,840,707 7.07 $3.68 1,166,386 $3.59
$3.87-%4.20 4,743,666 8.97 $4.20 1,175,580 $4.20
$0.87 - $4.20 8,133,384 7.63 $3.65 3,925,091 $3.12

Pro Forma Disclosures of the Effect of Stock-Based Compensation

The weighted-average fair value at the grant date of options granted during the year ended
December 31, 2001 and the period from July 1, 2000 through December 31, 2000 was $1.08, and
$0.97, respectively. The fair value of each option granted was estimated on the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option valuation model with the following weighted-average
assumptions for the year ended December 31, 2001 and the period from July 1, 2000 through
December 31, 2000, respectively: risk free interest rate of 4.3%; no dividend yield; no volatility
factor of the expected market price of the Company’s common stock; and an expected option life
of six years.

If the Company had recognized compensation cost based on the fair value of the options as
prescribed by SFAS No. 123, pro forma net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders
would be as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2001 2000

(In thousands)
Pro forma net income (loss) attributable to
common stockholders $ 144 $ (373)
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6. Provision for Income Taxes
Significant components of the provision for income taxes consist of the following:
Year ended December 31,

2001 2000
(In thousands)

Current:

U.S. federal $ 357 §  (1,268)
State and local 10 (796)
Foreign 1,113 1,497
(234) (567)

Deferred:
U.S. federal 1,121 504
State and local - -
Foreign 605 (164)
1,726 340
Total provision for income taxes $ 1492 S (227)

The provision for income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying the statutory
federal rate to pretax income as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2001 2000
Federal statutory rate 35.0% 35.0%
Foreign taxes in excess of U.S. statutory rates 3. 1% 25.9%
Increase in valuation allowance ‘ 31.4% 330.0%
Tax credits (13.5)% (176.3)%
State and local taxes 0.3% (157.3)%
Other (11.3)% (102.2)%
Effective income tax rate 38.2% (44.9)%
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6. Provision for Income Taxes (continued)
Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:
December 31,

2001 2000
(In thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Net operating loss carryforwards $ 441 $ 203
Tax credit carryforwards 1,420 892
Compensation accruals 1,377 1,911
Accrued expenses 112 1,460
Deferred revenue 901 -
Other, net 1,314 1,696
5,565 6,162
Valuation allowance (3,213) (2,052)
2,352 4,110
Deferred tax liabilities:
Unremitted earnings 150 150
Other, net 307 339
457 489
Net deferred tax assets $ 1,895 $ 3,621

The valuation allowance increased by $1,161,000 and $1,244,000 during the year ended
December 31, 2001 and the period from July 1, 2000 through December 31, 2000, respectively.
Realization of the Company’s net deferred tax assets is dependent on the Company generating
sufficient taxable income in future years in appropriate tax jurisdictions to obtain benefit from
the reversal of temporary differences and from tax credit carryforwards. The amount of deferred
tax assets considered realizable is subject to adjustment in future periods if estimates of future
taxable income are reduced.

As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company had state net operating loss carryforwards of
approximately $3,388,000 and $7,356,000, respectively, which begin to expire in 2005.
Utilization of the Company’s loss carryforwards may be subject to annual limitations due to
change in ownership provisions in various tax jurisdictions. Any such limitations could result in
the expiration of the net operating carryforwards before utilization. As of December 31, 2001
and 2000, the Company had tax credit carryforwards of approximately $1,420,000 and $892,000,
respectively, which begin to expire in 2005.
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6. Provision for Income Taxes (continued)

As of December 31, 2000, the Company’s subsidiary in the United Kingdom had an operating
loss carryforward of approximately $1,000,000, which was fully utilized in 2001.

7. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases its office facilities under operating leases with renewal options and
escalation clauses expiring through the year 2006. These leases require the Company to pay
operating costs, including property taxes, insurance and maintenance and generally contain
renewal options and provisions adjusting the lease payments based upon changes in the U.S.
Consumer Price Index or local equivalent.

Future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases having initial terms in
excess of one year are as follows (in thousands):

Year ending December 31,

2002 $ 2,518
2003 2,683
2004 2,062
2005 1,963
2006 1,564
Thereafter 2,145

$ 12,935

Rent expense amounted to approximately $2,391,000 and $1,144,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2001 and the period from July 1, 2000 through December 31, 2000, respectively.

8. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has multiple employee benefit plans covering groups of its employees within the
United States and throughout the world. Employee contributions are determined based upon
local standards and requirements. The Company’s contributions to these plans include both
mandatory and discretionary contributions. No discretionary contributions were made during the
year ended December 31, 2001 and the period from July 1, 2000 through December 31, 2000.
Mandatory Company contributions for the year ended December 31, 2001 and the period from
July 1, 2000 through December 31, 2000 were approximately $2.1 million and $1.1 million,
respectively.
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9. Information by Geographic Area

Information regarding operating information and identifiable assets for continuing operations by
geographic area is as follows:

For the period

from July 1,

Year ended 2000 through
December 31, December 31,

2001 2000
(In thousands)
Revenues:
United States $ 80,595 $35,791
Foreign 11,957 6,040
92,552 41,831
Income before income taxes:
United States $ 3419 $ 3,869
Foreign 493 (3,363)
$ 3,912 $ 506

December 31,
2001 2000
(In thousands)

Total assets:

United States $ 53279 $51,672
Foreign 17,982 15,432
$ 71,261 $67.104

10. Major Customers

One customer accounted for approximately 20% of revenues for the year ended December 31,
2001. Two customers accounted for 22% and 14% of revenues for the period from July 1, 2000
through December 31, 2000.

Two customers each accounted for approximately 14% of accounts receivable as of
December 31, 2001. One customer accounted for approximately 12% of accounts receivable as
of December 31, 2000.
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